Northern Inyo Hospital

March 20 2019 Regular Meeting

March 20 2019 Regular Meeting - March 20 2019 Regular Me

Agenda, March 20 2019 Regular Meeting

Agenda, March 20 2019 Regular MEetiNg ......cccevuuuiiieiiiiiieeeeee e ee e e e e e e e eeee 2
Chief of Staff Report

Medical Executive Committee report, March 2019 ..o, 6

Medical Staff Policy and Procedure approvals, March 2019 .........ccccccceeiiiiiiiieeennnnns 8
Joint Commission Accreditation

Accreditation Data Update, Critical Access HospitalS........cccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineeee, 55

Joint COMMISSION SUIMVEY REPOIT . .ciieiii e e e 80

Community Health Needs Assessment
Community Health Needs Assessment information ............ccccceevevviiii e eeees 119

Pioneer Home Health Annual Budget
Pioneer Home Health annual budget ... 166

Strategic and Fiscal Strategy Review

Strategic and Fiscal Strategy REVIEW ........ccoviviiiiiiiiiiiiieieiiiis et eeeaannns 175
District Board Resolution 19-03

District Board Resolution 19-03 ... 421
Consent Agenda

Policy and Procedure annual approvals ... 422

Minutes, January 28 Special MEELING ....ccoevviiiiii e 426

Minutes, February 20 2019 Regular Meeting ........ccuuvviiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiee e 427


http://www.tcpdf.org

AGENDA

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

March 20, 2019 at 5:30 p.m.
2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA

. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).
. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter
within the jurisdiction of the District Board (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to
address the Board on every item on the agenda. Speakers are limited to a maximum of three
minutes each).
. Chief of Staff Report; Allison Robinson MD:
A. Policy and Procedure approvals (action items):
1. Preoperative Medication Guidelines
2. Newborn Screening Test
B. Annual Reviews (action items):
1. Utilization Review Plan
2. Utilization Review Critical Indicators 2019
3. Radiology Critical Indicators 2019
4. MRI Safety Policies
i.  Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety — Magnet Room
ii.  Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety Burn/Thermal Incident Reduction
iii.  Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety, Ear Protection
5. Radiation Safety Policies
i.  Diagnostic Imaging — Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-nuclear medicine
personnel
ii.  Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Material Hot Lab Security
iii.  Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours
iv.  Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Waste Storage and Disposal
v.  Diagnostic Imaging — Disposal of Radioactive Sharps
vi.  Diagnostic Imaging — Nuclear Medicine New Employee/Annual Orientation
vii.  Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Material Spills
viii.  ALARA Program



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 20, 2019

ix.  Diagnostic Imaging — C-Arm (Flouroscope) Radiation Safety
C. Medical Staff Appointments (action items):
1. Anu Agarwal, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
2. Abhilash Akinapelli, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
3. Jack Ichino, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
4. Thomas-Duythuc To, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
5. Jeannie Pflum, DO (Obstetrics & Gynecology) — Consulting Staff
D. Temporary Privileges (action items):
1. Muhammad Gill, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff
2. Joseph BenPerlas, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff
3. Bonnie Rashid, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff
E. Telemedicine Privileges — Credentialing by Proxy (action item):
As per the approved Telemedicine Physician Credentialing and Privileging Agreement,
and as outlined and allowed by 42CFR 482.22, the Medical Staff has chosen to
recommend the following practitioner for Telemedicine privileges relying upon Adventist
Health s credentialing and privileging decisions:
1. Arin Aboulian, MD (Pulmonology) — Glendale Adventist Telemedicine Staff
F. Reappointment to New Staff Category (action item):
1. Taema Weiss, MD (Family Medicine) — recommended Staff category change from
Active Staff to Consulting Staff without clinical privileges
G. Advancement (action item):
The following Medical Staff member has satisfactorily completed their introductory
focused professional practice evaluations and has been recommended to advance from
Provisional Staff in the category listed
1. John Adam Hawkins, DO (Emergency Medicine) — advancement to Active Staff
H. Resignation (action item):
1. Sandra Althaus, MD (Radiology) — effective 1/14/19
I. Updated Core Privilege Forms (action items):
1. Family Medicine
2. Obstetrics and Gynecology
4. New Business

A. Strategic Plan update, Finance and Market Share Committee report (information item).

3/18/2019, 9:02 AM



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 20, 2019

B. Approval of NIHD Foundation Board members Tawny Thomson and Corrina Korpi
(action item).
C. Joint Commission Accreditation report (information item).
D. Chief Executive Officer report (information item).
E. Community Health Needs Assessment update (information item).
F. Approval of Pioneer Home Health annual budget (action item).
G. Strategic and Fiscal Strategy Review (information item).
H. Chief Operating Officer report (information item).
I. Chief Nursing Officer report (information item).
J. Chief Financial Officer report (information item).
K. District Board Resolution 19-03, designation of Benefits and Compensation account
representatives (action item).
L. Discuss dates for Strategic Planning session (discussion item).
M. Discussion of components for legal RFP process (discussion item).
5. Old Business
A. Chief of Staff Job Description and stipend change approval (action item).
B. Chief Physician Quality Officer Job Description and stipend approval (action item).

C. Athena implementation update (information item).

Consent Agenda (action items)
Approval of minutes of the January 28 2019 special meeting
Approval of minutes of the February 20 2019 regular meeting

Policy and Procedure annual approvals

© © N o

Acceptance of Pioneer Home Health Designation of Affiliated Covered Entity

10. Reports from Board members (information items).
11. Adjournment to closed session to/for:
A. Public employee performance evaluation, Chief Executive Officer (pursuant to Government
Code Section 54957).
B. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding anticipated litigation or significant exposure to
litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b)), 2 potential cases.

C. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding existing litigation, Inyo County Local Agency

3/18/2019, 9:02 AM



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 20, 2019

Formation Commission and Northern Inyo Healthcare District v. Southern Mono Healthcare
District (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9).

D. Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated public session date for
discussion yet to be determined) (Health and Safety Code Section 32106).

F. Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency Designated Representative: Irma Moisa;
Employee Organization: AFSCME Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6).

12. Return to open session and report of any action taken in closed session.

13. Adjournment.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

3/18/2019, 9:02 AM



/ NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL Medical Staff Office
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (760) 873-2136  voice
150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California 93514

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsSTRICT (760) 873-2130 fax

One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

TO: NIHD Board of Directors

FROM: Allison Robinson, MD, Chief of Medical Staff
DATE: March 5, 2019

RE: Medical Executive Committee Report

The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the
Committee agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors:

A. Policies and Procedures (action items)
1. Preoperative Medication Guidelines
2. Newborn Screening Test

B. Annual Reviews (action items)

1. Utilization Review Plan
2. Utilization Review Critical Indicators 2019
3. Radiology Critical Indicators 2019
4. MRI Safety Policies
i. Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety — Magnet Room
ii. Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety Burn/Thermal Incident Reduction
iii. Diagnostic Imaging — MRI Safety, Ear Protection
5. Radiation Safety Policies
i. Diagnostic Imaging — Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-nuclear medicine
personnel
ii. Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Material Hot Lab Security
iii. Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours
iv. Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Waste Storage and Disposal
v. Diagnostic Imaging — Disposal of Radioactive Sharps
vi. Diagnostic Imaging — Nuclear Medicine New Employee/Annual Orientation
vii. Diagnostic Imaging — Radioactive Material Spills
viii. ALARA Program
ix. Diagnostic Imaging — C-Arm (Fluoroscope) Radiation Safety

C. Medical Staff Appointments (action items)
1. Anu Agarwal, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
2. Abhilash Akinapelli, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
3. Jake Ichino, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
4. Thomas-Duythuc To, MD (Renown Cardiology) — Telemedicine Staff
5. Jeannie Pflum, DO (Obstetrics & Gynecology) — Consulting Staff

D. Temporary Privileges (action items)
1. Muhammad Gill, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff
2. Joseph BenPerlas, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff
3. Bonnie Rashid, MD (Internal Medicine) — Locums/Temporary Staff



. Telemedicine Privileges — Credentialing by Proxy (action item)
As per the approved Telemedicine Physician Credentialing and Privileging Agreement, and as
outlined and allowed by 42CFR 482.22, the Medical Staff have chosen to recommend the
following practitioners for Telemedicine privileges relying upon Adventist Health’s credentialing
and privileging decisions.

1. Arin Aboulian, MD (Pulmonology) — Glendale Adventist Telemedicine Staff.

. Reappointment to New Staff Category (action item)
1. Taema Weiss, MD (Family Medicine) — recommended staff category change from Active
Staff to Consulting Staff without clinical privileges.

. Advancements (action item)
The following medical staff members have satisfactorily completed their introductory focused
professional practice evaluations and have been recommended to advance from provisional staff
in the category listed.

1. John Adam Hawkins, DO (Emergency Medicine) — advancement to Active Staff

. Resignations (action item)
1. Sandra Althaus, MD (Radiology) — effective 1/14/19

Updated Core Privilege Forms (action items)
1. Family Medicine
2. Obstetrics and Gynecology



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Preoperative Medication Guidelines

Scope: OP/PACU Manual: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery

Source: DON Perioperative Services Effective Date: 2/98

This is a guideline for reference during the preoperative phone call and should not take the
place of the critical conversation between the patient and the physician

Medications the patient should take the morning of surgery before coming to the hospital
with a small sip of water:

+«+ Heart or blood pressure medications that are not diuretics or combination diuretics that he/she normally
takes in the morning (see below for exceptions)
Anti-seizure or anti-psychotic medications that he/she normally takes in the morning
Inhalers that he/she normally takes in the morning
H2 receptor antagonists and proton pump inhibitors
All medication patches should remain on the patient.
Medications considered necessary by the patient may be taken (i.e.thyroid medication) as long as
it isn’t contraindicated (i.e.insulin).

X3

*

R/
OtO °e

>

R/
%

X3

*

Medications that should not be taken:
% Anti-hyperglycemics (oral or insulin)
Anticoagulants or NSAIDs
+¢+ Diuretics or combination diuretic products
¢ Erectile dysfunction drugs (unless taken for pulmonary hypertension).
% ACE (Angiotensin Converting Enzyme) Inhibitors and ARBs (Angiotensin Receptor Blockers) for any
patient that may receive a general anesthetic.
++ Digoxin (not contraindicated but is unnecessary because it is long-lasting.)

Y

*

LX)

0

0

Any questionable medication should be checked with the anesthesia provider
+«+ Patients should be asked to bring a list of their usual medications to the hospital the morning of their
surgery if they are unsure of their medications at the time of the preoperative interview.
+«+ The patient can take his/her medication at home after discharge per physician discharge orders.

DOCUMENTATION: Complete the appropriate sections of the Preoperative Interview in the electronic health
record and the Surgical Checklist

REFERENCES:
1. TJC Standards PC 02.03.01, PC 03.01.03, CA Code of Regulations
2. Title 22 Standard 70215 (c), (d)
3. ASPAN 2012-2014 Perianesthesia Nursing Standards, Practice Recommendations, and Interpretive
Statements: Standard VI: Nursing Process

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: Preoperative Interview; Preoperative Preparation and Teaching



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Preoperative Medication Guidelines

Scope: OP/PACU Manual: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery
Source: DON Perioperative Services Effective Date: 2/98

Approval Date
CCOC 7/16/18
STTA 1/23/19
Pharmacy & Therapeutics 2/21/19
MEC 3/5/19
Board of Directors

Last Board of Directors Review 1/18/17
Developed:

Reviewed: 4/11 AW, 05/11AW, 9/12 AW

Revised: 1/98, 1/29/01, 9/08, 7/18, 1/19

Supersedes: Preoperative Medications

Index Listings: Medication Guidelines, Preoperative / Preoperative Medication Guidelines




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Newborn Screening Test

Scope: Manual: OB/Gyn
Source: OB Nurse Manager Effective Date:
PURPOSE:

To screen all neonates for inborn errors of metabolism according to California State regulations.
To insure all results are obtained and placed in the medical record.

POLICY:

1.

Newborn screening tests will be performed on all neonates according to the California Newborn Screening
Program guidelines, and shall occur after 12 hours but no later than 48 hours of age. Screening is to be done
prior to discharge or transfer of the newborn unless the newborn condition is life threatening and the
collection cannot be safely done.

NIH staff will provide all patients with a current copy of the program pamphlet “Important Information for
Parents About the Newborn Screening Test”

Newborn screening test will be collected before any red blood cell transfusion. In the event that a
transfusion becomes necessary and the specimen is collected before 12 hours of life — collect a second
specimen 24 hours after the end of the last PRBC transfusion and prior to 48 hours of life if the hemoglobin
and hematocrit are > than 10 and 30, respectively. If the specimen was not collected before the transfusion
collect a post transfusion specimen 24 hours after the end of the last PRBC transfusion if the hemoglobin
and hematocrit are > than 10 and 30, respectively.

In cases of early discharge (before 12 hours of age) an initial test will be run and arrangements will be made
to return for a second test before 48 hours of life. In addition, the nurse will fill out the “Newborn
Screening for Babies Leaving the Hospital Prior to 12 Hours of Age” form.

Infants not tested or transferred to tertiary care center prior to newborn screening test being done must have
documentation on the chart. The nursery nurse (or ward clerk) will be responsible for completing the
“specimen not obtained” section on the Newborn Screen Test Request Form. Send completed form to the
newborn screening lab for processing.

Newborn not born at the hospital: Collect NBS within 48 hours of admission.

Critically ill newborns should have testing postponed until the newborn is stable.

When parents refuse to have their newborn tested the nurse will:

a. Have them read the newborn screening brochure and discuss the importance of early detection and
treatment in prevention of disabilities.

If the parent continues to refuse the test, fill out the “specimen not obtained”: “parent refusal”
section of the Newborn Screen Test Request form. Have parent sign the refusal signature. Send
form to the Newborn Screening Lab.

b. Notify the infant’s physician that the parents refused the Newborn Screening and signed the parental
refusal.

10



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Newborn Screening Test

Scope: Manual: OB/Gyn

Source: OB Nurse Manager Effective Date:

9. A newborn not born in hospital but admitted or transferred to the hospital within the first six days of age
should have their newborn screen collected within 48 hours of admission.

10. When infant is born at home prior to admission to the hospital the form titled “Notification of Registration
of Birth Which Occurred Out of a Licensed Health Facility(NBS-OH)” is filled out and sent to:

California Department of Health Services
Newborn Screening Section

850 Marina Bay Parkway, F175
Richmond, Ca. 94804

a. Do the newborn screening test according to policy.
11. Designated personnel (unit clerk) will log in to the Online Specimen Tracking System at 7 days after
newborns date of birth to verify that the specimen has been received. If specimen cannot be verified as

having been received, unit clerk must notify the Newborn Screening Department

12. Repeat test due to inadequate specimens will be done in the nursery at no charge to the patient

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

Physician order not required

Procedure may be performed by: RN, LVN

Special education required to perform procedure: Yes
Age specific considerations: Inherent in procedure.

PRECAUTIONS:

1. California law (Title, XVII, California Administrative Code) states that all newborns must have a
blood specimen taken before discharge from the newborn nursery. This test screens for specific
diseases in the following groups: Metabolic, Endocrine, Hemoglobin and other genetic diseases.
These are all required by law and performed on the same specimen.

2. The infant's heel should be warmed with a warm wet washcloth or diaper prior to testing.

3. The infant should be kept warm, by swaddling during the procedure. Infants should be removed
from a radiant warmer during the procedure, as the artificial heat/drying effects of the warmer can
alter test results.

4. Use the “tenderfoot” automated heel incisor to assure heel punctures no deeper than 1.0 mm in
depth.

5. Awvoid use of undue pressure that may cause excessive bruising.

1"



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Newborn Screening Test

Scope: Manual: OB/Gyn
Source: OB Nurse Manager Effective Date:
PROCEDURE:

1. Complete all information on the "Specimen Collection Form for Newborn Screening Tests”.

2. If the mother doesn’t have a social security number, fill in the social security number as 999-99-
99909.

3. When appropriate, place the MediCal number, BIC (Benefits Identification Card, or PE
(Presumptive Eligibility) number or sticker on the Newborn Screening Specimen Collection Form,
located in the lower left hand corner of the form’s Demographic page.

4. Place the goldenrod copy of the form on a lab report sheet in the infant’s chart.

5. Cleanse the warmed heel with an alcohol wipe, wipe dry with a sterile dry gauze sponge and allow
to air dry.

6. Gently grasp the infant’s foot controlling the foot, but allowing adequate circulation.

7. Use the tenderfoot incision-making devise to puncture an outer aspect of the infant’s heel. Use the
dry sterile gauze sponge to wipe away the first drop of blood.

8. Coax a large drop of blood from the puncture site. Touch the blood drop, but not the heel to the
newborn screening form circle center. Avoid excessive squeezing of the puncture site. Fill all five
circles on the card completely from one side of the filter paper. Refer to “Neonatal Screening Blood
Specimen Collection and Handling Procedure” for complete review and specific instructions as to
location of puncture site and correct collection technique.

9. When procedure is complete, cover the puncture site with a spot Band-Aid and return the infant to
the crib.

10. Place the specimen Collection Form in the drying rack for ~3 hours or until completely dry (blood
has turned brown). Do not wait and batch specimens for mailing. All specimens should be sent
within 12 hours of collecting when possible.

11. Complete the Transport Log sheet. Send the original log sheet and the tests done and dried in the
provided envelope. The yellow copy of the Transport Log goes in the manila folder in the Nursery.

12. In the event of an inadequate specimen, NBS will notify us to redraw the specimen. They will fax
the initial sheet to us with the stated problem. We should contact the patient to have them return to
NIH for a repeat draw. This is done in the nursery as an outpatient procedure without an attached
charge. The Attending MD is also notified so contact can be made.

13. At times results of testing require further blood work. This will be completed in the laboratory as
outpatient testing.

12



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Newborn Screening Test

Scope: Manual: OB/Gyn

Source: OB Nurse Manager Effective Date:

For any questions please call:  Newborn Screening - ASC 96
CHCC
Madera, California

Phone: 559/353-6416
Fax: 559/353-6403

DOCUMENTATION:
1. As noted above in procedure.

2. All results will be sent to the Perinatal Unit Nurse Manager. The results will be entered in the
Nursery Log and then forwarded to the Medical Records Department for posting in the infant's chart.

3. The infant should be charged for “NBS Draw/Handling” and “Newborn Screening” on the charge
sheet.
Committee(s) approval needed: NO
Responsibility for review and maintenance: Perinatal Unit Nurse Manager
Index Listings: Newborn Screening Test
Revised: 6/92; 11/97; 06/01, 09/08, 11/08jk, 9/2010jk, 2/2012jk
Last Board of Director review3/21/18

Approval Date
CcocC

Perinatal-Pediatrics Committee 2/15/19
Medical Executive Committee 3/5/19

Board of Directors

Last Board of Directors Review

Revised:
Reviewed:

13




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Utilization Review Plan*

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Case Management, Utilization Review
Source: DON Nursing Practice Effective Date: 7/1/15

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this plan is to identify the elements of a comprehensive utilization review management plan
which is necessary to satisfy Medicare Conditions of Participation. This plan is coordinated to support Northern
Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) mission and vision by collecting and reviewing data that assures the
appropriate allocation of hospital resources and specifically monitoring the necessity for appropriateness of
hospitalization extended length of stay and the quality of this interaction. This plan provides framework for
addressing under and over utilization of resources as well as the review of treatment to determine that the care
provided meets professionally recognized standards of care.

POLICY:

1.

2.

3.

Northern Inyo Hospital’s (NIH’s) UR plan applies to all patients regardless of payment source and all
admissions are reviewed in accordance with federal and state regulations governing Utilization review.
Findings and recommendations of the Utilization Review Committee are reported to the Medical
Executive Committee. Additional issues can be referred to Billing Coding Compliance Committee.
The UR plan shall be reviewed and evaluated by the Utilization Review Committee and the Medical
Executive Committee at least once a year and revised as needed.

DEFINITIONS:

1.

Utilization Management Plan means the organizational plan that contains the essential requirements
for the establishment and implementation of a utilization management process to ensure the quality,
appropriateness and efficiency of care and resources furnished by the facility and medical staff. The
purpose of this plan is to ensure that patients at Northern Inyo Hospital receive medically necessary and
appropriate care at the appropriate time and in the appropriate setting.

INTERQUAL Criteria means clinical decision support guidelines licensed for use by hospitals to
evaluate the appropriateness of medical interventions and level of care based on clinical criteria and
standards.

Secondary Review means a clinical review performed by a physician member of the Utilization Review
Committee or a Physician Advisor when INTERQUAL guidelines suggest a different patient status or
level of care than that ordered by the patient’s Physician and/or a potential quality concern.

PROCEDURE:

Overview:
A developed plan that contains

e Delineation of responsibilities and authority of personnel for conducting internal
utilization review.

e Establishes procedures to review the medical necessity of admissions, extended stays,
and professional services, and appropriateness of settings.

e Establish procedures for coverage determinations, denials, appeals, and peer review
within the organization.

e Establishes reporting, corrective action and documentation requirements for the
utilization management process.

14



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Utilization Review Plan*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Case Management, Utilization Review

Source: DON Nursing Practice Effective Date: 7/1/15

Plan Requirements

Commitment and cooperation from the hospital administration and Medical/Hospital
staff.

Objective Review Criteria

Maintenance of appropriate data

Integration of UR findings into quality improvement activities
Patient record access appropriate for Utilization review

Composition — See Medical Staff bylaws

The Utilization Review committee is a standing committee of the medical staff and is
responsible to the Medical Staff Executive Committee. The committee shall be comprised
of two or more physicians and other practitioners to perform the utilization management
function. The other members may be any of the other types of practitioners specified in
482.12(c) (1). The Utilization Review and Medical Records Committee shall consist of at
least 4 active staff members selected on a basis that will ensure insofar as feasible,
representation of the services and the major clinical specialties which are routinely
practiced by Practitioners at Northern Inyo Hospital.

0 The Quality Improvement Coordinator, the Utilization Review/Infection Control
Coordinator, the Director of Nursing, Billing Department Supervisor, Director of
Medical Records, DRG Coordinator, the Hospital’s Patient Representative, and
Social Service Director shall serve as Ex Officio non-voting members.

The UR committee may be supported by representatives from Case Management and
Administration, but only physicians and other practitioners are members for regulatory
purposes.

No person with a direct financial interest may participate in reviews conducted by the
Committee.

Meetings

The UR committee shall meet as a separate and distinct committee with its own agenda
and minutes. The committee shall meet as often as necessary to accomplish primary
functions, but no fewer that quarterly.

Committee minutes shall be maintained according to hospital policy and include the
date/time of the meeting, attendees, standard reports, action item follow-up, focused
reviews, audits, and action to be taken. The minutes shall exclude patient or physician
names from charts reviews.

Standard Reports

Length of Stay

Avoidable Days

Appeal Outcomes

Denials

INTERQUAL review results (Cases or number of days that do not satisfy criteria for
admission, continued stay and/or level care, and secondary reviews results)

# of Admission Hospital Issued Notice of Non-coverage (HINN) letters issued

15



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Utilization Review Plan*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Case Management, Utilization Review

Source: DON Nursing Practice Effective Date: 7/1/15

e Observation information, including the number of observation stays converted to
inpatient, average length of stay (hours) and the number exceeding 48 hours.
e Condition Code 44

Authority and Responsibility

» UR (Case Management) Committee Chair

Assigns responsibility for medical necessity secondary review process
Evaluates the effectiveness of utilization management activities
Reports evaluation results and/or issues to appropriate committees.

» Utilization Review Committee

Provides oversight to assure that health care furnished at Northern Inyo Hospital is
consistent with professionally recognized quality standards.

Provides oversight to assure consistently appropriate and medically necessary
treatment for patients.

Evaluates and acts upon peer review information related to medical necessity,
appropriateness of treatment and quality of care.

Provides for confidentiality of the peer review process and findings.

Provides focused review and reporting mechanisms or identified utilization
management problems

Arrange for two or more appropriate practitioners to perform UR functions
Schedule meetings with appropriate minutes and committee activity.

Provides annual review, evaluation and approval of the plan by both the UR and
Medical Executive Committee.

> Duties: The Utilization Review and Medical Records Committee shall perform the
following functions:

e Delineate the scope of utilization review provided within the hospital

e Develop critical indicators to be used as screening devices in reviewing the
utilization of Hospital Services.

e Establish thresholds used to trigger physician review.

e After cases have been isolated using the critical indicators, evaluate the quality
and appropriateness of care administered and identify areas for improvement.

e Review patient care services to ascertain if quality care within the standards of the
Hospital and Medical Staff is being provided in the most cost-effective manner,
address overutilization, underutilization, and inefficient scheduling of care and
resources.

» Case Management Staff

Director: The Director of Case Management, under the direction of the Utilization

Review Committee, has responsibility for the following activities:

e Delegates responsibilities to appropriate personnel to ensure coverage for
determining appropriate patient status.

e Provides guidance to the medical staff and hospital personnel regarding medical
necessity criteria and appropriate service determinations

16



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Utilization Review Plan*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Case Management, Utilization Review

Source: DON Nursing Practice Effective Date: 7/1/15

e The process of measuring and assessing the use of professional care, services,
procedures, and facilities, including the medical necessity and appropriateness of:
¢ Necessity of admission

Level of care

Appropriate utilization of resources

Continued stay

Discharge/post hospital referrals

Readmissions

Performance improvement team activities to improve systems and processes

associated with inefficient or inappropriate delivery of care and services.

Case Manager:

e Reviews medical record documentation to obtain information necessary for UR
determinations

e Screens patients from time of admission for potential discharge and aftercare
needs

e Applies utilization review criteria objectively regarding level of care using
INTERQUAL guidelines on all admissions and continued stays regardless of
payer.

e Reviews all continued stays and addresses all concerns with attending
physician/hospitalist

e |If admission criteria are not satisfied, the reviewer shall contact the attending
physician for additional information. If additional information is provided to
support the admission satisfies admission criteria, the admission shall be
approved.
¢ If additional information is not provided or the case still fails to satisfy

admission criteria, an alternate level of care (ALOC) shall be discussed with
the attending physician. If the attending physician agrees that an ALOC is
appropriate, the Case Manager shall facilitate the transfer. If the attending
does not agree to transfer to an ALOC, the case shall be referred for secondary
review.

*® & & & o o

¢ Secondary Review Process

When an admission or continued stay case is referred by the Case Manager to a
member of the committee for secondary review, the reviewer shall review the case
based on the documentation in the medical record and discussions with the attending
physician in order to determine medical judgment. Secondary review determinations
shall be documented and supported with clinical rationale.

If the physician member of the UR committee determines that an admission or a
continued stay is not medically necessary, the Case Manager will be contacted and
provided instructions on the appropriate level of care. Any determination to transfer a
patient from the inpatient level of care to the observation level of care resulting from
the secondary review process must involve a physician of the UR committee and
must also comply with the requirements of Condition Code 44.

If the UR committee or designee decides that continued stay in the hospital is not
medically necessary, the designee must give written notification to the hospital, the

4
17



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Utilization Review Plan*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Case Management, Utilization Review

Source: DON Nursing Practice

Effective Date: 7/1/15

patient, and the practitioner responsible for the care no later than two (2) days after

the determination. (See Utilization Review Plan*)

REFERENCES:
1. A-0308

a. 8482.30 Condition of Participation: Utilization Review

2. A-309

a. 8§482.30(a) Standard: Applicability

3. A-0310

a. 8482.30(b) Standard: Composition of Utilization Review Committee

4. A-0311

a. 8482.30(c) Standard: Scope and Frequency of Review

5. A-3012

a. 8482.30(d) Standard: Determination Regarding Admissions or Continued

Stays
6. A-0313

a. 8§482.30(e) Standard: Extended Stay Review

7. A-0314

a. 8482.30(f) Standard: Review of Professional Services
8. TENET Utilization Management Plan

CROSS REFERENCE P&P:

1. Utilization Review Plan*

2. Discharge Planning

Approval Date
UR Committee 2/28/19
MEC 3/5/19
Board of Directors

Last Board of Director review 4/18/18

Developed: 2/15
Reviewed: 12/1/2017
Revised: 11/2016, 12/2016
Supersedes:

Index Listings:

18




Utilization Review Critical Indicators

2019

Discharge Disputes
Status Issues
Placement issues

P wnN PR

Denials
a. Swing Bed Denials
b. Social Admission Denials
c. SNF Denials

5. Untimely Records Completions

Approvals:

UR Committee: 2/28/19
Medical Executive Committee: 3/5/19

Board of Directors:
19



Radiology Services Committee
Critical Indicators

2019

1. Death within 24 hours of invasive procedure.
2. Admission to ED within 24 hours of invasive procedure.
3. Severe contrast reaction.
4. Code Blue in the department
5. Patient called back for having wrong procedure performed.
6. Staff concerns with breach of protocols.
Approvals

Radiology Services Committee: 2/19/19

MEC: 3/5/19

BOD:

20



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: DI - MRI Safety - Magﬁe:[ Room Safety*

Scope: MRI Manual: MRI

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 4/15/15
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE:
To provide guidance to employees for the safety screening of patients and care takers entering the magnet
room of the MRI department.

POLICY:
All patients and caretakers entering the magnet room are required to fill out a clearance form prior to
entering the magnet room.

PROCEDURE:

1. All patients, staff, family members, or others providing care or assistance must complete MRI screening forms
prior to entering the magnet room

2. All patients, staff, family members, or others providing care or assistance screening forms must be cleared by
the MRI technologist before entering the magnet room. This includes orbital x-rays when there is suspicion of
metallic foreign bodies in the eye.

3. All available resources including PACS and HIS/RIS systems will be checked prior to any patient being
imaged to evaluate for any contraindicative devices.

4. Any patient, staff, family members or other care providers who are found to have contraindicated devices will
NOT be permitted to enter the magnet room.

5. There are NO exceptions to this policy. Contraindicated devices in the magnet room may be harmful or fatal
for the patient or others in the magnet room.

Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 2/17/2015
Medical Executive Committee 4/7/2015
Administration 2/17/2015
Board of Directors 4/15/12015
Last Board of Director review 4/19/17
Developed: 12/31/2014 DDI

Reviewed:

Revised:

21



//A Northern Inyo Healthcare District
150 Pioneer Lane

NorraeeN INYo Heattheane DisTricr

Otie Team. One Goul. Your Health, BiShOp, Ca.lifOI"llia 93 5 1 4

MAGNETIC RESONANCE (MR) SCREENING FOR EMPLOYEES

The MR system has a very strong magnetic field that may be hazardous to individuals entering the
MR environment or MR system room if they have certain metallic, electronic, magnetic, or mechanical
implants, devices or objects. Therefore ALL individuals are required to fill out this form BEFORE
entering the MR environment or MR system room. Be advised, the MR system magnetis ALWAYS on.

Date: / / Name: Employee #:
month day year Last Name First M.1

| have reviewed the lists below, and for personal reasons | have elected not to document my responses. | understand that | am required
to remain outside the MR environment AT ALL TIMES in order to maintain a safe environment for myself and those around me.

Signature of Person Completing Form:

1. Have you ever worked with metal (grinding, fabricating, etc.) or ever had an injury to the eye involving a metallic object
(e.g., metallic slivers, shavings, foreign body)? OYes [No

If yes, please describe:

2. Are you pregnant or experiencing a late menstrual period? [dYes [No

WARNING: Certain implants, devices, or objects may be hazardous to you in the MR environment or
MR system room. Do not enter the MR environment or MR system room if you have any question or
concern regarding an implant, device, or object.

D Yes U No Car_diac_pag:;na__ker or Cardiac defibrillatdE EI Yes O No Any implant held in place with a magnet

O Yes [J No Internal electrodes or pacing wires '_D Yes [1No [UD, Diaphragm or Pessary

OYes [JNo Aneurysm clip(s) ‘D Yes O No Tattooed makeup (eyeliner, lips, ets.)

O Yes O No Neurostimulator or Deep brain stimulator |E) Yes U0 No Body piercing(s) )

[JYes [0 No Cochlear implant or other ear implant EIZI Yes [ No Any metal fragments, bullets or shrapnel

O Yes [ONo Eye implant or Eyelid spring |0 Yes CINo Metal or wire mesh implants ]

O Yes O No Insulin pump or Drug infusion device OYes 0O No Wire sutures or surgical staples B

L Yes [1No Vascular access port or Swan-Ganz catheter O Yes O No Harrington rods (spina) / spinal fusion rods

0 Yes [] No Medication skin patch (Nitro/Pain) - O Yes [ No Joint replacement

[ Yes U No Bone growth / fusion stimulator OYes ONo Bone / joint pin, screw, nail, wire, plate

(O0Yes [ No Carotid artery vascular clamp OYes O No Hearing aid (Remove before MRI)

[dYes [ No Artificial heart valve or Aortic clip OYes OONo Dentures (Remove before MRI) -

O Yes LI No Intravascular stents, filters or coils | Other: please explain:

O Yes O No IVC filter -

OYes OO No Shunt (spinal or intraventricular)

OYes [0 No Tissues expander or breast implants I — -

O Yes O No Penile implant _ S - ;

Before entering the MRI Scan Room, please remove all metallic objects including hair pins, barrettes, jewelry, watches, safety pins,

paperclips, money clip, keys, coins, pens, credit cards, beepers, and cellular phones.

| attest that the above information is correct to the best of my knowledge. | have read and understand the entire contents of this form and have
had the opportunity to ask questions regarding the information on this form.

Signature of Person Completing Form: Date/Time:

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE... MRI STAFF ONLY.

O MR SAFE !t is safe for this individual to enter and remain inside O MR UNSAFE itis NOT safe faEmsi_ndividual to enter and
the MR environment remain inside the MR environment

Reviewing MRI_Technoloﬁgt_ Name - Signature _ Date Time

_ 22
Reviewing Radiologist Signature Date Time




,IA Northern Inyo Hospital
150 Pioneer Lane

NORTHERN INYO HOSPIAL - Bishop, California 93514

MRI SAFETY SCREENING FORM FOR PATIENTS

Name: D.O.B:
Gender: Age: Weight: Date:
Referring Physician:

WARNING: Certain implants, devices, or objects may be hazardous to you and/or
may interfere with the MR procedure. Do Not Enter the MRI system room or MR
environment if you have any questions or concern regarding an implant, device or
object. Consult the MRI Technologist or Radiologist BEFORE entering the MR
system room. We Strongly recommend using ear plugs or headphones for your
MRI exam since some patients find the noise levels unacceptable.

The MR System magnet is ALWAYS on.

1.Have you ever had surgery (operation, arthroscopy, endoscopy, biopsies, etc.)
of any kind?

2.Have you ever experienced any problem related to a previous MRI

examination procedure? [(Iyes [INo
3.Have you had an injury to the eye involving a metallic object or fragment

(metallic silvers, etc)? [lyes [INo
If yes, did you receive medical attention for the eye injury? [lves [INo
4. Have you ever been injured by a metallic object or foreign body

(bullet, BB, shrapnel, etc.)? [IYes [INo
5.Are you currently taking or have you recently taken any medication or drug? [ _JYes [ INo
If yes, please list:
6.Do you have allergies? [lyes [INo
If yes, please list

*1RAD¥*

Created 4/12 Revised 4/12

23



7.Do you have:

Renal or Kidney problems or

History of seizure

disease? [Ives [INo yicorder? [(Jves [ONo
Asthma or respiratory disease? [1Yes [ INo History of cancer? [lves [No
Anemia or other blood disease? [ ]Yes [ JNo Do you have Diabetes? [ JYes [INo
Are you on renal (kidney) dialysis? [ JYes [ INo

For female patients:

8.Date of last menstrual period:«Last_Menstrual_Period_C Post Menopausal? [ JYes [ JNo
9.Are you pregnant or experiencing a late menstrual period? [lyes [INo
10.Are you taking oral contraceptives or receiving hormonal treatment or

hormone replacement therapy? [lyes [INo
11.Are you taking any type of fertility medication or having fertility treatments? [ ]Yes [ INo
If yes, please list:

12.Are you currently breastfeeding? [lyes [INo

[IYes |[JNo | Aneurysm repairorclip(s) | [lYes |[_INo | Implanted drug infusion device
Circle: Brain Abdomen

[ Iyes |[ INo Cardiac Pacemaker or [Yes | [LINo | Foley catheter with
pacing wires temperature sensor

[Iyes |[INo Implanted cardioverter [lYes | [INo | Any type of prosthesis (eye,
defibrillator (ICD) penile implant, etc.)

[JYes |[INo Electronic implant or [ IYes | [_INo | Pill Cam Capsule (endoscopy
device device)

[lyes |[JNo Magnetically-activated [lYes | [INo | Heart valve replacement or
implant or device prosthesis

Llyes |[INo Neurostimulation system [lYes | [_INo | Eyelid spring, wire, or eyelid
(TENS unit) weights

[lves |[INo | Spinal cord stimulator [IYes | [INo | Lens implant, IMT lens

implant, retinal tack

LlYes |[INo Internal electrodes or [lYes | [INo | Artificial limb (prosthesis)
wires List:

[lYes |[INo | Bone growth/bone fusion |[ IYes |[ |No | Stent, filter, or coil
stimulator

[ IYes [[[JNo | Cochlear, otologic, staples | [ ]Yes | [_INo | Shunt-spine or brain
or any ear implant ' (intraventricular)

*1RAD¥*

Created 4/12  Revised 4/12

24




[ lYes |[INo | Vascular access port or [ Iyes | [ INo | IUD, diaphragm or pessary
catheter (porta-cath)

[ lYes |[INo | Radiation seeds or [ JYes | [ INo | Dentures, partial plates
implants

Llyes |[INo |Swan-Ganzor [ IYes | [_|No | Magnetic dental implants
thermodilution catheter

[ Jyes |[INo Medication patch (nicotine, | [_|Yes | [ ]No | Tattoos or permanent
nitro, birth control) cosmetics

[ lyes |[_INo | Any metal fragment or [_IYes | [_INo | Body piercing, jewelry
foreign body (Remove them)

LlYes [[INo | Wire mesh implant [ IYes | [_INo | Body modification implants

[ IYes |[INo | Tissue expander [ IYes | [ INo | Hearing aid (Remove them)
(ie., breast)

[ Iyes |[ INo Surgical staples, clips [ Jyes | [ INo | Sound Tec Direct Drive
or metallic sutures Hearing System

[ lYes |[INo | Joint replacement (hip, [ lYes | [_INo | Other implant:
Knee, etc.)

[IYes |[INo Bone or joint pin, screw | |Yes | [_|No | Breathing problems or
nail, wire, plate, etc. tremors

[ JYes |[ INo | Acticoat silver wound | JYes | [_|No | Claustrophobia
dressing

[ Iyes |[[_INo Metal reinforced Endo [ JYes | [_INo | Is the patient on blood
Tracheal Tube dialysis?

[IYes |[_INo Rectal Probe Thermometer| [ _|Yes | [ _INo | If yes, when is the next dialysis

appointment?

IMPORTANT INSTRUCTIONS: Before entering the MR environment or MR system room,

you must remove all metallic objects including hearing aid, keys, beeper, cell phone, hair
pins, barrettes, jewelry, body piercing jewelry, watch, safety pins, paper clips, money clip,
credit cards/magnetic strip cards, coins, pens, pocket knife, lighter, nail clipper, tools,
dentures, clothing with metal or metallic threads. Please consult the MRI Technologist if
you have any question or concern BEFORE you enter the MR scan room.

| attest that the above information is correct to the best of my knowledge. | have read and
understand the contents of this form and had the opportunity to ask questions regarding the
information on this form and regarding the MR procedure | am about to undergo. | hereby
give my consent for the MRI examination.

Signature X:

Form completed by: Patient

*1RAD*

Created 4/12

Date:

Revised 4/12

Relative

25

Nurse




/IA Northern Inyo Healthcare District
150 Pioneer Lane

NortieaN 1Yo HEattucane Distaler

o Team. one Gorl Your s, BIShOP, California 93514

Patient Label

MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI) CONSENT FORM

, the undersigned, voluntarily agree to the completion of an MRI. | have been informed of
the following:

1.

2.
3.
4

10.

11.

This procedure requires that | lie still on a padded table within the Magnetic
Resonance Imager (MRI) for 30 to 60 minutes.

The inside of the MRI contains a large magnet.

The scanner has no moving parts and utilizes no x-ray radiation for image production.
There will be an associated sound of hammering as the radiowaves are transmitted
during the scan. Earplugs or headphones will be provided to me.

While in the scanner, the MRI technologist will be able to communicate with me via a
two-way intercom system.

| will be instructed to place all of my belongings into a locker, including watches, credit
cards, bank cards, jewelry (including rings), dentures, wigs and hairpins.

[ notified the technologist about any metal, surgeries or implanted medical devices that
f might have.

Exposure to the magnetic field produces no known side effects. | will let the MRI
technologist know if | experience any discomfort while | am being scanned.

If determined necessary by the Radiologist, | agree to the administration of a contrast
media to be injected in my vein while 1 am having the scan. The contrast is FDA
approved and used routinely for MRl exams. It contains a material called gadolinium.
The injection of contrast may cause discomfort, tingling or warmth in the lips,
metallic taste in the mouth, tingling in the arm, nausea or headache. These
symptoms are rare and usually go away quickly.

People with kidney failure who receive gadolinium are at risk of developing
Nephrogenic Systemic Fibrosis (NSF). NSF is a rare fibrosing condition of the skin
and internal organs that may develop rapidly. NSF could be a serious progressive
disease and in very rare cases may result in death. | have had the opportunity to
discuss the risks and benefits of contrast use with the doctor. My questions have been
answered. For patients with no history of kidney failure, the risk of developing
this condition is very small.

There are no known risks associated with having MRI imaging without contrast during
pregnancy; however, | will tell the technologist if | think there is any chance I could be
pregnant.

Signature: _ Date: Time:

Witness: Date:

Created 4/12 Revised 5/17 26



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: DI - MRI Safety Burn/Thermal Incident Reduction Policy*

Scope: Departmental Manual: MRI

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 3/21/16
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE:
To prevent excessive heating and possible burns associated with MR procedures

POLICY:

Complete and thorough screening, preparation, and monitoring of patients by appropriately licensed and
trained MRI technologists shall be performed for every patient on every exam at every visit. Incidents of
thermal incidents shall be reported, investigated, and reviewed at appropriate Safety and Medical Staff
committee meetings.

PROCEDURE:

1) The patient should change into a gown or other appropriate attire that does not contain metallic
material.

2)  Prepare the patient for the MR procedure by ensuring that there are no unnecessary metallic objects
contacting the patient’s skin (e.g., drug delivery patches with metallic components, jewelry, necklaces,
bracelets, key chains, etc.).

3)  Prepare the patient for the MR procedure by using insulation material (i.e. appropriate padding) to
prevent skin-to-skin contact points and the formation of “closed-loops” from touching body parts.

4) Insulating material (minimum recommended thickness, 1-cm) should be placed between the patient’s
skin and transmit RF coil that is used for the MR procedure (alternatively, the transmit RE coil itself should
be padded). There should be no direct contact between the patient’s skin and the transmit RF body coil of the
MR system. This may be accomplished by having the patient place his/her arms over his/her head or by
using elbow pads or foam padding between the patient’s tissue and the transmit RF body coil of the MR
system. This is especially important for MR examinations that use the transmit RF body coil or other large
RF coils for transmission of RF energy.

5)  Use only electrically conductive devices, equipment, accessories (e.g., ECG leads, electrodes, etc.), and
materials that have been thoroughly tested and determined to be safe or otherwise acceptable for MR
procedures.

6) Carefully follow specific MR safety or MR conditional criteria and recommendations for implants and
devices made from electrically-conductive materials (e.g., bone fusion stimulators, neurostimulation systems,
cardiac pacemakers, cochlear implants, intracranial pressure monitoring catheters, etc.).

7)  Before using electrical equipment, check the integrity of the insulation and/or housing of all

components including surface RF coils, monitoring leads, cables, and wires. Preventive maintenance should
be practiced routinely for such equipment.

27



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: DI - MRI Safety Burn/Thermal Incident Reduction Policy*

Scope: Departmental Manual: MRI

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 3/21/16
Services (DI & Lab)

Thermal incidents shall be documented on the patient log. The Diagnostic Imaging Manager or Director and
radiologist shall be notified of the incident immediately. An incident report shall be completed and submitted
for review.

REFERENCES:
1. Guidelines to Prevent Excessive Heating and Burns Associated with Magnetic Resonance
Procedures, was developed by the Institute for Magnetic Resonance Safety, Education, and Research
(IMRSER) and published with permission. Reviewed and updated 2015.

Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 2/16/2016
Medical Executive Committee 3/1/2016
Board of Directors 3/16/16
Last Board of Directors Review

Developed: 2/5/2016 - PD
Reviewed: 2/15/17
Revised:

Supersedes:

Index Listings:

28



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: DI - MRI Safety, Ear Protection*

Scope: Departmental Manual: MRI

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:
Services (DI & Lab) |

PURPOSE: To provide guidance for the technologist to ensure hearing protection is used properly in the
MRI magnet room.

POLICY: All patients and persons entering the MRI magnet room must be provided with hearing
protection when the magnet is in use.

PROCEDURE:
1. The patient will be properly screened and positioned for the MRI exam.
2. After all patient questions have been answered, the MRI technologist will provide foam or ear covering
hearing protection for the duration of the scan.

_ Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 2/17/2015
Medical Executive Committee 4/7/2015
Administration 2/17/2015
Board of Directors 4/15/2015
Developed: 12/30/2014 - DDI
Reviewed:

Revised:
Supercedes:

29



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-nuclear medicine personnel

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Administrative, Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:01-01-2017
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: provide guidelines and documentation of training of non-nuclear medicine personnel for the
safe handling and delivery (to nuclear medicine department) of radioactive packages

POLICY:
All non-nuclear medicine personnel, i.e., security officer on duty or purchasing/materials management

personnel, who may receive and/or deliver (to nuclear medicine) packages containing radioactive materials
will be trained regarding proper handling and delivery of these packages.

PROCEDURE:
Appropriate personnel are instructed to follow the guidelines listed below upon receiving radioactive
packages. A signed copy of this procedure will be kept in the Radiology Manager’s office to document

training.

o Visually inspect the package, prior to handling. Notify Nuclear Medicine personnel
immediately if package appears to be damaged or leaking. Do not handle a damaged or
leaking package.

o Wear gloves when handling any radioactive package.

o Use cart or “dolly” to deliver radioactive packages. This maximizes distance between
personnel and the package, minimizing radiation exposure rates.

o Promptly deliver all radioactive packages received to the Nuclear Medicine Department. Ifa
nuclear medicine technologist is present, deliver package to them. If no nuclear medicine
technologist is present, leave package at the hot lab door.

a Remove gloves immediately after delivery of package, dispose of the gloves in the Nuclear
Medicine Imaging room trash.

If there are any questions regarding handling of radioactive packages, contact the Nuclear Medicine
Department, ext. 2636; or the Director of Diagnostic Imaging, ext. 2634.

This document may be printed and used for documentation of annual training.

Trainee signature;

Nuclear Medicine Technologist — Trainer:

REFERENCES:
1. 10CFR20
2. 10CFR35

3. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical
Use, Retrieved from: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/pubsforms/Guidelines/Documents/RHB-
MedicalGuide.pdf;,

30



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-nuclear medicine personnel

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Administrative, Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic
Services (DI & Lab)

Effective Date:01-01-2017

Committee Approval Date

CCOC 12-18-17
Radiology Services Committee 11-21-17
Medical Executive Committee 12-05-17
Board of Directors 12-13-17

Revised: 11-21-17

Supercedes: Handling of Radioactive Packages, Non-nuclear medicine personnel, 2014
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

31




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Material Hot Lab Security

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:01-01-2018
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: _
To define authorized entrance to the radioactive materials (RAM) hot lab.

POLICY:

1. The hot lab door shall remain locked at all times, unless authorized personnel are inside or
supervising entrance to the hot lab.

2. Only authorized nuclear medicine personnel, Radiation Safety Officer and Medical Physicists may
enter the hot lab unsupervised.

3. For after hours deliveries, contact the Nuclear Medicine Technologist, the Imaging Manager, or
Director of Diagnostic Services for access to the hot lab for deliveries of RAM packages after —hours
in accordance with the “Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours
Policy/Procedure”

REFERENCES:

1. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical
Use, Retrieved from: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/pubsforms/Guidelines/Documents/RHB-
MedicalGuide.pdTf,

2. 10CFR 35

Cross Reference Policy
1. Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours Policy/Procedure

Committee Approval Date

CCoC 12-18-17
Radiology Services Committee 11/21/17
Medical Executive Committee 12/05/17
Board of Directors 12-13-17

Supercedes: Hot Lab Security, 2014
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

32



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours Policy/Procedure

Scope: Departmental Manual: Administrative, Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 01-01-2018
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: provides procedure for the safe receipt and handling of radioactive materials when nuclear
medicine and trained purchasing/materials management personnel are not present to receive packages

POLICY:
1. Ifacourier arrives at the hospital after operating hours with radioactive packages, the courier will be
directed to the Emergency entrance.

2. The Emergency Department clerk or any other emergency department personnel will call the Nursing
Supervisor to sign for the package.

3. The Nursing Supervisor will contact:

1. The Nuclear Medicine Technologist
2. Manager of Diagnostic Imaging, or
3. The Director of Diagnostic Services
4. The Nursing Supervisor will escort the courier to the Nuclear Medicine department to secure the
radioactive packages in the Hot Lab (R132 in Nuclear Medicine).

5. The Nursing Supervisor will not handle the radioactive package at any time.

6. Should any problems or questions arise regarding this policy and procedure the Nuclear Medicine
Technologist and/or the Radiation Safety Officer (RSO) will be called by the Nursing Supervisor.
The numbers for the NMT and the RSO are posted on the hot lab door.

PROCEDURE:
1. Call the Nursing Supervisor to the Emergency entrance upon arrival of a courier making delivery of
radioactive isotopes.
2. The Nursing Supervisor will sign for the package and escort the courier to the Nuclear Medicine Hot
Lab and unlock the door with the punch key provided.
3. The courier will place the package in the Hot Lab on the floor to the left of the door and the Nursing
Supervisor will make sure that the Hot Lab door is securely locked when he or she leaves.

REFERENCES:

1. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical
Use, Retrieved from: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/pubsforms/Guidelines/Documents/RHB-
MedicalGuide.pdf,

2. 10CFR 35

Cross Reference Policy
1. Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours Policy/Procedure

33



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Materials Delivery After-hours Policy/Procedure

Scope: Departmental

Manual: Administrative, Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic
Services (DI & Lab)

Effective Date: 01-01-2018

Committee Approval Date

CCOC 12-18-17
Radiology Services Committee 11/21/17
Medical Executive Committee 12/05/17
Board of Directors 12-13-17

Supercedes: Nuclear Medicine after hours delivery - 2014
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

34




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Waste Storage and Disposal

Departments/Scope: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Diagnostic Imaging Director \ Effective Date: 01-01-2018

PURPOSE:
To ensure that radioactive waste is properly stored and handled until such time that it can
be discarded following the general hospital waste procedures.

POLICY:

Radioactive waste shall be stored in the hot lab, or designated radioactive materials
storage room, shielded, for a minimum of 10 half-lives and until it is indistinguishable
from background radiation exposure levels, whichever is longer.

Human excreta is not considered radioactive waste. Human waste from patients
undergoing diagnostic nuclear medicine procedures shall be handled according to

hospital body fluid policy.

Radioactive materials are not disposed of into the sewage system, except wash water,
which does NOT exceed allowable limits as stated in 10 CFR 20.

PROCEDURE:
1) Document all radioactive waste stored for decay on the “Waste Storage Log.” If
multiple isotopes are involved, always document the isotope with the longest half-

life.

2) Store radioactive waste for 10 half-lives and until the radiation exposure levels, at
the surface, are indistinguishable from background, whichever is longer.

3) Deface or destroy all radioactive labels.

4) Discard waste that is indistinguishable from background, and has been stored
greater than 10 half-lives, following regular hospital waste guidelines.

5) Log discarded trash out on the “Waste Storage Log.”

Reference
10 CFR 20.2

35




Committee Approval Date
Committee Approval Date
CCOC 12-18-17
Radiology Services Committee 11/21/17
Medical Executive Committee 12/05/17
Board of Directors 12-13-17

Supercedes: Radioactive waste storage and disposal, 11/2014
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

36




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Disposal of radioactive sharps
Scope: Multidepartmental Department: Diagnostic Imaging, Infection Control
Blue Manual
Source: Radiology Director Effective Date:
Purpose:

Policy:

1.

To prevent needle sticks and ensure safe disposal of radioactive sharps.

Needles used with radioactive materials shall be recapped with a needle-capping device or one-handed
recapping technique.

. Needle/syringe shall be transported in a lead lined metal box.

Once the syringe and needle are returned to the Nuclear Medicine Hot Lab, they will be discarded in a
sharps container.

The sharps container shall be stored in a lead shielded container or cabinet for decay at least 10 half-
lives. The surface radiation survey of the container shall be indistinguishable from background prior to
disposal.

Following radioactive decay in storage, all radiation labels shall be obliterated and sharps container
shall be disposed of according to hospital policy.

Reference:

10 CFR 20.2

10 CFR 35.92

Committee Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 8/19/2014
Medical Executive Committee 9/2/2014
Administration 8/19/2014
Board of Directors 9/17/2014
Developed: 9/98;

Reviewed:

Revised: 10/2000; 6/2003; 10/2006 mw, 11/2010pd, 8/2011pd, BS 9/12, 11/13 PD, 7/2014 PD
Supercedes:

Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

37



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Nuclear Medicine New Employee/Annual Orientation*

Scope: Departmental

Manual: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic
Services (DI & Lab)

Effective Date:

PURPOSE: The purpose of this guideline is to ensure that new Nuclear Medicine department employees
are oriented to the practices, policies and equipment in the department. This guideline also documents annual
review and re-orientation for all Nuclear Medicine department employees.

POLICY: Nuclear Medicine employees shall be oriented to the practices and policies in the nuclear

medicine department.

PROCEDURE:

1. Each area on the list below shall be reviewed, in accordance with state and federal guidelines.
2. Employee shall review information and equipment listed below with the Radiation Safety Officer or

Director of Diagnostic Imaging.

3. Employee shall sign this document and place in technologist’s binder. Provide a copy to the Human
4. Resources department for employee personnel files.

Area of orientation or review

Tech
initials

RSO/DDI
initials

Proper operation and safety - GE Infinia Hawkeye and Xeleris workstation

Proper operation and safety - Atomlab 500 and 100 plus dose calibrators

Proper operation and safety — Ludlum Model 44-10 Gamma Scintillator Meter

Proper operation and safety — Ludlum 14-C GM survey meter

Proper operation and safety — Captus 3000 Uptake Probe and Well Counter

Proper operation and safety — M099/Tc99m Generator

Review Radiation Safety Program (ALARA Program)

Review location of monthly Occupational Exposure Reports

Review preparation and handling of radiopharmaceuticals

Proper operation and safety of “Germfree” Radiopharmacy laminar flow hood

Review quality control procedures for radiopharmaceuticals

Review procedures for monitoring and storing radioactive waste

Review procedures for shipping/receiving radioactive materials

Review procedures for in-house transportation of radioactive materials

Review procedures for injection of radioactive materials

Review procedure for daily surveys for radioactive contamination

contamination

Review procedure for weekly area survey and wipe tests for radioactive

Review procedure for Hot Lab security

Review procedures for Nuclear Medicine patient examinations

Signature:

Date

RSO/DDI signature:

Date

38




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Nuclear Medicine New Employee/Annual Orientation*

Scope: Departmental Manual: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:
Services (DI & Lab)

REFERENCES:
1. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical Use.
CA-DPH. 2010. Item 13 — Personnel Training Program

Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 12/16/2015
Medical Executive Committee 1/5/2016
Board of Directors 01/19/2016
Last Board of Director review

Developed:

Reviewed: 11/01/2015

Revised: 9/26/14 DDI, 4/15/2015,

Supercedes: “Department Specific New/Annual Employee Orientation” 2009
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

39




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Ordering Radioactive Materials*

Scope: Multi-departmental Manual: Nuclear Medicine, Purchasing

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: ensure that materials and quantities of radioactive materials (RAM) ordered are authorized by
the license and that possession limits for RAM are not exceeded.

POLICY: The nuclear medicine technologist maintains written records that identify the authorized user or
department, isotope, chemical form, activity, and supplier.

PROCEDURE:

1. For routinely and occasionally used materials, the Radiation Safety Officer or designee (nuclear
medicine technologist) shall keep written records that identify the authorized user or department,
isotope, chemical form, activity, and supplier.

2. The written records of order will be checked to confirm that the RAM received were ordered through
proper channels.

REFERENCES:
1. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical
Use, Retrieved from: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/pubsforms/Guidelines/Documents/RHB-
MedicalGuide.pdf,

2.

CROSS REFERENCE P&P:
1.
2.
Se

Committee Approval Date

Radiology Services Committee 2/17/2015

Medical Executive Committee 4772015

Administration 2/17/2015

Board of Directors 4/15/2015

Developed:

Reviewed:

Revised:

Supercedes:

Responsibility for review and maintenance:

40



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Ordering Radioactive Materials*
Scope: Multi-departmental Manual: Nuclear Medicine, Purchasing

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:
Services (DI & Lab)

4




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Material Spills Procedure

Scope: Departmental Manual: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 7/20/2014
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: To define the duties of the nuclear medicine technologist in the event of major and minor spills

in the hospital
PROCEDURE:
Major Spills
1. Clear the area. Notify all persons not involved to vacate the room.
2. Prevent the spread. Cover the spill with absorbent pads, but do not attempt to clean up. Confine the
movement of all personnel potentially contaminated to prevent the spread
3. Shield the source. If possible, the spill should be shielded, but only if it can be done without further
contamination or without significantly increasing personnel radiation exposure.
4, Close the room. Vacate and lock the room. Place appropriate radioactive materials sign on locked
door.
5. Call for help. Notify the Radiation Safety Officer immediately.
a. Telephone number- EXT. 2636
b. Home number- 760-920-8630
6. Decontamination of personnel. Contaminated clothing should be removed and stored for further
evaluation by the Radiation Safety Officer. If the spill is on the skin, flush with warm water
thoroughly, wash with mild soap or Radiacwash.
7. Complete Radioactive Materials (RAM) Spills report. File in Nuclear Medicine office.
8. Complete Quality Review Report (QRR), send to QAPI.

Minor Spills

1. Notify persons in the area that a small spill has occurred.

2. Prevent the spread. Cover the spill with absorbent paper.

3. Carefully and quickly, clean the spill. Use absorbent pads and place in plastic bags. Dispose of bags
in shielded radioactive waste container. Include all other contaminated materials such as disposable
gloves, foot covers.

4, Survey the area with a GM survey meter. Check all areas at the surface of spill and also surrounding
areas for possible contamination. The level of exposure must be indistinguishable from background
exposure level, or the spill area must be shielded.

5. Wipe test the area of spill to check for removable contamination. Repeat cleaning of the area until
the wipe test is less than 2000dpm/cm2. If unable to clean sufficiently, cover with plastic backed
absorbent paper. Place the absorbent side on the area of the spill, plastic up.

6. Report. Notify the Radiation Safety Officer of the incident.

7. Complete RAM Spills report. File in Nuclear Medicine office.

8. Complete Quality Review Report (QRR), send to QAPL.

REFERENCES:
1. 10CFR20
2. 10CFR 35

42



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Radioactive Material Spills Procedure

Scope: Departmental Manual: Nuclear Medicine

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 7/20/2014
Services (DI & Lab)

3. Guide for the Preparation of an Application for a Radioactive Materials License Authorizing Medical
Use, Retrieved from: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/pubsforms/Guidelines/Documents/RHB-
MedicalGuide.pdf, Appendix K.

Committee Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 8/19/2014
Medical Executive Committee 9/2/2014
Administration 8/19/2014
Board of Directors 9/17/2014
Developed:

Reviewed:

Revised:7/23/2014

Supercedes: Nuclear Medicine Spills Policy, 2004
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI, RSO

43



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: ALARA Program*
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Diagnostic Imaging
Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 11/19/15
Services (DI & Lab)
PURPOSE:

The purpose of establishing an ALARA (as low as reasonably achievable) Program is to incorporate
practices, procedures and quality assurance checks to keep occupational and medical exposure to radiation as
low as reasonably achievable.

Definitions:

ALARA - “as low as reasonably achievable,” acronym for the philosophy of keeping medical and
occupational radiation exposure as low as reasonable achievable.

RSO — Radiation Safety Officer
RSC — Radiation Safety Committee

POLICY:

The term ALARA is an acronym for maintaining radiation exposures, and effluent releases of radioactive
material in uncontrolled areas “as low as reasonably achievable” taking into account the available
technology, economic costs in relation to benefits to the public health and safety, and other societal and
socioeconomic considerations in their relationship with the utilization of radioactive materials and radiation
— producing equipment in the public interest.

The ALARA philosophy extends to exposure to individuals in the performance of their duties (Occupational
exposure) and to patients undergoing medical evaluations and treatments.

To achieve this goal, the management should address dose reduction for both workers and patients.

Although the program presented here is developed specifically for occupational exposure considerations,
management should incorporate into their program those procedures, practices, and quality assurance checks
that can eliminate unnecessary or extraneous radiation exposures to patients without compromising the
quality of medical service. Such practices and checks include, but are not limited to:

a) Use of appropriate and well-calibrated instrumentation and equipment.

b) Use of appropriate digital imaging techniques

¢) Use of organ shields in diagnostic radiology.

d) Staying with the well-established dosage limits unless deviation is absolutely essential in the

judgment of the responsible physician.

1. Management Commitment

a) We, the management of Northern Inyo Hospital, are committed to an efficient medical use of
radioactive materials and radiation producing equipment by limiting their use to clinically
indicated procedures, utilizing efficient exposure techniques, and optimally operated radiation
equipment; limiting dosages to those recommended by the manufacturer unless otherwise
necessary, using calibrated diagnostic and related instrumentation; and using appropriately trained

personnel.

1
44



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: ALARA Program*

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Diagnostic Imaging

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 11/19/15
Services (DI & Lab)

b) We commit to the program described below for keeping occupational individual and collective
doses ALARA. Toward this commitment, we hereby describe an administrative organization for
radiation safety and will develop all necessary written policy, procedures, and instruction to foster
the ALARA philosophy within our institution. The organization will include a Radiation Safety
Committee (RSC) and a Radiation Safety Officer (RSO).

c) We will perform a formal annual review of the radiation safety program, including ALARA
considerations. The review will cover operating procedures and past dose records, inspections,
and recommendations of the radiation safety staff or consultants.

d) We will modify operating and maintenance procedures, equipment, and facilities if these
modifications will reduce exposures and the cost is justified.

2. Radiation Safety Committee

a. Review of Proposed Users and Uses

(1) The RSC will thoroughly review the qualifications of each applicant with respect to
the types and quantities of radioactive materials and radiation-producing equipment
and methods of use for which application has been made, to ensure that the applicant
will be able to take appropriate measures to maintain exposure ALARA.

(2) When considering a new use of radioactive material or radiation producing
equipment, the RSC will review the efforts of the applicant to maintain exposure
ALARA.

(3) The RSC will ensure that the users justify their procedures and that individual and
collective doses will be ALARA.

b. Delegation of Authority

(The judicious delegation of RSC authority is essential to the enforcement of an ALARA
program.)

(1) The RSC will delegate authority to the RSO for enforcement of the ALARA
program.

(2) The RSC will support the RSO when it is necessary for the RSO to assert authority.
If the RSC has overruled the RSO, it will record the basis for its action in the
minutes of the quarterly meeting.

c. Review of ALARA Program

(1) The RSC will encourage all users to review current procedures and develop new
procedures as appropriate to implement the ALARA concept.

(2) The RSC will perform an annual review of occupational radiation exposure. A
special meeting may be called for particular attention to instances in which the

45



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: ALARA Program*

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Diagnostic Imaging

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 11/19/15

Services (DI & Lab)

investigational levels in Table 1 are exceeded. The principal purpose of this review
is to assess trends in occupational exposure as an index of the ALARA program
quality and to decide if action is warranted when investigational levels are exceeded
(see Section 4 below for a discussion of investigational levels). Maximum legal
limits of occupational exposure are listed in Table 2, for reference.

(3) The RSC will evaluate the institution’s overall efforts for maintaining doses
ALARA on an annual basis. This review will include the efforts of the RSO,
authorized users, and workers as well as those of management.

Table 1
Investigational Levels*

Investigational Levels
(mrems/calendar quarter)
Level I** Level IT**

1. Whole body; head and trunk; active

blood-forming organs; or gonads, lens

of eye 312 624
2. Lens of Eye 936 1872
3. Extremities 3125 6250
4. Skin of whole body 750 2250
5. Thyroid uptake 0.1 uCi 0.3 uCi

*Note that investigational levels in this program are not new dose limits but serve as checkpoints above which the results are considered sufficiently
important to justify investigations. See Section 4 for further discussion.
**Investigational levels are as listed on Radiation Detection Company Dosimetry Report.

Table 2
Maximum Annual Levels*

Maximum Annual Occupational Dose
limits in mrem

1. Whole body 5,000

2. Extremities, Skin 50,000
3. Lens of the eyes 15,000
4. Fetus 500

*Legal limits for occupational radiation exposure, NCRP Report No. 116, Table 19.1

3. Radiation Safety Officer
a. Annual and Quarterly Review

(1) Annual review of the radiation safety program. The RSO will perform an annual review
of the radiation safety program for adherence to ALARA concepts. Reviews of specific
methods of use may be conducted on a more frequent basis.

46



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: ALARA Program*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual; Diagnostic Imaging

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic
Services (DI & Lab)

Effective Date: 11/19/15

(2) Quarterly review of occupational exposures. The RSO will review at least quarterly the
radiation doses of authorized users and workers to determine that their doses are ALARA
in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of this program and will prepare a
summary report for the RSC.

(3) Quarterly review of records of radiation surveys. The RSO will review radiation surveys
in unrestricted and restricted areas to determine that dose rates and amounts of
contamination were at ALARA levels during the previous quarter and will prepare a
summary report for the RSC.

b. Education Responsibilities for ALARA Program

The RSO (in cooperation with authorized user) will ensure that radiation workers and, as
applicable, ancillary personnel are trained and educated in good health physics practices and

procedures.

(1) The RSO (or designee) will schedule briefings and educational sessions to inform workers
of the ALARA program efforts.

(2) The RSO (or designee) will ensure that authorized users, workers, and ancillary personnel
who may be exposed to radiation will be instructed in the ALARA philosophy and
informed that management, the RSC, and the RSO are committed to implementing the

ALARA concept.

c. Cooperative Efforts for Development of ALARA Procedures

(1) Radiation workers will be given opportunities to participate in formulating the procedures
that they will be required to follow.

(2) Radiation workers will be instructed in recourses that may be taken if they feel that
ALARA is not being promoted in the workplace.

d. Reviewing Instances of Deviation from Good ALARA Practices

The RSO will investigate all know instances of deviation from good ALARA practices and, if
possible, will determine the causes. When the cause is known, the RSO will implement changes
in the program to maintain doses ALARA.

4. Authorized Users

a. New Methods of Use Involving Potential Radiation Doses

(1) The authorized user will consult with the RSO and/or RSC during the planning stage
before using radioactive materials and radiation-producing equipment to ensure that doses
will be kept ALARA. Simulated trials runs may be helpful.

(2) The authorized user will review each planned use of radioactive materials or radiation-
producing equipment to ensure that doses will be kept ALARA. Simulated trial runs may

be helpful.

4
47



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: ALARA Program*

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Diagnostic Imaging

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic
Services (DI & Lab)

Effective Date: 11/19/15

5. Establishment of Investigational Levels in Order to Monitor Individual Occupational Radiation

Doses (External and Internal)

This institution hereby establishes investigational levels for occupational radiation doses which, when
exceeded, will initiate review or investigation by the RSC and/or the RSO. The investigational levels that we
have adopted are listed in Table 1. These levels apply to the exposure of individual workers. The following

actions will be taken at the investigational levels stated in Table 1.

a. Personnel Dose Less than Investigational Level I

Except when deemed appropriate by the RSO, no further action will be taken in those cases where
an individual’s dose is less than Table I values for the investigational Level L

. Personnel Dose Equal To or Greater Than Investigational Level I But Less Than Investigational
Level 11

The RSO will review the dose of each individual whose quarterly dose exceeds the
investigational Level I and will report the results of the reviews at the first RSC meeting
following the quarter when the dose was recorded. If the dose does not equal or exceed
Investigational Level I, no specific action related to the exposure is required unless deemed
appropriate by the Committee. The committee will, however, review each such dose in
comparison with those of others performing similar tasks as an index of ALARA program quality
and will record the review in the committee minutes.

Personnel Dose Equal to and Greater Than Investigational Level II

The RSO will investigate in a timely manner the causes of all personnel doses equaling or
exceeding Investigational Level II and, if warranted, will take action. A notification letter will be
sent to all personnel with doses equaling or exceeding Investigational Level II. A report of the
investigation and any actions taken will be presented to the RSC at its first meeting following
completion of the investigation. The details of these reports will be included in the RSC minutes.

. Reestablishment of Investigational Levels to Level Above Those Listed in Table 1

In cases where a worker’s or a group of workers’ doses need to exceed an investigational level, a
new, higher investigational level may be established for that individual or group on the basis that
it is consistent with good ALARA practices. Justification for new investigational levels will be

documented.

The RSC will review the justification for and must approve or disapprove all revisions of
investigational levels.

48



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: ALARA Program*
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Diagnostic Imaging
Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date: 11/19/15
Services (DI & Lab)
REFERENCES:

1. CATitle 17

2. CA-RHB “Guide for the preparation of an application for a radioactive materials license authorizing
medical use”

3. 10CFR 35,10 CFR 20

4. NCRP Report No. 116, Table 19.1

5. Radiation Detection Company Dosimetry Report

CROSS REFERENCE P&P:
1. Dosimetry Program - Occupational Radiation Exposure Monitoring Program

Approval Date
Radiation Safety Committee 5/16/17
Radiology Services Committee 5/16/17
Medical Executive Committee 6/5/17
Board of Directors 6/21/17
Last Board of Director review 1/18/17
Developed:

Reviewed: 6/20/2018

Revised:

Supersedes:

Index Listings:

49



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Diagnostic Imaging - C-Arm (fluoroscope) Radiation Safety

Scope: Departmental Manual: Radiology

Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic | Effective Date:
Services (DI & Lab)

PURPOSE: Ensure mobile fluoroscopy equipment is operated in compliance with Title 17, 30307 and CA-
DHS Radiation Safety Advisory 05-02.

POLICY:

1. The spacer cone shall remain mounted to the C-arm to prevent operation of the equipment with a
source-skin distance of less than 30 cm (12 inches).

2. The spacer cone may be removed following instruction of a supervising physician (CA licensed “X-
ray operator and supervisor), only if the cone is deemed a safety risk to the patient or sterile field.

3. Physicians and fluoroscopy personnel are granted an exemption to remove the spacer cones
and operate at source-skin distances of not less than 20 centimeters for medical procedures in
which the cone is contraindicated or compromises the procedure.

4, Manufacturer’s published precautions for use of spacer cone shall be maintained.

5. The spacer cone shall be replaced upon completion of the exam for which removal was authorized.

REFERENCES:

1. California Code of Regulations, Title 17, Section 30307
2. CA-DHS Radiation Safety Advisory 05-02 (attached)

Committee Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee 8/19/2014
Medical Executive Committee 9/2/2014
Administration 8/19/2014
Board of Directors 9/17/2014

Developed: 7/20/2014

Reviewed: 6/20/2018

Revised:

Supercedes: C-arm Fluoroscopy Radiation safety 10/31/2007
Responsibility for review and maintenance: DDI

50



/ A Northern Inyq Hospltal Medical Staff Appointment cycle
Clinical Privilege Request Form
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Practitioner Name: Date:

(Office use only)

Please Print

FAMILY MEDICINE

Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested.

INITIAL CRITERIA

Education/Formal Training:
e Completed accredited residency training in family medicine.
e Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Family Medicine OR equivalent (AOA).

OUTPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES
**Current BLS or ACLS required**

any illness, condition or symptom.
« Evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult, and provide non-surgical treatment to a patient of any age.

Cryotherapy, skin
Cryotherapy, cervix
Dermoscopy
Endometrial biopsy

Obstetrics/Gynecology
[J Endocervical curettage
1 Vulvar/vaginal biopsy

. . - Saline infusion hyst h
Foreign body removal (skin, superficial L1 Saline infusion hysterosonography

000 O 00O O0OoO0dooodooodoonoooooo

o Assess, evaluate, stabilize and/or provide treatment to patients of any age who present to the outpatient environment with

Primary Care Primary Care (continued)
Incision and drainage of abscess, excluding peri-rectal [] Microscopic examination (urine, vaginal wet mount
Allergy immunotherapy and skin preparations)
Anoscopy B i
Arthrocentesis/joint injections 1 Nail removal
Incision and drainage of Bartholin’s cyst/abscess [J Paracervical block
Bladder catheterization [1 Pessary placement
irati [1 Digital nerve/ring block anesthesia
Burn management, 1%t and 2" degree B jecti
Aspiration of breast cyst [1 Skin biopsy (excisional, shave, or punch)
Application of cast/splint [ Soft tissue injections/trigger point injections
Cancer chemotherapy(in consultation with oncologist) [1 Drainage of subungual hematoma
Cerumen impaction removal [1 Tonometry
Cervical dilation (mechanical) [1 Tympanometry
Removal of cervical polyps, simple [1 Application of Unna paste boot
Circumcision with clamp, pediatric only [1 Vasectomy
Colposcopy, with or without cervical biopsy 1 Uncomplicated wound debridement

[1 Abdominal/transvaginal OB/GYN ultrasonography

corneal/conjunctival, nose and ear) Physical Examinations

Ganglion cyst aspiration/injection L1 Pre-employment physicals

Incision of thrombosed external hemorrhoid, simple [0 Commercial driving medical exams (DOT Medical
Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device Examiner’s Certificate required)

(eg, Nexplanon) [ Disability evaluations

Insertion/removal of intrauterine device (IUD) [0 Independent medical evaluations (Workman’s
Laceration repair, simple Compensation)

Lumbar puncture 1 Return to work evaluations

ADULT INPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES

Requires inpatient experience within the last 2 years, current ACLS certification, and recommendation by Hospitalist Director.

general medical problems.

critical illnesses, needing ICU care.
[0 Ventilator management.

| Admit, evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult and provide nonsurgical treatment to adult patients presenting with

| Admit, evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult and provide nonsurgical treatment to adult patients presenting with

Family Medicine

Rev.11/6/18
51



Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff

.. .. Appointment cycle
Clinical Privilege Request Form

A (Office use only)
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Practitioner Name: Date:

Please Print
SPECIAL PRIVILEGES
All require experience within last 2 years
1 Well newborn care/admit to nursery (NRP required, Special Privileges in Obstetrics: require experience in last
STABLE preferred; approval by Chief of Pediatrics) 2 years and recommendation by Chief of OB/GYN

Pediatric consultation and admission (advanced
experience managing peds/newborns; PALS & NRP
required; approval by Chief of Pediatrics)

Vaginal delivery; spontaneous
Vacuum-assisted vaginal delivery
Episiotomy and repair of vaginal lacerations (1 and

[] Conscious sedation (requires tutorial and current
ACLS certificate per Procedural Sedation policy)

[] Surgical first assist (requires experience in last 2 years
and recommendation by Chief of Surgery)

2" degree only; 3%/4™ degree must consult OB)
Manual extraction of the placenta

FSE application/IUPC insertion

Induction of labor/cervical ripening

oo oogd

Acknowledgment of Practitioner:
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and
demonstrated performance | am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and | understand that:

(@ In exercising any clinical privileges granted, | am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and
Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable.

(b)  Anyrestriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation
my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

Practitioner Signature Date
APPROVALS
COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES:
RHC/Outpatient Clinic Medical Director Date  Chief of Medicine Date
Chief of Pediatrics Date  Chief of Surgery Date
Chief of Obstetrics Date  Hospitalist Director Date
Approvals Committee Date
Credentials Committee
Medical Executive Committee
Board of Directors
(Office use only)
Family Medicine 2

Rev.11/6/18
52



/ A Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff Appointment cycle
Clinical Privilege Request Form (Office use only)

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Practitioner Name: Date:
Please Print

OBSTETRICS & GYNECOLOGY

Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested.
Draw a line through and initial next to any core privilege NOT requested.

INITIAL CRITERIA

Education/Formal Training:

e Completed accredited residency training in Obstetrics and Gynecology.

o Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Obstetrics and Gynecology or equivalent.

o All practitioners requesting privileges to manage and attend births in Labor and Deliver at Northern Inyo Hospital will complete the
appropriate BETA (Quest for Zero: Excellence in OB) requirements and will comply with NICHD terminology in the OB setting.

INPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES

Request | « Admit, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and manage the care of female patients in any condition or

stage of pregnancy who present to the hospital or Emergency Department.

|:| « Admit, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and provide pre-operative, intra-operative and post-operative
care for management of female patients presenting with illness, injury, disorders of the gynecologic or
genitourinary system.

« Vaginal delivery

o Hysterectomy

« Cesarean section

« Cesarean hysterectomy

« Diagnostic cystoscopy

« Diagnostic and operative hysteroscopy

« Diagnostic and operative laparoscopy

« Diagnostic and operative laparotomy

« Adnexal surgery

« Ultrasound

« Suburethral slings

OUTPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES
**Current BLS or ACLS required**
Request | « Assess, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and manage the care of female patients in any condition or
I:l stage of pregnancy or with illness, injury, or disorders of the gynecologic or genitourinary system who present to
the outpatient clinic.

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES
(requires experience within the last 2 years)

] Circumcision with clamp, pediatric only [] [Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device
[ Robotic Surgery (per Robotic credentialing policy) (e.g. Nexplanon)
[] Complex robotic gyn procedures (sacrolcolpopexy) [ ] Cervical cerclage

CONSULTING PRIVILEGES
(for Consulting Staff only)
Request | « Provide consultation, order, interpret, and evaluate diagnostic tests to identify and assess patients’ clinical
I:l problems and health care needs on request from Active or Provisional Staff members or Temporary Privileges
Practitioners.

Please sign acknowledgment on next page.

Obstetrics & Gynecology 1

Rev.09/26/2018
53



/ A Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff Appointment cycle
Clinical Privilege Request Form (Office use only)

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Practitioner Name: Date:
Please Print

Acknowledgment of Practitioner:
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and
demonstrated performance | am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and | understand that:

(@ In exercising any clinical privileges granted, | am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and
Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable.

(b)  Anyrestriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation
my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

Practitioner Signature Date

APPROVALS

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES:

Chief of Obstetrics Date

Chief of Surgery Date

Approvals Committee Date
Credentials Committee
Medical Executive Committee
Board of Directors

(Office use only)

Obstetrics & Gynecology 2

Rev.09/26/2018
54



V' The Joint Commission

Accreditation Data Update:
Critical Access Hospital Program

Possnbllmes Jicion © Improve

£ Passion
hange&MWdﬁ
ffecwenessTransformatlon i
§ Strategy := ation” £
June 2018 S raining &= CURtUFE 7 & | -E
E T Coaching Degign

55



V' The Joint Commission

Introduction

1 This critical access hospital program data update will be provided on a
regular basis to all accredited hospitals.

1 This initial report includes results from onsite critical access hospital
surveys that were conducted between the timeframe of 6/1/17 through

5/31/18.

= These surveys include initial and re-accreditation surveys only, and
exclude any mid-cycle surveys such as extension, CMS follow-up, and/or
complaint surveys.

1 Accreditation programs are reviewed for non-compliance by
surveyors for each element of performance (EP). This report focuses
on the most frequently cited Standards and EPs for the critical access
hospital program, and includes examples of non-compliance. This
report also includes SAFER™ distributions.

56



V' The Joint Commission

SAFER™



Survey Analysis for Evaluating
Risk™ (SAFER™)

V' The Joint Commission

1 A transformative approach for identifying and
communicating risk levels associated with
deficiencies cited during surveys

1 Helps organizations prioritize and focus corrective
actions

] Provides one, comprehensive visual representation
of survey findings

1 Implemented: January 2017

58



Aggregate SAFER Data

Critical Access Hospital Requirement for Improvement(RFI) Distribution
For Full and Initial survey from 06/01/2017 through 05/31/2018 (n=139)

V' The Joint Commission

Immediate Threat to Life

0.34%

HIGH 4.28%
T -
E 2
T2
Q£
§ £ MODERATE 14.19% 11.30% 4.74% 30.22%
=
£%
- Q.

LOW 47.09% 14.62% 3.45% 65.16%

62.79% 27.15% 9.73%

LIMITED PATTERN WIDESPREAD

S€ope



Average Number of Requirements

V' The Joint Commission

for Improvements (RFIs)

06/01/2017 — 05/31/2018 Average number of RFIs

For Critical Access Hospital Programs (n=139)

23-37

60



V' The Joint Commission

Most Frequently Cited Elements of
Performance (EPs)



Most Frequently Cited Clinical®
Elements of Performance (EPs) 7 esiscomson

Top 10 Most Frequently Cited *Clinical Standards and Elements of Performance

Full and Initial Critical Access Hospital surveys from 06/01/2017 through o5/31/2018
(N=139)

NUMBER OF EP-LEVEL RFIS AND SAFER PLACEMENT

1€.02.02.01 EP 2

MM.0401.01 EP 13

RC.02.01.01EP2

IC.02.01.01EP 1

PC.02.02.03 EP 11

PC.03.01.03EP 1

PC.0201.11EP2
HR.01.06.01 EP &

MM.03.01.01EP 2

0 20 40 &0 80 100 120 140 160 180 200/

-

*Clinical EPs include all chapters in the Critical Access Hogpital Accreditation manual except for the © 2018, The Joint Commission
Environment of Care and Life Safety Code Chapters.



Most Frequently Cited Clinical EPs:
Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

I1C.02.02.01, EP 2 - The critical access hospital implements infection
prevention and control activities when doing the following: Performing
intermediate and high-level disinfection and sterilization of medical
equipment, devices, and supplies.

) Instruments soaking in a sink used for hand hygiene
1 Staff not following process for high-level disinfection

(] Reusable and disposable Laryngeal Masks being used. The reusable LMA's
have a limited 40 uses or 1 year reprocessing limit according to the
manufacturer Laryngeal Mask Company. Staff were unaware of the
manufacturer's recommendation and were not monitoring the reprocessing of
the LMA’s.

) Scope Buddy used in the cleaning process for endoscopes was not being
cleaned at the end of the day per manufacturers recommendations

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most freq@@ntly cited EPs. Example observations contain

observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



Most Frequently Cited Clinical EPs:

. ' . o e
Example Observations* (cont.) PV The Jofat Commission

I1C.02.02.01, EP 4 - The critical access hospital implements infection
prevention and control activities when doing the following: Storing medical
equipment, devices, and supplies.

) There was no temperature and/or humidity monitoring in the sub-sterile room,
which contained sterile instrument trays

] OB delivery room had a mounted vaginal probe that was uncovered during
storage

1 Airway bags that are stored in the hospital owned ambulances contained six
laryngoscope blades of various sizes and a McGill forceps, which were
unwrapped and not protected from recontamination

) During a tour of the sterile storage room, it was noted that a rack with sterile
instruments was stored less than two inches from an external wall. This is not
consistent with AAMI guidelines, which the organization has adopted.

] Bronchoscopes were observed hanging bent and the ends upward which did not
allow proper drying in the cabinet

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most freqiéntly cited EPs. Example observations contain

observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



Most Frequently Cited EPs — Clinical:
Example Observations*

V' The Joint Commission

MM.04.01.01 EP 13 - The critical access hospital implements its
policies for medication orders.

) With PRN medication prescribed, there was no indication for use included
with the order in accordance with hospital policy

1 Therapeutic duplication of drugs for nausea and drugs for pain was made;
however, there were no instructions by the physician when to give which
medication

] Written titration order in the record of care did not include a documented
desired goal or adjustment increments per hospital’s policy

1 In review of the record of care it was noted that the patient was ordered two
different PRN medications for the indication of pain. There was no
differentiation of when to give each of the medications, which did not meet
the hospital’s policy.

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most freq#ntly cited EPs. Example observations contain
observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



Most Frequently Cited Environment of Care
4
(EC) and Llfe Safety (LS) Code% EPS P The Joint Commission

Top 10 Most Frequently Cited *Environment of Care (EC) and Life Safety (LS) Code EPs
Full and Initial Critical Access Hospital surveys from 06/01/2017 through 05/31/2018 (N=139)

NUMBER OF EP-LEVEL RFIS AND SAFER PLACEMENT

EC.02.06.01 EP 1
EC.02.05.01 EP 15

LS020135EP4

EC02.03.03EP3
LS.02.01.35€EP 14
EC.02.05.01 EP 16

EC.02.05.01EP 8

ECO2.0201EP5

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

*Environment of Care and Life Safety Code chapters addresses General life safety design, building construction, and the I
phySical environment. 66 © 2018, The Joint Commission



Most Frequently Cited EC/LS EPs:
Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

EC.02.06.01, EP 1 - Interior spaces meet the needs of the patient
population and are safe and suitable to the care, treatment, and services
provided

] The nurse call cord was less than 4 inches from the floor; there was
no nurse call cord in room

(] In patient room there was a stained ceiling tile and a fluorescent
light fixture which appeared to have dried leaked material in it

] Behavioral health patients were kept in the Emergency Department
where there are stretchers with side-rails that had bars which were a
strangulation risk

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most freq#ntly cited EPs. Example observations contain
observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



Most Frequently Cited EC/LS EPs:
Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

EC.02.05.01, EP 15 - In critical care areas designed to control airborne
contaminants (such as biological agents, gases, fumes, dust), the
ventilation system provides appropriate pressure relationships, air-
exchange rates, filtration efficiencies, and temperature and humidity.

1 The airflow from the OR bio-hazard storage room was positive to the
OR corridor

1 In the sterile processing area and the surgery sterile storage area,
there were sterile packs stored, and there was no monitoring of
temperature or humidity in these locations

] Pharmacy had a negative air pressure relationship to the hospital
corridor

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 m&8t frequently cited EPs. Example observations contain
observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



Most Frequently Cited EC/LS EPs:
Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

LS.02.1.35, EP 4 - Approved automatic sprinkler systems piping is not
used to support any other item.

1 A wire was found using the sprinkler pipe as support

] There was low voltage wiring and/or metal flex conduit lying on the
fire sprinkler piping

1 On the ceiling in front of the 2nd floor electrical closet there were
cables and flexible conduit on the fire main sprinkler pipe

1 During ceiling inspection, conduit was observed using the sprinkler
pipe for support. Outside nursing station in acute care, 3 wires were
observed using the sprinkler pipe as support.

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most freq#ntly cited EPs. Example observations contain
observations found to be cited anywhere from low-risk to high-risk areas.



V' The Joint Commission

Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to
Harm Elements of Performance (EPs)



Most Frequently Cited High
Likelihood to Harm* Clinical** EPS  »"heuinconmission

Top 10 *High-Risk Most Frequently Cited Clinical Elements of Performance
Full and Initial Critical Access Hospital surveys from 06,/01/2017 through 05/31/2018 (N=139)

MUEEER OF EP-LEVEL HFIS AHD SAFER PLACEMENT

L R -
1020001 2 2

K02.01.07 B8R 1

LD 004 EP 12

PCO2OLITER 2

HRO1,05.01 BR &

LOu4.01.05 821

RCOZ.OLDNER 2

HEMLG0S B2

02020 ER 4

LOuD4.01.07 B 1

=]
=
o]
=]
L
=
=
L
=1
=
1
L=
&

*High Likelihood to harm on the SAFER Matrix is defined as harm could happen at any time. The deficient practice
could directly lead to harm without the need for other significant circumstances or failures. If the deficiency
continues, it would be likely that harm could happen at any time to any patient (or did actually happen). S

71
**Clinical EPs include all chapters in the Critical Access Hospital Accreditation manual except for the Environment of Care
and Life Safety Code Chapters.



Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to Harm a4

The Joint Commission

Clinical EPs: Example Observations* (cont.)

I1C.02.02.01, EP 2 - The critical access hospital implements infection
prevention and control activities when doing the following: Performing
intermediate and high-level disinfection and sterilization of medical
equipment, devices, and supplies.

0 There was an Ultrasound machine with mounted cavity probe located in the OB
department delivery room. Personnel stated the unit was wiped with "Cavi
Wipes", a low-level disinfectant in between patient use. The device required
high-level disinfection and there were no procedures in place to perform HLD.

O In the rural clinics it was noticed that the process for pre-cleaning instruments
used in the clinic did not follow the AAMI guidelines, which the organization
adopted. The instruments were being taken from the room to the soiled utility
room in a paper towel and were then immersed in a mixture of detergent which
was not mixed according to manufacturer guidelines.

— 18

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 mo¢f frequently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to Harm /. soint commission
Clinical EPs: Example Observations* (cont.)

I1C.02.01.01, EP 1 -The critical access hospital implements its infection
prevention and control activities, including surveillance, to minimize,
reduce, or eliminate the risk of infection.

2 Ear Nose and Throat clinic had not been involved in the infection
control surveillance activities related to process for performing high
level disinfection

[ The facility was using sanitizer in the final rinse cycle of the
dishwasher to provide disinfection. The sanitizer level was only
being checked once daily and not at each time the dishwasher was
drained and refilled for a different meal time washing per
manufacture's instructions.

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 mogf frequently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to Harm
Clinical EPs: Example Observations* P The Joint Commission

LD.01.03.01, EP 12 -The critical access hospital has a governing body
that assumes full legal responsibility for the operation of the critical
access hospital.

1 The governing body/leadership did not ensure that the following
Conditions of Participation were met as determined through
observations, documentation, and staff interviews:

vV 485.623 Condition of Participation: Physical Plant and
Environment; 412.27 Excluded psychiatric units: Additional
requirements; 485.635; Condition of Participation: Provision of
Services;485.639 Condition of Participation: Surgical Services;
485.627(a) Standard: Governing Body or Responsible
Individual; 485.635 Condition of Participation: Provision of
Services

— 20

*Note: Example observations are provided for thé Top 3 most frequently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to Harm*
Environment of Care
and Life Safety Code** EPs

Top 10 *High-Risk Most Frequently Cited *Environment of Care (EC) and
Life Safety (LS) Code Elements of Performance
For Full and Initial Critical Access Hospital surveys from 06/01/2017 through 05/31/2018 (N=139)

JV' The Joint Commission

NUMBER OF EP-LEVEL RFIS AND SAFER PLACEMENT

£C.02.06.01 £P

EC.02.05.01EP 15

£C.02.02.01 £P

w

£C.02.05.05 €P

o

IS

EC.02.04.01 EP

S

€C.02.05.05¢€P

LS.02.01.20EP 14

£C.02.01.01EP1

£C02.0201EP 12

EC.02.03.01 EP1

o
U
o
w
"
L=]
"~
w
w
i=]
w
w

*High Likelihood to harm on the SAFER Matrix is defined as harm could happen at any time. The deficient practice could
directly lead to harm without the need for other significant circumstances or failures. If the deficiency continues, it would be
likely that harm could happen at any time to any patient (or did actually happen).

** The Environment of Care and Life Safety Code chapters addagss general life safety design, building construction; and the
physical environment.



Most Frequently Cited High Likelihood to Harm
EC and LS EPs: Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

EC.02.06.01, EP 1 - Interior spaces meet the needs of the patient
population and are safe and suitable to the care, treatment, and services
provided.

[ Identified in the hospital’s risk assessment but had not been replaced or
ordered, which can pose as a ligature risk: door knobs in the patient rooms and
patient restrooms were not of a ligature resistant type; metal chain type pull
cords used to adjust the window blinds; door hinges in the patient rooms and
patient restrooms were not of a ligature resistant three hinge type; electric light
fixtures above the patient beds were standard hospital type.

 Inpatient patient rooms contained heater vents, furniture, closet doors, window
blind knobs and bathroom sink faucets that were not ligature resistant.

 In the Endoscopy room, it was noted the scope reprocessing room was small
and did not allow for a conducive dirty-to-clean workflow. There was only one
sink in the area to clean the scopes.

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most frgguently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Most Frequently Cited EC and LS EPs:
Example Observations* (cont.)

V' The Joint Commission

EC.02.05.01, EP 15 - In critical care areas designed to control airborne
contaminants (such as biological agents, gases, fumes, dust), the ventilation
system provides appropriate pressure relationships, air-exchange rates,
filtration efficiencies, and temperature and humidity

£ In 2 of the 3 operating rooms the temperature and humidity logs were
reviewed they ranged from 62% to 75%, with no corrective actions
recorded. The acceptable limit was 60%.

) It was determined that a CACI was utilized for compounding hazardous

medication. The organization could not provide evidence that the room
maintained negative pressure or had 12 air exchanges per hour.

— 23

*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most frgéuently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Most Frequently Cited EC and LS EPs:
Example Observations*

V' The Joint Commission

EC.02.02.01, EP 5 - The critical access hospital minimizes risks
associated with selecting, handling, storing, transporting, using, and
disposing of hazardous chemicals.

1 Corrosive Chemicals (Floor Stripper pH>13) are being used in a
janitor's closet without a readily available eyewash station.

] Eyewash station did not provide tepid water (between 60-100
degrees)

1 Eye was station was behind locked doors.

78
*Note: Example observations are provided for the Top 3 most frequently cited High Likelihood to Harm EPs.



Thank you!!



/' The Joint Commission

Final Accreditation Report
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

150 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, CA 93514

Organization Identification Number: 9762
Unannounced Full Event: 2/19/2019 - 2/21/2019

Program Surveyed
Critical Access Hospital

80

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission
Table of Contents

Executive Summary
What’s Next - Follow-up Activity
Critical Access Hospital
* SAFER™ Matrix
* The Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) Summary
* Requirements for Improvement (RFI)
Appendix
* The Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) Conditions of Partiicipation (CoP)
» Standards/Elements of Performance (EP) Language
* Report Section Descriptions
» Clarification Instructions

NN N
ooovlm::@\llsll-hlw

W w
O

Organization Identification Number: 9762 2 &139 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

Executive Summary

rv . . . .
Program g:tezy Event Outcome | Follow-up Activity Follow-up Time Frame or Submission Due Date
Critical Access |02/19/2019 - Requirements for Clarification (Optional) Submit within 10 Business Days from the final posted report date
02/21/2019 Improvement

Hospital

Evidence of Standards
Compliance (ESC)

Submit within 60 Calendar Days from the final posted report date

Organization Identification Number: 9762

38839

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




Program: Critical Access Hospital

The Joint Commission
What’s Next - Follow-up Activity

Included in the

Evidence of
™
Standard gp |SAFER CoP Tag Standard
Placement Compliance
(within 60
calendar days)
EC.02.01.01 1 Moderate / §485.623 | C-0221 v
Pattern (a)
EC.02.02.01 12 Low / Pattern | §485.623 | C-0223 v
(b)(2)
19 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0223 v
(b)(2)
5 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0223 v
(b)(2)
EC.02.03.03 2 Low / v
Widespread
3 Low / §485.623 | C----—- v
Widespread | (c)(1)(i)
EC.02.03.05 19 Moderate / §485.623 | C-0222 v
Widespread | (b)(1)
28 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C----- v
(©)(1)(i)
3 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0222 v
(b)(1)
4 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0222 v
(b)(1)
5 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0222 v
(b)(1)
EC.02.05.01 15 Moderate / §485.623 | C-0222 v
Limited (b)(1)
16 Low / Pattern v
9 Low / Limited
EC.02.05.03 1 Low / Limited v

Organization Identification Number: 9762

4 8839

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

Included in the

Evidence of
™
Standard gp | SAFER CoP Tag Standard
Placement Compliance
(within 60
calendar days)
1" Low / Limited v
EC.02.05.05 4 Moderate / §485.623 | C-0222 v
Pattern (b)(1)
6 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0221 v
(a)
EC.02.05.07 8 Low / Limited | §485.625 | E-0041 v
(€)2)
9 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0222 v
(b)(1)
EC.02.05.09 1" Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0222 v
(b)(1)
12 Low / Limited v
EM.02.01.01 14 Low / Limited | §485.625 | E-0026 v
(b)(8)
EM.03.01.03 2 Low / Limited | §485.625 | E-0039
d)(2)(ii v
(A)
HR.01.01.01 2 Low / Limited | §485.608 | C-0154 v
(d)
LS.02.01.10 1" Low / Limited | §485.623 | C----- v
(e)(1)(i)
LS.02.01.20 13 Low / Limited v
LS.02.01.34 10 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C----- v
c)(1)(i)
9 Low / Limited v
LS.02.01.35 14 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C----- v
(e)(1)(i)
6 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C----- v
(e)(1)(i)

Organization Identification Number: 9762

5 839

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

Included in the

Evidence of
™
Standard gp |SAFER CoP Tag Standard
Placement Compliance
(within 60
calendar days)
LS.02.01.70 6 Low / Limited | §485.623 | C-0223 v
(b)(2)
MM.04.01.01 1 Low / Limited v
MM.05.01.01 4 Moderate /
L v
Limited
MS.06.01.05 9 Low / Limited v
PC.02.01.11 2 Low / Limited v
PC.02.02.01 29 Low / Limited | §483.55 C---- v
(b)(4)
RC.02.01.01 2 Low / Pattern | §485.638 | C-0306 v
(a)(4)(ii)
T1S.03.02.01 3 Low / Limited v

Organization Identification Number: 9762

6 P39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission
SAFER™ Matrix

Program: Critical Access Hospital

Likelihood to harm a Patient / Visitor / Staff

Moderate

Low

EC.02.05.01 EP 15
MM.05.01.01 EP 4

EC.02.02.01 EP 5
EC.02.02.01 EP 19
EC.02.03.05 EP 3
EC.02.03.05 EP 4
EC.02.03.05 EP 5
EC.02.03.05 EP 28
EC.02.05.01 EP 9
EC.02.05.03 EP 1
EC.02.05.03 EP 11
EC.02.05.05 EP 6
EC.02.05.07 EP 8
EC.02.05.07 EP 9
EC.02.05.09 EP 11
EC.02.05.09 EP 12
EM.02.01.01 EP 14
EM.03.01.03 EP 2
HR.01.01.01 EP 2
LS.02.01.10 EP 11
LS.02.01.20 EP 13

Organization Identification Number: 9762

EC.02.01.01 EP 1
EC.02.05.05 EP 4

EC.02.02.01 EP 12
EC.02.05.01 EP 16
RC.02.01.01 EP 2

7 8639

EC.02.03.05 EP 19

EC.02.03.03 EP 2
EC.02.03.03 EP 3

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

LS.02.01.34 EP 9
LS.02.01.34 EP 10
LS.02.01.35 EP 6
LS.02.01.35 EP 14
LS.02.01.70 EP 6
MM.04.01.01 EP 1
MS.06.01.05 EP 9
PC.02.01.11 EP 2
PC.02.02.01 EP 29
TS.03.02.01 EP 3

Limited Pattern Widespread

Scope

Organization Identification Number: 9762 8 & 39 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

The Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) Summary

Program: Critical Access Hospital

CoP(s) Tag CoP Score Corresponds to:
§485.608 C-0150 Standard
§485.608(d) C-0154 Standard CAH/HR.01.01.01/EP2
§485.623 C-0220 Standard
§485.623(a) C-0221 Standard CAH/EC.02.01.01/EP1
CAH/EC.02.05.05/EP6
§485.623(b)(1) C-0222 Standard CAH/EC.02.03.05/EP3
CAH/EC.02.03.05/EP4
CAH/EC.02.03.05/EP5
CAH/EC.02.03.05/EP19
CAH/EC.02.05.01/EP15
CAH/EC.02.05.05/EP4
CAH/EC.02.05.07/EP9
CAH/EC.02.05.09/EP11
§485.623(b)(2) C-0223 Standard CAH/EC.02.02.01/EP5
CAH/EC.02.02.01/EP12
CAH/EC.02.02.01/EP19
CAH/LS.02.01.70/EP6
§485.623(c)(1)(i) C--—--- Standard CAH/EC.02.03.03/EP3
CAH/EC.02.03.05/EP28
CAH/LS.02.01.10/EP11
CAH/LS.02.01.34/EP10
CAH/LS.02.01.35/EP6
CAH/LS.02.01.35/EP14
§485.638 C-0300 Standard
§485.638(a)(4)(iii) C-0306 Standard CAH/RC.02.01.01/EP2
§485.645 C-0350 Standard
§483.55 C--—- Standard
§483.55(b)(4) C-—-- Standard CAH/PC.02.02.01/EP29
§485.625 E-0001 Standard
§485.625(b)(8) E-0026 Standard CAH/EM.02.01.01/EP14

Organization Identification Number: 9762

9 &839

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

CoP(s) Tag CoP Score Corresponds to:
§485.625(d)(2)(ii)(A) E-0039 Standard CAH/EM.03.01.03/EP2
§485.625(e)(2) E-0041 Standard CAH/EC.02.05.07/EP8

Organization Identification Number: 9762

10 8% 39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission
Requirements for Improvement

Program: Critical Access Hospital

SAFER™

Organization Identification Number: 9762

and hazard warnings. * (See also 1C.02.01.01, EP 6)
Footnote *: The Occupational Safety and Health
Administration’s (OSHA) Bloodborne Pathogens and
Hazard Communications Standards and the
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) provide
details on labeling requirements.

11 8t 39

site . The fuel tank for generator 1 and 2 was not
labeled for contents of diesel fuel. A label was
ordered during survey.

Standard EP Pl EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
acement
EC.02.01.01 1 Moderate The critical access hospital implements its process | 1). Observed in Tracer Activities at Northern Inyo §485.623(a) Standard
Pattern to identify safety and security risks associated with | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
the environment of care that could affect patients, site . During review of relative humidity recordings in
staff, and other people coming to the critical access | the operating rooms, it was noted that for all 3 ORs,
hospital's facilities. the number of readings in January in which the
Note: Risks are identified from internal sources such | humidity was below 20% was 56 times out of 2232
as ongoing monitoring of the environment, results of | total humidity readings. The hospital is functioning
root cause analyses, results of proactive risk under a CMS waiver permitting using the operating
assessments of high-risk processes, and from room at a relative humidity of 20% or more. There
credible external sources such as Sentinel Event have been no instances of performing surgery with
Alerts. the relative humidity under 20%. However, the
organization is doing procedures when the humidity
is between 20%-30%. The organization has not
conducted a risk assessment in making its
determination to perform surgery at such levels of
humidity, although hospital staff have been given
guidance on conducting a risk assessment and have
begun the process.
EC.02.02.01 5 Low The critical access hospital minimizes risks 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(b)(2) | Standard
Limited associated with selecting, handling, storing, Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
transporting, using, and disposing of hazardous site . The emergency generators 1,2 and 3 have non
chemicals. -sealed lead acid batteries and there was no
emergency eyewash in the vicinity.
2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(b)(2) | Standard
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The surgical suite where specimen jars
containing formalin and soiled sterile processing
areas did not have a plumbed energy eyewash
station.
EC.02.02.01 12 Low The critical access hospital labels hazardous 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(b)(2) | Standard
Pattern materials and waste. Labels identify the contents Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The sub deck fuel tank for generator 3 was not
labeled for contents of diesel fuel. A label was
ordered during survey.

§485.623(b)(2)

Standard

3). Observed in Individual Tracer at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . During tracer activities in the operating room
and sterile processing areas, the process for
cleaning endoscopes was discussed and reviewed.
It was noted that the containers used for bringing
dirty scopes into the decontamination area do not
have a biohazard label on them. Further discussion
revealed that containers for bringing surgical
instruments from the OR down the hallway into the
decontamination area are covered with drapes
before being transported via a cart to the
decontamination area, and there is no biohazard
marking on this container.

§485.623(b)(2)

Standard

EC.02.02.01

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital has procedures for the
proper routine storage and prompt disposal of trash.

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The med surge electrical room H2061 had
used fluorescent bulbs which are universal waste
stored in an open unlabeled box. Used bulbs need
to be kept in a closed box that labeled for used or
spent bulbs. Corrected on survey.

485.623(b)(2

Standard

EC.02.03.03

IN

Low
Widespread

The critical access hospital conducts fire drills every
12 months from the date of the last drill in all
freestanding buildings classified as business
occupancies and in which patients are seen or
treated.

Note: In leased or rented facilities, drills need be
conducted only in areas of the building that the
critical access hospital occupies.

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The fire response drills were not conducted on
a quarterly interval of 3 months +/- 10 days for the
following: 1) 2018 first shift — fourth quarter drill not
conducted 2) third shift — third quarter drill not
conducted. 3) 2017 first shift April 28th and August
30th exceeded time interval 4) 2017 second shift-
May 31st and September 27th exceeded time
interval. 5) 2017 Second Shift — fourth quarter drill
not conducted. 6) 2017 third shift — June 14th and
July 19th less than an interval of 3 months +/- 10
days.

EC.02.03.03

Organization Identification Number: 9762

|[6M)

Low

When quarterly fire drills are required, they are

12 &t 39

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo

§485.623(c)(1)(i)

Standard

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
Widespread unannounced and held at unexpected times and Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
under varying conditions. Fire drills include site . The fire response drills were less than 1-hour
transmission of fire alarm signal and simulation of variance per shift and therefore not at unexpected
emergency fire conditions. times for the following. 1) 2018 first shift Jan 26th
Note 1: When drills are conducted between 9:00 at 2:45 p.m., April 27th at 2:00 p.m. 2) 2018 second
P.M. and 6:00 A.M., the critical access hospital may | shift February 26th at 3:10 p.m., May 30th at 3:10
use alternative methods to notify staff instead of p.m., and August 30th at 3:10 p.m. 3) 2018 third shift
activating audible alarms. —June 27th at 5:00 p.m. October 19th at 5:15 p.m.
Note 2: For full text, refer to NFPA 101-2012: 18/19: | and December 17th at 5:30 p.m. 4) 2017 first shift —
71.7;71,7.2;7.3. April 28th at 2:00 p.m. and August 30th at 1:45 p.m.
5) 2017 second shift Feb 27th at 3:10 p.m. , May
31st at 3:15 p.m., and September 27th at 3:07 p.m.
6) 2017 third shift — March 24th at 5:00 a.m., June
14th at 5:25 a.m., and July 19th at 6:00 a.m..
EC.02.03.05 3 Low Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Limited duct detectors, heat detectors, manual fire alarm Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
boxes, and smoke detectors on the inventory. The site . The annual testing of smoke, heat and duct
results and completion dates are documented. detectors for the support building exceeded the
Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, annual testing interval of one year +/- one month
see NFPA 72-2010: Table 14.4.5; 17.14. with June 27, 2017 and November 9, 2017
inspections.
EC.02.03.05 4 Low Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Limited visual and audible fire alarms, including speakers Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
and door-releasing devices on the inventory. The site . The annual testing of audible and visuals
results and completion dates are documented. notification devices or the support building exceedec
Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, the annual testing interval of one year +/- one month
see NFPA 72-2010: Table 14.4.5. with June 27, 2017 and November 9, 2017
inspections.
EC.02.03.05 5 Low Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests 1). Observed in Data Session at Northern Inyo §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Limited fire alarm equipment on the inventory for notifying off| Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
-site fire responders. The results and completion site . The annual testing of offsite emergency
dates are documented. notification of the fire alarm system for the support
Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, building exceedec the annual testing interval of one
see NFPA 72-2010: Table 14.4.5. year +/- one month with June 27, 2017 and
November 9, 2017 inspections.
EC.02.03.05 19 Moderate Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Widespread automatic smoke-detection shutdown devices for air | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Organization Identification Number: 9762

-handling equipment. The results and completion
dates are documented.
Note: For additional guidance on performing tests,

13 &t 39

site . The organization did not provide
documentation for HYAC shutdown from smoke
detector activation for 2017 and 2018.

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

see NFPA 90A-2012: 6.4.1.

EC.02.03.05

Low
Limited

Documentation of maintenance, testing, and
inspection activities for Standard EC.02.03.05, EPs
1-20, 25 (including fire alarm and fire protection
features) includes the following:

- Name of the activity

- Date of the activity

- Inventory of devices, equipment, or other items

- Required frequency of the activity

- Name and contact information, including affiliation,
of the person who performed the activity

- NFPA standard(s) referenced for the activity

- Results of the activity

Note: For additional guidance on documenting
activities, see NFPA 25-2011: 4.3; 4.4; NFPA 72-
2010: 14.2.1; 14.2.2; 14.2.3; 14.2.4; NFPA 101-
2012: 18/19.7.2.1.5.10.1; 7.2.1.5.11.

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In review of the EC 02.03.05 EP2 the NFPA
reference was missing on the documentation for the
flow and tamper switches for 2017 and 2018
documents.

§485.623(c)(1)(i)

Standard

EC.02.05.01

Ico

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital labels utility system
controls to facilitate partial or complete emergency
shutdowns.

Note 1: Examples of utility system controls that
should be labeled are utility source valves, utility
system main switches and valves, and individual
circuits in an electrical distribution panel.

Note 2: For example, the fire alarm system’s circuit
is clearly labeled as Fire Alarm Circuit; the
disconnect method (that is, the circuit breaker) is
marked in red; and access is restricted to authorized
personnel. Information regarding the dedicated
branch circuit for the fire alarm panel is located in
the control unit. For additional guidance, see NFPA
101-2012: 18/19.3.4.1; 9.6.1.3; NFPA 72-2010:
10.5.5.2.

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The electrical disconnect for the main fire
alarm in panel HZL beaker # 34 needs to be colored
red. Reference NFPA 72 - 2010 10.5.5.2.3.
Corrected on survey.

EC.02.05.01

Organization Identification Number: 9762

Moderate
Limited

In critical care areas designed to control airborne
contaminants (such as biological agents, gases,
fumes, dust), the ventilation system provides
appropriate pressure relationships, air-exchange
rates, filtration efficiencies, and temperature and
humidity.

Note: For more information about areas designed for
control of airborne contaminants, the basis for

14 ¥t 39

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The clean surgical sterile processing had a
negative pressure relationship relative to the soiled
side of sterile processing and a negative pressure
relationship relative to the corridor. Corrected on
survey.

§485.623(b)(1)

Standard

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP Pl EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
acement
design compliance is the Guidelines for Design and
Construction of Health Care Facilities, based on the
edition used at the time of design (if available).
EC.02.05.01 16 Low In non—critical care areas, the ventilation system 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Pattern provides required pressure relationships, Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
temperature, and humidity. site . The OR Clean supply room H1064 had a
Note: Examples of non—critical care areas are negative pressure relationship relative to the
general care nursing units; clean and soiled utility corridor. Corrected on survey.
rooms in acute care areas; laboratories,
pharmacies, diagnostic and treatment areas, food
preparation areas, and other support departments.
2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The L&D clean supply H2066 clean supply had
negative pressure relationship relative to the
corridor. Corrected on survey.
3). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The ICU clean supply clean supply had
negative pressure relationship relative to the
corridor. Corrected on survey.
4). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The PACU clean utility room H1096 had a
negative pressure relationship relative to the
corridor. Corrected on survey.
EC.02.05.03 1 Low For facilities that were constructed, or had a change | 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Limited in occupancy type, or have undergone an electrical | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

system upgrade since 1983, the critical access
hospital has a Type 1 or Type 3 essential electrical
system in accordance with NFPA 99, 2012 edition.
This essential electrical system must be divided into
three branches, including the life safety branch,
critical branch, and equipment branch. Both the life
safety branch and the critical branch are kept
independent of all other wiring and equipment, and
they transfer within 10 seconds of electrical
interruption. Each branch has at least one
automatic transfer switch. For additional guidance,
see NFPA 99-2012: 6.4.2.2.

site . The electrical disconnect for the main fire
alarm in panel HZL beaker # 34 needs to be on the
life safety branch. The fire alarm breaker was on a
panel that had breakers to equipment and non-life
safety items.

Organization Identification Number: 9762

15 &t 39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

EC.02.05.03

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital provides emergency
power within 10 seconds for the following:
Emergency lighting at emergency generator
locations. The critical access hospital’'s emergency
power system (EPS) has a remote manual stop
station (with identifying label) to prevent inadvertent
or unintentional operation. A remote annunciator
(powered by storage battery) is located outside the
EPS location.

Note: For guidance in establishing a reliable
emergency power system (that is, an essential
electrical distribution system), refer to NFPA 99-
2012:6.4.1.1.6; 6.4.1.1.17; 6.4.2.2; NFPA 110-2010:
5.6.5.6; 7.3.1.

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . Generator 1 and 2 need an emergency stop
button outside of the room enclosure.

EC.02.05.05

IS

Moderate
Pattern

The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and
maintains the following: High-risk utility system
components on the inventory. The completion date
and the results of the activities are documented.
Note 1: A high-risk utility system includes
components for which there is a risk of serious injury
or even death to a patient or staff member should it
fail, which includes life-support equipment.

Note 2: Required activities and associated
frequencies for maintaining, inspecting, and testing
of utility systems components that are completed in
accordance with manufacturers’ recommendations
must have a 100% completion rate.

Note 3: Scheduled maintenance activities for high-
risk utility systems components in an alternative
equipment maintenance (AEM) program inventory
must have a 100% completion rate.

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In review of the fire damper inspection report
for EC 02.03. 05/ EP18 from May 4, 2017 there 3
dampers that failed. The dampers were not readily
accessible and there was no risk assessment follow
up until the dampers can be repaired.

§485.623(b)(1)

Standard

EC.02.05.05

1o

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and
maintains the following: Non-high-risk utility system
components on the inventory. The completion date
and the results of the activities are documented.
Note: Scheduled maintenance activities for non-high
-risk utility systems components in an alternative
equipment maintenance (AEM) program inventory
must have a 100% completion rate. AEM frequency
is determined by the critical access hospital AEM
program.

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The electrical room containing the main fire
alarm panel had multiple items with less than 3 feet
clearance in storage blocking access to electrical
panels. Corrected on survey.

§485.623(a)

Standard

Organization Identification Number: 9762

16 &f 39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(a) Standard
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The med surge electrical room H2061 had
storage within 3 feet of electrical panels. Corrected
on survey.
3). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(a) Standard
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In the boiler room the control panel for the on
demand hot water system were removed. Correct on
survey.
EC.02.05.07 8 Low At least annually, the critical access hospital tests 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.625(e)(2) | Standard
Limited the fuel quality to ASTM standards. The test results | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
and completion dates are documented. site . The organization did not provide
Note: For additional guidance, see NFPA 110-2010: | documentation of a fuel test of the diesel for the
8.3.8. emergency generators.
EC.02.05.07 9 Low At least once every 36 months, critical access 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Limited hospitals with a generator providing emergency Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
power test each emergency generator for a site . The triennial 30% load run for emergency
minimum of 4 continuous hours. The test results and | generators 1 and 2 on June 11th and 12th 2016 did
completion dates are documented. not clearly differentiate the load of each generator
Note: For additional guidance, see NFPA 110-2010, | or show the run times for each of the generators
Chapter 8. though the total run time exceeded 4 hours required
for each generator.
EC.02.05.09 1" Low The critical access hospital makes main supply 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(b)(1) | Standard
Limited valves and area shutoff valves for piped medical gas | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

and vacuum systems accessible and clearly
identifies what the valves control. Piping is labeled
by stencil or adhesive markers identifying the gas or
vacuum system, including the name of system or
chemical symbol, color code (see NFPA 99-2012:
Table 5.1.11), and operating pressure if other than
standard. Labels are at intervals of 20 feet or less
and are in every room, at both sides of wall
penetrations, and on every story traversed by riser.
Piping is not painted. Shutoff valves are identified
with the name or chemical symbol of the gas or
vacuum system, room or area served, and caution
to not use the valve except in emergency. (For full
text, refer to NFPA 99-2012: 5.1.4; 5.1.11.1;
5.1.11.2; 5.1.14.3; 5.2.11; 5.3.13.3; 5.3.11)

site . In the bulk oxygen tank the mains source shut
off valve was not labeled. A label was ordered during
survey.

Organization Identification Number: 9762

17 ¥ 39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Organization Identification Number: 9762

an alternative care site.

Note: During disasters, organizations may need to
request 1135 waivers to address care and treatment
at an alternate care site identified by emergency

18 &f 39

site . The organization did not provide
documentation for a procedure for requesting an
1135 waiver for care and treatment at an alternative
care site.

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
EC.02.05.09 12 Low The critical access hospital implements a policy on | 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Limited all cylinders within the critical access hospital that Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
includes the following: site . In the maintenance shop there was an
- Labeling, handling, and transporting (for example, | unsecured helium compressed gas tank. Corrected
in carts, attached to equipment, on racks) in on survey.
accordance with NFPA 99-2012: 11.5.3.1 and 11.6.2
- Physically segregating full and empty cylinders
from each other in order to assist staff in selecting
the proper cylinder
- Adaptors or conversion fittings are prohibited
- Oxygen cylinders, containers, and associated
equipment are protected from contamination,
damage, and contact with oil and grease
- Cylinders are kept away from heat and flammable
materials and do not exceed a temperature of 130°F
- Nitrous oxide and carbon dioxide cylinders do not
reach temperatures lower than manufacturer
recommendations or -20°F
- Valve protection caps (if supplied) are secured in
place when cylinder is not in use
- Labeling empty cylinders
- Prohibiting transfilling in any compartment with
patient care
(For full text, refer to NFPA 99-2012: 11.6.1; 11.6.2;
11.6.5; 11.7.3)
2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The PACU equipment room H1082 had empty
and half full oxygen cylinders comingled with full
oxygen cylinders.
3). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The med surge med room had an unlabeled
rack of comingled full, half full e- size oxygen
cylinders.
EM.02.01.01 14 Low The critical access hospital has a procedure for 1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo | §485.625(b)(8) | Standard
Limited requesting an 1135 waiver for care and treatment at | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

management officials. The 1135 waivers are granted
by the federal government during declared public
health emergencies; these waivers authorize
modification of certain federal regulatory
requirements (for example, Medicare, Medicaid,
Children’s Health Insurance Program, Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act) for a
defined time period during response and recovery.

EM.03.01.03

IN

Low
Limited

For each site of the critical access hospital that
offers emergency services or is a community-
designated disaster receiving station, at least one of
the critical access hospital’s two emergency
response exercises includes an influx of simulated
patients.

Note 1: Tabletop sessions, though useful, cannot
serve for this portion of the exercise.

Note 2: This portion of the emergency response
exercise can be conducted separately or in
conjunction with EM.03.01.03, EPs 3 and 4.

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . Of the disaster drills in 2018 the reviewed , the
evacuation and lock down to an external active
shooter, neither drill involved influx of simulated
patients into the hospital.

§485.625(d)(2)
(ii)(A)

Standard

HR.01.01.01

Organization Identification Number: 9762

N

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital verifies and documents
the following:

- Credentials of care providers using the primary
source when licensure, certification, or registration is
required by law and regulation to practice their
profession. This is done at the time of hire and at the
time credentials are renewed.

- Credentials of care providers (primary source not
required) when licensure, certification, or registration
is not required by law and regulation. This is done at
the time of hire and at the time credentials are
renewed.

Note 1: It is acceptable to verify current licensure,
certification, or registration with the primary source
via a secure electronic communication or by
telephone, if this verification is documented.

Note 2: A primary verification source may designate
another agency to communicate credentials
information. The designated agency can then be
used as a primary source.

Note 3: An external organization (for example, a
credentials verification organization [CVO]) may be

19 8t 39

1). Observed in Competency Session at Northern
Inyo Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop,
CA) site . In 2 of 10 HR files reviewed, it was noted
that there was no primary source verification prior to
expiration of the previous license in one pharmacist
file and no primary source verification of registration
required by the State of California in one dietitian's
file. In both instances, primary source verification on
the date of survey confirmed licensure or
registration.

§485.608(d)

Standard

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
used to verify credentials information. A CVO must
meet the CVO guidelines identified in the Glossary.
LS.02.01.10 1 Low Fire-rated doors within walls and floors have 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(c)(1)(i) | Standard
Limited functioning hardware, including positive latching Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
devices and self-closing or automatic-closing site . The cross corridor double 1 1/2 hour rated
devices (either kept closed or activated by release doors located by the dining room did not latch upon
device complying with NFPA 101- 2012:7.2.1.8.2). | closure.This finding was observed during survey
Gaps between meeting edges of door pairs are no activity, but corrected onsite prior to the surveyor’s
more than 1/8 of an inch wide, and undercuts are no | departure. The corrective action taken needs to be
larger than 3/4 of an inch. Fire-rated doors within included in the organization’s Evidence of Standards
walls do not have unapproved protective plates Compliance submission
greater than 16 inches from the bottom of the door.
Blocking or wedging open fire-rated doors is
prohibited. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-2012:
8.3.3.1; 7.2.1.8.2; NFPA 80-2010: 4.8.4.1; 5.2.13.3;
6.3.1.7; 6.4.5)
LS.02.01.20 13 Low An exit enclosure is not used for any purpose that 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Limited has the potential to interfere with its use as an exit Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
and, if so designated, as an area of refuge. Open site . The north stairwell on the second floor landing
space within the exit enclosure is not used for any had storage of medical evacuation sled.The
purpose that has the potential to interfere with surveyor discussed the Life Safety deficiency with
egress. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-2012: the organization, and it was determined that the
18/19.2.2.3; 7.1.3.2.3; 7.2.2.5.3.1) following ILSMs will be implemented until the
deficiency has been resolved and according to the
organization’s ILSM policy: Conduct education
promoting awareness of deficiencies(EP-13)
LS.02.01.34 9 Low The ceiling membrane is installed and maintained in | 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Limited a manner that permits activation of the smoke Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
detection system. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101- | site . In the corridor by the infusion area with smoke
2012: 18/19.3.4.1) detection there were two ceiling tiles missing
creating a gap in the ceiling smoke membraneThis
finding was observed during survey activity, but
corrected onsite prior to the surveyor’s departure.
The corrective action taken needs to be included in
the organization’s Evidence of Standards
Compliance submission
LS.02.01.34 10 Low The critical access hospital meets all other Life 1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo §485.623(c)(1)(i) | Standard
Limited Safety Code fire alarm requirements related to NFPA| Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Organization Identification Number: 9762

101-2012: 18/19.3.4.

20 3% 39

site . The pull station in the electrical room
containing the main fire alarm panel was obstructed

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

by items in storage.This finding was observed during
survey activity, but corrected onsite prior to the
surveyor’s departure. The corrective action taken
needs to be included in the organization’s Evidence
of Standards Compliance submission

2). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In the back side of clean sterile storage there
was a fire response pull station obstructed by a
trash can near the emergency exit.This finding was
observed during survey activity, but corrected onsite
prior to the surveyor’s departure. The corrective
action taken needs to be included in the
organization’s Evidence of Standards Compliance
submission

485.623(c)(1)(i

Standard

LS.02.01.35

1o

Low
Limited

There are 18 inches or more of open space
maintained below the sprinkler deflector to the top of
storage.

Note: Perimeter wall and stack shelving may extend
up to the ceiling when not located directly below a
sprinkler head. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-
2012: 18.3.5.1; 19.3.5.3; 9.7.1.1; NFPA 13-2010:
8.5.5.2;8.5.5.2.1; 8.5.5.3)

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In sterile storage the center shelves had items
on the top shelf with less than 18 inch clearance
below the fire sprinkler heads.This finding was
observed during survey activity, but corrected onsite
prior to the surveyor’s departure. The corrective
action taken needs to be included in the
organization’s Evidence of Standards Compliance
submission

485.623(c)(1)(i

Standard

LS.02.01.35

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital meets all other Life
Safety Code automatic extinguishing requirements
related to NFPA 101-2012: 18/19.3.5.

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . In OR # 2 there was a fire extinguisher
blocked by storage of step stool.This finding was
observed during survey activity, but corrected onsite
prior to the surveyor’s departure. The corrective
action taken needs to be included in the
organization’s Evidence of Standards Compliance
submission

485.623(c)(1)(i

Standard

LS.02.01.70

Organization Identification Number: 9762

(o2}

Low
Limited

Soiled linen and trash receptacles larger than 32
gallons are stored in a room protected as a
hazardous area. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-
2012: 18/19.7.5.7)

Note: Containers that are 96 gallons or less and are
labeled and listed as meeting the requirements of

21'9P39

1). Observed in Building Tour at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The PACU had a large trash can greater than
32 gallon capacity stored adjacent to a soiled linen
hamper. Reference NFPA 101 -2012 19.7.5.7.1
(2).This finding was observed during survey activity,

§485.623(b)(2)

Standard

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
FM Approval Standard 6921 (or equivalent) and are | but corrected onsite prior to the surveyor’s
used solely for recycling clean waste (including departure. The corrective action taken needs to be
patient records awaiting destruction) are permitted in| included in the organization’s Evidence of Standards
an unprotected area. Those containers that are Compliance submission
greater than 96 gallons are stored in a hazardous
storage area.
MM.04.01.01 1 Low The critical access hospital follows a written policy 1). Observed in Individual Tracer at Northern Inyo
Limited that identifies the specific types of medication orders | Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Organization Identification Number: 9762

that it deems acceptable for use.

Note: There are several different types of medication
orders. Medication orders commonly used include
the following:

- As needed (PRN) orders: Orders acted on based
on the occurrence of a specific indication or
symptom

- Standing orders: A prewritten medication order and
specific instructions from the licensed independent
practitioner to administer a medication to a person in
clearly defined circumstances

- Automatic stop orders: Orders that include a date
or time to discontinue a medication

- Titrating orders: Orders in which the dose is either
progressively increased or decreased in response to
the patient’s status

- Taper orders: Orders in which the dose is
decreased by a particular amount with each dosing
interval

- Range orders: Orders in which the dose or dosing
interval varies over a prescribed range, depending
on the situation or patient’s status

- Signed and held orders: New prewritten (held)
medication orders and specific instructions from a
licensed independent practitioner to administer
medication(s) to a patient in clearly defined
circumstances that become active upon the release
of the orders on a specific date(s) and time(s)

- Orders for compounded drugs or drug mixtures not
commercially available

- Orders for medication-related devices (for
example, nebulizers, catheters)

- Orders for investigational medications

227839

site . During an individual tracer in the PACU, it was
noted that there were several medications ordered
for pain, and they were ranked in order of choice
with Fentanyl ranked first. There was also another
order for Meperidine IVP prn pain or shaking,
although the Meperidine was not given a rank. The
patient was noted to have a pain level of 7, and
Fentanyl 25 micrograms was given. However, the
Meperidine was omitted. which was not consistent
with the orders. The patient’s record subsequently
documented a pain score level of 6, and Fentanyl 25
micrograms was again given, although at a pain
score level of 6, the order indicated 12.5 micrograms
of Fentanyl was to be given.

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

SAFER™

Standard EP EP Text Observation CoP CoP Score
Placement
- Orders for herbal products
- Orders for medications at discharge or transfer
MM.05.01.01 4 Moderate All medication orders are reviewed for the following: | 1). Observed in Individual Tracer at Northern Inyo
Limited - Patient allergies or potential sensitivities Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
- Existing or potential interactions between the site . During individual patient tracer of a
medication ordered and food and medications the postoperative orthopedic patient, it was noted that
patient is currently taking Dilaudid 0.2 mg IV prn pain level 7-10 and
- The appropriateness of the medication, dose, Oxycodone 10 mg prn pain level 7-10 were ordered.
frequency, and route of administration The oxycodone order indicated that PO medication
- Current or potential impact as indicated by was to be used first, but the Dilaudid order did not
laboratory values have any limitations. There was no documentation of
- Therapeutic duplication clarification of this order by the pharmacist.
- Other contraindications
MS.06.01.05 9 Low Before recommending privileges, the organized 1). Observed in Credentialing and Privileging at
Limited medical staff also evaluates the following: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane,
- Challenges to any licensure or registration Bishop, CA) site . During review of a rural clinic’s
- Voluntary and involuntary relinquishment of any provider’s file in which the reappointment application
license or registration had a summary of peer review, proctoring, data and
- Voluntary and involuntary termination of medical outcome review, it was noted that the actual
staff membership information that was reviewed was not sent to the
- Voluntary and involuntary limitation, reduction, or medical staff office. That information was not
loss of clinical privileges available to the medical staff leaders responsible for
- Any evidence of an unusual pattern or an recommending renewal of privileges. Evaluation of
excessive number of professional liability actions the data in another provider’s file showed
resulting in a final judgment against the applicant demonstration that 3% of the provider’s patients
- Documentation as to the applicant’s health status | were offered influenza immunization and 22% had
- Relevant practitioner-specific data as compared to | appropriate colorectal screening while the summary
aggregate data, when available report indicated that the provider’'s performance was
- Morbidity and mortality data, when available satisfactory based on a thorough and
comprehensive review.
PC.02.01.11 2 Low Resuscitation equipment is available for use based | 1). Observed in Tracer Visit at Northern Inyo
Limited on the needs of the population served. Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)

Note: For example, if the critical access hospital has
a pediatric population, pediatric resuscitation
equipment should be available. (See also
EC.02.04.03, EP 2)

site . During tracer activities in the Operating Room,
it was noted that a locked lipid emulsion
resuscitation kit used for emergency reversal of local
anesthetic toxicity was being checked weekly, but
that the lock number was not recorded as part of the
check. This meant that there was no way to
determine that everything inside the locked kit was,
in fact, the complete requirements for managing the
local anesthetic toxicity emergency.

Organization Identification Number: 9762

239839

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

2). Observed in Tracer Activities at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . During tracer activities in the Emergency
Department, it was noted that daily checks of the
Broselow bag does not include the lock number.

PC.02.02.01

Low
Limited

For critical access hospitals with swing beds: The
critical access hospital follows its policy identifying
circumstances when loss of or damage to a
resident’s dentures is the critical access hospital’s
responsibility and it may not charge a resident for
the loss or damage of dentures.

1). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The hospital currently does not have a policy
related to identifying circumstances when loss of or
damage to a resident's dentures is the hospital's
responsibility and when it may not charge a resident
for the loss or damage of dentures. A draft policy
has been developed and is awaiting approval by the
medical staff and governing body.

§483.55(b)(4)

Standard

2). Observed in Document Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . The hospital currently does not have a policy
related to identifying circumstances when loss of or
damage to a resident's dentures is the hospital's
responsibility and when it may not charge a resident
for the loss or damage of dentures. A draft policy
has been developed and is awaiting approval by the
medical staff and governing body.

§483.55(b)(4)

Standard

RC.02.01.01

Organization Identification Number: 9762

N

Low
Pattern

The medical record contains the following clinical
information:

- The reason(s) for admission for care, treatment,
and services

- The patient’s initial diagnosis, diagnostic
impression(s), or condition(s)

- Any findings of assessments and reassessments
(See also PC.01.02.01, EP 1; PC.03.01.03, EPs 1
and 8)

- Any allergies to food

- Any allergies to medications

- Any conclusions or impressions drawn from the
patient’s medical history and physical examination
- Any diagnoses or conditions established during the
patient’s course of care, treatment, and services
(including complications and hospital-acquired
infections). For psychiatric distinct part units in
critical access hospitals: The diagnosis includes

249839

1). Observed in Record Review at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . During review of a swing bed patient whose
prior admission was on the medical surgical unit, it
was noted that some orders, such as oxycodone 10
mg po prn pain level 7-10, were continued from the
prior admission.

§485.638(a)(4)

Standard

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

SAFER™
Placement

EP Text

Observation

CoP

CoP Score

intercurrent diseases (diseases that occur during the
course of another disease; for example, a patient
with AIDS may develop an intercurrent bout of
pneumonia) and the psychiatric diagnoses.

- Any consultation reports

- Any observations relevant to care, treatment, and
services

- The patient’s response to care, treatment, and
services

- Any emergency care, treatment, and services
provided to the patient before his or her arrival

- Any progress notes

- All orders

- Any medications ordered or prescribed

- Any medications administered, including the
strength, dose, route, date and time of
administration

- Any access site for medication, administration
devices used, and rate of administration

- Any adverse drug reactions

- Treatment goals, plan of care, and revisions to the
plan of care (See also PC.01.03.01, EP 23)

- Results of diagnostic and therapeutic tests and
procedures

- Any medications dispensed or prescribed on
discharge

- Discharge diagnosis

- Discharge plan and discharge planning evaluation
(See also PC.01.02.03, EP 6)

TS.03.02.01

(o8}

Low
Limited

The critical access hospital documents the dates,
times, and staff involved when tissue is accepted,
prepared, and issued. (See also TS.03.01.01, EP 6)

1). Observed in Tracer Visit at Northern Inyo
Healthcare District (150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA)
site . During review of the tissue tracking log, it was
noted that the documentation of the individual
receiving the tissue was not documented in 3 of 67
tissues received that were noted in the tracking log.

Organization Identification Number: 9762

25'9f39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission
Appendix
Conditions of Participation Text

Program: Critical Access Hospital

CoP Tag CoP Standard text

§485.608 Compliance With C-0150 §485.608 Condition of Participation: Compliance With Federal, State, and Local Laws and Regulations

Federal, State, and Local Laws

and Regulations The CAH and its staff are in compliance with applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations.
§485.608(d) Licensure, C-0154 §485.608(d) Standard: Licensure, Certification or Registration of Personnel

Certification or Registration of

Personnel Staff of the CAH are licensed, certified, or registered in accordance with applicable Federal, State, and local laws

and regulations.

§485.623 Physical Plant and C-0220 §485.623 Condition of Participation: Physical Plant and Environment
Environment

§485.623(a) Construction C-0221 §485.623(a) Standard: Construction

The CAH is constructed, arranged, and maintained to ensure access to and safety of patients, and provides
adequate space for the provision of services.

§485.623(b)(1) Maintenance C-0222 (1) All essential mechanical, electrical, and patient-care equipment is maintained in safe operating condition;

§485.623(b)(2) Maintenance C-0223 (2) There is proper routine storage and prompt disposal of trash;

§485.623(c)(1)(i) C-—-- (i) The CAH must meet the applicable provisions and must proceed in accordance with the Life Safety Code
(NFPA 101 and Tentative Interim Amendments TIA 12—-1, TIA 12-2, TIA 12-3, and TIA 12-4.)

§485.638 Clinical Records C-0300 §485.638 Condition of Participation: Clinical Records

§485.638(a)(4)(iii) Records C-0306 (i) All orders of doctors of medicine or osteopathy or other practitioners, reports of treatments and medications,

System nursing notes and documentation of complications, and other pertinent information necessary to monitor the
patient's progress, such as temperature graphics, progress notes describing the patient's response to treatment;
and

§485.645 C-0350 §485.645 Special Requirements for CAH Providers of Long-Term Care Services (“Swing-Beds”)

A CAH must meet the following requirements in order to be granted an approval from CMS to provide post-CAH
SNF care, as specified in §409.30 of this chapter, and to be paid for SNF-level services, in accordance with
paragraph (c) of this section.

§483.55 C---- §483.55 Dental services.
The facility must assist residents in obtaining routine and 24-hour emergency dental care.

Organization Identification Number: 9762 26939 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

CoP Tag CoP Standard text

§483.55(b)(4) C---- (4) Must have a policy identifying those circumstances when the loss or damage of dentures is the facility’s
responsibility and may not charge a resident for the loss or damage of dentures determined in accordance with
facility policy to be the facility’s responsibility; and

§485.625 Establishment of the E-0001 §485.625 Condition of Participation: Emergency Preparedness
Emergency Program (EP)
The CAH must comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local emergency preparedness requirements. The
CAH must develop and maintain a comprehensive emergency preparedness program, utilizing an all-hazards
approach. The emergency preparedness plan must include, but not be limited to, the following elements:

§485.625(b)(8) Roles under a E-0026 (8) The role of the CAH under a waiver declared by the Secretary, in accordance with section 1135 of the Act, in
Waiver Declared by Secretary the provision of care and treatment at an alternate care site identified by emergency management officials.

§485.625(d)(2)(ii)(A) Emergency | E-0039 (A) A second full-scale exercise that is community-based or individual, facility-based.
Prep Testing Requirements

§485.625(e)(2) Hospital CAH E-0041 (2) Emergency generator inspection and testing. The CAH must implement emergency power system inspection
and LTC Emergency Power and testing requirements found in the Health Care Facilities Code, NFPA 110, and the Life Safety Code.

Organization Identification Number: 9762 277839 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission

Appendix
Standard and EP Text

Program: Critical Access Hospital

Standard

EP

Standard Text

EP Text

EC.02.01.01

The critical access hospital manages safety and security risks.

The critical access hospital implements its process to identify safety and
security risks associated with the environment of care that could affect
patients, staff, and other people coming to the critical access hospital's
facilities.

Note: Risks are identified from internal sources such as ongoing
monitoring of the environment, results of root cause analyses, results of
proactive risk assessments of high-risk processes, and from credible
external sources such as Sentinel Event Alerts.

EC.02.02.01

The critical access hospital manages risks related to hazardous materials
and waste.

The critical access hospital minimizes risks associated with selecting,
handling, storing, transporting, using, and disposing of hazardous
chemicals.

EC.02.02.01

12

The critical access hospital manages risks related to hazardous materials
and waste.

The critical access hospital labels hazardous materials and waste. Labels
identify the contents and hazard warnings. * (See also 1C.02.01.01, EP 6)
Footnote *: The Occupational Safety and Health Administration’s (OSHA)
Bloodborne Pathogens and Hazard Communications Standards and the
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) provide details on labeling
requirements.

EC.02.02.01

19

The critical access hospital manages risks related to hazardous materials
and waste.

The critical access hospital has procedures for the proper routine storage
and prompt disposal of trash.

EC.02.03.03

The critical access hospital conducts fire drills.

The critical access hospital conducts fire drills every 12 months from the
date of the last drill in all freestanding buildings classified as business
occupancies and in which patients are seen or treated.

Note: In leased or rented facilities, drills need be conducted only in areas
of the building that the critical access hospital occupies.

EC.02.03.03

The critical access hospital conducts fire drills.

When quarterly fire drills are required, they are unannounced and held at
unexpected times and under varying conditions. Fire drills include
transmission of fire alarm signal and simulation of emergency fire
conditions.

Note 1: When drills are conducted between 9:00 P.M. and 6:00 A.M., the
critical access hospital may use alternative methods to notify staff instead
of activating audible alarms.

Note 2: For full text, refer to NFPA 101-2012: 18/19: 7.1.7; 7.1; 7.2; 7.3.

EC.02.03.05

Organization Identification Number: 9762

The critical access hospital maintains fire safety equipment and fire safety

2897 39

Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests duct detectors, heat

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard EP | Standard Text EP Text
building features. detectors, manual fire alarm boxes, and smoke detectors on the inventory.
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the The results and completion dates are documented.
types of fire safety equipment and building features described below. Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, see NFPA 72-2010:
However, if these types of equipment or features exist within the building, | Table 14.4.5; 17.14.
then the following maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.
EC.02.03.05 4 The critical access hospital maintains fire safety equipment and fire safety | Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests visual and audible fire
building features. alarms, including speakers and door-releasing devices on the inventory.
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the The results and completion dates are documented.
types of fire safety equipment and building features described below. Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, see NFPA 72-2010:
However, if these types of equipment or features exist within the building, | Table 14.4.5.
then the following maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.
EC.02.03.05 5 The critical access hospital maintains fire safety equipment and fire safety | Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests fire alarm equipment on
building features. the inventory for notifying off-site fire responders. The results and
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the completion dates are documented.
types of fire safety equipment and building features described below. Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, see NFPA 72-2010:
However, if these types of equipment or features exist within the building, | Table 14.4.5.
then the following maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.
EC.02.03.05 19 The critical access hospital maintains fire safety equipment and fire safety | Every 12 months, the critical access hospital tests automatic smoke-
building features. detection shutdown devices for air-handling equipment. The results and
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the completion dates are documented.
types of fire safety equipment and building features described below. Note: For additional guidance on performing tests, see NFPA 90A-2012:
However, if these types of equipment or features exist within the building, | 6.4.1.
then the following maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.
EC.02.03.05 28 The critical access hospital maintains fire safety equipment and fire safety | Documentation of maintenance, testing, and inspection activities for
building features. Standard EC.02.03.05, EPs 1-20, 25 (including fire alarm and fire
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the protection features) includes the following:
types of fire safety equipment and building features described below. - Name of the activity
However, if these types of equipment or features exist within the building, | - Date of the activity
then the following maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.| - Inventory of devices, equipment, or other items
- Required frequency of the activity
- Name and contact information, including affiliation, of the person who
performed the activity
- NFPA standard(s) referenced for the activity
- Results of the activity
Note: For additional guidance on documenting activities, see NFPA 25-
2011: 4.3; 4.4; NFPA 72-2010: 14.2.1; 14.2.2; 14.2.3; 14.2.4; NFPA 101-
2012: 18/19.7.2.1.5.10.1; 7.2.1.5.11.
EC.02.05.01 9 The critical access hospital manages risks associated with its utility The critical access hospital labels utility system controls to facilitate partial

Organization Identification Number: 9762

systems.

29939

or complete emergency shutdowns.
Note 1: Examples of utility system controls that should be labeled are
utility source valves, utility system main switches and valves, and

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

Standard Text

EP Text

individual circuits in an electrical distribution panel.

Note 2: For example, the fire alarm system’s circuit is clearly labeled as
Fire Alarm Circuit; the disconnect method (that is, the circuit breaker) is
marked in red; and access is restricted to authorized personnel.
Information regarding the dedicated branch circuit for the fire alarm panel
is located in the control unit. For additional guidance, see NFPA 101-2012:
18/19.3.4.1; 9.6.1.3; NFPA 72-2010: 10.5.5.2.

EC.02.05.01

15

The critical access hospital manages risks associated with its utility
systems.

In critical care areas designed to control airborne contaminants (such as
biological agents, gases, fumes, dust), the ventilation system provides
appropriate pressure relationships, air-exchange rates, filtration
efficiencies, and temperature and humidity.

Note: For more information about areas designed for control of airborne
contaminants, the basis for design compliance is the Guidelines for Design
and Construction of Health Care Facilities, based on the edition used at
the time of design (if available).

EC.02.05.01

16

The critical access hospital manages risks associated with its utility
systems.

In non—critical care areas, the ventilation system provides required
pressure relationships, temperature, and humidity.

Note: Examples of non—critical care areas are general care nursing units;
clean and soiled utility rooms in acute care areas; laboratories,
pharmacies, diagnostic and treatment areas, food preparation areas, and
other support departments.

EC.02.05.03

The critical access hospital has a reliable emergency electrical power
source.

For facilities that were constructed, or had a change in occupancy type, or
have undergone an electrical system upgrade since 1983, the critical
access hospital has a Type 1 or Type 3 essential electrical system in
accordance with NFPA 99, 2012 edition. This essential electrical system
must be divided into three branches, including the life safety branch,
critical branch, and equipment branch. Both the life safety branch and the
critical branch are kept independent of all other wiring and equipment, and
they transfer within 10 seconds of electrical interruption. Each branch has
at least one automatic transfer switch. For additional guidance, see NFPA
99-2012: 6.4.2.2.

EC.02.05.03

11

The critical access hospital has a reliable emergency electrical power
source.

The critical access hospital provides emergency power within 10 seconds
for the following: Emergency lighting at emergency generator locations.
The critical access hospital’s emergency power system (EPS) has a
remote manual stop station (with identifying label) to prevent inadvertent or
unintentional operation. A remote annunciator (powered by storage
battery) is located outside the EPS location.

Note: For guidance in establishing a reliable emergency power system
(that is, an essential electrical distribution system), refer to NFPA 99-2012:
6.4.1.1.6; 6.4.1.1.17; 6.4.2.2; NFPA 110-2010: 5.6.5.6; 7.3.1.

EC.02.05.05

The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains utility systems.

Organization Identification Number: 9762 307939

The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains the following:

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard EP | Standard Text EP Text
Note: At times, maintenance is performed by an external service. In these | High-risk utility system components on the inventory. The completion date
cases, critical access hospitals are not required to possess maintenance and the results of the activities are documented.
documentation but must have access to such documentation during survey | Note 1: A high-risk utility system includes components for which there is a
and as needed. risk of serious injury or even death to a patient or staff member should it

fail, which includes life-support equipment.

Note 2: Required activities and associated frequencies for maintaining,
inspecting, and testing of utility systems components that are completed in
accordance with manufacturers’ recommendations must have a 100%
completion rate.

Note 3: Scheduled maintenance activities for high-risk utility systems
components in an alternative equipment maintenance (AEM) program
inventory must have a 100% completion rate.

EC.02.05.05 6 The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains utility systems. The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains the following:
Note: At times, maintenance is performed by an external service. In these | Non-high-risk utility system components on the inventory. The completion
cases, critical access hospitals are not required to possess maintenance date and the results of the activities are documented.
documentation but must have access to such documentation during survey | Note: Scheduled maintenance activities for non-high-risk utility systems
and as needed. components in an alternative equipment maintenance (AEM) program

inventory must have a 100% completion rate. AEM frequency is
determined by the critical access hospital AEM program.

EC.02.05.07 8 The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains emergency At least annually, the critical access hospital tests the fuel quality to ASTM
power systems. standards. The test results and completion dates are documented.

Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the Note: For additional guidance, see NFPA 110-2010: 8.3.8.
types of emergency power equipment discussed below. However, if these

types of equipment exist within the building, then the following

maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.

EC.02.05.07 9 The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains emergency At least once every 36 months, critical access hospitals with a generator
power systems. providing emergency power test each emergency generator for a minimum
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the of 4 continuous hours. The test results and completion dates are
types of emergency power equipment discussed below. However, if these | documented.
types of equipment exist within the building, then the following Note: For additional guidance, see NFPA 110-2010, Chapter 8.
maintenance, testing, and inspection requirements apply.

EC.02.05.09 11 The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains medical gas and | The critical access hospital makes main supply valves and area shutoff

Organization Identification Number: 9762

vacuum systems.

Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the
medical gas and vacuum systems discussed below. However, if a critical
access hospital has these types of systems, then the following inspection,
testing, and maintenance requirements apply.

31'9P39

valves for piped medical gas and vacuum systems accessible and clearly
identifies what the valves control. Piping is labeled by stencil or adhesive
markers identifying the gas or vacuum system, including the name of
system or chemical symbol, color code (see NFPA 99-2012: Table 5.1.11),
and operating pressure if other than standard. Labels are at intervals of 20
feet or less and are in every room, at both sides of wall penetrations, and
on every story traversed by riser. Piping is not painted. Shutoff valves are
identified with the name or chemical symbol of the gas or vacuum system,
room or area served, and caution to not use the valve except in

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard EP | Standard Text EP Text
emergency. (For full text, refer to NFPA 99-2012: 5.1.4; 5.1.11.1; 5.1.11.2;
5.1.14.3; 5.2.11; 5.3.13.3; 56.3.11)
EC.02.05.09 12 The critical access hospital inspects, tests, and maintains medical gas and | The critical access hospital implements a policy on all cylinders within the
vacuum systems. critical access hospital that includes the following:
Note: This standard does not require critical access hospitals to have the - Labeling, handling, and transporting (for example, in carts, attached to
medical gas and vacuum systems discussed below. However, if a critical | equipment, on racks) in accordance with NFPA 99-2012: 11.5.3.1 and
access hospital has these types of systems, then the following inspection, | 11.6.2
testing, and maintenance requirements apply. - Physically segregating full and empty cylinders from each other in order
to assist staff in selecting the proper cylinder
- Adaptors or conversion fittings are prohibited
- Oxygen cylinders, containers, and associated equipment are protected
from contamination, damage, and contact with oil and grease
- Cylinders are kept away from heat and flammable materials and do not
exceed a temperature of 130°F
- Nitrous oxide and carbon dioxide cylinders do not reach temperatures
lower than manufacturer recommendations or -20°F
- Valve protection caps (if supplied) are secured in place when cylinder is
not in use
- Labeling empty cylinders
- Prohibiting transfilling in any compartment with patient care
(For full text, refer to NFPA 99-2012: 11.6.1; 11.6.2; 11.6.5; 11.7.3)
EM.02.01.01 14 The critical access hospital has an Emergency Operations Plan. The critical access hospital has a procedure for requesting an 1135 waiver
Note: The critical access hospital's Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) is | for care and treatment at an alternative care site.
designed to coordinate its communications, resources and assets, safety Note: During disasters, organizations may need to request 1135 waivers to
and security, staff responsibilities, utilities, and patient clinical and support | address care and treatment at an alternate care site identified by
activities during an emergency (refer to Standards EM.02.02.01, emergency management officials. The 1135 waivers are granted by the
EM.02.02.03, EM.02.02.05, EM.02.02.07, EM.02.02.09, and EM.02.02.11). | federal government during declared public health emergencies; these
Although emergencies have many causes, the effects on these areas of waivers authorize modification of certain federal regulatory requirements
the organization and the required response effort may be similar. This "all | (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, Children’s Health Insurance Program,
hazards" approach supports a general response capability that is Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act) for a defined time
sufficiently nimble to address a range of emergencies of different duration, | period during response and recovery.
scale, and cause. For this reason, the plan’s response procedures address
the prioritized emergencies but are also adaptable to other emergencies
that the organization may experience.
EM.03.01.03 2 The critical access hospital evaluates the effectiveness of its Emergency For each site of the critical access hospital that offers emergency services

Organization Identification Number: 9762

Operations Plan.

32939

or is a community-designated disaster receiving station, at least one of the
critical access hospital’'s two emergency response exercises includes an
influx of simulated patients.

Note 1: Tabletop sessions, though useful, cannot serve for this portion of
the exercise.

Note 2: This portion of the emergency response exercise can be

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

Standard Text

EP Text

conducted separately or in conjunction with EM.03.01.03, EPs 3 and 4.

HR.01.01.01

The critical access hospital defines and verifies staff qualifications.

The critical access hospital verifies and documents the following:

- Credentials of care providers using the primary source when licensure,
certification, or registration is required by law and regulation to practice
their profession. This is done at the time of hire and at the time credentials
are renewed.

- Credentials of care providers (primary source not required) when
licensure, certification, or registration is not required by law and regulation.
This is done at the time of hire and at the time credentials are renewed.
Note 1: It is acceptable to verify current licensure, certification, or
registration with the primary source via a secure electronic communication
or by telephone, if this verification is documented.

Note 2: A primary verification source may designate another agency to
communicate credentials information. The designated agency can then be
used as a primary source.

Note 3: An external organization (for example, a credentials verification
organization [CVO]) may be used to verify credentials information. A CVO
must meet the CVO guidelines identified in the Glossary.

LS.02.01.10

11

Building and fire protection features are designed and maintained to
minimize the effects of fire, smoke, and heat.

Fire-rated doors within walls and floors have functioning hardware,
including positive latching devices and self-closing or automatic-closing
devices (either kept closed or activated by release device complying with
NFPA 101- 2012:7.2.1.8.2). Gaps between meeting edges of door pairs
are no more than 1/8 of an inch wide, and undercuts are no larger than 3/4
of an inch. Fire-rated doors within walls do not have unapproved protective
plates greater than 16 inches from the bottom of the door. Blocking or
wedging open fire-rated doors is prohibited. (For full text, refer to NFPA
101-2012: 8.3.3.1; 7.2.1.8.2; NFPA 80-2010: 4.8.4.1; 5.2.13.3; 6.3.1.7;
6.4.5)

LS.02.01.20

13

The critical access hospital maintains the integrity of the means of egress.

An exit enclosure is not used for any purpose that has the potential to
interfere with its use as an exit and, if so designated, as an area of refuge.
Open space within the exit enclosure is not used for any purpose that has
the potential to interfere with egress. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-2012:
18/19.2.2.3; 7.1.3.2.3; 7.2.2.5.3.1)

LS.02.01.34

The critical access hospital provides and maintains fire alarm systems.

The ceiling membrane is installed and maintained in a manner that permits
activation of the smoke detection system. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-
2012: 18/19.3.4.1)

LS.02.01.34

10

The critical access hospital provides and maintains fire alarm systems.

The critical access hospital meets all other Life Safety Code fire alarm
requirements related to NFPA 101-2012: 18/19.3.4.

LS.02.01.35

Organization Identification Number: 9762

The critical access hospital provides and maintains systems for
extinguishing fires.

339839

There are 18 inches or more of open space maintained below the sprinkler
deflector to the top of storage.

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard

EP

Standard Text

EP Text

Note: Perimeter wall and stack shelving may extend up to the ceiling when
not located directly below a sprinkler head. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101
-2012: 18.3.5.1; 19.3.5.3; 9.7.1.1; NFPA 13-2010: 8.5.5.2; 8.5.5.2.1;
8.5.5.3)

LS.02.01.35

14

The critical access hospital provides and maintains systems for
extinguishing fires.

The critical access hospital meets all other Life Safety Code automatic
extinguishing requirements related to NFPA 101-2012: 18/19.3.5.

LS.02.01.70

The critical access hospital provides and maintains operating features that
conform to fire and smoke prevention requirements.

Soiled linen and trash receptacles larger than 32 gallons are stored in a
room protected as a hazardous area. (For full text, refer to NFPA 101-
2012: 18/19.7.5.7)

Note: Containers that are 96 gallons or less and are labeled and listed as
meeting the requirements of FM Approval Standard 6921 (or equivalent)
and are used solely for recycling clean waste (including patient records
awaiting destruction) are permitted in an unprotected area. Those
containers that are greater than 96 gallons are stored in a hazardous
storage area.

MM.04.01.01

Organization Identification Number: 9762

Medication orders are clear and accurate.

34'9P39

The critical access hospital follows a written policy that identifies the
specific types of medication orders that it deems acceptable for use.
Note: There are several different types of medication orders. Medication
orders commonly used include the following:

- As needed (PRN) orders: Orders acted on based on the occurrence of a
specific indication or symptom

- Standing orders: A prewritten medication order and specific instructions
from the licensed independent practitioner to administer a medication to a
person in clearly defined circumstances

- Automatic stop orders: Orders that include a date or time to discontinue a
medication

- Titrating orders: Orders in which the dose is either progressively
increased or decreased in response to the patient’s status

- Taper orders: Orders in which the dose is decreased by a particular
amount with each dosing interval

- Range orders: Orders in which the dose or dosing interval varies over a
prescribed range, depending on the situation or patient’s status

- Signed and held orders: New prewritten (held) medication orders and
specific instructions from a licensed independent practitioner to administer
medication(s) to a patient in clearly defined circumstances that become
active upon the release of the orders on a specific date(s) and time(s)

- Orders for compounded drugs or drug mixtures not commercially
available

- Orders for medication-related devices (for example, nebulizers,
catheters)

- Orders for investigational medications

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard EP | Standard Text EP Text
- Orders for herbal products
- Orders for medications at discharge or transfer
MM.05.01.01 4 A pharmacist reviews the appropriateness of all medication orders for All medication orders are reviewed for the following:
medications to be dispensed in the critical access hospital. - Patient allergies or potential sensitivities
- Existing or potential interactions between the medication ordered and
food and medications the patient is currently taking
- The appropriateness of the medication, dose, frequency, and route of
administration
- Current or potential impact as indicated by laboratory values
- Therapeutic duplication
- Other contraindications
MS.06.01.05 9 The decision to grant or deny a privilege(s), and/or to renew an existing Before recommending privileges, the organized medical staff also
privilege(s), is an objective, evidence-based process. evaluates the following:
- Challenges to any licensure or registration
- Voluntary and involuntary relinquishment of any license or registration
- Voluntary and involuntary termination of medical staff membership
- Voluntary and involuntary limitation, reduction, or loss of clinical
privileges
- Any evidence of an unusual pattern or an excessive number of
professional liability actions resulting in a final judgment against the
applicant
- Documentation as to the applicant’s health status
- Relevant practitioner-specific data as compared to aggregate data, when
available
- Morbidity and mortality data, when available
PC.02.01.11 2 Resuscitation services are available throughout the critical access hospital. | Resuscitation equipment is available for use based on the needs of the
population served.
Note: For example, if the critical access hospital has a pediatric
population, pediatric resuscitation equipment should be available. (See
also EC.02.04.03, EP 2)
PC.02.02.01 29 The critical access hospital coordinates the patient’s care, treatment, and For critical access hospitals with swing beds: The critical access hospital
services based on the patient’s needs. follows its policy identifying circumstances when loss of or damage to a
resident’s dentures is the critical access hospital’s responsibility and it may
not charge a resident for the loss or damage of dentures.
RC.02.01.01 2 The medical record contains information that reflects the patient's care, The medical record contains the following clinical information:

Organization Identification Number: 9762

treatment, and services.

35939

- The reason(s) for admission for care, treatment, and services

- The patient’s initial diagnosis, diagnostic impression(s), or condition(s)

- Any findings of assessments and reassessments (See also PC.01.02.01,
EP 1; PC.03.01.03, EPs 1 and 8)

- Any allergies to food

- Any allergies to medications

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission

Standard EP | Standard Text EP Text
- Any conclusions or impressions drawn from the patient’s medical history
and physical examination
- Any diagnoses or conditions established during the patient’s course of
care, treatment, and services (including complications and hospital-
acquired infections). For psychiatric distinct part units in critical access
hospitals: The diagnosis includes intercurrent diseases (diseases that
occur during the course of another disease; for example, a patient with
AIDS may develop an intercurrent bout of pneumonia) and the psychiatric
diagnoses.
- Any consultation reports
- Any observations relevant to care, treatment, and services
- The patient’s response to care, treatment, and services
- Any emergency care, treatment, and services provided to the patient
before his or her arrival
- Any progress notes
- All orders
- Any medications ordered or prescribed
- Any medications administered, including the strength, dose, route, date
and time of administration
- Any access site for medication, administration devices used, and rate of
administration
- Any adverse drug reactions
- Treatment goals, plan of care, and revisions to the plan of care (See also
PC.01.03.01, EP 23)
- Results of diagnostic and therapeutic tests and procedures
- Any medications dispensed or prescribed on discharge
- Discharge diagnosis
- Discharge plan and discharge planning evaluation
(See also PC.01.02.03, EP 6)

TS.03.02.01 3 The critical access hospital traces all tissues bi-directionally. The critical access hospital documents the dates, times, and staff involved

when tissue is accepted, prepared, and issued. (See also TS.03.01.01, EP
6)

Organization Identification Number: 9762 36'9P39

Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission
Appendix
Report Section Information
SAFER™ Matrix Description

All Requirements for Improvement (RFls) are plotted on the SAFER matrix according to the likelihood the issue could cause harm to patient(s), staff, and/or visitor(s), and the
scope at which the RFl is observed. Combined, these characteristics identify a risk level for each RFI, which in turn will determine the level of required post-survey follow up. As
the risk level of an RFI increases, the placement of the standard and Element of Performance moves from the bottom left corner to the upper right. The definitions for the
Likelihood to Harm a Patient/Staff/Visitor and Scope are as follows:

Likelihood to Harm a Patient/Staff/Visitor:
- Low: harm could happen, but would be rare
- Moderate: harm could happen occasionally
- High: harm could happen any time
Scope:
- Limited: unique occurrence that is not representative of routine/regular practice
- Pattern: multiple occurrences with potential to impact few/some patients, staff, visitors and/or settings
- Widespread: multiple occurrences with potential to impact most/all patients, staff, visitors and/or settings

The Evidence of Standards Compliance (ESC) or Plan of Correction (POC) forms with findings of a higher risk will require two additional fields within the ESC or POC. The
organization will provide a more detailed description of Leadership Involvement and Preventive Analysis to assist in sustainment of the compliance plan. Additionally, these higher
risk findings will be provided to surveyors for possible review or onsite validation during any subsequent onsite surveys, up until the next full triennial survey occurs. The below
legend illustrates the follow-up activity associated with each level of risk.

SAFER™ Matrix Placement Required Follow-Up Activity

» Two additional areas surrounding Leadership Involvement and Preventive
Analysis will be included in the ESC or POC

« Finding will be highlighted for potential review by surveyors on subsequent
onsite surveys up to and including the next full survey or review

MODERATE/LIMITED

LOW/PATTERN
LOW/WIDESPREAD « ESC or POC will not include Leadership Involvement and Preventive Analysis

LOWI/LIMITED

Organization Identification Number: 9762 379639 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




The Joint Commission
Appendix
Report Section Information
CMS Summary Description
For organizations that utilize The Joint Commission for deeming purposes, observations noted within the Requirements for Improvement (RFI) section that are
crosswalked to a CMS Condition of Participation (CoP)/Condition for Coverage (CfC) are highlighted in this section. The table included within this section
incorporates, from a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) perspective, the CoPs/CfCs that were noted as noncompliant during the survey, the

Joint Commission standard and element of performance the CoP/CfC is associated with, the CMS score (either Standard or Condition Level), and if the
standard and EP will be included in an upcoming Medicare Deficiency Survey (MEDDEF) if applicable.

Requirements for Improvement Description

Observations noted within the Requirements for Improvement (RFI) section require follow-up through the Evidence of Standards Compliance (ESC)

process. The identified timeframes for submission for each observation are found in the Executive Summary section of the Final Report. If a follow-up survey is
required, the unannounced visit will focus on the requirements for improvement although other areas, if observed, could still become findings. The time frame to
perform the unannouced follow-up visit is dependent on the scope and severity of the issue identified within Requirements for Improvement.

Organization Identification Number: 9762 3813739 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019



The Joint Commission
Appendix
Report Section Information

Clarification Instructions

Documents not available at the time of survey
Any required documents that are not available at the time of survey will no longer be eligible for the clarification process. These RFIs will become action items
in the post-survey ESC process.

Clerical Errors
Clerical errors in the report will no longer be eligible for the clarification process. The Joint Commission will work with the organization to correct the clerical
error, so that the report is accurate. The corrected RFIs will become action items in the post-survey process.

Audit Option
There will no longer be an audit option as part of the clarification process. With the implementation of the SAFER™ matrix, the "C" Element of Performance

(EP) category is eliminated. The "C" EPs were the subject of Clarification Audits.

The clarification process provides an organization the opportunity to demonstrate compliance with standards that were scored “not compliant” at the time of the
survey. The organization has 10 business days from the date the report is published on the extranet site to submit the clarification. The Evidence of Standards
Compliance (ESC) due dates will remain the same whether or not the organization submits a clarification and/or is successful in the clarification process.

Clarifications may take either of the following forms:

= An organization believes it had adequate evidence available to the surveyor(s) and was in compliance at the time of the survey. (Please note that actions
taken during or immediately after the survey will not be considered.) The organization must use the clarification form to support their contention.

= The organization has detailed evidence that was not immediately available at the time of the survey. The clarification must include an explanation as to
why the surveyor(s) did not have access to the information or why it was not provided to the surveyor(s) at the time of the survey. However, any required
documents that are not available at the time of survey are not eligible for the Clarification Process. These RFls will become action items in the post-survey
ESC process.

= Please do not submit supplemental documentation unless requested by The Joint Commission. If additional information is requested, the organization will
be required to highlight the relevance to the standards in the documentation.

Organization Identification Number: 9762 3919839 Final Report: Posted 2/25/2019




# Northern Inyo Hospital

2018 Outmigration Assessment

January 17, 2018

WIPFLI1

CPAs and Consultants

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE



WIPFLIi

CPAs and Consultants

# A g e n d a HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

Demographic Trends

Hospital Market Analysis

Physician and Behavioral Health Demand
Home Health and DME Demand

Community Health Indicators



Demographic Trends

WIPFL1
CPAs and Consultants




Service Area Definition

Service area provided by Northern Inyo’s Leadership team
When possible, data was separated into three service areas for
more focused analysis

Northern Service Area
93513 - Big Pine 93514 - Bishop

Southern Service Area
92328 - Death Valley |93526 - Independence
92384 - Shoshone 93542 - Little Lake
92389 - Tecopa 93545 - Lone Pine
93522 - Darwin 93549 - Olancha

Non Tax Payer Service Area
93512 - Benton

WIPFL1 122

CPAs and Consultants




Service Area Definition

L1200 TONGET L ARG aweeN
| & mlammoth Laka
.M F?fe Creek Crowley Lake

'éw_all Meado: Chalfant
bee Paradise 93514
Mesa pixon Lane-Meadow Cref

ﬂishop

Wilkerson

Raund Valley

8ig Pine

93513

«Beatty

T ——

i ; In
2
i Furnace Creek
foodlake Tc‘:ree Rivers.
~+Lemon Cove
= Northern P e\ 92328
oleville 238 Olancha !
ncho = in :
jnds.ay Sequoia Grest

Aty 2 .
iitraﬂ;.m‘;o.' re Spﬁ‘ngy.i,l;f_ ¢

= Southern Epoterle.

Kennedy M2adows

5 Terr\a Bella Shoshane
_ »Duc'c:a.r 93542 omewodd Canyon Qe
= Non Tax Payer I CALIFORNIA 93592 9 33Q Sandy Valley.
= asusssrarenesd sanene iMERSserI TR arsonville : .
* Kernville f

. Wofford I:!eights ”
el S +Onyx

Eevag e A \ ;
Lake Isabella EEHP" NChma La“l_( \Acr . =2
“ quirrel Mountain Yalley @ ‘ _____ I\I | %

* gadish.

o

WIPFL1 T

CPAs and Consultants @'a\ersﬁéid '_

Randsburg .2

Ao mALRES. mance LUESE



Population

Northern Service Area ("NSA”) anticipated to decrease by 1% over the

next five years, another .4% out to 2028
— Translates to roughly 262 fewer people in the NSA over the next 10 years

Southern Service Area ("SSA”) anticipated to decrease at a slightly

higher rate
Non Tax Payer Service Area anticipated to increase slightly

2018-2023 2018-2023 2018-2023 2023-2028 2023-2028 2018-2023
Percent Raw Percent Raw Compound
2010 2018 2023 2028 Change Change Change Change Change Annual Growth
Northern Service Area 15,688 15,725 15,527 15,463 -198 -1% -198 0% -64 99.8%
Southern Service Area 3,990 3,880 3,780 3,714 -100 -3% -100 -2% -66 99.6%
Total Service Area 19,678 19,605 19,307 19,178 -298 -2% -298 -1% -129 99.7%
Non Tax Payer Service Area 275 283 286 295 3 1% 3 3% 9 100.2%
California 37,253,956 39,806,791 41,456,909 43,328,648 1,650,118 4% 1,650,118 5% 1,871,739 100.7%
United States 308,745,538 330,088,686 343,954,683 359,888,576 13,865,997 4% 13,865,997 5% 15,933,893 100.7%
WIPFL1  souce esri 124

CPAs and Consultants 5




Population

Population will continue to
age, with 65-74 and 75-84
age cohorts expanding
significantly in both the NSA
and SSA

— Important for future service
mix but also rising mix of
Medicare

WIPFL1

CPAs and Consultants

Northern Service Area

2018

2023

2028

Percent

Change
18-23

Percent of

Total
2018

2023

Growth in
Population
18-23

125

Ages 0-19 3,675 3,417 3,374 3,332 -1.3% 21.7%  21.7% 0.0%
Ages 20-44 4,078 4,183 4,081 3,981 -2.4% 26.6%  26.3% -0.3%
Ages 45-64 5,008 4,606 4,078 3,611 -11.5% 29.3%  26.3% -3.0%
Ages 65-74 1,499 1,963 2,287 2,664 16.5% 12.5%  14.7% 2.2%
Ages 75-84 1,014 1,081 1,215 1,366 12.4% 6.9% 7.8% 1.0%
Ages 85+ 414 475 492 510 3.6% 3.0% 3.2% 0.1%
Total 15,688 15,725 15,527 15,463 -1.3%

Females 15-44 2,466 2,457 2,366 2,278 -3.7% 15.6%  15.2% -0.4%
Southern Service Area

Ages 0-19 836 747 746 745 -0.1% 19.3%  19.7% 0.5%
Ages 18-44 1,029 993 959 926 -3.4% 25.6%  25.4% -0.2%
Ages 45-64 1,347 1,222 1,067 932 -12.7% 31.5% 28.2% -3.3%
Ages 65-74 430 555 603 655 8.6% 14.3%  16.0% 1.6%
Ages 75-84 228 240 287 343 19.6% 6.2% 7.6% 1.4%
Ages 85+ 120 123 118 113 -4.1% 3.2% 3.1% 0.0%
Total 3,990 3,880 3,780 3,714 -2.6%

Females 15-44 580 552 531 511 -3.8% 14.2%  14.0% -0.2%
Non Tax Payer Service Area

Ages 0-19 63 59 56 53 -5.1% 1.5% 1.5% 0.0%
Ages 18-44 64 64 64 64 0.0% 1.6% 1.7% 0.0%
Ages 45-64 106 105 95 86 -9.5% 2.7% 2.5% -0.2%
Ages 65-74 28 37 47 60 27.0% 1.0% 1.2% 0.3%
Ages 75-84 11 14 20 29 42.9% 0.4% 0.5% 0.2%
Ages 85+ 3 4 4 4 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%
Total 275 283 286 295 1.1%

Females 15-44 39 39 41 43 5.1% 1.0% 1.1% 0.1%

Source: ESRI




Hospital Market
Analysis

WIPFL1
CPAs and Consultants




Inpatient Market Share

Market share in NSA
dropped by 4% in 2017
Overall market in NSA
Increased slightly
Market share in SSA
dropped from 43% In
2016 to 35% in 2017
Non Tax service area
market share of 61%

WIPFL1

CPAs and Consultants

Inpatient Market Share

Northern Service Area
Northern Inyo Hospital
Mammoth Hospital
Glendale Adventist Medical Center - Wilson Terrace
Loma Linda University Children'S Hospital
Children's Hospital of Los Angeles
Loma Linda University Medical Center
Southern Inyo Hospital
All Others
Total

Southern Service Area
Northern Inyo Hospital
Mammoth Hospital
Glendale Adventist Medical Center - Wilson Terrace
Loma Linda University Children'S Hospital
Children's Hospital of Los Angeles
Loma Linda University Medical Center
Southern Inyo Hospital
All Others
Total

Non Tax Service Area
Northern Inyo Hospital
Mammoth Hospital
Glendale Adventist Medical Center - Wilson Terrace
Loma Linda University Children'S Hospital
Children's Hospital of Los Angeles
Loma Linda University Medical Center
Southern Inyo Hospital
All Others

127
Total

733 701 698 (35)
84 57 84 0
21 33 30 9
26 16 38 12
15 17 9 (6)
14 14 13 (1)

7 5 25 18
180 184 197 17
1,080 1,027 1,094 14

125 88 89 (36)

7 17 15 8
6 2 1 (5)
11 3 8 3)
3 1 1

5 13 8
41 11 27 (14)

101 83 102 1

296 207 256 (40)
11 23 20 9

2 3 6 4
5 5

1 1

0

1 1 (1)
1 (1)
2 2 1 (1)
17 29 33 16

68%
8%
2%
2%
1%
1%
1%

17%

42%
2%
2%
4%
0%
2%

14%

34%

65%
12%
0%
0%
0%
6%
6%
12%

68%
6%
3%
2%
2%
1%
0%

18%

43%
8%
1%
1%
1%
0%
5%

40%

79%
10%
0%
0%
0%
3%
0%
7%

64%
8%
3%
3%
1%
1%
2%

18%

35%
6%
0%
3%
0%
5%

11%

40%

61%
18%
15%
3%
0%
0%
0%
3%

-4%
0%
1%
1%

-1%
0%
2%
1%

-7%
3%
-2%
-1%
0%
3%
-3%
6%

-4%
6%
15%
3%
0%
-6%
-6%
-9%




2017 Inpatient Market Share by Service Line

Opportunity to increase
cases in orthopedics
(current market share is
under 50%)

Majority of Psych and
Substance abuse
services currently leaving
community

WIPFL1

CPAs and Consultants

2017 NSA Market Share by Service Line

Northern Inyo Hospital ® Mammoth Hospital

Southern Inyo Hospital Loma Linda University Children'S Hospital
B Glendale Adventist Medical Center - Wilson Terrace

All Others

B Loma Linda University Medical Center

100% © ‘ 6 2 10

1 7
00% —4— —3— 12 1% O EE E .
m B 24 6 | 4
80% T 1 T _____ — W EEEEEEEEEEEB —i
o N

70% —— — — — —3— S BB BN B B BE
~ AT W IRTIIET
I o B B BE BE BE DS BE BE BE BN BE 11— 2 —— —84—4—6—
40%————28———~l————44———102— EEEEE S
51 24 10 ™

48 11 76 9 16 |

30% - — — — — — — EEEEEEBEEEEEEEEEEEEEB
82
20% BB B B BB B EEEEEEEEE o EE E
16

0% - — — — — — — — — — — — — — — - — — — — — — — = — —
0%

CR AT AL L L L L P E LR L PP ¢S
O OO LI 9O O Ok N LT OO ¥ O oy 9
T LO OO KOO RS LLCRXITRKXLE O VOO Lo
S LPEX Y ECN I NN ISP KLE O R X P
L F XL YOOI IT RSN FTLECNTLOHESSTX O TS ¥ N
b NN\ S R S R O N OO MR S L ™ S N
© & & ¥ g © ‘28’ N <<>) o © 3 & 3 \Yg~ Qx\Q R ‘<>) V(J N4

F & ° 128 O N o6 N R\s




Physician and Behavioral
Health Demand

WIPFL1
CPAs and Consultants




Physician Supply vs. Demand

Shortage in total service area in primary  REEEEUEEAS I

Net Overage /

care of 5.1 FTEs based on current supply /s

Lack of medical subspecialties, O o 15 os

. . . Internal Medicine 4.7 1.2 0.1 6.0 2.0 (4.0)

particularly in cardiology, oncology, and T
n e u ro | Ogy Medical Subspecialties

Audiology 0.7 0.2 0.0 0.8 (0.8)

General surgery demand appears to be pey 02 o1 oo s o

met by current supply e OO oo

While orthopedics shows adequate ooy 03 01 o0 o 06

. Infectious Disease 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 (0.2)

supply, lack of surgical focus translates to N 2 o1 o0 03 0

shortage and lower subsequent market plmoran Medene 090190 o o
share in orthopedics compared to other

. General Surgery 1.7 0.4 0.0 2.2 2.0 (0.2)

specialty areas pevanse e e

A A U oo

Plastic Surgery 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.3 (0.3)

Thoracic Surgery 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 (0.2)

‘(/DXIEFII_JI 130 Urology 0.6 0.1 0.0 07 ©.7)

11




Behavioral Health

Psychiatrist shortage based on current supply of 1.7
Psychologist demand in total service area appears to be met with current supply,
however significant shortage appears in counseling/social work/therapy

. < ald DP
O O O O O O

Psychiatrist 1.9 2.5 2.8 0.9 2.2 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.2 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 2.4 3.1 3.6 1.2 2.8 1.7
Behavioral Health NP 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.6 0.3 0.4
Psychologists 4.7 11.6 2.2 4.7 1.2 2.9 0.5 1.2 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.1 6.0 14.7 2.7 6.0 8.0
Counselors/Social Workers/Therapists 27.3 21.6 19.8 21.6 6.7 5.7 4.9 5.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 34.5 27.7 25.0 27.7 14.0
Counselors/Social Workers/Therapists

Substance Abuse Counselors 53 1.4 0171 6.8

Mental Health Social Workers Q7 6.9 6.1 2.4 1.8 1.5 02 0171 o1 12.2 8.9 7.7

Mental Health Counselors 17.6 7.5 13.6 4.3 2.0 34 03 o7 02 22.3 9.6 17.2

Marriage and Family Therapists 1.9 05 0.0 2.4

WIPFL1 131

CPAs and Consultants

12



Home Health and
DME Demand

WIPFL1
CPAs and Consultants




Home Health Agency

Based on home health visits per 1,000, and average frequency of 9,062 visits per
agency, need for roughly 1.2 agencies in total service area
Current supply of 1 agency results in shortage of .2, or around 1,800 visits

Home Health Agency

Demand
Service Area

Non-T
Northern Southern on-fax

Payer

Home Health Visits Per 1,000 in CA
Under 71 Years 175
Over 71 Years 2,950

Anticipated Visits

Under 71 Years 2,398 595 45 3,038

Over 71 Years 5,974 1,410 77 7,461
Total 8,372 2,005 122 10,499
Average Visits Per Agency 2062
Agencies Required 1.2

Supply of Agencies 1

WIPFLI Agency Overage/(Shortage) 133 0.2)

CPAs and Consultants 14




Durable Medical Equipment (“DME”)

Current supply based on review of existing  [USZEVIRELELE
providers of 7.4 DME providers (RX, medical
supply, optometry, podiatry and orthotist) Northern  Southern  Nom-Tax
Based on current demand, there appears to L

Service Area

Total

. . Supply
be a shortage in orthotist-related DME
Medical Supply Company 1.0
providers in the total service area pomein/Cpicn ”
Individual Certified Prosthetist/Orthotist
Total 7.4
Demand
Pharmacy 2.5 0.6 0.0 3.1
Medical Supply Company 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.7
Optometry/Optician 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.5
Podiatry 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.3
Individual Certified Prosthetist/Orthotist 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2
Total 3.8 0.9 0.1 4.7
Overage/(Shortage)
Pharmacy 0.9
Medical Supply Company 0.3
Optometry 1.5
Podiatry 0.1
Individual Certified Prosthetist/Orthotist (0.2)

WIPFL1 134

CPAs and Consultants

15



Community Health
Indicators

WIPFL1
CPAs and Consultants




Community Health Indicators

Inyo County was compared to California and national benchmarks
across many key community health, environmental, healthcare,
economic and behavioral health indicators

Detailed graphs are provided in the appendix; summary charts provide
at-a-glance comparisons

WIPFL 136

CPAs and Consultant :
A Source: County Health Rakings 17




Community Health Indicators

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Community Health Indicators Change California

Premature Death

Low birthweight

Poor or fair health

HIV prevalence ‘

Diabetes prevalence

Poor physical health days

Frequent physical distress

Better Similar Worse
WIPFL1 137 e
PA 1 .
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings 18




Mental Health Indicators

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Mental Health Change California

Poor mental health days

Frequent mental distress

Better Similar Worse

WIPFLI
L

CPAs and Consultant .
el Sl L Source: County Health Rakings

19




Healthy Behaviors

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Healthy Behaviors Change California

Drug overdose deaths

Motor vehicle crash deaths

Excessive drinking

Insufficient sleep

Adult obesity

Physical inactivity

Alcohol-impaired driving deaths

Adult smoking

Better Similar Worse

Sexually transmitted infections
WIPFLi y

CPAs and Consultant .
e Source: County Health Rakings

o e ,




Economic Health Indicators

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Economy Change California

Uninsured children

Uninsured adults

Children in poverty

Better Similar Worse

WIEFLL o e
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings

21




Healthcare Indicators

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Healthcare System Change California

Dentists

Diabetic screening

Mammography screening

Primary care physicians

Mental health providers

Other primary care providers

Preventable hospital stays

Better Similar Worse

WIEFLL o e
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings

22




Environmental Health Indicators

Compared to
National
Benchmark

2017-2018 Compared to

Environment Change California

Injury deaths

Firearm fatalities

Access to exercise opportunities

Limited access to healthy foods

Food environment index

Violent crime Rate

Food insecurity

Better Similar Worse

Health care costs
WIPFL1

N omd oo . )
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings . 23




WIPFLI

CPAs and Consultants

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

wipfli.com/healthcare



APPENDIX

WIPFL1 "

CPAs and Consultants 25




Length of Life

Inyo premature deaths per 100,000 higher than California, which aligns
with national benchmark

Premature death - Years of potential life lost
before age 75 per 100,000 population (age
adjusted)

e C@lifOrnia s |nyo County + National Benchmark (90th %ile)

10000 —2:306

8,263
7.070 7.070
1 T T
8,000 \ 8,700 2 ann 5.300

9,836 5600
6,000 — —& 300
6,128 5922 ’
2.000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
WIPFLI1 145

PA 1 .
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings 26




Quality of Life

Inyo County % of population in poor or fair health is slightly higher than
national benchmark, but better than California

Poor physical health days in line with CA, slightly above national
benchmark

Poor or fair health - Percent of adults Poor physical health days - Average number
reporting fair or poor health (age adjusted) of physically unhealthy days reported in past
=== California ===Inyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) 30 days (age adJUSted)
o o == California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
20% 8% 22 19% 4o, 4g% 148 189 8 5.0
'18% i h -0
16% 14%  15% 449, 4.0 3.7 37 37 37 37 40 39 ..
14% —— /_/N'Q“—";
12% *12% 3.0 — " 34 34 36 339 30
10% o= 2.8
8% 2.0
6%
4% 1.0
2%
0% T T T T T T T 0.0 T T T T T T T
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 | | 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
D

CPAs and Consul _
s and Lonsutiants Source: County Health Rakings 27




Quality of Life

WIPFL1

CPAs and Consultants

Poor mental health days in Inyo County slightly above CA
_ow birthweight % in Inyo County is higher than CA, national
penchmark

Poor mental health days - Average number of
mentally unhealthy days reported in past 30
days (age adjusted)

=== California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

6.0
5.0
4.0
3.0
2.0
1.0
0.0

5.2
48 5.0 <
s
3.8 38 38
e ———
26 26 36 3.6 26 36 26 ‘_3_1_

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

10.0% 85%

147

Low birthweight - Percent of live births with
low birthweight (< 2500 grams)

==California =—|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

0,
. (I
7.0% 70%6

_—
7.0% 7.0% .69 o

ggz;: 6.7% 6.7% ©68% 68% 68%

4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0%
0.0%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Source: County Health Rakings

28



Additional Health Outcomes

Inyo rate of frequent physical distress is lower than CA, slightly above

national benchmark
Rate of frequent mental distress is in line with CA, but above national

benchmark

Frequent physical distress - Percentage of Frequent mental distress - Percentage of
adults reporting 14 or more days of poor adults reporting 14 or more days of poor
physical health per month mental health per month
e California  e===Inyo County + National Benchmark (90th %ile) === California ==Inyo County + National Benchmark (90th %ile)
14% 13% 16%
— e 0/ 14%
10% 5 . :
8% 1% 1% & 9% 129%, 11% 11% 11%
6% 10% 11% 11% 1 10%
4% .
0% 8%
0% 6%
WIPFLi 2016 2017 2018 Jak 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings 29




Additional Health Outcomes

Prevalence of diabetes in Inyo County has declined for the last two
years, in line with California, but slightly above national benchmark
HIV prevalence significantly below CA, slightly above national
benchmark

Diabetes prevalence - Percentage of adults HIV prevalence - Number of persons 13
aged 20 and above with diagnosed diabetes years and older living with a diagnosis of
== California === |nyo County ¢+ National Benchmark (90th %ile) hu_man |_mmun0def|0|ency virus (HIV)
infection per 100,000 population
12% 1%
10% B B B s o == California == Inyo County + National Benchmarg;smh %gt;)s
8% % 350 363 363 375
400 360
8% —-j o 8%
8% 8% 8% 8% 300
6% fio
o 200 =
88 89 78 80 80 89 89
& 49
0% 0
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 | | 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
PA 1 .
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings 30




Health Behaviors

Rate of adult smoking in Inyo County is below national benchmarks
Rate of adult obesity in Inyo County (24%) is below the national
penchmark of 26%

Inyo County rates did rise slightly from 2017

Adult smoking - Percent of adults that report Adult obesity - Percent of adults that report a
smoking >= 100 cigarettes and currently BMI >= 30
SmOKIng == California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) 27%,
16% T—15% 4% 14%
% % % 26% /o
14% — o 13% 13%  13% 20 14, < 26°
| || 7
% 1% 24% 1539 X\zs% 23% 23V
8% 23% - 23%
6% 000, | 28%  23%  23% 23%  23%  23%  23% °
4%
5, 21%
0% T T T T T T T 20% T T T T T T T
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 | | 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 31



Health Behaviors

Inyo County food environment index is lower than CA, and below the
national benchmark
Rate has been declining steadily since 2014

Food environment index - Index of factors
that contribute to a health food environment,
0 (worst) to 10 (best)
=== California =—==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

10

8 7.6 7.5 7.7 8484
6 73 6.9 6.8 68
4
2
0
WIPFL1 2014 2015 45 2016 2017

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 32



Health Behaviors

Rates of physical inactivity in Inyo County are in line with national
benchmark, but higher than CA

Rates have been rising since 2015 when they were lower than CA
Access to exercise opportunities in Inyo County are significantly below
CA and national benchmarks

Physical inactivity - Percentage of adults 20 Access to exercise opportunities -
and over reporting no leisure-time physical Percentage of population with adequate
activity access to locations for physical activity
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) e California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
25% 100%

91%
20% —
20% 18%  18%  18% 18% o0 | | 80% | 91% 9% 94% 94%
T 7%  17% » /3% 90%
15% 9% 1% ‘°;’¥ o 18% 60% 7~ % I N
L= ) L= ) Uu 15% 16%

10% 40% 5
e 49%
5% 20%
0% 0%
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
WIPFL1 5t

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 33



Health Behaviors

Rates of excessive drinking in Inyo County are higher than CA, and
significantly above national benchmarks

Alcohol-impaired driving deaths in Inyo County are above CA and
national benchmarks, although they have declined from a high in 2017

Excessive drinking - Percentage of adults Alcohol-impaired driving deaths - Percentage
reporting binge or heavy drinking of driving deaths with alcohol involvement
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) === California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
20% 5 3 19% 50% a&70
18% 18,6?::2-?418/— 45%, 41%
16% % % 40% 36% 35%
4% L 17% 7% 7% 7% 17% 7% 35% 33% Dy
. % ) —_—
12% ®13 30% = —
10% 25% - 31% 30% 29% 29%
8% 20%
6% 15% -
4% 10% ’ 13%
2% 5%
0% 0%
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 )| 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 34



Health Behaviors

STI rates in Inyo county are above the national benchmark but below
CA

Rates have been declining from a high in 2016
Teen birth rates in Inyo County are above CA and national
benchmarks, however they have been falling steadily from 2011

Sexually transmitted infections - Number of Teen birth rate - Teen birth rate per 1,000
newly diagnosed chlamydia cases per female population, ages 15-19
100’000 populatlon == California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
45 42 A0 A0 41 o
40 _ h—_ e —— 3? ~E
500 443 444 4509 4875 " e — o~ 33
407 399 404 4399 — gg 40 40 — an— =
—m =iy
400 TN 25 T e
300 357 3303 20 24
200 2&&\ ’/ ~ 2088 15 *15
= . 91451 10
0 0 T T T T T T T
WIPFL1 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ., 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 35



Additional Health Behaviors

Rates of food insecurity in Inyo County are in line with CA, and slightly
above national benchmarks

Access to health foods is significantly more limited in Inyo County
compared with CA and national benchmarks

Food insecurity - Percentage of population Limited access to health foods - Percentage
who lack adequate access to food of population who are low-income and do not
=== California ===Inyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) live close to a grocery store
18% 17% === California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
——— % o5
16% Lk 15% e - 14%
14% . : 13% 129 11% 11% 11% 11% 12%
12, 14% 14% 15% 14% - ° —_—
° =7 10%
10% & 10%-
8% 8%
6%
6% 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
% 4% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
2% 2% 2%
0% 0%
WIPFLi 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Il 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

PA 1 .
CPAs and Consultants Source: County Health Rakings 36




Additional Health Behaviors

Rate of drug overdose deaths in Inyo County are over double CA and
the national benchmark

Drug overdose deaths - Number of drug
poisoning deaths per 100,000 population

== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

30 27 27
25
/--"'-—-____ ——
25

20 /
/

12 12
10 11/ 11
10 7 o-10
9

15

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
WIPFL1 156

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 37



Additional Health Behaviors

Rates of motor vehicle crash deaths are slightly higher than CA and
national benchmarks

Rates have increased in 2018 after a steady decline from 2014
Rates of insufficient sleep are lower in Inyo County compared to CA but
slightly higher than the national benchmark

Motor vehicle crash deaths - Number of Insufficient sleep - Percentage of adults who
motor vehicle crash deaths per 100,000 report fewer than 7 hours of sleep on
population average
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) == California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
20 40%
17 % 349% %
15 X 12 .- 30% - 32%
0 27%
10 _ \y ggﬂf = 30% :
g 0
10 o o 9‘ 15%
8
5 10%
5%
0 0%
WIPFILi 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 o 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 38



Clinical Care

Ratio of population to primary care physicians (lower is better) in Inyo
County is lower than CA and national benchmarks

Ratio of population to primary care providers (non-physician) is also
lower than CA and only slightly higher than national benchmarks

Primary care physicians - Ratio of population Other primary care providers - Ratio of
to primary care physicians population to primary care providers other
=== California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) than phySICIanS
1.600 == California  =====Inyo County + National Benchmark (90th %ile)
1,400 1341 1,326 1204 41270 1280 1280 3,000

2,558

2,406
1,000 — ..-——x\,..———’j’Em 2231 2,075 1,915
1020 1027 1088 - 2,000 =

800
20 40 1,500

600 1,028 1,086 1,083 1,041 1,008
¢ 782
200 500
WIPFLI 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 {5k 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 39



Clinical Care

Ratio of population to mental health providers is lower in Inyo County
than CA and national benchmarks
Ratio of population to dentists is higher (worse) in Inyo County
compared to CA and national benchmarks

Ratio went up significantly in 2018

Mental health providers - Ratio of population Dentists - Ratio of population to dentists
to mental health prowders ===California ===Inyo County ¢ National Benchmark (20th %ile)
=== California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) 1.800
' 1,543 1,510
700 523 1,600 1,423 :
1,319 1,320 1,300 "
600 L 1,400 1386 — 41,280
500 \NBB 1,200 ‘ 1,326 1,291 1260 1250 15 1;
1,000 : :
400 370 350 520 :
300 402 — e — 330 800
330 310 290 o 600
200 200 400
100 200
0 ]
WIPFILi 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 I\ 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 40



Clinical Care

Rate of Medicare preventable hospitals stays for ambulatory-care
sensitive conditions in Inyo County is lower than CA and national
benchmark
Rate has been steadily decreasing since 2011 however it has risen
slightly in 2018

Preventable hospital stays - Rate for
ambulatory-care sensitive conditions per
1,000 Medicare enrollees

==California ===|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

75

59
52 52
50 B > 45 44
~ - 36 36
44 35
25 34 35 35 T ———
24 23 25
0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
160

WIPFL1

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 41



Clinical Care

Rate of diabetic screening in Inyo County is below CA and significantly below
national benchmark
Rate has been dropping since 2011, although in 2017 and 2018 the rate
Increased slightly
Rate of mammography screening in Inyo County is in line with CA but significantly
below national benchmarks

Diabetic screening - Percent of diabetic Mammography screening - Percent of female
Medicare enrollees that receive HbA1c Medicare enrollees that receive
screening mammography screening
=== California ===|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) = California ===Inyo County # National Benchmark (90th %ile)
95% 100%
90% | g70; —BB% ®91% | | 80% —68%—68% —B7% -~ —
T 8% 84% 60% -
85% = — 60% -
81% 82% 8% 59%  63%  62% 599  59%  59% 59%  59%
o / 40%
81%  81%  81% 80%  80%
0 79% 79% 0
75% +—770r 20%
?0% T T T T T T T 0% ! ’ T T T T T
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 | 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 42



Additional Clinical Care

Uninsured rate in Inyo County is slightly below CA, but above the national
benchmark of 6%
Uninsured rate has been declining steadily since a high of 20% in 2015

Uninsured - Percentage of population under
age 65 without health insurance

= Cglifornia ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)

25%

20% 21% 20% 20%
Y | —— 19%
. 20% 20% 20% 20% s Y
(1]
E\mef
10% o S
9%
5% © 6%
0%
WIPFL1 2012 2013 2014  ,42015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 43



Additional Clinical Care

Rate of uninsured children in Inyo County is higher than CA, and higher than
national benchmark of 3%

Health care costs (price-adjusted Medicare reimbursement) per enrollee in Inyo
County is below CA

Uninsured children - Percentage of children Health care costs - Amount of price-adjusted
under age 19 without health insurance Medicare reimbursements per enrollee
=== California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) ====California ====|nyo County
14% $10,000

12% o $9.000 | 98.975 $9.176  $9.092 _ 99.313 39102 $8908  $9,100
12% ' e

10% 10% $8,000 -
10% 9% $7.000 | $8.285 e — $8,142
8% 10% $6,000 $7.478 37,551 7697  $7580 7366

° 9%
6% ’ 8% 8 S N\ = $5,000
\\ $4,000
% 6% $3,000

. 4% 3% $2.000
2% $1,000
0% $0
WIPFLi 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 leb 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 44



Soclal & Economic Factors

Rates of violent crime in Inyo County are above CA, and significantly above
national benchmark

Rates have been increasing since 2016
Injury related death rates in Inyo County are almost double CA, and significantly
above national benchmarks

Violent crime - Number of reported violent Injury deaths - Number of deaths due to
crime offenses per 100,000 population injury per 100,000 population
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) ====California ====|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
700 100
86 90 89
600 |63 575 o 81 __—
472 —
441 AN AN 474 474
500 |55 o 425 425 70
400 i am— 60 ry
443
300 400 393 393 407 407 50 —
40 48 46 46 47 48
200 30
20
100
62 10
0 0
WIPFLi 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 || 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings 45



Soclal & Economic Factors

Firearm fatality rates in Inyo County are double the national benchmark and CA
Rates of children in poverty (19%) are slightly below CA but above national
benchmarks of 12%

Firearm fatalities - Number of deaths due to Children in poverty - Percent of children
firearms per 100,000 population under age 18 in poverty
== California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile) == California ==|nyo County ¢ National Benchmark (90th %ile)
16
1 14 30%
o 24%  24% o
12 11 / 259 220, 23% 23% 51% 0
— 19% 20%
10 5 - 20% - o~
21% 0 8 .
2 Y 15% | 1g0s 20%  41g9, 20%  20% T:zc
10%
4
5 5%
0 0% T T T T T T T
WIPFILi 2017 2018 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CPAs and Consultants

Source: County Health Rakings




Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

| 2019 B 2018 | -
Acct# Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice PROJECTED Actual YTD |
~ 4010 |Salaries - RN 242,486.00 - - 242,486.00 | 166,562.29 _
4030 _ Salaries - PT 72,320.00 | S - 72,320.00 1528333
4040 | Salaries - OT - - . ; 0.00
4050 Salaries - ST - - - | 0.00|
i
4060  Salaries - MSW i - - | = | i | 5,384.32
4070 |Salaries - CHHA 280000 - = | 2,800.00 313.28
4015 Salaries - HOS RN = . sosec0| sosc0| 37,577.55
4016 Salaries - HOS RN cont care | = — = | - - 0.00
4035 |Salaries - HOS PT - - - - 0.00
4035 |Salaries - HOS OT = 1 = | S I : ]
: Zdes_l'Seﬂéries - HOS MSW - - - . 8,256.19i
4075 |Salaries - HOS Aide - - 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,729.16
4076 _ Salaries - HOS Aide cont care T - - - 0.00
4085 Salaries - HOS Chaplain - . 411200 411200 ~ 3,702.25 )
4090 1_Salaries - Al NLK 1,200.00 | - | - 1,200.00 1,202.97
4097  Salaries - PCP Direct 5 404,320.00 - 404,320.00 328,410.65
318,806.00  404,320.00 | 91,941.00 B — 1
815,067.00 574,421.99
4110 Payroll Taxes - RN 18,671.42 - - 18,671.42 12,826.88

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

10f9

166



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

Acct# |Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice PROioégTED 1 | Acti::sYTD |
|
4130 Payroll Taxes - PT 4,339.20 - - 4,339.20 1,657.91
magroll Taxes - OT - - i - - B - - 0.00:
4160 Payroll Taxes - MSW - : o s - - 524.31 |
4170 Payroll Taxes - CHHA 168.00: - - 168.00 T 1974
| 4115 Payroll Txs - HOS RN - I - 6,223.83 6,223.83 3,004.14]
i
4116 Payroll Taxes - HOS RN cont ‘ - - - - :
4135 Payroll Taxes - HOS PT - - — -
4165 Payroll Taxes - HOS MSW = - - - B - 796.(_)8__: ]
4175 Payroll Taxes - HOS Aide - - 420.00 420.00 582.08 |
4176 Pyl Taxes - HOS Aide cont ca i - - - 0-00; il
4185 _ Payroll Taxes - HOS Chaplain| - - 123.36 123.36 40281 -
4190 IPayroII Taxes - All NLK | 92.40 | - - 92.40 C w07,
4197 | Payroll Taxes - PCP Direct - | 36,388.80 - 36,388.80 129,787.90 |
[ 2327102 3638880 6,767.19 I
| 66,427.02 49,642.02
4210 |Benefits - RN | 2870193 - - 28,701.93 1844912
| T
4230 Benefits - PT 3,829.34 - 3,829.34 | 899.07.
4240 |Benefits - OT - - - N | - _ogg_; -
4260 Benefits-MSW - - - . 24.11

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

20f9

167



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

Acct # i’Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice PRo'j(:gTED [ Kctig:sYTD ]
Toi'BEeﬁté - CHHA 582.06 - 582.06 | 58.79
4215 !Beneﬁts- HOS RN - = 9,563.31 9,563.31 4,685.62 -
4216 Benefits - HOS RN cont are _ - - - - - - B B - __
4265 Benefits - HOS MSW - - - - 38.06
4275 Benefits - HOS Aide - s 2,134.22 2,134.22 1,833.88 -
4276  Benefits - HOS Aide cont care - - - ) 0.00 -
4285 Benefits - HOS Chaplain . 19.08 . 19,08 | 2385
4290 Benefits - All NLK 24.00 - - 24.00 68.32 -
| 4297  Benefits - PCP Direct - 47,083.53 - | 47,08353 35,493.74
) 33,137.33 | 47,0261 | 11,60753 | )
91,937.47 61,584.56
@ .50 cents per mile | _ : - : B -
4310 |Transportation - RN 10,559.82 | - | - 10,559.82 | 8,399.00
4330 ITransp(;rtation -PT 10,559.81 l B - : 10,559.81 | | 2,020.50 i
__434_0 Transportation - OT - - - - - - -
4360 | Transportation - MSW . - : : ) 110.00 |
| 4370 |Transportation - CHHA 125.72 | - - 125.72 ) 43.00
4315 |Transpotation - HOS RN = | - 3,519.94 3,519.94 | 211100
4316 |Transp - HOS RN cont are - - - I - B
4335 [Transp - HOS PT ® - < ~ = _

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

30f9

168



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

Acct# Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice - PR02JOE1§TED Acti:\: 8YTD -
4345 [Transp- HOS OT - - - -] -
4365 | Transp - HOS MSW - Fl - 56250
4375 [Transp - HOS Aide - - [ 37 fl__l_ 37714 ) 1,388.50
4376 |Transp - HOS Aide cont care | - - - - |
4384 Transp - HOS Chaplain 5 | - 524.00 524.00 594.00 | ]
4390 ?Tr_an_spgrt_ation -AINLK | - - - N 200
i
4397 Transportation - PCP Direct I =  2,00000 - 2,000.00 1,945.80 |
! |
2124535 2,000.00  4,421.08 N (R -
; 27,666.43 17,176.30
4405 Contract Serv - HOS Med Dir E A 5 - -
4408  Contract Serv - HOS Dietitian = - . - = -
4409 Contract Serv - Interpreter 5 = 3 s T
4410 |Contract Services - SN - - - - - =
4430 [Contract Services-PT | 2275000 - | - 2275000 | 5210890
i
4440 [Contract Services - OT 500000 - - | 500000 406.25
4450 Contract Services - ST 3,250.00 - - 3,250.00 1,495.50
|
4460 |Contract Services-MSW | - l - 6,000.00 6.000.00
31,000.00 . - 600000 | | -
| 37,000.00 |
|

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

40f9

169



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

- 2019 2018 | B
Acct # |Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice | PROJECTED | Actual YTD |
4500 |Billable Medical Supplies 1,000.00 . - 1,000.00 | 1,569.50 |
4600 |Billable Client Expenses - - - - 1 9.80
) - 1,000.00 | o . B -
1,000.00 55,589.95
5009 |Salaries - QA 45,904.32 | - - 45,904.32 2,224.64 | -
i
5010 |Salaries - Clin Sup « | - ) . = = ]
5011 |Salaries - Clerical 13313664 | - - 133,136.64 143,468.34
5012 Salaries - Administrator 151,233.64 - || 15123364 123,472.19
5017  Salaries - PCP Indirect - 55,623.36 - 5562336 | 48,507.46
~ 5018  Salaries - HOS Indirect Other ' ' = = 59,024.88 59,024.88 4,076.34
| :
| 5020 Salaries - HOS Ind Clinical - - O - - 13,286.66 | ]
|
5025 Salaries - HOS Ind Admin ] = 37,808.41 37,80841| 17,465.39 |
33027460  55623.36 | 96,833.29
482,731.25 352,501.02
5109 Pyrl Taxes - QA 3,213.30 - - 3,213.30 o 946.11 — ]
_51_10_;_P_yrl Taxes - Clin Sup - - - - I = _
5111 Py Taxes-Clerical |  9,585.84 - - 9,585.84 1034181 -
5112 [Pyrl Taxes - Administrator | 11,493.76 | . : 11,493.76 9,421.06 | |
5117 Pyrl Taxes - PCP Indirect - | 483923 - 4,839.23 4,231.75
5118 %Pyrl Taxes - HOS Indirect Othe — z 4,603.94 4,603.94 320.30

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

50f9

170



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

171

i ; | 2019 | 2018 I
Acct# Account Description  PHHC | PCP  Hospice | PROJECTED | Actual YTD | ]
5120 Pyrl Taxes - HOS Ind Clinical | - - ! - - 956.13
| 5125 Pyr Taxes - HOS Ind Admin = = 2,873.44 2,873.44 C1,231.43 I
| |
) ) 2429290 | 4,839.23 7,477.38 _ [
36,609.51 27,448.29
5209 |Benefits - QA 17.45 - - 17.45 3196 o
5210 Benefits - Clin Sup o - - - - R - L ___ o
5211 |Benefits - Clerical 19,171.77 - - 19,171.77 ) ~ 18,630.04 l ]
5212 | Benefits - Administrator 3,723.32 = = 3,723.32 362817
5217 Benefits - PCP Indirect = 1,369.42 - 1,369.42 | 3,723.09
| 5218 Benefits - HOS Indirect Other : - | 6,847.05 6,847.05 792.92 |
5220 |Benefits - HOS Ind Clinical - - | - - 145758
| 5225 |Benefits - HOS Ind Admin - < 930.83 930.83 528.86
| |
2291254 136942 | 7,777.88 | - —
| 32,059.84 | 28,792.62
5300 Transp - Non Visit Related 656.25 ) ) 656.25 66300
5307 Transp - PCP indirect - 375.00 = 375.00 346.50
5308 '!?ra_nsp—-Hos Indirect Other | - - 218.75 218.75 291.00 )
5320 Transp - HOS Ind Clinical - - 1 -1 2 -
5325 !Transp -HOS Ind Admin | - N i— N - - i
|

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

60of9



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

| 2019 | 2018
Acct # Account Description PHHC | PCP | Hospice | PROJECTED | - ActualYTD |
656.25 375.00 | 218.75 _
1,250.00 | 1,300.50
5500 401KPlan 10,427.48 4,576.17 3,947.78 18,951.43 - I -
5510  Accounting - 14,000.00 . 4,400.00 |  18,400.00 18,630.00 |
E— - — 1 N
5520 'Bad Debt ' - : = - 213.24
5530 Bank Charges - - - - 25.00
5535 | Building Costs > . 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,121.93
5536 iCoIIection Fees - - y = -
5540 |Community Education 45000 |  450.00  500.00 |  1,400.00 - 1,251.93
5550 fC_omputer Costs 2576134 4,263.33 4,053.33 34,078.00 61,858.79
5560 Consultant Services | - - | 600.00 600.00 z
5580 |Dues & Subscriptions 2,568.34 743.33 1,818.33 5,130.00 5,.219.00 |
5590 |Employee Education 2,000.00 | 400.00 1,000.00 3,400.00 3,263.02
5600 Employee Welfare 284.00 | 324.00 118.00 726.00 620.14
| 5610 |Equipment Rental - 863.34 86333 86333 |  2,500.00 | | 1,830.92 |
5620 |Insurance - Gen/Prof/D&0 7,299.90 i 5,677.70 | 3,244.40 16,222.00 | 15,227.00 = R
5630 |Interest ~ - - - 2,234.96
5635  Interest - Mortgage 644465 322232  3759.38 13,426.35  13,650.77
5640 |Janitorial 1,389.00 627.00 784.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 B

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

172



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

— - 2019 2018
Acct# Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice PROJECTED Actual YTD ]
5650 Legal - - - - - 4,405.00
5660 Licenses, Taxes & Fees 11,986.00 163200 | 4,254.00 17,872.00 | 14,507.63
5670 |Maintenance & Repairs/Equip | B . - - - - -
5680 Maintenance & Repairs/Prop | 363600 181800 212100 7,575.00 9,711.27
5685 Marketing - | 223200 - 2,232.00 718.04
5690 Medical Waste B - : - | -
5700 Meetings - StaffflUR/Adv Brd 20000 5000 200.00 450.00 219.25
5710 |Minor Equipment 60000  500.00 |  500.00 1,600.00 3321
5720 |Non-Billable Med Supplies | 250.00 | 110.00 40.00 400.00 | 35597
| |
5730 Office Expense/Supplies | 5,000.00 : 1,000.00 | 1,000.00 |  7,000.00 ~ 10,139.81 r
5740 Rent o - : 340.00 340.00 1,105.00
'mnt Education 500.00 - 450.00 950.00 g1791
5760 |Postage 850.00 ~ 550.00 100.00 | 1,500.00 2,695.35 —
5770 !Printing & Stationary 180000  820.00 1,050.00 3,670.00 ~ 3,863.01
5780 Prof Conf/Committees/Meetng  1,844.00 — 563.00 gss.é)_o 3,290.00 13800
5790 | Recruiting/Hiring 1571000 4,714.00 5,785.00 26,209.00 607048 |
' 5800 |Telephone/Communication Sy 4,788.00 2,856.00 756.00 8,400.00 | 8,075.98
5810 |Utilities 366400 177600  2,070.00 7,400.00 7,332.26
6000 |HOS Bereavement Prog Servs . . 1260.00 | 260.00 93.33 I B —

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

80of9

173



Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc.
Projected Budget For 2019

T 2019 2018 -
Acct# Account Description PHHC PCP Hospice PROJECTED Actual YTD
6005 HOS Charity Care e — = - — . B - )
6010 HOS DME /02 E - 5,000.00 5000.00 | 4,327.94
6015 |HOS Fundraising Costs - - 500.00 500.00 ) 338.87
6020 HOS Inpatient General Care - - - - 1 -
6025 HOS Inpatient Respite Care __- - - - - -
6035 |HOS Medical Supplies : - 1,800.00 |  1,800.00 | ) 1,020.00 | B
6110 |HOS Pharmaceuticals 5 - 5,500.00 5,500.00 | 394939
6115 |HOS Patient Transportation = | = < . B o __ 3
6130 'HOS Room & Board Expense - - - - B -
6135 |HOS Volunteer Prog Costs - - 250.00 250.00 B 1,131.96 |
6450 HOS Start-Up Amortization - - 82,660.80 | _sg,eeoiao 82,660.80 -
- 122,206.05  39,768.18  145608.35 |  307,582.58 )
| 307,582.58 292,657.16
__ ) ) 1,461,114.41
_ ‘Total Expenses | 928,802.04  591,786.60 | 378,742.45 B 1,899,331.09 1,461,114.41 ]
Mortgage Loan_Principle 221321 | 110661 129103 4,610.85
[ 93101525 | 592,893.21  380,033.48 | 1,903,941.94 1
|Projected Income 812,200.00 | 566,930.00  497,637.00 $ 1,876767.00 |
Projected Net | (118,815.25)| (25,963.21)% 117,603.52 $  (27,174.94) —

S:\PHHC Secure Documents\EFINANCE\Budgets\2019\2019 Budget 2/27/2019 9:15 AM

90f9

174



Strategy Review

2019




Current Strategy

» Patient Experience

» Workforce Experience

* Quality

» Finance & Market Share




Then & Now

 Then * Now

» Exec Team « Expanded Leadership Team

» Dedicated meeting « Dedicated meeting and
Resources




Patient Experience

* Survey
» Press Ganey
» Focused NIHD developed




Workforce Experience

» Recruitment/Hiring/Retention

 Survey
« Third year Starts Feb 25t

« Developed Department Leader led response/improvements
« Clarity on leadership expectations/accountabilities
» Clarity on workforce performance/accountabilities




Quality

» Flu vaccination as an example of leadership focused on a goal
 Defining Value for the District

» Process towards continuous improvement

» Safety Coach




Finance & Market Share

e Training for Leaders on budget understanding and management

« Subcommittee on Market Share reaching out to physicians for
participation




Next Step

« Where are we

« Where do we see ourselves going
« How will we get there

* How far along




Where Are We

« Set the foundation for understanding

« Set the foundation for solid leadership

« Set the foundation for building

» Redefined who we are as a local healthcare provider

» Community Health Needs Assessment
« Demographic & Insurance data mining
« Community data collection




Where Do We See Ourselves Going

* Now in position to define tomorrow
« Expanding outpatient services (providers & space)
» Expanding access (providers & space)

 Partnerships
« Local
» Regional/Statewide

« Behavioral Health
» Offer Continuum of Services




How Will We Get There

» Strategy driven!

« Informed Decision Making!

» Collaboration!

« From a position of strength

» New models

» Use of technology

« Integrate with social service providers
« Comprehensive Health System




How Far Along Are We

* Step 1- Solid Foundation

 Step 2- Assess potential partners & collaborators
 Step 3- Develop relationships

* Step 4- Assess impact

» Step 5- Reassess




Things to Review

* Mission-Vision-Values
* Board
» District

 Strategy
« Operational
» Fiscal

« Job Description
* Interview process

» Conflict of Interest
« Externally




DISCUSSION




Norchern Ihye
Rospital

Strategic Financial
Planning

WIPFLI.

CPAs and Consultants
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

June 3, 2016




Today’s Objectives

Review current state at NIH and market future

Review the status quo financials for next 5 yrs

Review the potential impact of several strategic scenarios
Review the key initiatives for NIH from last meeting
Agree upon strategic direction and priorities

Understand and commit to a process for next steps

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE
190




WHERE ARE WE TODAY?

Market/Performance
Physicians/Providers
RHC

WIPFLL.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE OWpfiLLP 3
191



THE MARKET

WIPFLI1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLPe 4
192



Service Area Definition

The service area for the market analysis is defined as:

Primary Service Area

Primary Service Area
93514 - Bishop

Secondary Service Area

Secondary Service Area

93513 - Big Pine 93526 - Independence
93545 - Lone Pine 93546 - Mammoth Lakes

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owpfiLLP 5
193



Service Area Map and Area Hospitals

Northern Inyo Hospital service area and nearest competitors

™ 4 - ~
,’—J & — = —\.\ P
J Northern Inyo
255, = Hospital

Mammoth
Hospital
_ Southern Inyo
I . -
=PSA a‘v‘isali;fi Hospital
. <
§ N
= SSA et }
" _,-‘, uPor‘terviIIe
WIPFL1. /

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE lanell | owipiLLP 6



Demographics: Population Today and 2025

PSA population is expected to grow only slightly over the next ten years, by +200

The SSA population is expected to decline however; If financially prudent,

continued outreach and enhanced relations with the SSA communities is advised

Primary Service Area (PSA)
93514 - Bishop

Secondary Service Area (SSA)
93513 - Big Pine
93526 - Independence
93545 - Lone Pine
93546 - Mammoth Lakes

Total Service Area

PSA Total

SSA Total

2025 Projected
% Change  Change Estimated Change Variance

2005 2015 (2005-2015) (2005-2015) Population (2015-2025)  (2015-2025)
13,563 13,936 2.8% 373 14,144 1.5% 208
13,563 13,936 2.8% 402 14,144 1.5% 208
1,809 1,919 6.1% 111 2093 9.1% 174
746 761 2.0% 15 763 0.3% 2
2,137 2,358 10.3% 221 2,316 -1.8% -42
8,880 9472 6.7% 592 9134 -3.6% -338
13,571 14,510 6.9% 939 14,306 -1.4% -204
27134 28,446 4.8% 1,341 28,450 0.0% 4

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

Source: ESRI, 2015

195

oWipfliLLP 7



Demographics: Population Distribution Today

PSA has a significantly older population compared to California and USA

SSA population is significantly younger than the PSA and aligns closer to State and
national averages

r
2015 Age Distribution
60.0% I
OPSA |
. mSSA !
50.0% mCalifornia | |
m National i
.5 40.0%
©
3
[o}
£ 30.0%
s
L
B 20.0% | oo
= 13.4% 12.9% 13.4% —
10.0%
0.0% : -
Age 0-14 Age 15-44 Age 45-64 Age 65+ Birthing Age Women
Major Age Categories
WIPFLI.
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE Source: ESRI, 2015 owipite 18

196



Demographics: Age Distribution 2025

PSA population is expected to continue aging over the next ten years which should
drive increased healthcare utilization; however, healthcare reform will have a
competing impact — in particularly for inpatient

2025 Age Distribution

60.0% -
OPSA
mSSA
50.0% |
@ California
41.8% 41.5% E National
S 40.0%
®
3
&
a 30.0%
26.6%
w 25.9%
(=}
= 20.2%
4 19.7%
S 20.0% 1RI0%
X 16.1% 14.8%
10.0% -
0.0% : : -
Age 0-14 Age 15-44 Age 45-64 Age 65+ Birthing Age Women
Major Age Categories
WIPFL1.
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE Source: ESRI, 2015 owipriLe 18

197



Utilization Trends: Inpatient Statistics

Inpatient discharges and days
have increased significantly
over the past 3 years

ALOS has remained
relatively flat overall;
increased in ICU but
reduced in OB and Peds

Observation cases have
declined significantly since
2013; this is unusual
compared to the rise in
observation cases Wipfili
has seen at other hospitals

Could reflect more
appropriate admitting
protocols vs. other
CAHs that have seen
lower admits due to
insufficient hospital
inpatient coverage

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

Discharges

Med/Surg
ICU

Pediatrics
Obstetrics

Obsenation

Swing

Patient Days

Med/Surg
ICU

Pediatrics
Obstetrics

Obsenation
Swing

Average Length of Stay

Med/Surg
ICU
Pediatrics
Obstetrics

Obsenation
Swing

GRAND TOTAL DISCHARGES

GRAND TOTAL ALOS

GRAND TOTAL PATIENT DAYS 2,292

13to'16  13to'16
2014 2015 2016 Ann  Variance % Change
547 557 686 741 194 35.4%
42 29 48 41 (1) -2.0%
44 62 41 63 19 44.2%
182 234 193 230 48 26.2%
8156 882 966 1,075 260 31.9%
480 336 358 281 (199) -41.4%
3 27 103 122 119 3957.1%
2016 Ann Variance %Change
1,574 1,741 2,193 2,321 747 47.5%
211 171 285 257 46 21.9%
94 118 88 110 16 16.7%
413 439 369 411 (2) -0.4%
2,469 2,935 3,099 807 35.2%
480 336 358 281 (199) -41.4%
22 173 862 830 808 3671.4%
2013 2014 2015 2016 Ann Variance %Change
29 3.1 32 31 0.3 8.9%
5.0 5.9 6.2 6.3 12 24.4%
21 1.9 21 1.7 (0.4) -19.0%
23 1.9 1.9 1.8 (0.5) -21.1%
2.8 28 3.0 29 0.1 2.5%
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0%
7.3 6.4 8.4 6.8 (0.5) -7.0%

Source: NIH, 2016 annualized based on 7 months of data

198

owiptiLLe 10



« Historical acute care bed need of 15-16 beds at ideal occupancy rates, OB need
of 2 beds and ICU of roughly 1 bed

30.0

25.0 -

15.0

10.0

8.0

0.0 —
(76 %)

Historical Bed Need at Ideal Occupancy

22013 @m2014 ®@=2015 @2016 Ann = Available Beds

Med/Surg/Peds/Swing/Obs ICU (75%) Obsetetrics

(65%)

Total Inpatient

VI ELL

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

199

ewiptiL,e 11



Ancillary Statistics

Virtually all key ancillary volumes have increased since 2013; only decline occurred with
Medical outpatient which saw a big increase in 2015 but dropped in 2016

MRI and Physical Therapy saw the biggest increases since 2013

Surgery volume has been trending upwards; a financial ‘engine’ of most CAHs

'"13-'16 "13-'16

2014 2015 2016 Ann  Variance % Change

ED 8,689 8,097 8,755 8,798 109 1.3%
Surgery 1,243 1,344 1,313 1,478 235 18.9%
MRI 4,984 6,506 7,193 6,427 1,443 28.9%
Ultrasound 2,915 3,421 3,137 3,187 272 9.3%
Mammo 4,481 4,544 4,189 5,019 538 12.0%
0 1,313 1,348 1,405 1,515 202 15.4%
General Rad 6,333 6,677 7,118 6,660 327 5.2%
Lab 111,090 115,875 116,177 119,355 8,265 7.4%
Physical Therapy 11,396 17,443 20,362 18,398 7,002 61.4%
Medical Outpatient 2,161 2,270 2,825 1,982 (179) -8.3%
WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE Source: NIH, 2016 annualized based on 4 months of data owpmiLLp 12
200



Some capacity issues in existing ancillary modalities
- ED, MRI and Ultrasound are reaching existing room capacities

- ED can have very large peak periods; overflow rooms are likely often needed

02015 2016 Ann

e
c
=
O

O
[

£

£
2]
1)
=
E
[}
]
x

Ultrasound General Rad

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLe 13




Competitive Position: PSA

PSA inpatient market has grown slightly since 2014;

NIH market share in the PSA has increased almost 2% since 2012;

Primary Service Area 2012 2013 2014  Change [ Primary Service Area 212 213 2014 %Change
Northern Inyo Hospital 65 519 T2 107 Northern Inyo Hospital 671% 65.8% 68.9%  1.8%
Mammoth Hospital 12 62 80 8 Mammoth Hospital 1% 70% 76% 02%
Loma Linda University Medical Center 38 40 4 4 Loma Linda University Medical Center 41% 45% 40%  01%
Southem Inyo Hospital 4 12 4 0 Southem Inyo Hospital 04% 14% 04%  01%
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 9 14 18 9 Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 10% 16% 17%  0.7%
City of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital 10 6 11 1 City of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital  1.4% ~ 07%  1.0%  0.0%
Antelope Valley Hosptial 1 10 5 (6) Antelope Valley Hosptial 12% 1% 05%  -07%
Glendale Adventist Medical Center 2 6 17 15 Clendale Adventist Medical Center 02% 07% 16%  14%
Cedars Sinai Medical Center 11 13 § (3) Cedars Sinai Medical Center 12% 15% 08% 4%
All Others 44 138 14 (3) All Others 157% 157% 135%  -23%

Total 916 880 1,048 132 Total 100% 100% 100%  14.4%

WIPFLl1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

202

Source: Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD), 2015 data was not provided

owipniLLe 14




Competitive Position: SSA

SSA inpatient market size is not growing; remained flat over the past few years

SSA market share for NIH has increased over 4% in the same time period

Secondary Service Area 012 213 2014 Change [ Secondary Service Area 012 M3 2014 %Change
Northern Inyo Hospital 154 147 181 33 | |Northern Inyo Hospital 190% 18.3% 284% 44%
Mammoth Hospital 7 3% M I Mammoth Hospita J9%  #.9% 393  1.5%
Loma Linda University Medical Center v 4 % ()| |Loma Linda University Medical Center 48% 55% 4d% 4%
Southem Inyo Hospita [T I %) | [Southem Inyo Hospital 00% 64% 46%  44%
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 9 10 1 Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 1% 21% 13%  01%
City of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital 9 b 3 6 | |Chy of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital  1.1% ~ 06%  04%  -0.7%
Antelope Valley Hosptial 15 5 14 ()| [Antelope Valley Hosptial 18% 068% 18% 01%
Glendale Adventist Medical Center ¢ 5 6 2 Glendale Adventist Medical Center 05% 06% 08%  03%
Cedars Sinai Medical Center B 1 B 0 Cedars Sinai Medical Center 6% 21% 16%  0.0%
All Others 8 175 179 (9 | |AlOthers R 18% 24 8%
Tolal 811 802 7% (13 Total 100% 100% 100%  -1.6%

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE Source: Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD); 2015 data was not provided owipfiLte 18
203



Market/Demand Assessment

Population
Served
Calculation

Service Area

x | Market Share

Allowance for
Inmigration

POPULATION
SERVED

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

Population served estimates were developed based on future
market share and inmigration assumptions

Future population served projections were calculated using
future 2021 estimated market share under three scenarios of
market share growth

Low scenario reflects “current state”

Medium scenario reflects growth in overall population served based
on market share growth, provider recruitment plan and subsequent
population growth estimates

High scenario reflects more aggressive growth estimates based on
more aggressive scenario for market capture (retention); high
scenario also reflects a ‘pressure test’ of future physical capacity
under a more aggressive growth estimate over the next five years

owipfiLLe 16

204



Market/Demand Assessment

Population served expected to remain flat under the medium scenario and could
grow by 1,462 under the high scenario over the next 5 years

2021 Estimated Population

2012 2013 Low Medium High

Inpatient Population Served

Total PSA Population (X) 13,867 13,890 13,913 13,936 13,642 14,064 14,486
NIH PSA Market Share (=) 67.1% 65.8% 68.9% 68.9% | 67.1% 69.6% 72.0% |
(A) NIH PSA Population Served 9,310 9,139 9,585 9,601| 9,159 9,784 10,430
Total SSA Population (X) 14,503 14,505 14,507 14,510 13,954 14,386 14,818
NIH SSA Market Share (=) 19.0% 18.3% 23.4% 23.4% | 20.0% 22.5% 25.0%
(B) NIH SSA Population Served 2,754 2,659 3,400 3,400 2,791 3,237 3,704
C = Total NIH Service Area Pop. Served (X) 12,064 11,798 12,985 13,001| 11,950 13,021 14,134
In-migration Allowance (=) 10.9% ~ 8.3% 5.8% 83%| 70% | 85% 10.0%
(D) in-migration Total 1,317 985 750 1,085 837 1,107 1,413

(C+D) Total NIH Population Served 13,382 12,782 13,734 14,086]| 12,787 14,128 15,548

Discharges per 1,000 Population

NIH Primary Service Area 66.1 63.4 753 75.3
NIH Secondary Service Area 55.9 55.3 55.0 55.0
NIH Total Service Area 60.9 59.2 65.0 65.0
California 86.9 84.9 82.1
Oregon 86.3 85.8 83.1 NA
Nevada 945 91.0 90.2

205



Inpatient Volumes-Bed Need Calculation

Future use rates were adjusted for each service line/bed type

- Research suggests that inpatient utilization should continue to remain steady or
decline, despite expanding insurance

Estimated 2021
2015 2016 Ann Low Medium High

Inpatient Admissions

Total Population Served 12,782 13,734 14,086 14,086 12,787 14,128 15,548
Acute Care Admissions
Medical/Surgical 547 557 686 741 486 643 824
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 4238 40.6 48.7 52.6 38.0 45.5 | 530
ICU 42 29 46 41 28 39 51
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 3.3 2.1 3.3 2.9 22 2.8 33
Pediatrics 44 62 41 63 37 52 70
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 34 4.5 2.9 45 2.9 378 4.5
Obstetrics 182 234 193 230 166 205 249
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 14.2 17.0 13.7 16.3 13.0 14.5 | 16.0
Total Acute Care Adrhissions 815 882 966 1,075 717 939 1,194
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 63.8 64.2 68.6 76.3 56.1 66.4 76.8
" California Inpatient Utilization Rate 84.9 82.1 : :

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipniLLe 18
206



Inpatient Volumes-Bed Need Calculation (continued)

Historical Observation and Swing admissions were also projected out to 2021
I?’r:ojected Medium and high scenarios reflect expected rise in utilization in
Utilization observation and swing

Estimated 2021

2015 2016Ann  Low  Medium High

Observation 480 336 358 281 256 325 404
Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000\ 376 45 254 2000 200 230 Sﬁﬂr

Inpatient Admissions

X Population Use
Rates

Average Length of

X
et Swing-bed 37 03 12 0 M3 140
Bd Pop. Served Admissions per 1,000 02 20 73 86 70 80 40

Patient Days

/ 365 Days
Per Year (ADC)

/ Target Occupancy
Rates

Bed Need
by Service

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLe 19
207



“ Inpatient days are expected to decline under low and medium scenarios due to
downward pressure driven by health reform and other policy changes

“ High scenario assumes more aggressive market share growth and utilization rates

B Medical/Surgical BICU @Pediatrics ©OObstetrics O Observation @B Swing

2015 2016 Ann 2021 Low 2021 2021 High
Medium




Average daily census expected to reach 11 beds under the medium scenario;
under the high scenario ADC could grow to 13

@ Medical/Surgical BICU BEPediatrics OObstetrics & Observation BSwing

2016 Ann 2021 Low 2021 Medium

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




Inpatient Bed
Need
Summary

WIPFLL

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

Bed Need Summary (adjusted for ideal occupancy)

" Bed need not expected to exceed 25 beds even under the high scenario
— NIH should operate an all-private bed model if rooms are available

22013 22014 =2015 22016 Ann

2021 Low 112021 Medium 2021 High —Available Beds

200 -
5.0
100 - | | —

5.0

Med/Surg/Peds/Swing/Obs ICU (75%) Obsetetrics Total Inpatient
(75 %) (65%)

0.0 -

VWIETHCLP  dada

210



Ancillary Services Calculation

Utilization rates created using cases per 1,000 pop. served or per 1,000 ER visits
- Example: ER (based on per 1,000 pop. served) and Diag. Imaging (based on per 1,000 ER visits)

Estimated 2021
2013 2014 2015 2016 Ann Low Medium High
Population Served 12,782 13,734 14,086 14,086 12,787 14,128 15,548

Emergency Room
Inpatient

Outpatient
Total Visits 8,689 8,097 8,755 8,798 7,986 8,824 9,710
% Inpatient 2.5% 5.5% 9.8% 72% 72%
% Outpatient 97 .5% 94.5% 90.2% 92.8% 92.8%
Total Visits Per 1,000 Pop. Served 680 590 622 625 625

Surgical Procedures
Inpatient Surgeries 313 294 270 276 228 252 277
Outpatient Surgeries 930 1,050 1,043 1,202 1,114 1,230 1,354
Total Surgeries 1,243 1,344 1,313 1,478 1,343 1,482 1,631
% Outpatient 74.8% 781%  79.4% 81.3% - 83.0%
Total Surgeries Per 1,000 Pop. Served 97 98 93 105 105

Diagnostic Radiology
Inpatient Scans 1,021 1,122 1,337 1,226 1,172 1,268 1,424
Outpatient Scans 5,312 5,655 5,781 5,434 5,066 5,623 6,159
Total Scans 6,333 6,677 7,118 6,660 6,237 6,891 7,584

1 % Outpatient 83.9% 83.2% 81.2% 81.6% 81.6%

Total Scans Per 1,000 ER Visits 729 825 813 757 781

iLLP 23

TILFSCi T 7 IR T Rt T T

211



Under all scenarios in 2021, all ancillary service modalities are expected to have
sufficient capacity over the next 10 years

@2021 High  —Existing Count |

4
c
3
0
)
D
£
£
v
i}
5
E
9
0
4

General Rad




PHYSICIAN/PROVIDER ANALYSIS

WIPFLI.



Physician Demand Projections

Wipfli has developed a population-based, age-adjusted model to estimate current
and future physician FTE requirements in a given geographical area for the
selected physician specialties. The Wipfli model is one of the most comprehensive
in the industry, as it has been built and refined over time to include a number of
nationally recognized physician demand models and provides the ability to adjust
demand based on factors such as age and acuity.

Because of variation in demand models, Wipfli utilized a “blended” approach
involving six models.

Blending provides a conservative approach to estimating demand.

WIPFLI1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLe 26
214



Physician Demand Results

Supply numbers indicate a shortage in the primary service area

NIH should continue to pursue recruitment in primary care; additional room for
capacity is consistent with qualitative reports of access to care

Primary + Secondary Service Area

2015 Variance 2020 Variance
SPECIALTY SUPPLY g3\, SUPPLY '| DEMAND
Primary Care | | | |
Obstetrics/Gynecology 3.0 2.1 0.9 3.0 2.2 0.8
Family Practice 6.0 2.7 0.3 6.0 5.9 0.1
Internal Medicine 0.0 5.2 (5.2) 0.0 99 (5.3)
Pediatrics 0.2 2.2 (2.1) 0.2 2.2 (2.1
Sub-Total 9.2 15.2 (6.0) 9.2 15.6 (6.4)
WIPFLI1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE Source: NIH Supply information owipitLe 27
215



Providers: Rural Health Clinic Benchmarking - CA

2014
Mean
Category/ Indicator CA Western  Nation
Number of Facilities 147 383 1917
Productivity Indicators:
Encounters per FTE:
Physcians 5,065 4,155 4,107
Physician Assgants 3,385 3,276 3,041
Nurse Practitioners 2,905 2,884 2,897
Clinical Psychologist/ Social Worker 1,265 1,280 1,254
Total Healthcare Staff Costs per Provider| 159926 121250 87,249
Injection Cost:
Cost per Pneumococcal Injection 236.93 18414 19240
Cogt per Influenza Injection 67.42 62.68 62.80

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE © Wipfli LLP

216



Providers: Rural Health Clinic Benchmarking

NORTIHILRN INYO RURAL | ICALTII CLINIC

150 PIONEER LANE
BISHOP, CA 93514

6/30/2013 6/3C/2014
RHC Mean RHC Mean
Category/indicator NIH CA  Western Nation NiH CA Western  Nation
Number of Facilities 1 139 337 1,881 1 147 343 1oi7
Clinic Cost per Encounter:

Total Direct Costs of Medical Services 1523 & G539 10488 Q522 13845 ¥ 10141 10845 o7 74

Total Allowable Cost per Actual Encounter 247.08 & 4014 10383 TL60 23205 18869 Qg 3 18023

Total Allowable Cost per Adjusted Encounter 24708 M 17713 18713 0809 23205 ® 18403 92.30 17249
Average Medicare Encounters 5362 2,034 2335 2439 5933 1,747 2,399 2,540
Medicare Percent of Visits ll 0.5 1480% 202&6% 2347 22 07H 1304% 2022% 252%%

NIH is able to capture all of the costs per encounter for the RHC

There has been a significant increase in Medicare encounters since 2013 and NIH

sees almost 2.5x the number of Medicare patients than the average California
RHC

WIPFLI.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLe 29
217



Capital Needs

Cash preservation was identified as a top 5 focus for NIH as
it allows for the ability to invest in resources and facilities in
support of key strategic initiatives

The importance of cash was identified as follows:

= Expanding primary care infrastructure

= Physical Plant investment — improved efficiencies
= |T/Informatics

* Weathering potential reimbursement changes

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLe 30
218



FINANCIAL SCENARIOS

WIPFL1.

CPA= and Consultants
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipiLLe 31
219



What’s Important in Determining Credit Strength

Total Margin (%) A= Good
Reflects your profitability from active patient care and related operations,
tax support and other donations

Modified Earnings Before Depreciation & Amortization Margin (%)* A= Good
How much cash you made before accounting for noncash item capital
expenses (depreciation) divided by revenues including net clinic impact

Jays Cash on Hand — All Sources (Number) A= Good
Gauges liquidity by measuring the number of days of cash operating
expenses you could support if your revenue stream were to be reduced or

eliminated

Debt-to-Capitalization V= Good

What you_o_v;e _(Ion_g térm) versus what you own

Debt Service Coverage (Ratio) A= Good

Measures your ability to cover the maximum debt payment of the debt
(interest and principal payment)

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

© Wipfli LLP 32

220



®

]

@

@

Growth in gross revenue of Inpatient 1%; continued 4% growth of
Outpatient and Clinic annually over 5 year period

Bad debt is approximately 2% of gross revenues based on historical
Payor mix stays constant

Additional $1MM of salaries for union contract added into 2017 and
associated cost-based reimbursement

Inflationary growth in other salaries, expenses and benefits

Continued costs for traveling (temporary) positions as recruitment
continues to be a challenge

Annual investments of $650,000 for routine capital replacement
Investments grow at modest 3% annually

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLP 33

221



Total Margin

15% 9%

1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 13
ol e amm

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Debt Service Coverage

143 164 131 131 123 135 135
N BN BN B B .
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

EBIDA Ratio*

9.7% 100% 83% 80% 7.7% 75% 7.2%
N BN BN BN B BN e .
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Days Cashon Hand

1352 1704 1482 1677 1904 2030 2173
== == ®mm W W W B

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

* Under the status quo scenario financial performance will be steady but eroding
operations will have to be supported by other sources (donations, investment

income, etc.)

« Cash will increase because of investment returns

* Financial ratios are “average”

WIPFL1.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

-INTERNAL USE ONLY- PLANNING PURPSOSES

owipniLLe 34

222




Days Cash on Hand

135.2 1204

2015 2016

1824 1952

159.5

139.7

2018

2017 2019 2020

#mm Lease Buyout  —— Status Quo

209.8

2021

Total Margin

2.0%

1.9%

1.5% 0.9%

s

2015 2016 2017 2018

2.0%

2.0% 2.1%

2019 2020 2021

* Assume a worst case scenario that NIH pays off the Celtic lease for $750K (being

negotiated could be less)as a onetime operating expense and purchases $750 in
new equipment in 2017

* One “Day of Cash on Hand” is equal to approximately $185,000
* If you paid $1.5 MM the difference is 139.7 DCOH in 2017 vs. 148.4 DCOH

= Cash will quickly recover; the total margin will be improved by the $59,000 per
month in lease payments or $708,000 savings annually from status quo

WIPFLI.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

-INTERNAL USE ONLY- PLANNING PURPSOSES

223

OWipfliLLP 35



Total Margin

2.8% 3.0%

4.8%

6.4%

7.9%

1.5% . .

il

1

EBIDA Ratio®*

10.3% 11.3% 12.1%

9.7% 10.0% 9.5% 9.2% I I

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Debt Service Coverage Debt to Capitalization
268 o2 67.6%  660% 64.6%  630%  60.3% %
N 5 J70 070 J/0 o
1.43 1.64 1.59 1.66 1.9 I . . "‘.0 56l|9 . 52':6%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2015 2006 2017 2018 2009 2020 2021

« Outpatient revenues as a %age of total revenues are increased from current

66%age to 80% in 2021

* The cost report was utilized to estimate the cost to charge ratios for ancillary
services to account for additional expenses associated with increased OP revenues

* Improvement in financials is reflective of profitability of OP vs. IP business

WIPFLI.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

-INTERNAL USE ONLY- PLANNING PURPSOSES owpniie 36

224



Total Margin

Days Cash on Hand

9% 164.4 1687 175.3
: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
o e o Mo e B MR |
1.2% 1.2% 1.1% 1.0% 0.9% s Blue Cross Reduction  —— Status Quo ‘
EBIDA Ratio* Debt Service Coverage
1.64
97%  100% 143 090 101
l’_l'\uL 5.8% 5.7% 5.5% .
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

~ NIH receives about 28% of their gross revenues from Blue Cross

* If Blue Cross reduced reimbursement by 5% in 2017 then the finanical impact is
about $2MM less in net revenues on average per year

* lllustrates the importance of commercial contracts to the overall financials

WIPFLi.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

-INTERNAL USE ONLY- PLANNING PURPSOSES

owipfiLLe 37

225



Financial Scenarios: Determining Debt Capacity

B ———— ——  ——  as S _Teee e 5 Bl SR B S e e SR i ek
Basis for developing the maximum amount of debt that can be
supported by the hospital's operations at a given point in time.

High-level assumptions at revenue and expense level.

Looks forward over the next five years, but doesn’t assume
significant changes in operations or reimbursement

Provides information to board and management around $ size
of project that is affordable and within reason.

Incorporates Medicare reimbursement for interest and
depreciation

WIPFLL1.

HEAITH CARE PRACTICE owipfiLLP 38
226



Financial Scenarios: Access to Capital

USDA meale Community Facilities Program

Larger projects are public /private debt
Direct Loan

USDA makes loans directly to the District

Current rate is 2.875% fixed for up to 40 years
Money allocated for FY2016 budget is + $2.2B

No fees paid to placement agent are allowed

Features/requirements

Standard documents

No tax-exempt opinion

No covenants

No application fees

Examined financial forecast prepared by outside CPA firm part of the application

WIPFLL.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE © Wipfli LLP
227

39



Debt Service Coverage

Total Margin

1.64
1.43 1.9%
| 121 , 126 126 .
; 1.16 1.5% ‘ ‘ 0% 0%
| | 2015 2006 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2015 2016 | 2017 | 2018 2019 2020 2021 00 oan ik
\\//
Debt to Capitalization EBIDA Ratio®
676% e60% /11%  709% 706%  704%  69.9% 97%  10.0% i 8%  87% 4% g%

* Not modeled here, but potential to refinance up to $19.99 MM in existing debt at
through USDA which could also improve

* $20MM Ratios above would meet USDA standards; EBIDA is slightly better

because of increased reimbursement

WIPFLI.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

-INTERNAL USE ONLY- PLANNING PURPSOSES

owipniLLe 40

228



Providing the Right Services

Understand demand and profitability of :

key services

Enhanced Community Focus
Short Term

Planned collaboration with local vendors
(examples: “Walk with A Doc”)

Acknowledge different areas are more

advanced than others; build on their successes

.
....................................................................................................................................................... ;. - BB N RS I HN S NSRS B R S PR B AR BT TR
:

Invest in profitable growth of o:.:tpatzent Active educational outreach (example: Healthy Plan for future resource needs (e.g., expertise,

services

Work to ensure provider engagement in

growth area/new models of care

-
L R -
.

Divest in those services that don’t meet |

quality/volume/profitability requirements :

Growth in areas to enhance weliness

Coordinate with other providers in
community

Evaluate opportunities to incorporate
alternative medicine

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

.......................

Living Lectures)

cOumue to build positive perceptions of NIH & |ts

leadership
(i.e., Board members open house)

Longer Term
Prornote Beneﬁts of Patient Experience / focus

equipment, software, training, etc.)

e e e g T g e e e e Y e N P S e e g N B R e e e m e A E e m e mn e mrr = re e d e A A e E S e mm . e S m AR TR e tan m—m e —E e eme s pm——————

Work toward data confidence; ensuring
validity and completeness of information

Plan for consumer expectations (i.e., PT
portal; access nfo!ws:ts etc.)

Ensure employees are focused on
customer/community service

229

Address the integratation of data across the

organization in expectation of population
health
Implement processes for data

management/data validation/basic analysis

across NIH

owipniLLe 41



To be completed on site

WIPFLI1.

CPAs and Consulanis
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE owipniLLP 42
230



* Summarize Results from Strategic Retreat

* Build out of tactics in support of key initiatives

* Establish monitoring process for progress on
initiatives

WIPFLI.

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE ewipniLLe 43



[4%4

Critical Access Hospital
Finance 101

Updated June 2017

>\\\/,L- NATIONAL

RURAL HEALTH
—7 /\‘\‘ RESOURCE CENTER

525 South Lake Avenue, Suite 320 | Duluth, Minnesota 55802
(218) 727-9390 | info@ruralcenter.org

Get to know us better: www.ruralcenter.org

LG @

This project Is/was supported by the Health Resources and Services Administration
(HRSA) of the US Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) under grant number
UBlRH24206, Information Services to Rural Hospital Flexibility Program Grantees,
$957,510 (0% financed with nongovernmental sources). This information or content and
conclusions are those of the author and should not be construed as the official poslition or
policy of, nor should any endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the US
Government.



€ec

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PUrpOSeiussiissinmivasivst ivmmes riauoiismssin snmalimoicn o o di snivamn it s naswidsias 3
Government INSUraNCe Programs ......uiiueeieiiusranuseiimmssiieiiemineansionsennsins 3
What is Medicare? usuvainumsimrsnsivissammpaos e anes ineiimese s sk faes sy 3
What is Medicaid? .. ... s imnisssxeiaas s sib s ydsiies 5
What is Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP)? .. ..cccoiviiiiiiiiiiininnnns 6
Government Health Care Reimbursement .........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiins 4
What is the prospective payment system? ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieans 7
What is the Medicare swing bed program? .........coiviiiiiiiiiiiiiniii. 8
What is CAH cost-based reimbursement? ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 9
What is CAH Medicare ambulance reimbursement? ............cciiiiiiiiiiiininns 9
What are allowable costs for 101 percent cost-based reimbursement from
MEICAra? ..corrs anmaransessnefves (Fssss bampiysasssatasspasis siasces ssinss Ceeniviassiarivvasinss 9
What is the difference between PPS and cost-based reimbursement? ..... 10
What is Optional (Method II) Billing? ....coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicic e 10
What is a Medicare Administrative Contractor (MAC)? ......coovvvviniiiinnnnn 12
If CAHs are reimbursed at 101 percent, why might they not make a profit?
..................................................................................................... 12
What is @ hospital cost report? ..o 13
If a CAH has an RHC attached, how do they bill for those services and file
their eXpenses? sesssssaisaicm sy it aaies ivas mvivaces Coe e mrvare ik oo 14
(O Y o I 5 = 3R 15
What are the most important CAH financial indicators? ...............c.oieee. 15
Days in Net Accounts Receivable .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 16
Days in Gross Accounts Receivable .........ccoovvviiiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 17
Days Cash on Hand siasicssssisinaiisiisissiisiaissssssaisiaponsbmenyvicanon sy uaesvis 17
TORD IV ik rwinw i ommssoesinrom o o A K056 54 100 00 6 0 AN KD RSO3 18
Operating Margin ... euiesisicasiissssi v nisadeieuiss snioe s aassa s nins sitasis ss i s 19
Debt Service Coverage Ratio ... ...ocuiivieiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisisiincieaniirenns 19
Salaries to Net Patient Revenue....cc.cceiiiiiciiiaiiismiciiisiiisisenseissssiaiosses 20

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 1



124

Payor MiX PerCeNtage .. .coviiiiiiiiiiiii et rs e 21

Inpatient Payor MiX siiusissaonssiavessvvosssasusssisaanme s siis i sannes faaiensslaans 21
Outpatient Payor MiX ..o e eaee e e setann e seansrnaas 21
Average Age of Plant......ccooiiiiiiiii e 21
Long Term Debt to Capitalization .........cccoovviviiiiiiiiiiniiciie 22
Is there a model for predicting CAH financial distress?............ccvvivviinnens 22
Where can I find information about the financial performance of CAHs in
MY STAtE? commrnrionss e SRR SRS AT AR T RIS TS E AT R RT3 53 T T T 25
Improving CAH Financial Performance .........coviiiiiiiviiiiiiiiiiii. 26
What interventions can CAHs use to improve financial performance?...... 26
Why is a review of the cost report important? .......cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie.. 26
What is a charge master and how often should it be reviewed? ............. 27
What are strategic, financial and operational assessments?................... 27
What is revenue cycle management?......c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 27
Why are physician practice management assessments useful?............... 28
What is Lean and how can it impact CAH finances? ..........cooooviiiiiiiinnnns 28
Why is education on finances important for CAH department managers and
Board members? iiisavissimsisisssiniisssss st saiasssviana seve rreRane R AR s R e 28
Why is collaboration important for improving finances in CAHs?,............ 29
APPENiX .. sk (e aaie s s e e e w s nen R e e S 4 v R wa AR S a e s 30
Example Critical Access Hospital — Balance Sheet ........c.ccovvvviiiiiiiiiinnnns 30
Example Critical Access Hospital — Statement of Operations.................. 31
Example Critical Access Hospital - Statement of Cash Flows.................. 32

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 2



gee

PURPOSE

This manual was developed for use by state Medicare Rural Hospital
Flexibility (Flex) Program personnel as well as staff and boards of critical
access hospitals (CAHs). The content is designed to be as non-technical as
possible and to provide answers to frequently asked questions regarding
CAH finance and financial performance.

GOVERNMENT INSURANCE PROGRAMS

What is Medicare?

The Medicare program, an amendment to Social Security legislation known
as Title XVIII, provides medical coverage to all Americans 65 years of age
and older. The bill was signed into law by President Lyndon B. Johnson in
1965 and took effect in July, 1966. The enactment of the Medicare program
was significant because it was the beginning of the federal government’s role
as a major financer of health care. In 2010, there were 46.6 million
enrollees in the Medicare program, or approximately 15 percent of the total
US population. Approximately 21 percent of Medicare beneficiaries live in
rural counties, meaning rural hospitals tend to have a higher percentage of
Medicare recipients than their urban counterparts.

Medicare is health insurance for people 65 or older, people under 65 with
certain disabilities and people of any age with End-Stage Renal Disease.
Medicare is funded by both Social Security payroll taxes and insurance
premiums, with coverage categories divided into “Parts.” Medicare Part A is
the hospital insurance portion of the program and includes acute hospital
inpatient care and inpatient skilled nursing care. Medicare Part B is the
medical insurance component and includes coverage for doctor visits and
outpatient care. Medicare Part C, known as Medicare Advantage, covers both
Part A and Part B options. And, Medicare Part D is the prescription drug
coverage component of the program, which went into effect on January 1,
2006.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 3



9eeC

Medicare Part A (Hospital Insurance)

Helps cover inpatient care in hospitals, skilled nursing facilities,
hospice and home health care

Most people do not have to pay a premium for Medicare Part A
because they, or a spouse, paid Medicare taxes while working in the
United States. If they do not automatically get premium-free Part A,
they may still be able to enroll and pay a premium

Medicare Part B (Medical Insurance)

Helps cover doctors’ and other health care providers’ services,
outpatient care, durable medical equipment and home health care
Helps cover some preventive services

Most people pay up to the standard monthly Medicare Part B premium
Some Medicare recipients buy coverage that fills gaps in Medicare
coverage, such as Medicare Supplemental Insurance (Medigap)

Medicare Part C (also known as Medicare Advantage)

Offers health plan options run by Medicare-approved private insurance
companies. Medicare Advantage Plans are a way to get the benefits
and services covered under Part A and Part B

Most Medicare Advantage Plans cover Medicare prescription drug
coverage (Part D)

Some Medicare Advantage Plans may include additional benefits for an
additional cost

Medicare Part D (Medicare Prescription Drug Coverage)

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER

Helps cover the cost of prescription drugs

May help lower your prescription drug costs and help protect against
higher costs

Run by Medicare-approved private insurance companies

Costs and benefits vary by plan



yA%4

What is Medicaid?

Medicaid is health coverage available to people and families who have
limited income and resources. It is funded both by the federal government
and state governments, but is managed at the state level. The program was
enacted in 1965 as Title XIX of the Social Security Act. The funding of
Medicaid is a major component of state spending, on average comprising 25
percent of the total state budget. Nationally, 60 percent of Medicaid
spending goes toward acute care services and over a third goes toward long-
term care services.

Medicaid recipients who are disabled or elderly may also receive coverage
for services such as nursing home care or home and community-based
services. Depending on the state’s rules, individuals may also be asked to
pay a small part of the cost (copayment) for some medical services. If an
individual qualifies for both Medicare and Medicaid, most of their health care
costs will be covered, including prescription drug coverage.

Frequently, nursing home residents run out of financial resources during
their stay, at which point they become eligible for Medicaid coverage. States
attempt to control the costs by ensuring that those receiving Medicaid
benefits are truly eligible and at times adopt payment methodologies of the
Medicare program. Because Medicaid programs are managed at the state
level, there is state-to-state variation in eligibility requirements, coverage
and reimbursement.

Medicaid reimbursement, in general, is lower than both Medicare and private
insurance reimbursement. Thus, the proportion of Medicaid business for any
health care organization is particularly relevant to its financial performance.
Moreover, because Medicaid programs place stress on state budgets, state
regulators often carry out cost containment measures to reduce Medicaid
spending. State cost containment activities include the reduction of
payments to providers, reduction in covered services and reduced pharmacy
benefits. Over half of CAHs receive cost based reimbursement from their
state Medicaid program. For information on state-specific Medicaid
reimbursement rates for CAHs, please visit
https://www.ruralcenter.org/tasc/resources/states%E2%80%99-use-cost-

based-reimbursement-medicaid-services-critical-access-hospitals-cahs

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 5



8€cC

What is Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP)?

The Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) provides access to low cost
health insurance coverage for children in families who earn too much to
qualify for Medicaid but not enough to be able to buy private health
insurance. These families are eligible for free or low-cost health insurance
that pays for doctor and dental visits as well as prescription drugs,
hospitalizations and more.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 6



6€C

GOVERNMENT HEALTH CARE REIMBURSEMENT

What is the prospective payment system?

In 1983, the payment methodology for inpatient acute hospital care
(Medicare Part A) changed from cost-based reimbursement to a prospective
payment system (PPS). In this new payment system, all the various clinical
diagnoses are classified into groups, called “Diagnosis Related Groups” or
DRGs. With the establishment of DRG categories, of which there are more
than 500, hospitals are paid a fixed amount to treat each patient based on
age, sex, International Classification of Diseases (ICD) diagnoses,
procedures, discharge status and the presence of comorbidities or
complications. Upon admission, each patient is assigned a DRG based on his
or her primary diagnosis, for example, “pneumonia”. The hospital is then
paid a specific dollar amount for that pneumonia patient, based on the DRG
code assigned. Some patients need more anticipated services to treat their
specific ailment(s), while other cases require fewer services. Regardless, the
hospital is still paid the same amount for that DRG code. Naturally, some
diagnoses, and their corresponding DRGs, have very high levels of
complexity and thus are more costly to treat. For example, a heart
transplant is vastly more complicated and requires more resources than a
normal newborn birth. Consequently, DRG reimbursement for heart
transplants is higher than for the normal newborn DRG.

Base DRG rates can be adjusted for several reasons, including a hospital’s
location. Just as the cost of living in the United States varies by location, the
cost of providing health care varies by location as well. A heart transplant
performed in San Francisco, California, would likely cost more than one
performed in Omaha, Nebraska, due to wage differences, supply costs
differences, etc. The DRG system adjusts for this by varying DRG payments
according to market forces across the country.

Inherent in the DRG reimbursement system is the incentive for hospitals to
treat and discharge patients as quickly as possible. Because this
reimbursement program pays hospitals on a “per patient” basis, there is a
financial incentive for hospitals to treat as many patients as possible, as
efficiently as possible. By discharging patients in a timely manner, it frees
more bed space which can be used to treat more incoming patients.
Additionally, the reduced number of days spent in the hospital for a given
patient reduces the required resources and associated costs of caring for

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 7



(0) 74

that patient. In this way, for any DRG, a shorter length of stay is more
profitable for the hospital than a longer length of stay. Because of this direct
impact on profitability, the “Average Length of Stay” metric is used by
hospitals to assess the efficiency of their organization.

What is the Medicare Swing Bed program?

As discussed earlier, hospitals are reimbursed on a DRG basis for inpatient
acute care. Often, patients who require acute inpatient services require
inpatient rehabilitative aftercare or skilled nursing care. DRG acute payment
rates are set based upon the resources required to treat the acute condition
only, and not those expended on the subsequent rehabilitation. Therefore,
the Medicare program created a separate reimbursement system to
compensate providers for the extended care service they provide. The
amount of extended care required by patients for any condition is highly
variable because of differences in age, overall health and other factors that
determine the speed of recovery. Due to this length of stay variation,
hospitals receive reimbursement based on the overall assessed condition of
the patient, the amount of which is determined by the assigned Resource
Utilization Group (RUG).

The RUG system classifies patients into one of 66 RUG levels, based on the
expected amount of provider resources to be expended. RUG payments are
larger for most severe conditions that require a great deal of attention and
service. In cases in which extended care is required, PPS hospitals receive
two payments for a patient: DRG payment for the treatment of the acute
condition and the RUG payment for care offered to patients after the acute
treatment.

The Medicare swing bed program allows hospitals with 100 beds or less to
provide both acute care treatment and skilled nursing treatment to patients
without having to physically move the patient to another bed. The hospital
receives both forms of reimbursement described above, simply by
discharging patients from acute care beds and admitting them to skilled
nursing beds when the patient meets the coverage guidelines for skilled
care. The skilled nursing bed is sometimes referred to as a “swing” bed,
because the hospital swings a bed from an acute care designation to a
skilled nursing designation. Patients must be in the medically necessary
acute care bed for at least 72 hours before they can be discharged to a
swing bed.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER



(374

What is CAH cost-based reimbursement?

During the 1980s and 1990s, almost 400 hospitals closed across the US
because of financial losses from the PPS system. In 1997, the Balanced
Budget Act created the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility (Flex) Program
and CAH provider type.

Medicare pays for the same services from CAHs as for other acute care
hospitals (e.g., inpatient stays, outpatient visits, laboratory tests and post-
acute skilled nursing days). However, CAH payments are based on each
CAH’s costs and the share of those costs that are allocated to Medicare
patients.

CAHs receive cost based reimbursement for inpatient and outpatient services
provided to Medicare patients (and Medicaid patients depending on policy of
the state in which they are located). Cost based reimbursement provides
significant financial advantage to CAHs by allowing them to get paid at 101
percent of costs on all of their hospital Medicare business. The cost of
treating Medicare patients is estimated using cost accounting data from
Medicare cost reports.

What is CAH Medicare ambulance reimbursement?

Under Medicare ambulance reimbursement, if a CAH or an entity that is
owned and operated by the CAH is the only provider or supplier of
ambulance service located within a 35-mile drive of that CAH, the CAH or
the CAH-owned and operated entity is paid 101 percent of the reasonable
costs of the CAH or entity in furnishing ambulance services. Additionally, if
there is no other provider or supplier of ambulance services within a 35-mile
drive of the CAH but there is a CAH-owned and operated entity furnishing
ambulance services that is more than a 35-mile drive from the CAH, that
CAH-owned and operated entity can be paid 101 percent of reasonable costs
for its ambulance services as long as it is the closest provider or supplier of
ambulance services to the CAH.

What are allowable costs for 101 percent cost-based
reimbursement from Medicare?

Medicare pays CAHs for most inpatient, outpatient and swing bed services to
Medicare beneficiaries on the basis of reasonable cost. Reasonable cost is
the cost that was actually incurred in order to provide a medical service, to
the extent the cost is necessary in order to efficiently deliver that service.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 9



e

Expenses must be prudent and reasonable, as well as related to patient
care. For a condensed list of allowable vs. non-allowable expenses, please

refer to Table A below.

Table A. Allowable Costs in CAH

' Type of Expense Allowable or Not Allowable |
Public education Allowable

| Employee recruitment Allowable

| Taxes based on income | Not Allowable
Sales tax Allowable
Property taxes Allowable
Entertainment Not Allowable
Civic organizations Allowable
Legal fees Depends on activity
Collection agency fees Allowable
Political/lobbying costs Not Allowable

What is the difference between PPS and cost-based
reimbursement?

PPS is a system where payment levels are set ahead of time or
“prospectively” before health care services are delivered, as opposed to after
the diagnosis and treatment. Because rates are set prior to services, each
service has a pre-determined rate associated with it. These rates are based
on estimates of the resources that must be expended for any particular
service, e.g. physician time and effort, supplies, etc. In this way, this
reimbursement system attempts to appropriately match payments to the
acuity of patient ilinesses. For example, hospitals are paid a fixed amount for
performing a hip replacement and a different fixed amount for treating a
patient with heart failure. This type of reimbursement methodology controls
for costs because providers are paid a fixed rate per service, regardless of
the costs they incur.

What is Optional (Method II) Billing?

A CAH may elect the Optional (Method II) Payment Method under which it
bills the fiscal intermediary (FI) or Medicare Administrative Contractor (MAC)
for both facility services and professional services to its outpatients on a
single claim. Eligible medical professionals affiliated with CAHs can elect the
Optional (Method II) Payment Method whereby the CAH bills on behalf of

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 10



(374

these professionals for their outpatient services. These services include when
a CAH physician reassigns outpatient billing services to the CAH, for example
in pathology, radiology, emergency room, outpatient surgery and outpatient
clinics. This payment does not include services provided at a rural health
clinic (RHC) and only applies to the CAH outpatient services.

It is important to note that Optional (Method II) Payment Method billing is
setting-specific, not provider-specific. If a provider works in an RHC, they
cannot use Optional (Method II) Payment Method for those clinic services.
However, if that same provider also provides outpatient services in the CAH,
that provider could use Optional (Method II) Payment Method for those
outpatient CAH services under the Optional (Method II) Payment Method
based on the sum of:

¢ For facility services: 101 percent of reasonable costs, after applicable
deductions, regardless of whether the physician or practitioner has
reassigned his or her billing rights to the CAH; and

¢ For physician professional services: 115 percent of the allowable
amount, after applicable deductions, under the Medicare Physician Fee
Schedule. Payment for non-physician practitioner services is 115
percent of the amount that otherwise would be paid for the
practitioner’s professional services under the Medicare Physician Fee
Schedule

Physicians reassign their billing to the hospital and the hospital must do the
billing. All providers of the CAH do not need to use Optional (Method II)
Payment Method, but can individually elect to do so. Overall, it is beneficial
for the CAH to elect the Optional (Method II) Payment Method, as it results
in higher reimbursement.

In the past, if a CAH chose to be paid under the Optional (Method II)
Payment Method, it was required to make that election on an annual basis.
However, in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2011 Inpatient Prospective Payment System
(IPPS) Final Rule, CMS changed the regulations for the optional method
election. Effective for cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1,
2010:

o If a CAH elects the optional method in its most recent cost reporting
period beginning before October 1, 2010, that election remains in
place until the CAH submits a termination request to its FI/MAC. CAHs
will no longer be required to make an annual election

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 11



a4

o If a CAH chooses to make a change or terminate its optional method
election, the CAH will need to notify its FI/MAC in writing at least 30
days prior to the start of the next cost reporting period

What is a Medicare Administrative Contractor (MAC)?

Section 911 of the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (MMA) established Medicare Contracting Reform
(MCR). This statute required the Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) to replace Medicare’s 48 carriers and fiscal intermediaries who
process Medicare Part A and B Fee for Service claims with the new Medicare
Administrative Contractor (MAC) authority. The primary reasons for
instituting this change were to increase the contractor’s efficiency in the
receipt, processing and payment of Fee-For-Service claims. For more
information on the MACs, please visit
https://www.cms.qgov/Medicare/Medicare-Contracting/Medicare-
Administrative-Contractors/MedicareAdministrativeContractors.html

If CAHs are reimbursed at 101 percent, why might they not make
a profit?

Some CAH expenses, such as recruiting and bad debts, are not included in
the cost-based reimbursement formula. Therefore, CAHs generally earn less
than 101 percent of cost for care of their Medicare patients. Consequently,
profitability of CAHs is dependent on private insurance business, for both
inpatient and, increasingly, outpatient services. Private insurance payors do
not reimburse CAHs on a cost basis, but rather follow a PPS system or
reimburse on a percent of charges. In fact, the profitability of commercial
business is enhanced because of the cost based reimbursement received for
Medicare/Medicaid business.

Suppose a CAH administrator decides to purchase and install a CT scanner
for $1 million and assume 40 percent of patient care at the CAH in the CT
department is Medicare business. The CAH will receive $400,000 in cost
reimbursement over the useful life of the scanner ($1 million * 40 percent =
$400,000) from Medicare for their portion of this scanner used to serve
patients. This reduces the hospital’s remaining costs for the CT scanner to
$600,000. The use of the scanner from other patients would need to be
available in order to offset the remaining costs based on overall demand.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 12



Sve

It is often the challenge of rural health care providers to operate profitably
with a patient population that is comprised of more Medicare and Medicaid
business than urban providers. When performing financial assessments of
CAHs, it is essential to evaluate both the proportion of private insurance
business as well as the DRG rates negotiated with the private payor.

What is a hospital cost report?

The Medicare Cost Report is a financial document filed annually by all
Medicare providers participating in the program, including: hospitals, skilled
nursing facilities, home health agencies, RHCs, federally qualified health
centers (FQHC), hospice, renal and home office. The Medicare Cost Report is
submitted annually to CMS for settlement of costs relating to health care
services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries. The Medicare Cost Report
records: each institution’s total costs and charges associated with providing
services to all patients; the portion of those costs and charges allocated to
Medicare patients; and the Medicare payments received.

The Medicare Cost Report must be filed with the FI/MAC within five months
of fiscal year end of the CAH to achieve settlement of costs for health care
services. Final settlement will equal the total reimbursable costs incurred by
or on behalf of the CAH for furnishing covered care to the CAH's Medicare
enrollees (less applicable deductible and coinsurance). Throughout the
course of the year, the hospital receives interim payments from Medicare for
its services. These payments are based on historical costs as claims are
processed. At the end of the hospital’s fiscal year, if the final settlement
determination is greater than payments already made to the CAH through
interim settlement, an underpayment will be declared and CMS will make a
lump-sum payment to the CAH. Conversely, if the final settlement
determination is less than the total payment made, the CAH has been
overpaid and CMS must recover the overpayment. This is like the filling of
individual taxes each year, where it is likely a person will either owe tax
money to or be paid a refund from the state or federal government based on
estimated tax payments throughout the previous year. The above payment
methodology illustrates the importance of up-to-date charges, billing and
coding methodologies for the hospital to ensure accuracy and maximize
allowable payment.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 13



)74

If a CAH has an RHC attached, how do they bill for those services
and file their expenses?

The primary benefit of RHC status is enhanced reimbursement from
Medicare and Medicaid. Medicare reimburses RHCs based on allowable and
reasonable costs. There are two types of RHCs: independent RHCs and
provider based RHCs. Provider based RHCs work as a department of another
provider, such as a CAH, providing health care services to the same
population. Independent RHCs, on the other hand, are not affiliated with
other providers. There can be significant reimbursement implications
associated with each type of designation; for example, independent RHCs
are subject to a payment cap, whereas provider based RHCs are not subject
to a payment cap if the parent entity is a hospital with fewer than 50
available acute care beds (not licensed beds). Provider based RHCs are
reported on the main provider’s cost report as a department of that
provider. As a result, overhead is allocated to the RHC through the step-
down overhead allocation process in the same manner that impacts all of the
provider’s patient care service departments.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 14



YA 74

CAH FINANCES
What are the most important CAH financial indicators?

Financial indicators closely aligned with financial strength can be used to
determine the financial status of a CAH. Financial indicators, often ratios,
combine line items from the balance sheet, statement of operations and/or
statement of cash flows in a meaningful way to help interpret strengths or
weaknesses in operations or financing activities. Examining these ratios over
time can help determine an organization’s future trajectory or momentum.

In June 2012, a group of CAH financial experts met in Minneapolis,
Minnesota at a CAH Financial Leadership Summit. Of the many identified
financial ratios proven useful for assessing organizations’ financial
conditions, the Summit participants identified the 10 most important
indicators for evaluating CAH financial performance. Table B displays each of
these 10 indicators with the 2015 CAH US medians as listed in the CAH
Financial Indicators Report: Summary of 2015 Medians by State updated by
the Flex Monitoring Team in March 2017. Each indicator also notes if
favorable values are trending above or below the median.

Table B. CAH Financial Indicator Medians, 2015

2015US  Favorable
CAH Financial Indicator Median Trending
Days in Accounts Receivable 52.46 Down
Days Cash on Hand 76.26 Up
Total Margin 3.09% Up
Operating Margin 1.79% Up
Debt Service Coverage 2.89 Up
Salaries to Net Patient Revenue 44.68% Down
Medicare Inpatient Payer Mix* 73.24% Down
Average Age of Plant (years) 10.18 Down
Long Term Debt to Capitalization 27.72% Down

* Summit participants agreed Overall Payor Mix was a more comprehensive indicator of
financial performance than Medicare Inpatient Payor Mix alone.

Source: Flex Monitoring Team CAH Financial Indicators Reports Primer and Calculator
Resources, Template for Presentation of CAHFIR Data, March 2017.

A definition, formula and benchmarks for each of the 10 most important
indicators of CAH financial performance is provided below. Each indicator
also includes an example data table, which is meant to be used as a

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 15



8v¢

reference when calculating these ratios for a specific CAH. Sample data
corresponds with the financial statements in the Appendix, including a
balance sheet, statement of operations and statement of cash flows. Many of
the line items on the financial statements have a letter designation under
the column titled "Row”. These letters are referenced in the descriptions of
the indicator calculations.

Days in Net Accounts Receivable

Days in Net Accounts Receivable measures the number of days it takes an
organization to collect its payments.

How values are calculated:

e Net Accounts Receivable: [Row B] — [Row C]

e Net Patient Revenue: [Row Q]

« Days in Net Accounts Receivable: ([Row B]-[Row C]) + ([Row Q] +
365)

Example data:

2014 2015 2016
Net Accounts Receivable 771,000 802,000 778,000
Net Patient Revenue 5,195,000 5,330,000 5,388,000 |
Days in Net Accounts Receivable 54.17 54.92 52.70

High values reflect a long collection period and indicate problems in the
organization’s business office with regards to billing or collecting payments.
The ability to collect payments for services is increasingly difficult, but
extremely important. Improvement in days in accounts receivable can mean
hundreds of thousands of dollars in improvement in cash on hand. Common
problems include out of date charge masters, poor registration processes
and bad communication. “"Days in Accounts Receivable” is a good measure of
how the billing process is working and efficiency, but it does not indicate the
overall financial strength of the hospital. Favorable values are below the
median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 52.46 days. Reductions to accounts
receivable will improve cash on hand.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 16



6v¢

Days in Gross Accounts Receivable

Days in Gross Accounts Receivable tests the net days in accounts receivable
with a goal of being the same amount of time as net days in accounts
receivable.

How values are calculated:

e Gross Accounts Receivable: [Row B]
e Gross Revenue: [Row P]
e Days in Gross Accounts Receivable: [Row B] + ([Row P] + 365)

Example data:

2014 2015 2016
Gross Accounts Receivable 1,001,000 1,012,000 993,000
Gross Revenue _ 6,395,000 6,460,000 6,503,000 |
Days in Gross Accounts Receivable 57.13 57.18 55.74

Days in Gross Accounts Receivable is important to track and compare to net
accounts receivable to assess the revenue cycle performance. Gross and net
days are close in value in highly functioning business offices. Gross accounts
receivable does not include any accounting adjustments which makes it a
good measure of overall performance when compared to net days in
accounts receivable. For example, if gross days are higher than net days,
the organization’s allowances (e.g. write offs) may require further analysis.
Favorable values are below the median and the 2015 CAH US Median =
50.37 days.

Days Cash on Hand

Days Cash on Hand measures the number of days an organization could
operate if no additional cash was collected or received. This reflects the
organization’s “safety net” relative to the size of the hospital’s expenses.

How values are calculated:

e Cash and Temporary Investments: [Row A]

e Total Expenses: [Row X]

o Depreciation and Amortization: [Row U]

e Provision for Doubtful Accounts/Bad Debt: [Row W]

o Days Cash on Hand: [Row A] + (([Row X] - [Row U] - [Row W]) +
365)

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 17



0S¢

Note: Provision for Doubtful Accounts/Bad Debt is only included in this
equation if classified as an operating expense on the Income Statement.

Example data:

| 2014 2015 2016
Cash and Temporary Investments 1,120,000 1,280,000 1,831,000
Total Expenses 5,688,000 5,747,000 5,817,000

Depreciation and Amortization 229,000 218,000 211,000
Bad Debt 102,000 107,000 126,000 |
| Days Cash on Hand 76.31 86.17 121.96 |

Lending organizations view this ratio as critical in the assessment of a
project’s feasibility, as it represents the amount of dollars readily available
to meet short term obligations and make debt payments should an
organization experience short term financial distress. Favorable values are
above the median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 76.26 days.

Total Margin

Total Margin measures the control of expenses relative to revenues.
How values are calculated:

¢« Change in Net Assets: [Row Z]
o Total Revenue: [Row S]
o Total Margin: [Row Z] + [Row S]

Example data:

2014 2015 2016
Change in Net Assets 64,000 87,000 159,000
Total Revenue 5,752,000 5,834,000 5,976,000
Total Margin - 1.11% 1.49% 2.66%

Total Margin indicates the organization’s overall profit. It is important to note
that organizations need at least a small measure of profit to reinvest in their
facilities, staff and infrastructure. Consistently negative total margins may
eventually lead to hospital closure. While Total Margin is a good indicator of
financial strength, it is important to look at operating margin as well. An
organization might have a high Total Margin ratio if, for example, it is the
recipient of non-operating sources of revenue, such as a county subsidy to
provide quality health care to indigent residents. Margin driven by
supplemental funding sources may be at risk with more pressure on local
and county governmental budgets, for example. Favorable values are above
the median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 3.09 percent.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 18



(3°14

Operating Margin

Operating Margin measures the control of operating expenses relative to
operating revenues related to patient care. Operating expenses are all
expenses incurred from the hospital in delivering services. Examples are
salaries and benefits, purchased services, depreciation and amortization,
supplies, interest expense, professional fees and bad debt expense.

How values are calculated:

¢ Net Operating Income: [Row R] - [Row X]
¢ Total Operating Income: [Row R]
e Operating Margin: ([Row R] - [Row X]) + [Row R]

Example data:

- B 2014 2015 2016
I Net Operating Income -7,000 10,000 63,000

Total Operating Income 5,681,000 5,757,000 5,880,000
|_ Operating Margin B -0.12% 0.17% 1.07%

This measure reflects the overall performance on the CAH’s core business:
providing patient care. It is important to note that it takes into account the
deductions from revenue, such as contractual allowances, bad debt and
charity care. Favorable values are above the median and the 2015 CAH US
Median = 1.79 percent.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio measures the ability to pay obligations related
to long-term debt.

How values are calculated:

¢ Change in Net Assets: [Row Z]

e Interest: [Row V]

e Depreciation and Amortization: [Row U]

e Repayment of Debt (Principal Payments): [Row AA]

e Interest Paid on Long Term Debt (Interest Payments): [Row BB]

« Debt Service Coverage Ratio: ([Row Z] + [Row V] + [Row U])=+ ([Row
AA] + [Row BB])

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 19




cse

Example data:

- 2014 2015 2016 |
Change in Net Assets 64,000 87,000 159,000
Interest 28,000 17,000 13,000
Depreciation and Amortization 229,000 218,000 211,000
Principal Payments 169,000 145,000 90,000
Interest Payments - 28,000 17,000 10,000
_Debt Service Coverage Ratio B 1.63 B 1.99 3.83

The measure reflects the availability of capital after debt obligations have
been satisfied. The debt service coverage represents a key ratio in
determining the ability of an organization to take on additional debt, whether
for information technology (IT), equipment or a building project. The higher
the value of the debt service coverage ratio, the greater the “cushion” to
repay outstanding debt or take on additional obligations. Favorable values
are above the median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 2.89.

Salaries to Net Patient Revenue

Salaries to Net Patient Revenue measures labor costs relative to the
generation of operating revenue from patient care.

How values are calculated:

e Salaries: [Row T]
o Net Patient Revenue: [Row Q]
e Salaries to Net Patient Revenue: [Row T] + [Row Q]

Example data:

- 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 2,895,000 2,908,000 2,958,000
Net Patient Revenue 5,195,000 5,330,000 5,388,000
Salaries to Net Patient Revenue ~ 55.73% 54.56% 54.90% |

Salaries are a major part of the expense structure and require close
management. Reviewing the costs can help a CAH assess its staffing
efficiency. Overstaffing can reduce overall hospital profitability. Closely
monitoring salaries to net patient revenue and improving efficiencies can
improve financial performance. Favorable values are below the median and
the 2015 CAH US Median = 44.68 percent.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 20



€5¢

Payer Mix Percentage

Payer Mix Percentage is the proportion of patients represented by each
payer type. As displayed below, inpatient and outpatient payer mix are
calculated differently.

Inpatient Payer Mix measures the percentage of total inpatient days that
are provided to patients of each payer type. The 2015 CAH US Median for
Medicare inpatient payer mix was 73.24 percent. Favorable values are
below the median.

Inpatient Days for Payer

Total Inpatient Days — Nursery Bed Days — Nursing Facility Swing Days

Outpatient Payer Mix measures the percentage of total outpatient charges
that are for patients of each payer type.

Outpatient Charges for Payer

Total Outpatient Charges

Payer mix percentages are particularly important in estimating provider
revenue, because the final reimbursement amount for any patient ultimately
depends on the payment source. For CAHs, reimbursement for Medicare is
101 percent of costs. Real costs for Medicare patients are already below 100
percent since some cost, such as physician recruiting, are not reimbursed by
Medicare (See Table A - “Allowable Costs in CAH"). The only alternative
source of profits is providing services to privately insured patients. It is often
the challenge of rural health care providers to operate profitably with a
patient population that is comprised of more Medicare and Medicaid business
than urban providers.

Average Age of Plant

Average Age of Plant measures the average age in years of the buildings and
equipment of an organization.

How values are calculated:

e Accumulated Depreciation: [Row E]
o Depreciation and Amortization: [Row U]
« Salaries to Net Patient Revenue: [Row E] <+ [Row U]

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 21



4

Example data:

- 2014 2015 2016 |
Accumulated Depreciation 1,874,000 1,755,000 1,896,000
Depreciation Expense 229,000 218,000 211,000 |
Average Age of Plant - 8.18 8.05 8.99

CAHs often fail to improve or rebuild their facilities. The status of newer
facilities has been shown to have a positive effect on financial performance
and on the recruitment and retention of physicians and staff. Average age of
plant is a good indicator of distress with older hospitals having greater
problems. Lower, decreasing values indicate a newer facility or more
frequent reinvestments in buildings or equipment over time. Favorable
values are below the median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 10.18 years.

Long Term Debt to Capitalization

Long Term Debt to Capitalization measures the percentage of net assets (or
equity) that is debt.

How values are calculated:

e Long Term Debt, Net of Current Portion: [Row K]
e Net Assets - Accumulated Earnings (Deficit): [Row M]
« Long Term Debt to Capitalization: [Row K] + ([Row K] + [Row M])

Example data:

- - - - B 2014 2015 2016
Long Term Debt 186,000 183,000 178,000
Net Assets 1,835,000 2,173,000 2,694,000 |
Long Term Debt to Capitalization B 9.20% - 7.77% 6.20%

This ratio measures the amount of capital that is financed with debt, which is
important to lenders for long term viability. Higher values signify a riskier
situation and indicate that a hospital may have a harder time sustaining debt
payments in the future and/or getting financing from lenders. Favorable
values are below the median and the 2015 CAH US Median = 27.72
percent.

Is there a model for predicting CAH financial distress?

The Financial Distress Index was developed by researchers from the North
Carolina Rural Health Research and Policy Analysis Center at University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill. A well-functioning prediction model, such as

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 22



efer4

this, can be used as an early warning system to identify hospitals at
increased risk of facing financial distress. State Flex Programs, CAH CEOs
and boards reviewing the model could identify areas of particular distress
and develop strategies, or interventions, to improve financial performance.
To view more information about the prediction of financial distress among
rural hospitals, please visit
https://www.ruralhealthresearch.org/publications/998.

Today’s characteristics (recent financial performance and measures of a
market in which a hospital operates) are used to assign CAHs to one of four
“risk levels” that predict whether a CAH will be in financial distress two years
later. Many financial performance and market characteristics were
considered for inclusion. The final model was selected due to its ability to
predict performance in a straightforward manner. Variables used in the
model are noted below in Tables C, D, E and F.

The model separates hospitals into risk of financial distress categories.
Financial distress events include:

e Unprofitability
e Equity decline
« Insolvency

¢ Closure

Accurate assignment of hospitals to categories that reflect low, mid-low,
mid-high and high risk of financial distress can provide an effective early
warning system to CAHs, allowing CAH Administrators and state Medicare
Flex Program Coordinators to target efforts to those at higher risk.

Table C. Descriptive Measures of Variables Included in Prediction of
Financial Distress among Rural Hospitals, Financial Performance

Variable Description

Profitability Total margin; two-year change in total margin N
| Reinvestment Retained earnings as a percént of total assets o

Benchmark B Percent of benchmarks met over two years

performance j

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 23



95¢

Table D. Descriptive Measures of Variables Included in Prediction of
Financial Distress among Rural Hospitals, Government

Reimbursement
Variable Description
_ Medicare CAH status
Medicaid

I
1
|

Medicaid to Medicare fee index

Table E. Descriptive Measures of Variables Included in Prediction of
Financial Distress among Rural Hospitals, Hospital Characteristics

‘Variable
Ownership

Description
GovernmeEt/not-for—profit, for—Eofit

" Size

Net patient revenue (millions)

Table F. Descriptive Measures of Variables Included in Prediction of
Financial Distress among Rural Hospitals, Market Characteristics

Variable

Description

Competition

Log of miles to nearest hospital more than 100 beds;
market share (<25%)

Economic Condition

Log of poverty rate in the market area '

Market Size

Log of population in the market area

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 24



15¢

Where can I find information about the financial performance of
CAHs in my state?

The Flex Monitoring Team has created a login protected online tool called the
Critical Access Hospital Measurement and Performance Assessment System”
(CAHMPAS). CAHMPAS is available to CAH executives, state Flex Programs
and federal staff to explore the financial, quality and community-benefit
performance of CAHs. CAHMPAS provides graphs and data, which allows
comparison of CAH performance for various measures across user-defined
groups: by location, net patient revenue or other factors. CAHMPAS includes
a variety of metrics and allows CAHs to compare their financial performance
to peer facilities. For more information visit
http://www.flexmonitoring.org/cahmpas/

The Flex Monitoring Team has also released primers, a presentation
template and a calculator spreadsheet to support communication of the CAH
financial data. The primer documents explain the measure calculations and
offer insights regarding the roles each measure plays in assessing a
hospital’s financial health. The presentation temple is an editable PowerPoint
file for CAHs to use in presenting their own CAH financial data to others. The
calculator spreadsheet is an Excel file that enables CAHs to verify the Flex
Monitoring Team'’s calculations and calculate more recent financial indicators
using data on hand. For more information visit
http://www.flexmonitoring.org/publications/cahfir-resources/

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 25



8G¢

IMPROVING CAH FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

What interventions can CAHs use to improve their financial
performance?

The 2012 CAH Financial Leadership Summit identified several important
financial interventions that historically have been associated with improved
financial performance. They include:

o Cost report review and strategy

« Strategic, financial and operational assessments

¢ Revenue cycle management

o Physician practice management assessments

e Lean process improvement training

¢ Financial education for CAH department managers

e Financial education for CAH boards

+ Pooling Small Rural Hospital Improvement Program (SHIP) dollars
¢ Developing chief financial officer (CFO) networks

e Benchmarking financial indicators

A subsequent CAH Financial Leadership Summit was held in 2016 to build
upon the knowledge gained from the 2012 Summit. The resulting report,
2016 Financial Leadership Summit Report: Strategies for Rural Hospitals
Transitioning to Value-based Purchasing and Population Health, is designed
to help rural hospitals leaders meet existing challenges by describing market
forces impacting rural hospitals and providing key operational strategies that
providers may deploy to overcome these challenges and be successful in
alternative payment models. The report highlights success stories and
lessons learned that were shared by the panelists during the summit. To
view the Summit findings and recommendations, please visit
https://www.ruralcenter.org/srht/resources/2016-financial-leadership-
summit-report-strategies-rural-hospitals-transitioning.

Why is a review of the cost report important?

A review of the cost report can be completed by an outside party to look for
common errors in preparation. Because it drives Medicare payments, errors
on the cost report directly affect the bottom line, sometimes as much as
hundreds of thousands of dollars. Errors include incorrect allocations of
expenses and inaccurate statistics, for example. Most cost reports are
“outsourced,” but understanding direct and indirect costs and how cost

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 26



65¢

reports work is a critical input to making sound decisions for chief executive
officers (CEOs), CFOs and board members.

What is a charge master and how often should it be reviewed?

The Charge Description Master (CDM) is primarily a list of services and
procedures, room accommodations, supplies, drugs/biologics and/or
radiopharmaceuticals that may be billed to a patient registered as an
inpatient or outpatient on a claim. It is integral to the CAH’s revenue cycle
and provides many of the necessary data elements for compliant claims
submission for reimbursement. It is recommended to have an outside source
perform a comprehensive charge master and revenue cycle review annually.
Ongoing education is also crucial to having business office staff remain
current with information necessary to appropriately bill for services
rendered. Code changes and description changes must be communicated to
the departments who will be generating the charges and may need to be
altered or added to the system. Similarly, charge tickets may need to be
updated. Billing and coding workshops are available in many locations
throughout the country.

What are strategic, financial and operational assessments?

Strategic, financial and operational assessments provide a broad-based
analysis of hospital performance and help identify specific opportunities for
CAH improvement. These studies provide an objective review of the areas
where many CAHs need help, including:

» Matching services to community needs
e Staffing to benchmarks

+ Clinic management

e Medical staff planning

e Organizational culture

Assessments are recommended periodically to determine areas of focus for
follow-up improvement work.

What is revenue cycle management?

Revenue cycle management is a means to improve hospital revenue and
reimbursement by streamlining workflow, processes and education
throughout all financial components of the hospital. A holistic revenue cycle

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 27



09¢

management includes a multi-disciplinary approach focusing on culture
change with comprehensive, dramatic and permanent results. Specific areas
of focus may include:

e Comprehensive charge master and revenue cycle review

» Business office and patient financial services review

o Development of training protocols for revenue capture

o Implementation of an effective revenue control process

« Pricing analysis

¢ Recovery audit contractor (RAC) preparedness and revenue cycle
process improvement

e Revenue process capture audits

These assessments should result in identifying opportunities for
improvement and specific, actionable recommendations.

Why are physician practice management assessments useful?

As more and more physicians alignh and become employees of CAHSs, it is
critically important to contract with physicians and operate clinics according
to best practices. A practice management assessment looks at physician and
mid-level provider productivity, scheduling, staffing, billing and collection
practices. These assessments should result in specific recommendations and
action plans that have the potential to bring in additional revenue and
improve clinic efficiency.

What is Lean and how can it impact CAH finances?

Lean focuses on increasing efficiency and eliminating waste. This creates
greater value for customers and uses fewer resources. In the health care
setting, Lean processes can result in substantial cost savings, fewer delays
and increased patient and staff satisfaction. Lean education, Lean networks
and shared Lean expertise have all been successfully used by individual
CAHs and networks of rural hospitals.

Why is education on finances important for CAH department
managers and Board members?

Financial education for CAH department managers can enhance budgeting,
planning and financial skills in department heads, whose background may be
clinical rather than business or administrative. CAH Board members similarly

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 28



19¢

lack basic CAH financial knowledge. Financial education for CAH Boards
provides a fundamental grounding on cost-based reimbursement and CAH
financial strategies. Hospital financial management is complex and rural
hospital boards need a basic understanding of CAH finances to provide
needed oversight. This type of education has been done successfully with
rural hospitals using both on-site workshops and web-based presentations,
which are often stored and accessible online.

Why is collaboration important for improving finances in CAHs?

Two minds are better than one. Collaboration allows CAH staff to share
ideas, lessons learned, best practices and funds with one another. Many
state Flex Programs have provided support to develop CFO networks. CFO
networks have proven to be a popular method of education, peer learning
and peer support. In more than a dozen states, rural hospital CFOs meet
periodically, either in person or virtually, to discuss common issues, gain
new skills and share experiences and techniques.

Benchmarking financial outcomes among groups of hospitals is a common
means of measuring performance and comparing results. By collaboratively
comparing results, CAHs identify areas of strengths and weaknesses and
measure progress toward strategic goals. This collective benchmarking also
provides an opportunity for the hospitals to share common issues, best
practices and lessons learned. The University of North Carolina-Chapel Hill's
distribution of annually updated financial indicator data through CAHMPAS is
a useful source for benchmarking, but other information sources are also
available.

Aside from the value of bringing collective minds together, using various
funding sources to achieve an end goal can be strategic. Pooling SHIP dollars
among a group of CAHs has provided an effective means of providing
financial or Lean education to hospital staff and boards. Economies of scale,
shared expertise, access to speakers and resources, peer learning and
support have all been reported as benefits of pooling resources.

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER 29



29¢

APPENDIX

Example Critical Access Hospital - Balance Sheet

[Row]

>

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Temporary Investments
Patient Accounts Receivable, Gross
Less: Provision for Doubtful Accounts
Other Accounts Receivable
Supplies
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment:
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities
Estimated Amounts Due to Third Party
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Accumulated Earnings (Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER

2014 2015 2016
1,120,000 1,280,000 1,831,000
1,001,000 1,012,000 993,000
-230,000  -210,000  -215,000
- 24,000 24,000
162,000 169,000 169,000
_ 68,000 57,000 57,000
2,121,000 2,332,000 2,859,000
2,663,000 2,612,000 2,712,000
 -1,874,000 -1,755,000 -1,896,000
789,000 857,000 816,000
2,910,000 3,189,000 3,675,000
144,000 89,000 49,000
115,000 148,000 158,000
260,000 226,000 226,000
370,000 370,000 370,000
889,000 833,000 803,000
186,000 183,000 178,000
1,075,000 1,016,000 981,000
1,835,000 2,173,000 2,694,000

2,910,000 3,189,000 3,675,000

30



€9¢

Example Critical Access Hospital - Statement of Operations

[Row]
REVENUE

N
O
P

—

X =T < C

Total Inpatient Revenue
Total Outpatient Revenue
Total Gross Revenue
Less: Contractual Allowances
Net Patient Revenue
Other Operating Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Gain (Loss) on PP&E Disposal
Contributions/Grants
Investment Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Salaries
Benefits, Supplies & Other
Depreciation & Amortization

Interest
Provision for Doubtful Accounts/Bad
Debt

Total Expenses

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

Restricted Contributions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER

2014 2015 2016
2,402,000 2,445,000 2,471,000
3,993,000 4,015,000 4,032,000

6,395,000 6,460,000 6,503,000
1,200,000 -1,130,000 -1,115,000
5,195,000 5,330,000 5,388,000
486,000 427,000 492,000
5,681,000 5,757,000 5,880,000

-2,000 -3,000 .
65,000 69,000 77,000
8,000 11,000 19,000
5,752,000 5,834,000 5,976,000
2,895,000 2,908,000 2,958,000
2,434,000 2,497,000 2,509,000
229,000 218,000 211,000
28,000 17,000 13,000
102,000 107,000 126,000
5,688,000 5,747,000 5,817,000
64,000 87,000 159,000
64,000 87,000 159,000

31



¥9¢

Example Critical Access Hospital - Statement of Cash Flows

[Row]
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net cash
provided by operating activities:
Purchase of Other Assets

Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

AA Repayment of Debt
Purchase of PP&E
BB Interest Paid on Long Term Debt

Gifts to Purchase Capital Assets
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and Dividends on Investments

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

NATIONAL RURAL HEALTH RESOURCE CENTER

2014 2015 2016

522,000 547,000 542,000
246,000 459,000 -210,000

-3,000 -6,000 :

34,000 . -
799,000 1,000,000 332,000
-169,000 -145,000  -90,000
-63,000 -189,000 -100,000
28,000  -17,000  -10,000

46,000 5 :
-214,000 -351,000 -200,000
8,000 11,000 19,000
8,000 11,000 19,000
593,000 660,000 151,000
527,000 1,120,000 1,178,000
1,120,000 1,780,000 1,931,000

32



S9¢

WIPFLIi.

CPAs and Consultants

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

A Deep Dive:
Your CAH Medicare

sst Report From A-

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement

If a non-health care business charges
$100 for a good or service it provides,
how much does it get paid?

7 e
) .-

Gas Station Plumber

Grocery Store
RIS
J
Clothing Store
Restaurant Garbage Service e

WIPFL

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 1



99¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement

AB00775988 =

PR R A '00 ¢
'

WIPFLa

ML S

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement
w

If a health care provider charges
$100 for a service it provides,
how much does it get paid?

WIPFLa

47 W AL BT

© Wipfli LLP Page 2



192

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement

;

(S A AT QLY

’
/
.i
\
)
¥
’
N
j
$
’
{

\
~

WIPFL1

Uy AR 82 30TE < -r 4
i

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement
IJ |

Examples of Possible Payments
for Health Care Services
To determine the estimated
Private pay $ 100 amount a health care provider
will be paid, three important

Private pay . . .
pieces of information must be
Medicare 60 known:
Medicaid 55
1. Payor type
Insurance #1 90 )
2. Patient type
Insurance #2 85 . .
3. Specific type of service
Insurance #3 80
Etc ?
WIPFLI

MM CLEE PR LTl vt 5

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 3



89¢

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement

SemphMoﬁrodsofRounburmontCmnnﬂmeulnthoHutharolndmhy

R [ Musotone | [ eemsasie [ e | Cioes |

+ Mndiarn + Madicere * Medicwrs * Medicore * Madicore

“Alwmabie” sast ~ Residerd ~ Dwgnosi:relaled ~ Rotes per - Feu schedules
Dlogemmis reloted grovgs Utiization Graups groups (mpatimnt) ephode of - “Aliowence® cost for
';f".“" (RUGS) - “Allowatls" cosl canm o surel health chnics
e ~ Fee schacules ~ Fes schedules length of say ¢ Madicnld
Ambilabery protadie (theropy) Madicald Mudicexd = Fom cheduins
codos (APCa) — “Allowable” cosl — Costbued rate pe — Rebes por = TAlawance’ coat of par
Medicstd for veccines dacherge (inpatien) eprode of dinre rales for rund
- ComiSesed rem « Medicald — For schedulea care or haalth dinics
— Actess pryments ~ Blended cost and Commercial insurance length of dey * Commercil awurence
— Fee schadules ocuity-based rtes — Contrecied peycrs Commarciol ~ Contraciad payors
- Enhancad smbulslory — Fee schedules * Nagotisied Wnaence = Negotislad
procedure greups (therapy) discounts ~ Standerd discounts
* Coramarchl insuance + Commarcial " Dales per visit cherges © Rates par vist
- Conltrected payon » Fee schachdes . ® Fee xhedules
« Hagotiviad dacourls neurence Negodiniad
= Raves por vit = Standerd chorges = HNonconlrected payers rades = Noncontrctad peyors
. [ ~ Negotisted roles = Sianderd chorges « Seifpay palents ® Standord chatges
— Noncontracted payon * Sel¥pay patients Salf-pay pelients - Siandard * Seif pay potients
5 Sianderd charges ~ Standend charges — Siandard charges charges ~ Swndard charges
* Sell.pay patients — Discounts a5 mequired = Discounts ea required
= Standund charges under *Polient under “Paliunt
= Dacounla o3 required Prolection Act® or sisle Prowaction Act” or
unduy “Petiani Protection wpecic lngiviation ather state specific
Act” o siwbe tpecife - Chudly core legalation
tepisietion — Bad debls ~ Oty o
- uc""m"“’" — Bad debls

Medicare Reimbursement

f

There are two primary types of hospital reimbursement
methodologies for Medicare

Prospective Payment System (PPS)

Cost-Based System

WIPFL1L.

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 4



69¢

Prospective Payment System - Hospital Services

S o o |

Medicare

> Inpatient and Outpatient

- Paid at prospectively determined rates based on a patient
classification system

~ Inpatient => MS DRG
~ Qutpatient => APCs
~ Payment calculation: Base rate x weight

— Example: Chest pain, DRG 143, relative weight .5391
(per Federal Register)
$5,000 x .5391 = $2,695

WIPFL1

Cost-Based System - Hospital Services
—
Medicare

> Inpatient, Outpatient, and Swing Bed

- Generally, paid for services based on (retrospective) cost
reimbursement methods.

- Although certain types of laboratory services, ambulance
services, and professional services may be carved out and
reimbursed using a prospectively determined fee
schedule.

WIPFL1

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 5



0/¢

Medicare Payment Overview
e — e
Type of Service PPS Hospltal CAH
Inpatient DRG 101% of Allowable Cost
Outpatient Procedures APC 101% of Allowable Cost
(surgery, radiology, etc.)
Lab Fee Schedule 101% of Allowable Cost
(except for reference lab)
Therapies Fee Schedule 1019 of Allowable Cost
Swing Bed RUG 101% of Allowable Cost
Ambulance Service Fee Schedule Fee Schedule
{unless only one within
35 miles, then 101% of cost)
WIPFLA
il b ol W=y 1]

Medicare Payment Overview

e . —— = = ——— ==y

Type of Service PPS Hospital CAH
O/P Clinlcs (facliity component) APC 1019% of Allowsble Cast
O/P Chnics (professionsl component) Fee Schedule Fae Schedule Phus 15%
(reduced for site of service) for CAHs Electing
Method I Bifling
(raducad for site of service)
CRNA Services Fee Schedule Foe Schedule
(unless elect cost if less than 800 (unless elect cast ¥ less than 800
proceduresfyear) proceduresfyear and 1 FTE/year)

Other Professional Services

Fee Schedule — Except for

Fee Schedule Plus 15%

professional services In a nural health for CAHs Electing
clinic, then generally based on Method # Billing
allowable cost (except for professional seraces in a rural
health clinic setting then generally based on
aflowable cost)
Outhier Payments Cost — generally insignificant for N/A
rural providers

WIPFLA

iy Mt

wipfli.com/healthcare

© WipfliLLP Page 6



(Y24

Medicare Payment Overview
Type of Service PPS Hospital CAH
Disproportionate Share Hospital Add-on to DRG payments N/A
(DSH)
Graduate Medical Education Add-on © DRG payment If approved, included in 101% of
(GMEY aliowable cost
Indirect Medical Education
(MB)
Exempt Units Rehab Unit — PPS Limited to 10 exempt unit beds
Psych Units — PPS {Same reimbursement as PPS)
WIPFLA.
AW LD MLy - - 'zu

Medicare Payment Overview
Type of Service PPS Hospital CAH
Skilled Nursing Facility RUGs RUGs
Home Health Agency HHRGs HHRGs
Hospice Prospective rate Prospective rate
Dialysis Prospective rate Prospective rate,
except inpatient dialysis is 101%
of allowable cost
WIPFL
nte AR T . 13

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 7



cle

Acronyms

PPS
CAH
DRG
APC
MDS
RUGs

HHRG

WIPFL1

WM ) M LTTES

Prospective Payment System

Critical Access Hospital

Diagnostic Related Group

Ambulatory Payment Classification

Minimum Data Set

Resource Utilization Groups

Home Health Resource Group

Madimre

= "Alralils” smet

~ Duagno:n relsted grovps
(DRG3)

~ Fow icheduies

- Add on payment:

~ Ambulalory praceduse
coder (APCs}

= Medicaid
— Cost bated ralaz

|

Pracedure groups
= Commareml inaurence
= Contrecied payors
®  Negolisted ducounly
"  Rates per vial
= Fee schadules
= Henzonlretied payon
® Siandard charges
* Tntl-pey patiants
= Standerd chargm
= Dbcounls 83 required
under “Putient Protection
Al o siske ypecihc
legolation
- Charity core
~ Bed debls

WIPFL1

WAL D ST

Sample Methods of Relmbur

Introduction to Health Care Reimbursement

t Cumrently in Use in the Health Care Industry

R | urswgHome | [ St || seneienisss

[ Clinics

* Madicare * Medcore
~ Rezident — Dingnosis-reloted
Utilzation Groupa groups (opatent)
(RUGS) ~ *Allowable’ cost
~ Fee schedules — Fes schadules
(thermpy)} » Madicald
- "Alowable’ cost — Costbeted rate per
for vaceinas dischange (inpaiisrt)
* Medicaid — Fee schedules
— Bilended cost and * Commaercw insurance
acuity-basad rotes = Contracted payors
= Fae schedules ®  Negotinted
(therspy) discounts
¢ Commaercial ¥ Rates per visil
insurance ® Feuschedules
- Standerd charges — Nonconlracted payors
~ Negotioted rales 8 Siandard charges
* Self-pay petients v Selfpay potients
= Slarerd charges — Siandord charges
= Bicounis o3 required
under "Potient
Prolection Act’ or sinte
specific legislalion
— Charity core
—~ Bod debts

* Medicore
— Roktes per
eplode of
care of
length of siay
* Medicoxd
— Roles per

¢ Madicore
— Fee schedules
= “Hiowance” cocl for
ruwal health chnics
* Madicaid
— Fee schedules
- "Allowance’ cosl or per
diem rotes for rural
'w‘(‘i’kﬁ
* Commerciol insurance
— Conimcted payors
*  Negotialed
discounts
® QRales per vist
® Feeschedules
- Noncontrected payors
& Stenderd charges
* Selfpay patients
— Stardard charges
— [hecounts o requined
under "Potient
Protection Act” or
other slole specific
legnistion
= Chaity cere
~ Bed debis

ue 1B

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 8



€lc

Medicare Cost-Based Reimbursement

Medicare reimbursement =
101% of Medicare allowable cost

Effective April 1, 2013, there is also a governmental budget
sequestration adjustment of a 2% reduction in reimbursement
after determining deductible and coinsurance amounts
applicable to all Medicare claims. (Currently, the sequestration
adjustment is projected to continue through 2023.)

Currently, there is legislative discussion by CMS to reduce
reimbursement from the current 101% to 100% of Medicare
allowable cost before sequestration.

WIPFL1

upiTY Cat) STl <waLr 18
—

Medicare Cost-Based Reimbursement Overview

What is “allowable” cost?
Necessary and proper in providing services

Must be related to patient care (includes personnel costs,
administrative costs, laundry, housekeeping, dietary, etc.)

Adequate cost data and cost finding support

Must be “reasonable”; i.e., must follow the ‘prudent buyer”
principle

WIPFL1

Lk saacay conans 17

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 9



12x4

Medicare Cost-Based Reimbursement Overview

 The prudent and cost-conscious buyer not only refuses to pay more
than the going (market) price for an item or service, he/she also
seeks to economize by minimizing cost.

What is the prudent buyer principle?

This is especially so when the buyer is an institution or organization
that makes bulk purchases and can, therefore, often gain discounts
because of the size of its purchases.

 Another way to minimize cost is to obtain free replacements or
reduced charges under warranties for medical devices.

Any alert and cost-conscious buyer seeks such advantages, and it is
expected that Medicare providers of services will also seek them.

WIPFLIi

At £l et 18

Medicare Cost-Based Reimbursement Overview

N S = |

Computation of "allowable” costs:

Allowable cost = Total expense minus costs not supported by
Medicare minus cost offsets.

Examples of costs not supported by Medicare: some forms of
advertising expense, bad debt expense, lobbying dues, etc.

Examples of cost offsets: some forms of investment income, other
operating revenue such as vending machine income, medical
records fees, etc.

WIPFL1

Wit s AT 18

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 10



S/l¢

Allowable Cost Summary Based on Year End, 20XX,
Medicare Cost Report

ﬂ

Sample Hospital FYE XXIXX/20XX Cost Report Information:

Total @expenses $ 46,000,000
Add: Relsledperly addon s 2,500,000
Liss Madicare norallcwable sxpenten

Provider-based physiclans {2,400,000)

Investment income {10,000)

Cofeterin (165,000)

Un t ing Nonallowable Interest (500,000)

Elactronic heallh records syslem depreciation (175,000)

Otlher miscellanecus revenue (250,000)

Sublatsl M
Allowable sxpenses 45,000,000

Less - Noncosl reimbursed expenses:

Nursing home ond assisted living {6,000,000)
Morketing (800,000)
Specialty clink (1,700,000!
Sublotal (6,000,000)
Tolal cot roimbursed expenses $ n,woiooo
WIPFL1
i £ ad ) MESTTE » ok 20

High Level View Computation of Medicare Cost-Based
Reimbursement

m

Inpatient and Swing Bed

Nursing services costs component

- Total allowable department costs fimes percent Medicare utilization

plus
Ancillary costs component (computed for each department)

~ Total allowable department costs times percent Medicare utilization

Outpatient
Ancillary costs component (computed for each department)

- Total allowable department costs times percent Medicare utilization

WIPFL1

Fi

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 11



9/¢

High Level Understanding of Dollar Impact on
Reimbursement
-, . - e
Patient-Related Expense Example:
Adults and Pediatrics Medicare Utilization 75%
Increase Adults and Pediatrics Allowable Expense by $ 100,000
Dollor Impact on Madicare Reimbursement $ 75‘000
Expenses to be paid from sources other than Medicare $ 25,000
Overhead Expense Exampl
Increase Laundry Expense by $ 100,000
Percent of Total Cost That is Cost Reimbursed 72%
Estimated Medicare Allowable Expense % 72,000
Average Medicare Utilization L4%
Dollar impact on Medicare Reimbursement § 31,680
Expenses to be paid from sources other than Medicare 3 68,320
WIPFL1
casicur s swnil 22

Common Myths About CAH Status

CAH Myths:
All costs will get pald...

All Medicare allowable costs for Medicare enrollees will
get pald...

We're a critical access hospital; therefore, we should
always "break even”...

WIPFL1

re e 4EE mAsTC) cwmanr 23

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 12



Yyk4

Common Fact About CAH Status |
#

CAH Fact:
You can't make a profit from Medicare.

WIPFLA

wipfli.com/healthcare

—_—

Where do we go from here?
-
=

WIPFL}.

W O ST
ra=

© Wipfli LLP Page 13



8/¢

Cost Report Layout
M
Worksheet number Is at top right-hand corner of sach worksheet.
Worksheet
Series
S Settlement, Organization, and Patient Statistical Information
A Expense Assignment
B Allocation of Overhead Costs
C Patient Care Revenue and Costto-Charge Ratio
D Determination of Medicare's Costs
E Medicare Settlement and Payment Information
G Financial Statements
H Home Health
[ Renal Dialysis
K Hospice
M Rural Health Clinic
WIPFL1

15

Basic CAH Medicare Cost Report Mechanics
“
Worksheet | Worksheet | Worksheet | Worksheet | Worksheet | Worksheet
S A B c D E
Informational Overhead Medicare/ | Medicare/
Questions Expenses expense Charges Medicaid Medicaid

allocation Charges | Settlement
Séif?é_sg?' AAB A8 | oo DPartV, | EPartB,
S7. S8 A-8-1, A-8-2, B-1 ) C D-3, D-1 E-1,E-2
S-9, 51 0 A-8-3 Parts |, I, | E-3 PartV
Hospital Overhead + Dept. X Dept.
information, - cl(;Z:::e d allocated to | revenues = | Medicare tg?VIrZ?j?;fe
patient days, added. an d' revenue- Cost-to- charges = Payments =
and other subtra’ct ed producing charge Medicare Seyt;?e =
statistics departments ratios cost
WIPFL1
LW A AT we 27

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 14



6.¢

Worksheet S

WIPFL1

AR Cal) Mt TEE v rhe 28

Worksheet S

“

Cost report settlement
worksheet

Must be signed by officer/
administrator

Title XVIII Part A and Part B are
added together to determine
total settiement receivable or

payable

HIT (Health Information
Technology) column is
informational and will be
settled at a different time than
the Medicare cost report

WIPFILA

e g 5 reanis 2

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 15



08¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet S-2

WIPFLA

Canr =23 svenir 30

Worksheet S-2, Part |

b e — e e e e

Series of informational questions that provide the cost report "reader”
with a wealth of knowledge about the hospital.

- Provider type and payment system
— Debt and lease agreements
- Provider-based physician services

Statistical basis

Contract therapy
Reimbursable bad debts

- Provider summary report data

Important to ensure all responses are accurate because they can directly

impact the settlement (i.e,, data may not flow to a worksheet if the

response on worksheet $-2 is not accurate, which may directly impact the
WI If’ilgla_.; cost report settlement).

WP Cane Ly enpaur 3

© Wipfli LLP Page 16



18¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

ﬁ
Key lines for CAHs include:

26 Geographic location
9097 Title V and Title XIX

Critical access hospital

Purchased PT, OT, ST & RT

¥ DT}
L. L5
TS o s | Thies o0 8 tam, 13 08 sligitale fre oot (o lhons samamt ] 107,00
T WA LT fmivke pregrees] v g wr w0 lie b in coluen 1, (see
inatrmttioms) IF yos, 1he OE ki w1l Szt De ws worksheet N, tact 1, coluss
L a9l the greures sould be cost relshersed. tf yos cosplets morhshes) 0-2, Part 1T,
wiwm . IF this Paetdity fs 4 cAd, dm TARs la am apgeoved medical sducation pregran
0 A"y ancluded 30¥ and/or IRY wnit? Enter “v" for yes or "W for m i
wlumed 2 Imanviaa ¥ fuish
1 PRI a1 bl tal alifuing for ae sucoption to the WA fee schedule? Sew 47 v (R
yu dsesine QL3 1100c). Wmter T¥T for sgn g4 “u* oy o
I il Soeeh | Seaiivateny |
'i‘ﬂ“‘* LB W (0]
TEFF COIT ANIG Msamlfal sealifles ot & CAH HF & (6T prevides, bty ] v W - (S
e -y wlses provided by oweside veplier ! Kater “v
s gah o "M few o b eanh therapy
WIPFLA
o A% £ aR] LTSS A N
e

Key lines for CAHs include:

ns Malpmctice policy type & amounts

140 Related-party activity

144 Provider-based physicians

146 Change in allocation method

167-170 HIT mesaningful use

L ALt
167 0offy thls provider & wesninglul uasl uhder Seation \1Mein)/ Inter = fow wen pr W far o ¥ {1
163 00lTY this pewvider 1s a <A (Vine 105 {3 “v™) end i3 & mesningful user (Tine IKT {3 ¥}, snter the 450.00¢| 100
Fagionab v Cimt Imiurred for 1hi HTY assets {sew imtructiom)
Len pofE abls previder I o weaninglu! wer (1ine 167 is “¥°) and {3 mov o CAN (line 105 is "N™), enter the .ol
rana il fon Packos, (e (nsfrud)ioni) I
[ hesiesieg L frdins
"Q"r"“'ﬁrzig—!—
(] r.ﬁtnm TR Tt 1 and 7 The 1M Graimiing date awl endimp date T ihe repariing T ev/ I 130018 [
bl respactively (em/id/yvyy)

WIPFL1

s AR MR emaur 35
—===

© Wipfli LLP Page 17



28¢

Elections - All-Inclusive/Method Il Billing
S ﬁ

Worksheet S-2 Part 1 Line 106

If this facility qualifies as a CAH, has it elected the all-
inclusive method of payment for outpatient services?

WIPFL1.

wipfli.com/healthcare

Elections - All-Inclusive/Method Il Billing

f—— e T e e Sy
What is Method 1l Billing?

- Combined billing on an 851 claim form that includes both
facility and outpatient professional service charges

~ Facility payment continues to be 101% costs (subject to
sequestration)

~ Payment for professional services at 115% of Medicare
fee schedule after Part B deductible and coinsurance
(Note: CPT/HCPCS code required)

WIPFILA

i Ladl) MACT

© Wipfli LLP Page 18



€8¢

Elections - All-inclusive/Method Il Billing

e e —— e e ——— |

How to make the all-inclusive/Method Il billing election:

- One-time election must be made in writing to Medicare contractor
- Election stays in effect until hospital withdraws
~ Must be filed 30 days before beginning of cost report year

— Applies to physician services in outpatient space, where physician
reassigns billing to CAH, in a provider-based department, other than a
provider-based rural health clinic, for example:

~ Pathology
~ Emergency room

~  Qutpatient clinics

~ Radiology
~  Qutpatient surgery
WIPFL1
W ) M) . b

Elections - All-inclusive/Method |l Billing
—
Does not include rural health clinic services or inpatient

professional services (does include outpatient observation
services)

- Cannot elect mid-year for new physicians that are outside of
the departments for which you did elect Methoed ||

© Can elect all-inclusive/Method i billing for CRNA services
(usually not advisable if already receiving CRNA pass through)

WIPFL1

SEL AR MATICY cweare 37

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 19



¥8¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Elections - Additional Bonuses Available

The following bonuses are available for physician billing:
— Additional payment for HPSA Bonus (10%)

— Additional incentive payment for primary care practitioners
(10%) (per ACA)

- Additional incentive payment for rural surgeons (10%) (per

ACA)

— Telemedicine add-on for eligible site of origination of visit
for qualifying telemedicine services (approximately $25 per
service/visit)

WIPFLA

Election - CRNA Pass Through
ﬂ

Worksheet S-2, Line 108

Is this a rural hospital qualifying for an exception to the CRNA
fee schedule?

WIPFLi

© Wipfli LLP Page 20



G8¢

Election - CRNA Pass Through

What is the CRNA Pass Through
(i.e., exception to fee schedule)?

— Cost-based reimbursement for anesthesiology services
provided by a CRNA, if you are a low volume provider

WIPFL1

Elections - CRNA Pass Through

Criteria for qualification:
Perform less than 800 surgeries per calendar year requiring anesthesia
CRNA has less than 2,080 hours of worked time

Qualifying criteria determined by annualizing procedures and hours
through September 30

Must be in rural county

Hospital must have been in existence in calendar year 1987 and
procedures in that year did not exceed 250 procedures performed by the
CRNA

Annual calendar year election

Must make a written request between October 1 and November 30 of
each calendar year

WIPFLA.

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 21



98¢

Worksheet S5-3

WIPFL1{

yubd METOL et 42

Worksheet S-3, Part |
#

Reporting of statistical data:
Number of beds

CAH hours for /P care, excluding swing bed, nursing home, and
observation

— Critical data along with discharges used to calculate average length of
stay for 96-hour rule compliance
~ |mportant to track hours and not merely use days times 24 hours

Patient days

~ Report by payor type — Medicare and Medicaid
= Report total days

FTEs

Discharges
WICFLL

el ks sasie 43

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 22



Worksheet 5-3, Part |

e A S

Observation days (be sure to track where observation is
occurring in the hospital and maintain logs)

Discharges (no impact on settlement)

WIPFL1

18¢

Worksheet S-3, Part I: Patient Days and Discharges

Assuming cost remains constant

I Patient Days = lRoutine Cost per Day

Routine Cost Reimbursement
Patient Days = per Day

I lProfit per Day on
Non-Medicare Days (until reach
“break-even’ payor mix)

l Patient Days =

WIPFL1.

LW L AT

wipfli.com/healthcare © WipfliLLP Page 23



88¢

Cost Reporting Strategies

regulations.

—_————e———— e e e ]

Accurate patient days are critical for a CAH for proper cost-based reimbursement
and also for cost report optimization due to several cost reporting rules and

Formula for routine costs and cost reimbursement calculation for inpatient

Routine Cosl Per X 101% (CAH
Day Reimbursemenl rate)

WIPFL1

bl SisTey

X

services:
1P Routine Direct Adjustments and Overhead
Costs +/- Redassificatiors + Allocated
Aduits & Peds Obzervation Days
Days + Swing Bed-SNF Days + Equivalent

Medicare Inpatient Routine Reimbursement Calculated as:

98% (Sequestralion
afler facloring
deductible and
coinsurance

amounts)

Routine
Cost Per
Day

Medicare CAH
inpatient Rouline:
Reimbursement

Per Doy

Cost Reporting Strategies

Purposes?

calculations in the cost report.

number of “acute inpatient days.”

WIPFL1

A (Al MATTE]

Question: How Difficult is It to Count Patient Days for Cost Reporting

i h iy

Answer: It can be difficult due to many variables and to ensure proper cost

Guiding Principle: Medicare reimbursement for inpatient and swing bed
services is based on allowable costs in the inpatient nursing unit divided by

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 24



68¢

Cost Reporting Strategies

Worksheet 5-3 Part |: Patient Days and Discharges

To ensure accuracy of patient days:

Eliminate labor and delivery days
Count SNF and NF swing bed days separately

= Per cost report instructions, SNF swing bed days are defined as traditional swing bed
days plus HMO swing bed days

Hospice days - If the CAH has a contractual relationship for hospice services:
- Do not include contracted hospice days on Worksheet 5-3
— Do not include contracted hospice charges on Worksheet C

- Offset contracted hospice revenue via Worksheet A-8 adjustment to the cost center
which includes the expenses for providing the contract hospice services

Other days — Ensure that adults & pediatrics days do not include days such as respite
care or "bed and breakfast” days where acute care services are not being provided
(Consider reporting these as NF days)

WL

Cost Reporting Strategies
“
To ensure accuracy of patient days (Continued):

How do we gather information for observation days?

- Ensure observation days are based on hours of service divided by 24

- Always round up to the next whole observation day when calculating
observation day equivalents

WIPFLL.

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 25



06¢

Patient Days Exercise
E
Worksheet S-3, Partl, Column 8
Total All Patients
Line 1 Hospital Adults & Peds 1,320
Line 5 Hospital Adults & Peds - Swing Bed SNF 200
Line 28 Observation Bed Days 80
Total Days 1,600
WIPFLI

Patient Days Exercise
e ————ve———we—————nu—ue—|
Med Surg Days 850 Werksheet S-3, Part |, Column 8
Obstetric Days 365 Total Al Patients
Labor & Delivery Days as
Line 1 Hospital Adults & Peds -
Hospice Days 50
Line5 Hospital Adults & Peds - Swing Bed !
Respite Days 20
e Line 6 Hosphal Adults & Peds - Swing Bed |
Total Hoapital Adults & Pads 1520 A
Line 28 Observation Bed Days P
Swing Bed SNF 120
Line 32 tabor & Delivery Days —
Swing Bed NF 80
Total Hospital Adults & Peds - SWing 200 A
Observation Units 8 A
Dbsarvations Days 25
Tolal Days 1,600 Sum of A
WIPFLA
s cak mucted 51

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 26



16¢

Tips on Where to Focus Efforts

Example of estimated impact of change in patient days:

Aduits & Peds

Medicare adults & peds plus SNF swing-bed days 750 750
Total adults & peds plus SNF swing-bed plus observations days 1,600 1,360
Medicare Utilization 46.9% 55.1%
Adults & Peds reimbursable costs $ 2,000000 $ 2,000,000
Medicare reimbursable costs $ 938000 % 1,102,000

Change in Medicare reimbursable costs $ 164,000

WIPFL1

Lad) MaEE grma a2

Other S Worksheets

Wages and hours (CAHs generally exempt from
reporting unless required by state Medicaid
program)

S-4 Home health data

S-3,

Part [I-V

S-5 Renal dialysis data

S-7 SNF RUG data
S-8 RHC data

S9 Hospice data

Hospital Uncompensated and Indigent Care

= Worksheet

WIPFL1

U g AT avad 53

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 27



414

Worksheet A

WIPFL1
Worksheet A Columns
#
Column 1 Salaries
Column 2 Other expenses
Column 4 Reclassifications
flow from Worksheet A-6
Adjust nts
Column 6 e
flow from Worksheet A-8
Net allowable costs
Column 7
(to Worksheet B)
WIPFL1

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 28



€6¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet A Lines

el figariel Gysnemy L A e eyt
AGCUAHITICM o e ABRARETES 06 JAJAY Mol OF (PR PR N AU Parseg:
T
P i e (et fad, d

X X Lo
0 - e
Iy - b=y
[ - Y08
r.oe - e
o = - in
2.0 8, v 2
10.99 & i we
Tx * * fre ]
vy 1, . e
. L - "o
“ g .o “ve
4. . 1 "o
[y - = o - e
“ u - - . i) e e
" Vb e . [ o .
-- b e - . ooy o i “on
" b == . [T = oo

' ' ne

- LESNR .8 Y Xy o noame ne

- 000w oy = ..

1,100,000 - - o °u.e

XY

b T LT ' ‘rrse

(R e TR - T

i .- “ ", e (el -

LTI TR o= [T o - - -

WIPFLI1

(W Ead) ST
-~

| Worksheet A Lines
#
Departments organized by:

General service cost centers (Lines 1 to 23) - Administration, plant, adminstration,
housekeeping, etc.

Inpatient routine service cost centers (Lines 30 to 46) - Adults and pediatrics, SNFs, efc.
Ancillary service cost centers (Lines 50 to 76) - Laboratory, radiology, pharmacy, elc.

Outpatient service cost centers (Lines 88 to 93) - Providerbased clinics, emergency
room (ER), observation

Other reimbursable cost centers (Lines 94 to 101) - Dialysis, DME, ambulance, home
health

Special purpose cost centers (Lines 105 to 117) - ASC and hospice

Non-reimbursable cost centers (Lines 190 to 194) - Gif? shop, adult day care, medical
office building, free standing clinic, research, elc.

WIPFLA

WP LR B
—

© Wipfli LLP Page 29



¥6¢

Cost Reporting Strategies

Worksheet A

Expenses by department reconciled to internal and/or
audited financial statements

Prescribed cost centers, but opportunity to expand or
collapse cost centers/departments (i.e., therapies)

Review non-reimbursable cost centers/departments to
determine if expenses can be directly assigned or reduced

Compare expense by department to prior year — explain
changes to ensure expenses properly recorded in each cost
center/department

WIPFL1

Worksheet A-6

WIPFL1

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 30



S6¢

Worksheet A-6

Medicare groupings
Common reclassifications:
— Interest expense

~ Depreciation expense

= Nursing salaries

WIPFLI.

LT CAR) ST
PR

Worksheet A-6 — provides opportunity to reclass expenses
between cost centers/departments to provide for proper
matching of expenses with revenue

Could result in converting hospital expense groupings to

- Physician activities (i.e., benefits, rounding)

owaLir 8

oL

WIPFILA

WU CARE LTV

Worksheet A-6 - Common Reclassifications

Try to keep number of reclassifications to a minimum

waaith pioancial gyavay
ANRIMIFTCATION

3891y can apEy

AL g
Frovigw TN NKLIEE | W il
Trem AL

S| ke PR

emeur 81

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 31



96¢

Cost Reporting Strategies

Worksheet A-6 (Reclassifications)

Where do we want to reclass expense if possible?

Cost centers/departments with high Medicare utilization

WIPFLA

Cost Reporting Strategies
| It S e SUES RS —— S |

Determine $150,000 of expenses were incorrectly coded to
RAD (Medicare utilization 30%) and should have been recorded
in PT (Medicare utilization 50%).

What do you think the estimated reimbursement impact is?
$30,000
$45,000
$75,000

WIPFLL.

wipfli.com/heaithcare © Wipfli LLP Page 32



162

wipfli.com/healthcare

Cost Reporting Strategies
= s S ——————— e S Siias S e e

Determine $150,000 of expenses were incorrectly coded to
RAD (Medicare utilization 30%) and should have been recorded
in PT (Medicare utilization 50%).

Reimbursement impact at least $30,000 based on increase in
utilization.

Increase in Medicare utilization 20% (50% - 30%) times
$150,000

WIPFLi

ahi s

Worksheet A-8

WIPFL}

© Wipfli LLP Page 33



86¢

This worksheet provides for
adjustments to remove
unallowable expenses and
offset nonpatient care revenue

Adjustments increase or
decrease reimbursable costs

* Medicare assumes that
nonpatient service revenue is
equal to the cost of the service
provided

Review all nonpatient income
to determine if an offset to
expense is required

WIPFL1

T B LT

Worksheet A-8: Adjustments to Expenses

#

Worksheet A-8 - Adjustments

Reallzed Investment income to extent
of interest expense (except interest

on funded depreciation)
Cafeteria revenue
Rebates

Hospital assessments
Medical Record fees
Miscellaneous income

Donations received

WIPFL1

a2l 440 ¢k ST

ﬂ

Interest expense (unnecessary borrowing)
Refinancing costs

Patient phones and cable TV

Lobbyling costs (portion of assoclation dues)

Nonphysician anesthetist (uniess qualify for
exception to CRNA fee schedule)

Hospital assessmerits
Donations made to other organizations

CAH HIT adjustment for depreciation and

interest

Advertising

87

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 34



662

Cost Reporting Strategies

Worksheet A-8 Advertising Adjustment Analysis

Allowable Nonaliowabé Don't Know 777}

Fund-raising

Recrulting medical paramedical,
k e, and clerical p

I

_ I
Ilrdorrmuoml listing {yellow poges) |

g |

1

lint. Iy 1 ials about “_Er
lgguuunn

TV advertisement for new sarvice

rﬂu_ignt utilization of services

| ads designed to Invite physiclans to l
utllize & provider's lacility

Presantation of good public Image and |
relted to patlent care

| |
|
[ I
|
| |
| public ads which seek 1o increase | |
|
|
L |

Rural health clinic adverthing [special J
EaCe| )
WIPFL1 I—-—M

L0 AR MLt

Cost Reporting Strategies

Required to offset interest income to the extent of
interest expense except for . . .

Funded Depreciation and Non-Comingled
Contributions

WIPFL1

W add Mt

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 35



0o¢

Cost Reporting Strategies
#

Funded Depreciation
Worksheet S-2 Part |l Line 29

Funds set aside for the acquisition of depreciable assets used to render
patient care or for other capital purposes related to patient care

Accounts designated as funded depreciation MUST be approved by the
Board of Directors and documented in the Board minutes

Document withdrawals from funded depreciation accounts to support
acquisitions of depreciable assets

Deposits must be held for six months prior to being withdrawn for
capital acquisitions

WIPFLA

wipfli.com/healthcare

i 3 ] WA

Cost Reporting Strategies
#

Unnecessary Borrowing

Funded depreciation must be used before additional
dollars are borrowed; otherwise, interest expense
on that portion of the borrowing is disallowed on
Worksheet A-8.

WIPFLA.

© Wipfli LLP Page 36



10€

Worksheet A-8-1

WIPFL{

LA o as LY

Worksheet A-8-1- Related Organizations

e N e R ————————u———mmx|

Related parties included on worksheet A-8-1 are organizations related to a
hospital by common ownership or control.

The types of cost include:
Services
Facilities
Supplies

The actual cost is reported on worksheet A-8-1.

73

WIPFLA

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 37



co¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet A-8-2

WIPFL1

3 by MASEL

74

Worksheet A-8-2 - Physician Cost
= 1 i ——
Worksheet A-8-2 calculates allowable provider-based

physician costs.

Total remuneration (salaries, certain benefits, contracted services) is
split into two components:

1. Professional component — services provided directly to patients

2. Provider component — services provided to support patients
such as availability/on-call, directorships, etc.

WIPFL1

© Wipfli LLP Page 38



€0¢

Worksheet A-8-2 - Physician Cost
#
Report total remuneration (salaries, benefits®, contracted services) in column 3
Report professional component in column 4

Report provider administrative costs and ER availability in column 5

maalpn dyrams st 2y ten et e enArE e Ie Uiew o) fyre O IN
PRBIEAR MEED PICTER AFTRRTIENT srbride (inibAline |Perted) =
ar—"‘y:unu
e 1231018
. A Lyem # T CANTer SrTyRIC TN Teta} trvfmviond’ PTOVVNT K M—t "
emitiar Lesarorztion | Comporan gt Vi
(] i Ew (N7 ) | N - (]

i L8 el 1085, 000 299, %0 %05, 0% ' [
19 W, OUACULTE B PEIATAZES: 109, 00¢ 100,000 [ o 1.0
18 0. & " & « o b
48 0.0 . o * [ “m
3.0 0,0 o [ & .90
.00 0,06 . o [} o 4,00
7.00 0,06 o o o 1.0
4.08 0,04 3 ¢ “ (K]
.00 0.0 o “ & [
10.90 oo % ¢ “ o e
00,0 3,100,006 100 008 . boc e 08

Wkw. A ttrm A Iy Cantarsrmmicion wnadiwtes kel ) dwiem of | ot of provians  Fhywieies deit

Téuraithor Lmie maijovted BCY Pwberships & Compoagt  wf Fmigranticd
] nm” | share ot o1, =

o] i 3 T T T~ T B 1 21 T | T E
- L. 00 e . v 3 r T L@
Le S0 abe s b ROTATRICY ™
3.00 o V=
409 o i
5.00 oo 5.0
.00 "o +.00
1.0 e t 7.0
00 LR .00
.08 500 ¥ 3 9.0
19.00 LR L L @ " £ 10,00
#0080 L ° L L 20 %

*Are certain benefits of employed physicians not required to be offset?
WIPFLA1

W A sy 5 v 78
———

Worksheet A-8-2 - ED Availability Requirements

ﬂ

Emergency department (ED) logs or time study
Contract language addressing non-patient related time

30-minute physician response time to emergency departments
(do not need to be on premises)

WIPFLA

LT T T o vad T
S

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 39



¥0¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Cost Reporting Strategies

Worksheet A-8-2: Reporting provider-based physician costs

Professional expenses reimbursed on a fee schedule must be removed from the cost
report, except for professional expenses in a non-reimbursable cost center, such as a
free standing clinic.

= Have all professional fees been properly identified such as ER, OR, EKG, radiclogy,
lab, etc.?

- A portion of professional fees may be allowable for standby time and/or on-call time
with proper documentation. This portion of time is referred to as “provider” time.

= The most common "provider” time is related to standby time for ER.

- Is the hospital putting forth extra effort to properly capture the split of ER time
between “professional” time and “provider” time?

- If you pay for on-call OR coverage, this time may also be allowable as *provider” time
depending on circumstances and MAC.

- Medicare contractor will require documentation to support "provider” time identified
" on cost report worksheet A-8-2.
VAR

A o) LT - - Li ]

Cost Reporting Strategies

Proper documentation of "provider component” time:

Time study requirements from the Provider Reimbursement Manual are
as follows:

= Must submit written plan to intermediary no later than
90 days prior to start of cost reporting period

One full work week each month of the year

Must use alternating weeks (i.e., Week 1 in 1st month,
Week 2 in 2nd month, etc.)

~ Time study must be signed by the physician

WIPFLA.

cuny masten : »

© Wipfli LLP Page 40



S0€

Cost Reporting Strategies

Emergency Room Physician Time Study
SAMPLE

Pryrcan Neree: Dute:

Bhytcan

Te compiste, plece an *X in L approprimte box for mxch 13-minute incrament to iantify the octivities parfarmed.
|

Part A - Brovider Comparant Purt B - Profezuensl Compones
UecHl i

Adninicteaion Ermargerey
Supervilen | Commiitee o Oraaitly ool Falnt Documanistion
Wod Contsal farvices
L

000 o1
013 B30
0:30 055
043 100
1:00 115
1:15 [
130 143
145 001

a Emesgancy Raom Availebilly Fer CAHs, thic inchides on call ime nat on she wi the feciliy  Individual must not be performing urey haskh core sarvices ol
anather location st the sams Uma

e

g8 st svaaie B0

Cost Reporting Strategies

8 i

Alternatives to required time study:
Time study consisting of two, two-week time studies for
physicians (alternating weeks) and one week per month for
midlevel practitioners

Time study consisting of one week per quarter, alternating
weeks

ER Log

Approval from your Medicare contractor REQUIRED

WIPFL1

AT CLAF MASTYY avponr 81

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 41



90¢

wipfli.com/healthcare

Cost Reporting Strategies

————a |

Recommended List of Items to Maintain

Signed contract including ER on-call or availability with
provider or provider group.

Evidence that hospital evaluated alternative methods for ER
coverage before selecting current method.

Signed allocation agreement - Exhibit 1 of CMS 339.

(Source: PRM 2109)

WIPFLI

4840 €222 MATYY owph > B2

Cost Reporting Strategies

Calculating professional ER provider component on Worksheet A-8-2
of Medicare cost report: :

Professional Component
(column 4)
Total Remuneration
{column 3)

What is your percent?

WIPFLi

uPATM CAlF ARCTE ewanr 8

© Wipfli LLP Page 42



10¢€

Cost Reporting Strategies

percentages changed?

WIPFLA1

HEE T uEE MASTEL

What would happen if some of these

Cost Reporting Strategies

———— e ——————

Example of decreasing professional component percentage

As the provider companent goes up, the cost-tocharge ratio increases.
Impact will vary depending on Medicare volumes in the emergency room and In the hospital

Maedicare utiization of this emergency room s 20.8%.

WIPFLA

Prof al/Provider Components 50150 49151 45155 40160
Total ER provider costs $ 2000000 $ 2000000 $§ 2000000 § 2,000,000
Professional component $ 1,000000 $ 980,000 $ 900,000 % 800,000
Provider component $ 1000000 $ 1020000 $ 1,100000 $ 1,200,000
Impact of change from 50/50 split - addttional

reimbursement $ - % 4200 % 20900 $ 41,700

wipfli.com/healthcare

© WipfliLLP Page 43



80¢

Worksheet A-8-3

WIPFLA

Worksheet A-8-3 - Purchased PT, OT, ST, RT
—_— e e ey
Report only contracted PT, OT, ST, and RT

Employed therapists are exempt from reasonable cost limits
Reasonable costs is determined based on hourly limits and
other factors

Costs in excess of limits are eliminated on worksheet A-8

WIPFLA

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 44



60€

WIPFLi

Worksheet A Series - Summary

v B8

WIPFL1
'\.\‘-’I% AT

.t yimacs! systan et ke 35S O by 54 a1y
SOV MATIICATION 50 ADJIITOAL &4 TRIAL Gavamty O CPENTY Toveriow orm)mitm 'r:-'u“lm' bt e
" e ata
I St Peret igrn [t | b [l U i Frvaas”
el B e . u}.mu.ulu.
| ot
L - B i = s - ot
w e W - .
19 whe 4 by (IR e L
X00 W w004 " e -
400 Mikh pwy vt ® - 4 [ -
500 WM v TS Rl 1,0 am . L. -
700 W ot Ao 40w . Sow
409 i Lamity & LiMe WATTER - [ . e
000 S = 1, * L
10,08 wew sietuns e am - . i
16,40 SL5h parytevis " » N .
16,00 wise et cpmare CC “ b
1008 00 It e W
'8 bl s o sy 4, v - PR ey
41.90 WIS i 1M LAY . . [
| L] -
w.e mﬂ- e ¥ -
P v . -
0.9 mbtun i miatrar - . -
we Rl Pt s . e
LGB STLS MORLLL BI04 SadedE 48 PA HERTC =y v -
TH08 Wi foeiimmobid d4iEEs imatord T O . "
| Tirn
10,00 o reneny - B g
k]
ue Mkh, sb4iSs L TN [ 0
92 00 WS prraae T )9 e " 1.8
U e
st LiE Eerrean L ST "
(172 g ] AL R L
T, 8 T v B ¥ ]
W (e D ) - CRTR et

em

E &3
N M

]
IR mewven oK Wakaw

»
u.
| .

"o

"

QN

E

=~ Coat Cantars e

ne

ne

| sa.00

.00

e

s

i.lll -

Hun-cuisbrorsoabla Cout Comers 12 0

i
g

s

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 45




oLe

Worksheet A - Summary of Column 7 Costs
Information from Sample CAH Hospital Medicare cost report:
Cost Report Percent
Overhead cost centers $ 8,540,000 49%
Revenue-producing cost centers:
Cost-reimbursed cost centers 7,300,000 42%
PPS-reimbursed cost centers 1,400,000 8%
Non-reimbursable cost centers 30,000 1%
$ 17,270,000 100%
WIPFL{
o1 AT AT s B
Worksheet B Part |
WIPFLIL.
1L CABE SasTEd . nad a1

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 46



Le

Worksheet B - Allocation of Overhead Costs
m——

Allocation of overhead costs to revenue-producing and non-
reimbursable cost centers/departments using statistics.

* Overhead departments include:
~ Capital-related costs — Depreciation and interest expense
= Employee benefits
— Administration and general
= Plant and maintenance
= Laundry
— Housekeeping
- Dietary
- Cafeteria
— Nurse administration
— Medical records

WIPFLI

Worksheet B, Part | - Allocation of All Costs
Column 0 equals Worksheet A Column 7
Column 26 equals Column O in total with no costs reported on Lines 1 through 23

WIPFL1
. aweir 8

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 47



cle

e e RS

Worksheet B-1

WIPFL1

Cost Reporting Strategies

— e ]

Examination of Conscience

When was the last time the statistics
were updated in the cost report?

Every other year?

When my cost report preparer makes me?

' = & ‘
e VS 2 Every year?
sy 1
f é/’ v
Never?

WIPFLA

wipfll.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 48



cle

Cost Reporting Strategies

#

Verify that each department included in an overhead department’s
statistic actually provides support services to that department

» What are common questions to ask when reviewing Worksheet B-1
(examples):
~ Does housekeeping clean the gift shop or the ambulance garage?
— |s the nursery receiving an allocation from dietary?
— How are physician benefits allocated?

- Does central supply/purchasing order for all departments or do some
departments do their own ordering (i.e., lab, pharmacy, etc.)?

- Does maintenance provide services to leased buildings?

Consider directly assigning housekeeping or maintenance costs to off-
site nonallowable department (i.e., medical office building) only with a
proper trail and support for Medicare

WIPFLA

- e L

Cost Reporting Strategies

R R W e S = — e e e |

Statistic Considerations
Square Feet:

Update annually based on square footage changes

- Should be weighted based on date of change

Did you know there are two square footage statistics?

~ Gross square footage includes hallways and common areas
- Net square footage excludes hallways and common areas
- Consider evaluating both methods

Do not use gross square footage for part of the building and net square
footage for other parts of the building. Maintain consistency.

WIPFL1

97

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 49



143>

Cost Reporting Strategies

Statistic Considerations
Depreciation Expense:

Tie to trial balance
* Depreciation expense:

= Include interest and insurance expense related to equipment

Time Study:
Update annually to match operations

Meet time study requirements as previously discussed

WIPFL{

s Catn et awmair 08

wipfli.com/healthcare

Cost Reporting Strategies
I ———————————— L i |

Statistic Considerations
Gross Salaries:

Tie to trial balance and:
- Include all A-6 reclassifications that affect salaries

~ Do not include the salary statistic for any department where employee
benefits are directly assigned

WIPFL1

© Wipfli LLP Page 50



Sle

Cost Reporting Strategies

Statistic Considerations
FTEs (Including Nursing FTEs):

Agree to annual payroll records
Challenge whether the FTE uses the department

Review reasonableness of FTEs per department
(i.e., Nursing Admin)

Accumulated Costs:

Calculated by cost report software

WIPFL{
Cost Reporting Strategies
Statistic Considerations
Laundry Pounds:

Accumulate annually so that statistic represents current year operations

If using a third party, make sure you get pounds, not pieces

Meals:

Accumulate annually so that statistic represents current year operations

Statistic should not exceed patient days times three meals a day

WIPFL1

10

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 51



9le

Cost Reporting Strategies

Statistic Considerations
Patient Days:
* Agree to annual records
* Exclude nursery days
Costed Requisitlons:

Tie to internal records

Gross Patlent Revenue:

Typically includes professional revenue so it will not tie
to Worksheet C

WIPFLA{

4l A T wie 102

Cost Reporting Strategies
_
Statistic Bases
Cost Conter/Department Simplified Mathod Standard Recommendation
Building and Fixtures Square Feet Square Feet
Movable Equipment Square Feet Depreciation Expense or Square Feet
Maintenance & Repatrs Square Feet Square Feet
Operation of Plant Square Feet Square Feet
Househeeping Square Feet Square Feet or Time Study
Employee Benefits Salaries Gross Salaries
Cafeteria Salaries FTEs
Administrathe and General Accumulated Costs Accumulated Costs
Laundry and Linen Patient Days Laundry Pounds
Dietary Patient Days Meals
Soctal Service Patient Deys Time Study or Patient Days
Nursing Administration Nursing Salaries Nursing FTEs
Central Services Costed Requisitions Costed Requisitions
Pharmacy Costed Requisitions Costed Requistions
Medical Records Gioss Patient Revenue Gross Patient Revenue or Time Study
WIPFLA
A% Cul AL 100

wipfli.com/healthcare © WipfliLLP Page 52



PARS

Cost Reporting Strategies

Simplified cost method:

v’ Uses standard cost centers and prescribed statistics (no changes

allowed)
v Less time and cost to accumulate statistics

v’ Prior approval must be received (90 days prior to the end of the cost
reporting period), unless first year (period) as a CAH

v Once elected, must continue to use simplified method for no less
than three years, unless a change of ownership occurs

WIPFL1

sty e macty owaur 104

Cost Reporting Strategies

Analyze financial impact of fragmented cost centers:

Certain cost centers can be fragmented to allow for more accurate cost
allocation:

v Prior approval is needed from intermediary
v' Must submit 90 days prior to end of cost reporting period
v" Eliminates allocation of costs to areas not benefited

~ Fragmenting certain administrative functions can result in less cost
allocation to the non-cost-reimbursed and non-reimbursable cost
centers

WIPFLi

wipfli.com/healthcare

© WipfliLLP Page 53



8le

Cost Reporting Strategies

== ————————————————————y

Fragmented Cost Centers:

Buildings and fixtures to separately identify new building additions

Administrative and general

Cost Center Allocalion Stalistic
v’ Communications v Number of phones
¥ Data processing v Computers/processing time
v Business office Y Patient service revenue
Y Other A& G v Accumulated cost
WIPFLA

Worksheet B Series - Summary

WIPFL1

o7

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 54



61€

Fully Allocated Costs - Worksheet B, Part |
_
Aiocafions bom:  Tolal Fully Alocaind
Gerewal Service Cosl  Coste, Wit B, Fart % of Custs
L & Wist A Col 7 Cenlars I, Col 26 Allocated
i’ Ganaral Sorvice Cost Conters ) E
1 MNewCapitaBidg & Fit 1,530,000 (1,530,000)
2 NewCapinlEqup 525,000 (525,000)
4  Enyloyse Benclis 2,000,000 {2.000,000)
§  Adminisruive & Genarat 2,135,000 {2,135,000)
7 Opwwsiion of Pt 700,000
8  Lmsvry & Linen Service 85000 {05,000)
9 Houselaping 35,000 (335,000)
10 £00,000 {600,000}
16 Medicol Recordn & Library 620,000 (630,000)
30 Aduia & Pedialrics 20,000 1,037, 700 1,957,700 5%
44 Shiled Nuring Facity 1,400,000 2,173,600 3,573,800 61%
Fovcibny Service Coat Conters.
51 Operoling room 600,000 527,700 1,127,700 ATR
54 Radology-Disgrostc 50,000 657,10 1,817,400 1%
&0 780,000 512,000 1,292,000 %
88 Piysical 400,000 470,900 870,600 54%
7 Medical Suppbes Charped to Pallanis 140,000 62,600 200 800 %
73 Drugs Charged to Patients 1,000,000 493,500 1,458,900 33%
Owtpatient Service Cost Cantern
88 sl Health Chnic 1,500,000 1,452,300 3,052,500 5%
91 Emagancy ) 900,000 1,137 200 2,057,200 SE%
Honretrixanabie Cost Centars
Sutotal 17,240,000 (14,600) 17,225,400
190 G, Flower, Coffes Shop & Cantson 30,000 4,600 44,600 M
Tetal 17,270,000 . 17,270,000
WIPFL1
o o add M E=TEY st = 108
et
Worksheet C
WIPFL1
o sk CAME RASTET 108

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 55



0ce

Worksheet C - Cost-to-Charge Ratio

Worksheet C reports gross patient service revenue by cost
center/department:

+ Cost-to-charge ratio is calculated

* Cost-to-charge ratio used for ancillary reimbursement

* Kay concept: Matching of revenue and expenses

SeaTy Bimanita} Applent Al Che e TH 3
Tewecaiiim b0 KATID 04 EEERL T dReaEr Saudibe U0N] WALTIR :--
4
e it
T 1
Gt Carter Cevcription Teant Oosy  Thesi Lmt Toml Gete « venal comr
-Jhnln - isn) omence
LI
AT MTEeE MAVICE O (IRTIAR

10,66 WhiA wan T L FBTAYIEL LW 8 7,4 0900

44,00 DA Lalii I wAY ey nu I IR ¢ I!H | N0

43,00 SAMO masiwe FAcILET . 5 o508

-:uul- et T—

50.00 1w A5 T [ 50.%0

34.0p 3145 RTENT .00

“0.» LAt 4 o0

.00 w4u TR "

Th o leTaee iree PR il e

T.® W3 ¥ o0

71,00 B PR (RSTIS [ Y

25,00 HUN bk 5,602, b 445 ek s 0

93,00 PHIPS EERGIWT 30T 0 IR W)

V.00 FHIPCSRLARINTIN BEBL Dul-FTERE) WA T) ML LN TEE N

L

e AT 141,08

200,90 u" wtal (ves bnptrurtiony) 12,448,100 L AR L] LA, LT e, 0

P (0Y8 BT epthan by PNt 0,7l T
WIPFU 7939 THA) (iee Instrectivns) A § wan,ay L e T
P TRppeTp—— owsaiir 110

Cost Reporting Strategies

All professional services reimbursed on a fee schedule must
be eliminated on Worksheet C

-~ Emergency room physicians

— Anesthetist/CRNA (if not cost reimbursed)
= Provider-based clinic physicians

= Radiologist

- Ete.

Grouping of revenue must match grouping of expense

WIPFLA

A A SaeeE awpenr 114

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 56



lce

wipfli.com/healthcare

Cost Reporting Strategies
= e ———— |
cﬂf::f:nme Cost-to-charge ratio over 1.0
Departmant Rstio means costs exceed charges.
Operating room 678414 Cost-tocharge ratios greater than
Radiology - Disgnostic 358000 1.0 or a change of greater than
Laboratory 200380 10% compared to the prior year
may be questioned by the
Respiratory therapy 457865 Medicare contractor.
Physical therapy 834908
Medical supplies charged to patients 313127 Costo-charge ratio near zero
means charges greatly exceed
Implants charged to patients 300117 cost.
Drugs charged to patients 376038
Clinic 1137843 Cost-to-charge ratios should be
Emergancy . comparable to the prior filed cost
’ report or an explanation of the
Observation beds (nondistinct part) 301296 change should be available.
WIPFLL Note: Total charges on Worksheel C eechude professional fees
WALITU CARD MASTEY owpaur 112

Cost Reporting Strategies

Typical Departments With Cost-to-Charge Ratio Over 1.0:

Low volume departments such as labor and delivery or speech therapy

High cost departments such as emergency room, clinic, and
observation

- Cost report preparation errors such as:
— Anesthesia — Calculation of professional component costs

— Medical supplies — Expense reported in medical supply department
while charges reported in department utilizing the supply

- Laboratory — Lab gross-up not completed

Start-up departments such as operating room with a new surgeon

WIPFL1

MRAITH CARD S ALY awpsnr 113

© Wipfli LLP Page 57



ace

T i M R4

45 00 Dalda meaygeE raI]
s, Mol

LAt
"

WIPFLA1.

mmaben Froansisl fpviews
T

oY AT
=

Worksheet C - Cost-to-Charge Ratio

Column 6 and 7 equal the hospital's inpatient and outpatient service revenue per
the general ledger, less any revenue billed for professional services

Column 8 total must be reconciled to internal or audited financial statements

Cost-tocharge ratios are computed for ancillary departments (Column 9)

L
mATE T4 umAASER [

Test Danter Duver 4gainn ity Serpatient |
[ )
YT RoUTL o ST e
10.00 1000 amATE & PEBEATSINY e o= e
4400 Gl LETILED Wi ind #EETLTNY 1,560, bed ¥, B

e »

L T R LT 113,590
SAVICT) AmARATE 13 ’

EATIL I

b2y
R

§ 283

8 B

S NMBEYrY st
*4%3 888 8 8238888 883

Worksheet D & E
WIPFL

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 58



€ce

Worksheet D Series - Determines Medicare's Costs

Worksheet D Series calculates Medicare's cost for services provided to
Medicare patients

Applies cost-to-charge ratio by department to Medicare charges to
estimate the Medicare cost

Medicare patient days, charges, payments, and other processed claims
information is provided by Medicare on the provider statistical and
reimbursement (PS&R) report

Group PS&ER revenue by revenue code to match cost centers where
related revenue and expenses recognized on Worksheet A series and
Worksheet C series

WIPFLI1

{85 W g st st o= 118

Medicare PS&R

|

Suggestions for running PS&R:

- Attempt to run reports well in advance (at least 45 days) to ensure you
can access data needed for your cost report

= For cost report PS&R, we suggest you use a paid-through date that is
as close as possible to the due date of your cost report (be sure to
review that claim billing is not behind or the final settlement could
change significantly)

— Passwords in the online PS&R system expire every 60 days

WIPFLI1

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 59



yee

Medicare PS&R
_————'J
Cost Report
Worksheet Related PS&R Schedule
Statistical Data
S3 Reports 110, 118, 180, 210, 399, 710
Charges
’ D-3 Hospital Report 110 — Inpatient Part A (Charges)
D-3 SNF Report 210 — SNF - Inpatient Part A (Charges)
D-3 5/B SNF Report 180 — Swing bed SNF (Charges)
D Part V Report 850 — Outpatient (Charges)
S-4 Report 399 — Home health
WIPFL1 "
Medicare PS&R

Worksheet

l Cost Report
Related PS&-R Schedule

Payments

E-1, Hospital, Col 2

Report 110 — Inpatient Part A (net reimbursement)

E-1, Hospital, Col 4

Report 850 — Outpatient (net reimbursement)

Report 210 — Inpatient Part A (net reimbursement)

r E-1, SNF, Col 2

E-1, S/B - SNF, Col 2 | Report 180 — Swing bed SNF (net reimbursement)

M-5

Report 710 — Rural health clinic (net reimbursement)

H4

Report 399 — Home health

WIPFLL.

e CAE ST
—

ar 110

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP

Page 60



14

Worksheet D Part V (outpatient)
Worksheet D-3 (inpatient, SNF, swing bed)

Ancillary Hospital Costs Allocated to Medicare Services

Cost-to-charge ratio from Worksheet C
Outpatient Medicare charges from PS&R

Ratio times charge equals Medicare cost

WIPFL1

e kil e gonn v 120

Medicare PS&R
“
Department Report by Revenue Code

- Assists the cost report preparer in identifying which department the
charges on the PSG&R are related to

- The report matches revenue to the appropriate revenue codes and
departments

- Using a department report by revenue code can increase the accuracy
of the cost report

WIPFL1

a8 CAl) AT e 21

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 61



9ce

wipfli.com/healthcare

Medicare PS&R

Why is grouping of revenue codes important?

Example: Where is IV therapy done in the Hospital? (Assume nursing charge
is billed with 260 revenue code.) What impact could this have on CAH
Medicare Reimbursement?

Charges Billed From
Cost Center CCR PS&R Ravenue Calculated
Method of Assignment Assignment (Worksheet C) Code 260 Reimbursement
Medicare standard
assignment Une 73 Pharmacy 0.532216 X 100,000 = $ 53,222
Hospital specific service  Line 91 Emergency
location Room 1.425308 X 100,000 = 132501
Difference In calculated
reimbursement $(89.300)
WIPFL1
i g sy s 122 |
Worksheet D-1, Hospital

Worksheet D-1 Medicare
Line 38

Inpatient routine service:
Cost per diem

WIPFILA

HLET £ AR] BASFEY “ie 123

© Wipfli LLP Page 62



lc¢

Cost Reporting Strategies

How to determine Routine Medicare Utilization?

Total Medicare Medicare
Days Days Utllization
Routine 3.377 2,729 81%
Total days include:
A&P Worksheet S-3, Part |, Line 1, Col 8

Swing bed SNF Worksheet S-3, Part |, Line 5, Col 8
Observation Worksheet S-3, Part |, Line 28, Col 8

Medicare days inciude:
A&P Worksheet S-3, Part |, Line 1, Col &
Swing bed SNF  Worksheet S-3, Part |, Line 5, Col 6

WIPFL1

Pt ovnir 124

Cost Reporting Strategies

) ——— =

How to determine Ancillary Medicare Utilization?

Wks C WikeD, V Wis D3 Wiks D-3 Wks C
Toial Medicare  Cost-lo-Clawgs

Anciiary Department Charges aF VP Swing Aled Tokat Uttizallon Raio
50  Operaling room $ 1368900 § 427400 § 230000 $ - § 657400 48% 0.5074
53 Anesthesiology 631,200 177,000 105,000 - 282,000 63% 0.6516
54  Radiology 2,236,400 951,000 247,000 27,000 1,225,000 55% 0.3967
60  Laboralory 2,390,500 1,041,000 536,000 25,000 1,602,000 7% 0.3066
60.01 Blood 122,700 34,000 30,000 4,000 68,000 5% 0.2048
85  Respiraory herapy 579,100 123,000 241,000 31,000 395,000 68% 0.2178
66  Physical herapy 995,500 157,000 62,000 79,000 208,000 0% 0.4968
67 Occupalional therapy 264,000 17,000 37,000 63,000 117,000 4% 0.3853
68  Speech herapy 73,800 11,000 4,000 1,500 16,500 % 0.3039
60  Electrocardology 416,000 76,000 82,000 700 158,700 8% 0.2209
71 Medica supples to palients 1,712,600 332,000 733,000 109,000 1,174,000 9% 0.3477
73 Drugs charged to paents 60,800 11,000 31,000 4,300 46,300 6% 0.2310
ot 4 1,846,000 760,000 162,000 1,000 923,000 50% 04853
©  Cbsenelion beds 235,000 103,000 - - 103,000 “% 04168
95 Ambuiance 530.200 243,000 = - 243,000 46% 0.4495

Tokals $13371800 5 4463400 § 2500000 § M5500 § 7308 000 5%

WIPFIL1

it Gkl AT T <wale 128

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 63



8¢ce

Cost Reporting Strategies

If you had the ability to record expeﬁses in any department
on the previous slide, which one would you select?

WIPFLA1

L 410 Cane @nncT

owpaur 120

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet E Series - Medicare Settlements
_—_ e ———————————

Medicare settlements:
101% of costs (routine and ancillary)
Less:
o Deductible
o Coinsurance
Plus + Medicare bad debts
Less — Sequestration adjustment (2% of net of
above lines)

= Total Medicare reimbursable cost
Less — Payments received (see E-1)

= Medicare settlement

WIPFL1.

© Wipfli LLP Page 64



6¢¢

Medicare Bad Debts

Bad debts are allowable if:
Amount pertains to uncollectible Medicare deductible and coinsurance
amounts

* Does not relate to physician professional services

*  Only for Medicare bad debts (do not include Medicare HMO
beneficiaries)
Unless patient has been determined to be indigent, write-off should not
be less than 120 days after first billing to beneficiary

*  Amount written off within cost reporting period and considered worthless
when returned from collection agency (if sent to a collection agency)

Collection efforts must be the same for all payor types

Any recoveries of bad debts claimed in prior years are offset against

amounts claimed in current year
WD

T ] v Lir 128

Medicare Bad Debts

May be claimed without collection effort If:

Medicare/Medicaid crossover claim, except Medicare has a must bill
policy—therefore, if you claim a Medicare bad debt, it must be billed to
the State even if you know it will not be paid

Indigent patients with supporting proof of indigence
Bankrupt patients with supporting proof of bankruptcy

WIPFLA

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 65



0ee

Medicare Bad Debts

Documentation required to support claimed amounts may Include:

Medicare remittance advice

Medicaid remittance advice

Supplementery insurance remittance advice
Copy of UB

Patient history information

Copies of bills sent to patients

* Documentation supporting collection efforts (i.e., considered worthless
when returned from collection agency)

* Electronic listing of bad debts claimed that includes patient name,
Medicare number, dates of service, indigence, write-off date, amounts,

etc.
WIPFLA
Worksheet G
Financlal Statements
G Balance sheet
G-1 Fund balance
G-2 Patient revenues
G-3 Revenue & expense
WIPFL1

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 66



Lee

wipfli.com/healthcare

Clinic Services

WIPFL1

AT CAR) MAZTCE Supair 132

Clinic Services

W e ———— =
Types of Clinics

Free standing clinic
Free standing rural health clinic
Provider-based clinic

Provider-based rural health clinic

ewpaur 133

&
E

© Wipfli LLP Page 67



[A%S

Clinic Services

Free Standing vs Provider-Based

hospital or by a group of physicians.

departments such as x-ray, laboratory, ER, etc.

WIPFLa

Lo g M ASTCE

Free Standing Clinic — A medical clinic operating as its own entity. A
free standing clinic may be owned by another entity such as a

Provider-Based Clinic — A clinic owned and operated as an
“‘outpatient department” of the hospital similar to other hospital

How Does a Provider-Based

Clinic Work?

WIPFL1

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 68



€ee

Provider-Based Clinic - Key Concepts

There are four general criteria that apply to all sites seeking provider-
based status:

Common llcensure— meaning the operations of the department are operating
as a department of the hospital it is considered a part of.

Clinfcal Integration — meaning the clinic records and activities are integrated as
with any other hospital department with reporting responsibility of the
department directly to hospital leadership.

Financilal Integration— meaning the financial and billing activities of the
provider-based department are included in the activities of the hospital.

Publlc awareness— meaning the provider-based department is presented to the
public as a department of the hospital.

WIPFLA

caps m

How Does Provider-Based Billing Work?

Financial and billing example for CPT 99213, a common midlevel
evaluation and management code:

— Patients, other than Medicare patients, are billed on CMS Form 1500
as a global service as a free standing clinic.

~ Medicare patients are billed differently:

~ The professional service is billed as site-of-service facility with a
Medicare reimbursement rate of $49.87 compared to the free
standing clinic rate of $70.46.

~ PPS Hospital: The technical service is billed and reimbursed
separately as an ambulatory procedure code (APC) payment in the
amount of $85.98.

~ CAH Hospital: The technical service is billed and reimbursed

separately based on available cost.
WIPFLIA

LA £ adE MRSTE]

137

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 69



yee

How Does Provider-Based Billing Work?
Medicare Rennbursemant Exaimpls for Provider-fasaec Chnic vs
Freestanding Chrie
B N This example reflects the
difference in Medicare
Sampie Service (CPT 99213) i ”:.::,“ g m?‘:,‘:ﬂ,_, reimbursement between
. - ok a free standing clinic and
a provider-based
ST T o P sl - % 8. department of a hospital
Jistimcreese i seingorpemant es3 for both a PPS and CAH
hospital.
CAH Hoapital Sampla
CCR oI Clinic
9913 Depl 99213
Sample Servics (CPT 99213) Professionsl Facifity Giobal {ot Total)
Freesianding cfinic 08
Picvice bysed of CAH honpilal 5 67 8750 137.57
el merE in ssme rEman| &
WIPFL1
otk cut e <wet e 138
e —— T — — — |
How Does a Provider-Based
Rural Health Clinic Work?
WIPFL1
MEMTH CADE PRASTYCL awane 139

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 70



gee

Provider-Based RHC - Key Concepts

In general, the requirements are as follows:
* Located in a "rural' and "underserved® community.
«  Must employ at least one nurse practitioner (NP) or physician assistant (PA).

*  Required to be staffed by NP or PA or certified nurse midwife (CNM) who must be on
site to see patients at least 50% of the time clinic is open.

+  Other staff may work under contract.
A physician must supervise each NP, PA, or CNM consistent with state and federal law.

Capable of delivering outpatient primary care services (direct services, basic lab
services, emergency services).

»  Maintain a patient health record system and deliver health care services under the
guidance of written policies and procedures.

WIPFL)

41057 oty PRy

e 140

How Does RHC Billing Work?

Medicare reimbursement (and in some states Medicaid as well) in a provider-
based RHC, for both the professional and technical services, is based on
allowable costs.

On an interim basis, a visit-based relmbursement rate is established, with final
settlement based on the filing and review of Medicare and, if applicable,
Medicaid cost reports.

Medicare has established annual minimum productivity thresholds for midlevel
providers and physicians. If providers do not meet minimum visit thresholds, the
allowable costs are divided by the minimum productivity thresholds, thus
reducing reimbursable cost to the extent productivity standards are not met.

The billing process for payors other than Medicare is consistent with a free
standing clinic.

WIPFLA.

141

wipfli.com/healthcare © WipfliLLP Page 71



9ee

How Does Provider-Based RHC Billing Work?

—— —— e e T

Medicnre Remibusement Sxample for Provider Based Clinie o Mrovider Based

RHEC vs Free Standing Cline

This example reflects the
difference in Medicare

%13 APC GOAG3 99213 X tw

Sample Sesvice (CPT 99213) Protessional Facility Globsl (or Total) relmbursemgnt be . il
=_— — a free standing clinic

Free standing clinkc vhit 74  and a provider-based

Provider based clinic - PPS hospital 2087 8598 ysas  department of a

hospital.

Pravider based clinkc - CAH haspital 2987 8750 13737

Provider-besed rursl health clinic 22235

WIPFLa

L Eald LT 142

Clinic Services

Medicare Reimbursement — Summary:

Free Standing Clinic: Fee schedule reimbursement

Provider-Based Clinic (treat as a hospital department):

— Professional Component: Fee schedule reimbursement

~ Facility Component: Cost-based reimbursement (CAH)/APC (PPS)
Rural Health Clinic (RHC): Cost-based reimbursement

— independent RHC: Cost-based up to annual per encounter limit

- Provider-Based RHC: Cost-based without per encounter limit, if hospital
the RHC is provider-based to is less than 50 beds

~ Both types of RHCs are subject to a provider productivity standard to
receive full cost reimbursement or rate per encounter

WIPFL1

a2 MLt

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 72



1€€

WIPFL{

LT CAB) MASTCE

Worksheet M Series

ovwair 144

Visits
Overhead

WIPFL1

HEALTH CARE ALACTICE

- Reclassifications

— Adjustments

Worksheet M Series

RHC Cost Report Components

Trial Balance of Expenses

Reclassification and Adjustment of Trial Balance of Expenses

— Related-party adjustments
RHC Provider Statistics
Flu/PPV Vaccine Costs

Determination of Medicare Reimbursement and Payments

evwyans 146

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 73



8¢e¢e

Worksheet M Series

_—————— Ty

Cost Report Requires Separation of Staff Costs

Health Care Staff Costs: +  Facility Overhead Costs:
= Physician - Office Staff
— Physician Assistant
— Nurse Practitioner Cost Other Than RHC Services:
= Visiting Nurse = Laboratory
— Other Nurse - Radiology
= Clinical Psychologist — Hospital Services
= Clinical Social Worker = Other
WIPFLA
e M e wwarir 140
Worksheet M Series
| B e ———— |
Cost Report Example
NET
EXPENSES
COMPEN- OTHER RECLASS- FOR
SATION COSTS TOTAL IFICATIONS | - ALLOCATION
1 2 3 4 ¥ 7
FACILITY HEALTH CARE STAFF COSTS
1| Physician 850,000 | 150,000 | 1,000,000 1,000,000
2| Ph A 120,000 40,000 160,000 160,000
3| Nurse Practiloner
4] Visiting Nurse
5| Other Nurse 175,000 175,000 175,000
6] Clinical Psychologist
7| Chinicaf Social Worker
B
__9|Other Facllity Health Care Staff Costs
10] Sublolal (sum of ines 19) 1,145.000 190.000 1,335 000 - 1,335,000
WIPFL1
A e . 147

wipfli.com/heaithcare © Wipfli LLP Page 74



6€€

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet M Series

Identify Costs of Non-RHC Services

Laboratory services

Diagnostic radiology

Hospital patients (inpatient/ER/ASC)
Medical directorships
Mammography

DME

WIPFLI1

odd 14 A SN

Worksheet M Series

P e e e R et
Cost Report Requires Separation of FTEs and Visits

Health Care Provider FTEs and Visits:
— Physiclan
— Physician Assistant

~ Nurse Practitfoner

Visiting Nurse

Clinical Psychologist
Clinical Social Worker

WIPFLA1

© Wipfli LLP Page 75



(0) 23

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet M Series

—
Common Mistakes Calculating FTEs:

DO record FTE for clinic time only:

 Time spent in the clinic
Time with SNF patients

«  Time with swing bed patients

DO NOT include non-clinic time for FTE:
Hospital time (inpatient or outpatient)
Administrative time

Committee time

WIPFL1
Worksheet M Series
Sample Reconciliation of Provider FTE:
Clinical FTE 0.70
Administrative FTE 005
Hospital FTE 020
Medical Director FTE 0.05
Total FTE 1.00
WIPFL1

© WipfliLLP Page 76



Lve

wipfli.com/healthcare

Worksheet M Series

RHC Encounters/Visits

“The term 'visit' Is deflned as a face-to-face encounter
between the patient and a physiclan, physician assistant,
nurse practitioner, nurse midwife, speclalized nurse practitioner,
visiting nurse, clinical psychologist, or clinical social worker
during which an RHC service is rendered.”

RHC Manual, Ch.504

WIPFLi

o A8 BT A L

Worksheet M Series

[

Common Mistakes Calculating RHC Visits:
DO include all “visits” that:
~ Take place In the RHC during hours of operation,

- Home visits, and

SNF visits for all payors.
— Swing bed visits for all payors.
* DO NOT include the following "visits":
— Hospital visits (either inpatient or outpatient visits) or

— “Nurse-only” visits in the RHC setting.

WIPFLt

355 A SEATTET ‘ 153

© WipfliLLP Page 77



A%

Worksheet M Series

|

RHC Visits

Counting of "visits” is easier said than done.

Do not include the following in your visit count:
= Units of service instead of visits

- Non-visits (e.g., nurse-only 99211)

- Non-RHC visits (e.g., hospital visits)

- Non-billable visits (e.g., cash only)

Remember: higher visits = lower cost per visit = lower rate!

WIPFLA

T e L seman s 154

Worksheet M Series

#

Productivity Standards:
Physician 4,200 visits annually for 1.0 FTE
Midlevel 2,100 visits annually for 1.0 FTE

Total visits used in calculation of cost per visit is the greater of the actual
visits or minimum allowed (FTEs x Productivity Standard).

An exemption to the productivity standards may be requested on an
annual basis; however, exemption requirements are vague and may be

difficult to obtain. Need to show a unique circumstance as to why the
standard should be reduced.

WIPFL}

g, iy 158

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 78



eve

Medicare Cost Report — Sample Worksheet M-2
e —
Visits and Productivity =~ Numberof Total Productivity Minimum Greater of Total Visits
Position FTEs Visits Standard Visits or Minimum Visits
1 Physician 1.00 2,000 4200 4,200
2 Physician Assistant - - 2,100 -
3 Nurse Practitioner 1.30 3,200 2,100 2,730
4 Sublotal 230 5,200 6,930 6930
Visits and Productivity Numberof Total Productivity Minimum Greater of Total Visits
Posltion FTEs Visits Standard Visits or Minimum Visits
1 Physiclan 0.70 2,000 4200 2940
2 Physician Assistant - - 2100
3 Nurse Practitioner 1.30 3,200 2,100 2,730
4 Subtotal 200 §,200 5,670 5,670
WIPFLA
DY 158
Worksheet M Series
RHC Payment Rate Calculation
Allowable RHC Costs

Greater of Total Visits or Minimum Visits

RHC Cost Per
Encounter

WIPFLA

s is V57

wipfli.com/healthcare

© WipfliLLP Page 79



144>

Worksheet M Series
Allowable RHC Costs $ 750,000 $ 750,000
Greater of Total Visits or Minimum Visits 6,930 5,670
RHC Cost per Encounter $ 108 $ 132
Difference $ 24
Medicare visits 3|000
Increase in reimbursement $ 72,000
WIPFLA
0 A R et e = 158
Worksheet M Series

e

How many of you have Rural Health Clinics
currently not meeting the RHC productivity
standards?

WIPFLA

W LLTH CARF ATTED aur 159
—

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 80



Sve

Other Cost Report Worksheets
= e
H Series N Home Health
K Series N Hospice
| Series = Dialysis
Subproviders = Psych, Acute Rehab, SNF
— May require additional D and E Series worksheets
WIPFL1

« 100
SRR e

Cost-tocharge ratios
Cost per day

Cost per visit (RHC)
Cost per visit (HHA)
Charges I/P & O/P
Patient days

FTEs

Direct cost by department
Allocated cost
Statistical data
Medicare inpatient cost

Medicare outpatient cost

WIPFL1

ol 4414 (A} SLACT N

Useful Information

w/s C

W/S D-1
W/S M3
W/S H-3
W/S C

W/S S-3
W/S S-3
W/S A

W/S B, Part 1
W/S B-1

W/S D-1
W/S D-3
W/S D, Part V

101

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 81



e

Recommended Questions for Review of Cost Report

— S

Do worksheets A and C reconcile to our internal or audited financial statements?
Have we reviewed all miscellaneous revenue and expense accounts for any
necessary A-8 cost adjustments?

Have we captured all allowable costs from related parties (if any)?

Have we summarized time studies for physicians or other departments in the
current year?

Do patient days reconcile to internal statistics or revenue reports?

Have statistics on B-1 been reviewed for reasonableness?

Are costs assigned or allocated to non-reimbursable cost centers appropriate
(including cost centers such as nursery, labor and delivery, nursing home, etc.)?

Are cost-to-charge ratios consistent and reasonable between years?
Have professional fees been properly excluded from worksheet C?
Have we reviewed FTEs and minimum visits in the rural health clinics (if
applicable)?

WIPFL1

(a3) ME=ESY

Questions?

163

WIPFL1

243 mrte

wipfli.com/healthcare

© Wipfli LLP Page 82



A 4>

A .

Thank youl

WIPFL

IR e 2]

Kathy LaBrake
Partner, Health Care Practice

715.843.835]

Holly Pokrandt

er, Health Care Practice

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 83



8¢

WIPFLI1.

CPAs and Consultants

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

wipfli.com/healthcare

wipfli.com/healthcare © Wipfli LLP Page 84



Northern Inyo Hospital

Bishop, California

Fiscal Strategic

Planning
April 21, 2016

WIPFLI.

CPAs and Consultants
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




Today’s Agenda

2:00 - 2:15
2:15 - 3:00
3:00 — 3:45
3:45 - 4:00
4:00 - 4:15

4:15 - 5:00

5:00 - 5:45

5:45 - 6:00

WIPFL1

ELallh <

ARZ FRACTICE

Introductions/Overview of the Day

The Future of Rural Healthcare
Key Success Factors for Critical Access Hospitals
Break

Orientation to Strategic Planning

Exercise: Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and
Threats
Discussion of Future Direction and Prioritization

Wrap up and next steps

350




WII’FLI

CPAs sl
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




A New Era for Healthcare

B e are
& REFORM

WIPFL1




Source: CMS, WSJ
WIPFL1

HEA = CARE PRACTICE

1965 Medicare enacted 1994 2010
Clinton health Obama signs

health law

proposal relecte_.d

6 .................................................................... b R e ey = W ) W e b e
p = l ’
4 PSR CORBPTY: . SUSORSOUN - UGNy . S A et B e e e e vt beeondrmpEatens
L 1]
.. <
-
L
L]
.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

OII|II|IIIIII!IIIl!IIIIIII]llllllllllilllIllllllllil]lll

1970s 1980s 1990s 2000s 2010s | 2020s

“Personal health care costs rose in the 12
months ending in May at the slowest rate in the
last 50 years, as spending on hospital and

nursing home services declined.”
~USA Today, July 29, 2013

353

© WipfliLLP

5




35 ”

> 8
W
@
o¥

Outpatient
services per
FFS Part B

R
R

Cumulative percent change

10 /0/ beneficiary
5 .
0 Inpatient
ki ) discharges
5 = ® per FFS Part A
—~®- - P beneficiary
-10 x
e h] 7%
-20

2006 2008 2010 2012 2013
2007 2009 2011 Fiscql year

WIPFL1
354

HEAL ~ CARE PRACTICE @ WipfliLLP




Medicare enroliment project to grow rapidly as members
of the baby-boom generation age into the program

100

®
o

~l
o

Number of beneficiaries
(in millions)
O~
o

2]
o

40 T i T I I 1 I T
2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

Source: 2014 annual report of the Boards of Trustees of the Medicare trust funds,
https://www.cms.qgov/Research-Statistics-Data-and-Systems/Statistics-Trends-and-
Reports/ReportsTrustFunds/downloads/tr2014.pdf.

WIPFL1L
- X 355

HEALTS CARE PRACTICE ewipfiLLP7




And overall, we’re still on pace
to bankrupt the U.S.

2045: Entitlement spending
matches tax revenue average

30% =
Average
25% Ré\fgﬂe ———— Historical - ,
| Revenue; < Social
A 18.1% Security
A I
20% ¥
\/\r/\./\/ _ < Medicaid,
Obamacare
o Subsidies,
L CHIP
10%
< Medicare
5%
Actual Projected
0 v — 71— 1 ' S

Source: hitp://www.realclearpolicy.com/blog/2012/05/

WIPFL1
1% - 356

Foa = CARD ARACTICE ©Wipfi LLP8




Change is Here

O utcome-based reimbursement
Integrated provider networks

Coordinated care across the care
continuum

Electronic health records (EHRs)
Quality and outcome metrics tracking

Development of ACOs

Health Information exchanges

Rapid consolidation in the industry to achieve
economies of scale and hedge against
WpsE reimbursement risk

357




Health Systems: New Focus

R E—

358

2006 Today

Key success factors for system growth

* Expand market share, strengthen * Expand covered lives, compete on
service lines, exert pricing leverage, outcomes, minimize total cost, assemble
solidify referrals, secure physicians and networks, offer convenience, and
increase utilization expand access
Discharges, service line share, fee- Share of lives, geographic reach, risk-
for- service revenue, pricing growth, based revenue, share of wallet,
occupancy rate, process quality outcomes quality, total cost of care
Inpatient capacity, outpatient imaging * Primary care capacity, care management
centers, ambulatory surgery centers, staff and systems, health IT analytics,

jinical technology and a post-acute care network
wiPfLE

owipti.e 10

RisT~ CARD SRACTICE




Health Systems: New Focus

I R

2006 Today
Key success factors for system growth
Expand market share, strengthen * Expand covered lives, compete on
service lines, exert pricing leverage, outcomes, minimize total cost, assemble
solidify referrals, secure physicians and networks, offer convenience, and
increase utilization expand access

Performance metrics

Discharges, service line share, fee- Share of lives, geographic reach, risk-

for- service revenue, pricing growth, based revenue, share of wallet,

occupancy rate, process quality outcomes quality, total cost of care
Infrastructure

Inpatient capacity, outpatient imaging Primary care capacity, care management

centers, ambulatory surgery centers, staff and systems, health IT analytics,

359
HEA= CARE *RACTICE owipniL.,p 10

Wﬂf‘ﬁﬁ'{nicaﬂ technology and a post-acute care network




Heaith Outcomes

Policies & Pr

I

Cinle

ograms

iy Heaith Rankings mode! © 2014 (W)

WIPFL1

HEAL A TAKkE 254

|~l Length of Life {50%)
r Quality of Life (50%)
Tobacco Use

Health Factors

l

Diet & Exercise

Alcohol & Drug Use

Sexual Activity

Access to Care

|
P B, ey _._ __.J._‘ ,_._. o E—

Quality of Care

o

Education

Employment

Income

Famlly& Social Support

Community Safety

Air & Water Quality |

Housing & Transit

360

Incentives are increasing
for better health

The incentives are
working

A goal for relevancy is to
double the impact of the
rural health delivery
system

ewipfiLLe 11




vvmiﬂiow to Create Accountable Care Organization, First Edition, S
361

O pportunities for Health Care Cost Reduction

Improved

Inpatient Care
Efficiency Useof
Lower-Cost
Treatments

Reduction in
Adverse

%sp;, ged u ctj[ort\) Iin
reventable |mproved T
Readmissions Mapnagement Eg\f/glf-COSt Lower
of Complex  Settings & Total
Patients Providers # Health
s All Providers Care
practic eductionin
. ary care .. Preventable Cost
prime Reductionin ER Visits &
Improved _lIanecegsaw Admissions
Improved Practice Resfmgl
Prgvention Efficiency TeTerras
& Early
Diagnosis FIGURE 1

eptember 7, 2009; 2009, Center for Healthcare Quality and Payment

bt

CAaRz eeAlnls

owipfiLLe 12



Rural Hospitals Will be Part of the Larger Continuum of Care

Delive®y

362

WIPFL1

bt A CARE FRACTICE




Key Factors Influencing Rural Healt
/

Structural change in healthcare driven by

unsustainable economics

e Happening in both the public and private markets

Changes in payment are leading to changes in delivery

« Immediate emphasis on efficiency and quality

e Increasing importance of primary care
e Rationalization of system (“what is delivered where”)

Sustainability (feasibility) is how well providers

respond

WIPFL1
363

FEAT = CARE 2RACHCE




Current Payment

WIPFL1

BEALTH LARE PR

ACTICE

Primary Care

Specialists

6668

Hospitals (IP, OP ER)

a®

¢

I\

OP Diagnostics /

>

Long-Term Care -~

S

S

www.wipfli.com
364

15

Each unit of service is
paid without constraint:

C oordination may not exist
Poor quality can be rewarded
Incentives do not exist to
reduce utilization or find
optimal care location
Prevention not emphasized
Variation based on insurance
coverage

Reform begins to introduce
quality into equation

owipfiLte 15




A

avments: Accountable Care Organizations

New

T

Cost and quality are
primary outcomes:

* Primary care coordinates
population care

* Health care managed to optimize
outcomes

* Prevention and patient self-
management emphasized

* Many options for payment
including:

a|qissod

* Shared savings
* Partial per person fee
* Global fee

i.com 16

365
owipfiLLe 16




‘Rural Relevance under
Healthcare Reform Study”

Perform as well as or better than urban
hospitals in primary care on:

v Quality

v~ Patient satisfaction

v Operational efficiency

Appropriately referred to tertiary care
centers for care they could not provide

58 hospitals closed in past decade: 283 are
reportedly on the brink

366

WIPFL1

HEALTH Jafs PRNCRIICE




Lower Rural Costs

Medicare Cost per Beneficiary for Hospital,
Physician and Outpatient Services, 2010

9,000 '
' 47,924

SB.000 -

£7,500 -

&7.000 -

56,500 -

56,000 -

%5900 -

55 000

Urban H5A Rural PPS HSA Rural CAH HSA
o . ) : ) - - " Beneficiaries (millions)

Urban HSA 20.02
Rural PPS HSA 3.72
Rural CAH HSA 1.71

Source: Dartmouth Atlas of Healthcare, 2010 Medicare reimbursements per enrollee (Parts A and B) for hospital, physician, and outpatient services Price, age,
sex & race-adjusted. Hospital service areas (HSA) divided into urban and rural based on 2010 Census data. Areas with a Prospective Payment System (PPS)
general acute or a Critical Access Hospital (CAH) were assigned accordingly.

WIPFL1
367

HEALT < CARE PRACTICE © WipfliLLP




Challenges For Rural Hospitals

#

Aging and shrinking population; higher —
percentage of government payers (Medicare, =
Medicaid)

Patient outmigration to larger population centers

Defining and developing role within an
‘accountable care environment”

Difficulty recruiting providers and staff
Inability to reduce cost structure further

G rowing cost of technology (EHR, Quality, Pop.
Health management, etc.)

Aging plant; significant capital needs

WIPFL1
368

RIa~ CARE FRACTICE owipie 19




Strategic affiliations, partnerships, and joint ventures?

“ Spectrum of relationships
“ Both short and long-term strategic consequences

“ Can involve varying degrees of joint governance
“ Various degrees of risk and reward involved

Typically, the greater the S invested, the greater control required and the
greater the difficulty in the formation

WIPFL1

Foa e CaRE SRACICE

369

© WipfliLLP

20




What Smaller Hospitals Want From Affiliation

#

2006 Today

Clinical Expertise Expertise; clinical, operational,

C ash infusion technology, data management

T Bargaining power
Increased access to specialists gaining p

Protection from
irrelevance/guarantee of acute
Access to Capital care presence in the community

Broader scope of services

Support for quality programs and
new models of care

WIPFL1
370

Fia - CaRz SRACTICE owipfiLe 21




Transformation

A rural health system for offering coordinated emergency, primary care, diagnostic
testing and community wellness services within a system of care that reduces costs,
improves quality and transforms population health.

WIPFL1
371

CWipfiLLe 22




Key Success Factors for CAHs

CPAs
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




How Can We Remain Successful?
L

New Revenue Streams
}Ik | Reduce Costs

FY 2013 VCHO

Solid Waste & Recycling Expense

373

WIPFL1
HE ST CARE BRACTICE owipiiLLe 24




Successful Rural Hospitals - Top 10 C haracteristics

e i e = ————— T M M S S T e e e e R L e e

Leadership - Clear Vision of Future
Strategies are Implemented

Partnerships are a Priority

Focus on the Community

Engages Providers in Hospital Business
‘Right” Complement of Services

Regular Financial Monitoring

Embraces Data and Information Systems
Foundation and/or Other Cash Reserves

Aware of Policies Affecting Future
WIPFL1

374




SHIFT FROM VOLUME TO VALUE

2

Fee-for-sandice

Patient

Treat

WIPFL1

HEALLH CAKE PRACHCE

Sednm

PAYMENT

FOCUS

INCENTIVE

375

o

)

{

Captated

e JURTN RS S
Fopuiation

Pravent

. :
* .
’ <
{, .
[ .
‘ -
.
A\ .
.
; %
P .
,
- -
.
by ¢
. ‘
. .
- .
N .
A ;
. -
. .
- -
- L4
S .
L :

TSI IE (T < 8 YN SRR iy [ JEGL NS
CUNCHED, SHRnEG SWdEnNgs,

owpiLe 20




No. 1: Leadership and Clear Vision

—_— n— s e E—— e e T S e e S e

Trends in the Cumulative Number of Individuals Who Have
Selected a Marketplace Plan, 10-1-13 to 3-1-14

Over 4.2 million people have selected a Marketplace plan since October 1st. including
2.6 million who have selected a plan through the FFM

4,500,000 _— — —

4,000,000
3,500,000
3,000,000
2.500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000

500,000

—
0 e

Week 1 Week 5 Week 9 Week 13 Week 18 Week 22
(10-1-13) (11-2-13) {11-30-13) (12-28-13) {2-1-14) {3-1-14)

New users of healthcare will be emerging

The cumulative number of young adults (18 - 34) selecting a

marketplace plan increased 33%
WIPFLI1 e

HE AT E CARE PRACTHCE owiptitte 27




No. 1: Leadership and Clear Vision

Increasing
consumer out of
pocket

—@— All firms
& Large firms (200+ workers}
-~ Smmall firms (3-193 workers) 50%

More collected from

individuals 0% //r

Internal . 1%

opportunities to / 22,0///

lower costs and
improve benefits B /'/ .

13%
12% ;
10% ; B
9%
o —
B 9%
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Source; Kaiser Family Foundation —2074 Employer Health Benefits Survey

WIPFL1

HiAT = JARZ PLACTICE

377

Percentage of High Deductible Health Plans

46% /.-/l_

B

61%
|
58%
.
P
-’f"-
49%/"’
1%
38% /./-I
34%
32%
.
28%
26% ]
B
2012 2013 2014

owpniLte 28




No. 1: Leadership and Clear Vision

Expect lower inpatient use...

125 - Inpatient Admissions per 1,000 Persons, 1993 - 2013

- 1193

o 120 -
R il
I
2 115
]
2 110
= Compound Adjusted
3 105 Annual Rate Decline of 2%
© ) 106.3
g since 2008

100

95 -

93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 H 12 13

Source: Avalere Health analysis of American Hospital Association Annual Survey data, 2013, for community hospitals. US Census Bureau: National
and State Population Estimates, July 1, 2013.
Link; http://www.census.gov/popest/data/state/totals/2011/index.html.

WIPFL1.
378

HEALT< CARE PRACTICE owipnie 29




No. 1: Leadership and Clear Vision

And higher outpatient use

vee Total Hospital O utpatient Visits in Community Hospitals

678
600
500
) ' .
5 400 Compound Adjusted Annual
= 321 Rate Increase of 3%
300
200

93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 O1 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 M1 12 13

Source: Avalere Health analysis of American Hospital Association Annual Survey data, 2011, for community hospitals.

WIPFL1
379
30

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE © WipfilLLP




Options for Success

“Dual Approach”

Miaintain strategies and
tactics for success in
“current” environment

Proactively position organization for the
“anticipated” future environment

380

WIPFL1




No. 2: Strategies are Implemented

#

Does meaningful strategic planning at L
least annually W S

Evaluates strategic progress regularly

Communicates the plan organization-wide
in easy-to-understand language

Supports plan with clear tactics,
responsibilities, and time frame for completion

WIPFL1
381




No. 3: Partnerships are a Priority

Social Service Agencies

Home Health Agency

Hospice

Nearby Rural
Hospitals

Pharmacies

County Health Dept.

382

WIPFL1

FELT= CARE PRACHCE OWipliLLP 33




No. 3: Partners are a Priority

Creating the Case for Joint Strategies

Develop a business case for
need/resource requests

Data-driven
Input from physicians/providers

Thinks about solutions to the
geography given scarce resources

Evaluate finanical implications

383

WIPFL1

ST CaRE PRACTICE




No. 3: Partnerships are a Priority

Servive Line:  Orlhupedics Inpali ent Oulpalient Tulal

Market opportunity PSA SEA TSA Total PSA Total Total
Market Size 417 273 156 846
Current Market Share 54.4% 21 3% 14.15% 36.3%
9 | fnavailable 1.4% 5.56¢6 4.5% 313%
Toup Cumpelilion CL - 16.2%, BMC - 13.6%
Note that share info is from 2008 and does not refiect the loss of Dr. X- 09 Volumes are down 30%

Profitability
Mot Revenuc 1,548,378 702,313 2,445 171
Expense §51,655 526,535 1,473,190
Margin 54,723 376,278 G71,001

Physician Supply/Need (All Service Areas - 100% Market Share)

Physician supply (CH) 2
Mkt Share Physician necd 2.7
Net Needf{ v ersupply) 6.7

Note that there are 2.4 total merket TTCsand a market demand of 4.8 - net market undersupply is 2.4
Physician Leadership

Dr. X accountsforthe majority of cases - he hasindicated that heplans toretire in 2-4 years

Call issues have arisen dueto lossofDr.Y
Capacity/faciny lssues

OR capacity had been issue with three physician
Service | ine Risks

Huspilall and Huspilal 2 expanding presence al loval CAHs - filling v oid [efl by Di. X

384

WIPFL1

HEad = CARE PRACTICE

© WipfliLLP

35




No. 4: Focus On Co mmunity

Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) mandates focus
on the community

Reporting and data transparency

Critical access hospitals (CAHs) are the engine of the

: It is easy to get feedback from
COMMUNILY 1o engage the our patients, we need input from

community in a way that they our community.
truly feel they add value.

Start small - focus on employee
health improvement, or one
primary issue in your community

' S.
We need to turn stakeholders into partner

385
36



ngages Providers in Hospital Business

Projected Primary Care Shortages
Challenge for rural

® Supply 241,200 providers
® Demand

Modern facilities

220,800 help recruitment

212,500

205,000 '
Practice approach

and lifestyle

Opportunity with
population health

386
FEaT~ CARE PRACHCE owipiLLe 37




No. 6: “Right” Complement of Services

Community Organizational
View View
Is the patient

experience
standardized?

Based on What are your

current
volumes?

Community
Needs

What would the
patient (and
family) say?

Are you really
good at this
service?

Market Share

Assessment

387

WIPFL1




No. 6: “Right” Complement of Services

#

Know Vulnerability of Volumes - Ambulatory-Sensitive Conditions
Angina
Asthma
Bacterial pneumonia
Cellulitis

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD)
Congestive heart failure

Convulsions Medicare is scrutinizing admissions
Dehydration for “ambulatory-sensitive
Diabetes conditions” to challenge whether
G astroenteritis these conditions could be treated
Hypertension effectively on an outpatient basis.
Kidney/urinary infections

WIPFL1 -
His = CapE SRACHCE © WipfliLLP 39




Volumes Related to Ambulatory-Sensitive C onditions

Days
DRG Service Line of %

Total Days of Care 1,048
194 |SIMPLE PNEUMONIA & PLEURISY W CC Pulmonology 77 5%
690| KIDNEY & URINARY TRACT INFECTIONS W/O MCC Urology 53 3%
392| ESOPHAGITIS, GASTROENT & MISC DIGEST DISORDERS G astroenterology/ID 44 3%
865| VIRAL ILLNESS W MCC Infectious Disease 41 3%
192| CHRONIC OBSTRUCTIVE PULMO NARY DISEASE Pulmonology 38 3%
948|SIGNS & SYMPTOMS W/O MCC Neurology/Cancer/G enl Med 37 2%
775| VAGINAL DELIVERY W/O COMPLICATING DIAGNOSES Women's Health 35 2%
195|SIMPLE PNEUMONIA & PLEURISY W/O cc/MccC Pulmonology 33 2%
603 |CELLULITIS W/O MCC G eneral Medicine 15 1%
641|MISC DISORDERS OF NUTRITION,METABOLISM G eneral Medicine 13 1%
203 | BRONCHITIS & ASTHMA W/O CC/MCC Pulmonology 4 0%

Of the top DRGs at, the disease states in blue are those that CMS has
targeted for potential treatment on an outpatient basis vs. inpatient

The DRG s could be nursing home patients with common ailments,
complicated by multiple health issues and meeting current criteria for

inpatient stays
WIPFL1

HEa T~ CARE FRACTICE owipniLe 40




No. 6: “Right” Complement of Services

#

Inpatient services coverindirect costs

Outpatient services drive profitability and ability to subsidize other
necessary services/loss leaders

Tvpical CAH Annual Profitability bv Patient Setting

Charges Reimburse Direc Contributio Indirec Total
- ment t n Margin t Margi
Costs Costs n
P $8,200,531 $4,991,532 $2,494,534 $2,496,998 $2,429,492 $65,042

OoP $35,669,064 $18,985,684 $8,951,055 $10,034,629 $6,654,660 2,296,395/
Swing  $1,856,571 $2,072,537 $1,008,686 $1,063,851 $1,022,918 ($14,232)
$45,726,167 $26,049,753 $12,454,275 $13,595,478 $10,107,070  $2,347,205

Currently 66% Charges at NIH are OP

390

WIPFL1

B2l - CARE SRACTICE owietiLe 41




No. 6: “Right” Complement of Services

#

Typically, 90% of o % of % of
rural outpatient Volumes, Shaimes
WislimE ie COLONOSCOPY 23% 13%
distributed into four |OTHER EXTRACAPSULAR EXTRACTION LENS 14% 17%
cervice lines CLOS [ENDO] BX LARGE INTESTINE 9% 6%
’ EGD W/CLOS BX 8% 6%
ENDO POLYPECTOMY LARGE INTESTINE 8% 6%
_ _ ENDO DESTRUC OTH LES/TISS LG INTEST 5% 3%
G astrointestinal L APAROSCOPIC CHOLECYSTECTOMY 2% 8%
G eneral surgery UNILATERAL REPAIR ING HERNIA NOS 3% 5%
OTHER UNILAT REPAIR INGUINAL HERNIA 2% 5%
Ophthalmology ~ IREPAROFHERNA s —
O rthopedics

WIPFL1
— Source: Wipfli Benchmark Data 391

BEAT CARE PRACTCE owipnile 42




No. 7: Regular Financial Monitoring

Operating Margin (%) A= Good

Reflects your profitability from active patient care and
related operations

Eormi oo T e T e Sarein [ag] A\= Good

How actual cash you made before accounting for non-cash item
capital expenses (depreciation) divided by revenues

Days Cash on Hand — All Sources (Number) A= Good
The number of days you could operate and pay expenses if
your revenue stream were to be reduced or eliminated

Debt Service Coverage (Ratio) A= Good

Measures your ability to cover your current year interest and
principal payment

Debt-to-Capitalization V= Good

What you owe (long term) versus what you own

WIPFL1

HEA = CARE 8RACTICE owipiiL,e 43




No. 7: Regular Financial Monitoring

Essential to have appropriate financial and operational
indicators

Financial ratios for CAHs are determined by:

— Size of CAH
— Service mix
— Position in the capital cycle

. . .. What’s Your Handicap?
Interim Medicare cost reports can help mitigate  \\at course Are You Playing?

cash flow issues

Use monitoring to identify ‘issues” early

WIPFL1
393

HEATH CARE PRACTICE

© WipfliLLP 44




WIPF]

Hoanewiens
£ oon P atw ot Hoverves
Aasesareet Ve Daveram
Dedmrens From Revomus
ol P atben Rev premr &
e Ogeratrg Roverme

E wpevaon :
[Salires, Derwtos & O ool st L sdon
Pyt haied Sarvas s & Phymiar B oot
el € e s

Aasesarmeadt Tae

Onher Cperiteng € wpe vres

Bad Dedt Exgarie
Depracimon & ivarest Cxpatne

NET OPERATING SURLL

(5 M Y TS

TTotus AR Frasart Diypy

Ao srage Addt Uady Caviass

A arage ASA Aage Lunsgt of Shay

W eaw Ervaprmpaes y Haare Yoty
Feterned Totu Cumpatrert Vists

T ets Gurgeres

Yroatwnd (woen Rew 8% 8 % of Tote
U ateet Censn Kiav 21 4 % of Tope
i aedractunl Abes wran Y

Toted Werbked FTES

(Totsl Py FTE s

Pad FTE ¢ gor Alpstat Oisigprat G
[Salary wod Bane¥s o5 o % of Yoot Hev
EDTOA - YVID

HEALTR CARE RRACTICE

¥

5 .(E ‘u

$10 oo 0 o1 2a2 a2
a98aTe BFRLIE | emme
R 6AA| SONITH
232 % T gy | V.
N pee
S HSREY 28 D00 S27
& 087 76 57 852
aswsm | s2o0r0 | ™
Y6822 25D
EPOIE E9¥MES ! y e
CI2% LIS 57 - Bt SRS S
DAy CASE ONMAND

Paas Fgog vop fos

© WipfliLLP




No. 8: Embraces Data and Information Systems
#
Necessary to have significantly more staff in finance and IT

The “new” capital need

Whole host of nhew compliance/confidentiality issues

Many CAHs are overwhe\n_’\ea Wé‘trtxo

reporting requirements, itis arthat

address internal data gatherm%’tons Measurement takes the

supports your goals and opera ; politics g bt
and drives performance.

upportive systems
to embrace and

support change, it 1s not going to
happen.

WIPFL1

Fia - JARD SRACTICE

395
owipiiLe 46




No. 8: Embraces Data and Information Systems

Can be
non-sequential
and iterative

. 1 Analytics

Business
_____ Intelligence
Data Foundation Ddia

Management

Data integration, warehousing, master lists

WIPFL1

BE2uin CaR: PRACIICE

Source: Dell Healthcare Analytics Adoption Model 783 . 47
©WipliLLP




No. 8: Embraces Data and Information Systems

Business Intelligence = Meaningful, Actionable Information
Easy, fun and fast to use
Self-reliance — no calls to IT
Flexibility
Exportable

Confidence in data

Not too expensive

WIPFL1




No. 9: Financial Position and Cash Reserves

The Power of Cash Flow

Positive cash flow (profit) fuels a hospital’s ablllty tb
meet routine capital and expenditures

Why is Cash Important?
War chest to pursue strategic opportunities </ Fioo = King
Cushion to absorb reimbursement changes Cash Is Oiiees
Endowment for future health care in the community \J)
and to support mission-critical services P s

WIPFL1 "
Fia - Jaks FRACHCE owiptiLe 49




Building Cash: Medicare/Medi-Cal Reimbursement

Two primary types of hospital reimbursement methodologies for Medicare and Medi-Cal

' Prospective Payment System (PPS) ...similar to Medi-Cal

Cost-Based System (CAH) ...

WIPFL1

101% Medicare allowable costs for inpatient, swing bed, and
outpatient services, but not for

professional services done in a hospital setting,
certain lab services, screening mammography services,
and some minor medications and supplies.

Applies a 2% reduction in reimbursement - until 2025.

Medicare bad debt is reimbursed at 65% (previously 100%).

399




Building Cash: Medicare/Medi-Cal Reimbursement

Total Reduction

(202,500)

WIPFL1

e

tAT - CARD BRACTICE

400

Part A PartB PartB
Cost Cost MFFS Total
Sample CAH (2010) 5,000,000 10,000,000 2,000,000 17,000,000
Sequestration (2% Net Reim) (100,000) (200,000) (40,000) (340,000)
Bad Debt (From 100% to 65%) (52,500) (105,000) (157,500)
Meaningful Use (1%IP & 1+MFFS) (50,000) (20,000) (70,000)
PQRS (2% MFFS) (40,000) (40,000)
VBM (2%-4% MFFS) (80,000) (80,000)
Sample CAH (2017) 4,797,500 9,695,000 1,820,000 16,312,500

(180,000)

(687,500)

© Wipfli LLP




Potential Medicare Reimbursement Impact

] A S R

Opportunity Estimated Period
Impact

Implementation of Separate Capital Cost $50,000 Annually

Center (IP/ER area)

Bad Debt Policy Revision $500,000 One-time

RHC Flu & Pneumo Cost (do not bill Medicare TBD Annually

Reclassified of Skilled Nursing Facility Days $43,000 2015
Immediate total impact $593,000

Ensure collection efforts per policy are the same for all payor types, and any recoveries of bad debts claimed in prior
years are offset against amounts claimed in current year

Cost-based reimbursement is two to three times standard payment levels for Pneumonia and flu immunizations; do
NOT bill Medicare log only

Count SNF and NF swing bed days separately

WIPFLI1

Fia7 - CakE SRACTHCE owipliLLe D2




No. 10: Aware of Policies Affecting Future

/

CAH facilities represent . . .

25% of all community hospitals CcC/V7S

60% Of a” ru r-al hOSpi1:a|S CENTERS for MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

Less than 5% of Medicare expenditures

1,300+ essential access points

WIPFL1

Source: NRHA, Critical Access Hospitals: Adding 4X23lue to the American Healthcare System




Rural Hospital Closures: 2010 — March 2016

WA
OR
ID
1 Nv
uT
CA
AZ
AK
Hi

WIPFL1

Hewll s CARE PRACTICE

CALIFORNIA CLOSINGS

Colusa Regional Medical Center
Corcoran District Hospital
Kingsburg Medical Center

ND
MN
1A
NE 1
KS

Updated: March 2016

OH

FL

vT
NH

NY | MA1

CT \~—__

RI
PA

DC (Operational)

BeneStream

Source: University of North Carolina Rural Health Research Program

403

© WipfliLLP

54




No. 10: Aware of Policies Affecting Future
#

Communicate that investing in rural health care is
needed for both:

— Rural community
— Rural patient (and maintaining access
to care)

Demonstrate cost effectiveness of providing
care in rural America

WIPFL1 Source Critical Access Hospitals: Adding Val&e to the American Healthcare System

© WipfliLLP 55

Fn T CARE S3ACTHCE



Rural Hospitals Have a Lot to be Proud of...

Rural hospital performance on CMS Process of Care measures is on par
with urban hospitals

Rural hospital performance on CMS outcome measures in better than
urban hospitals

Medicare spent $2.2 billion less on rural beneficiaries or -3.7% than on
urban beneficiaries

W Source: ‘Rural Relevance Under Healthcare Reform”(based on Medicare Shared Savings Data Files) 1/23/12
IPFL1 http://www.ivantagehealth.com/ 405

REa = CARE RACHCE owipfiLLe D6




Focus on NIH

VIrrL

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




Benchmarking: NIH Volumes

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Fiscal Year 6/30/15

Bottom performance group &£

WIPFL1L

CPAs and Consultants

Below average performance group
Above average performance group

Best performance group

*

50th
Hospital Quartile 75th
Indicator Values Mean Min. 25th Quartile (Median) Quartile Max.
Total Surgeries 1,313 € 742 84 285 541 994 3,032
ER Visits 8,831 ‘ﬁ" 5,874 1,215 3,246 4,552 7,975 21,405
Births 198 ¢ 142 1 47 155 215 359
Lab Tests 115,335 77,838 18,258 41,145 61,219 87,884 373,409
Radiology Tests 12,224 4 8,096 1,272 4,007 6,544 11,873 26,986
CT Tests 1,405 2,796 488 1,058 1,489 2,743 33,175
Ultrasound Tests 2,137 4 1,894 343 773 1,082 1,585 17,693
MRI Tests 7,193 4 763 65 276 367 850 7,193
Respiratory Therapies 50,686 11,787 828 3,728 9,018 14,745 66,902
Physical Therapies 20,362 15,036 353 6,013 12,922 19,888 56,448
Pharmacy U nits 255434 @ 115,668 0 63,773 89,328 179,251 355,880

WIPFL1

£27= CaRE SHACTICE

407

© WipfliLLP




Benchmarking: NIH Costs

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Fiscal Year 6/30/15

Bottom performance group i

WI PFLI Below average performance group
un Above average performance group

CPAs and Consultants Best performance group 4 Soth
Quartile 75th
Indicator Hospital Values Mean Min. 25th Quartile  {Median) Quartile Max.
Labor Hours 700,960 4> 416,110 140,816 247,718 333,476 535,933 1,108,744
Hours per APD 58.44 {,L 28.00 7.23 20.16 26.45 33.54 62.99
O utpatient Revenue % 66.7% < 78.1% 48.2% 73.8% 78.2% 84.7% 92.5%
ER S per Visit $545.12 <t $379.48 $115.77 $261.12 $373.60 $475.64 $945.73
Nursing Expense per APD $254.16 ) $156.74 $50.43 $92.31 $133.66 $190.86 $633.64
ICU Expense per Day $4,894.88 4+ $1,958.08  $448.59 $985.94 $1,731.41 $2,136.14 $5,256.00
Surgery Expense per Surgery $3,199.73 {& $1,783.59  $249.36 $937.54 $1,417.22 $2,142.25 $5,431.27
S per Lab Test $41.57 <) $20.57 $1.38 $15.63 $18.94 $22.39 $58.48
S per Radiology Test $423.74 4 $153.46 $41.77 $98.78 $138.95 $167.34 $464.32
S per Physical Therapies $58.56 4 $46.93 $6.78 $27.88 $39.46 $46.12 $207.39

WIPFL1
408

FEa - CARE SRACTICE owipriLLe D9




Benchmarking: Overhead/G eneral Costs

#

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Fiscal Year 6/30/15

Bottom performance group 3
Below average performance group

WI PFLI . Above average performance group

CPAs and Consualtants Best pemonmance gRosp L 50th
Quartile 75th
Indicator Hospital Values Mean Min. _ 25th Quartile (Median)  Quartile Max.
Cost (Salaries/Benefits) per Hour $54.80 N4 $37.18  $21.28 $31.17 $36.99 $41.69 $54.80
Hours per APD 58.44 ¥ 28.00 7.23 20.16 26.45 33.54 62.99
Maintenance S per Square Foot $14.46 ¥ $9.96 $2.48 $6.77 $9.40 $11.94 $36.77
Housekeeping $ per Square Foot $10.04 4 $4.49 $1.09 $2.66 $3.39 $5.41 $18.23
Medical Records S per Acute APD $81.96 4} $28.77 $3.97 $17.00 $23.93 $37.93 $109.17
Human Resources $ per All APD $39.90 A $23.13 $2.17 $7.39 $15.37 $26.41 $189.18
Finance $ per All APD $62.93 4 $24.87 $0.00 $9.84 $20.07 $33.09  $98.22

WIPFL1
e . 409

HEL "= CARE SRACTICE owpnie 60




Future Direction and
Strategic Prioritization

st

HEALTH CARE PRACTICE




It Used to be Simpler. ..
#
Medicine was genuinely simpler, requiring less in the
way of expensive equipment and specialized
technical personnel

Care was relatively cheap and structures of
reimbursement were rudimentary (frequently
involving patient self-payment)

The Hospital was more

c harity than business

62




Traditional Role of Hospital Board

Comprised of local business people & professionals
Directors raised charitable donations (no Foundation Board)
Encouraged volunteer participation in hospital life

Light oversight of management that was lean and
uncomplicated by today’s standards

TO DAY

Boards have not only the fiscal responsibility of

the hospital, but also responsibility for
the quality and cost of care.

412

WIPFL1




Evolution of Role of Hospital Boards

-% >
Pre-1950’s 21st Century
< - - ——— i
Philanthropic Transitional Operational Strategic
|
B : + '
Funding Source  Education of Long Range Creating a
for Hospital the Public on Planning and Change-Ready
Operations the Role of the  Maintaining the Future and
Hospital Course Turning Strategic
Opportunities into
| Reality

WIPFL1
413

FZa - CAkD PUACTICE © WipfliLLP

64




Overview of Strategic Finanical Planning

Prioritize N
& Tactics
Quantify
* |dentify key e Translates potential e Specifying exactly
elements to impact of initiatives  how you will proceed
carry forward in on financial position  (i.e., what tasks)
st|rateg|c e Revisit and agree e Assign team to
planning upon priorities for develop tactics to
¢ Defining what strategic initiatives achieve strategic
you will do initiatives
WIPFL1

414

FZa~ CARD PRACHCE ©WipﬂiLL§




Strategic Planning Process

T e e e ——— T e e R T

ANALYSIS PHASE (on-going, open, participative)

Opportunities | Key Success
& Threats Factors

(Internal)

\ PLANNING PHASE

———

Finanical O perational

Strategic _, Assessment —» Organization _ Department _, Tactics
Initiatives Goals Goals

WIPFL1

415




Board

Senior Management &

Medical Staff
Management
Supervisor

WIPFL1

HEA"H CARE PRACTICE

——— Strategic

" ——— Operational

e

—_——-‘-_J

—___ Tactical

ewipfitte 67




For Discussion— Key Strategic Questions

ﬂ

What issues are most relevant to NIH today, in the future?
Are we doing all we can to maximize how we are paid today?
s there a need for additional management or clinical expertise?

How are we preparing our community for changes in healthcare and
the role of the hospital?

Are we properly aligning our primary care practices with the quality and
cost-effectiveness goals of tomorrow?

Will there be access to capital for improvements and for transformation
into a consumer-facing organization?

Which initiatives should be the primary focus?

WIPFL1
417

B 7o CARE SRACTICE SWiphiLLP

68




“ To be Completed on Site

“ Short term

“ Longer term

These initiatives will be supported by tactics to

achieve in documented strategic plan.
WIPFLI1 v

HEALT= CARE PRACTICE

© WipfliLLP




Next Steps

#

Session #2

Present quantitative information on current and future state
“‘Status quo”

Model two or three key initiatives identified today to project
high-level cost estimates and impact on financials

Refine strategic options and project impact onto financial
situation as necessary

419

WIPFL1




WIPFLI.

CPAs and Consultants
HEALTH CARE PRACTICE

wipfli.com/healthcare




NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

DISTRICT BOARD RESOLUTION 19-03

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 932 of the statutes of 1933 was added to the California
Government Code to create Health Care Districts; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District does hereby
finds that the deposit and withdrawal of money, the creation and maintenance of accounts for
the benefits and compensation of the employees, payment of vendors and suppliers of the
Health Care District and its business entities as outlined in Section 1, Division 23, Article 2; of
the Statute and,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo
Healthcare District does hereby authorize the creation and maintenance of accounts the
deposit of monies and withdrawal of monies of Northern Inyo Healthcare District for the
purpose of operating the business entities of the District and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors,
meeting in regular session this 20t day of March, 2019 that the Chief Executive Officer; Kevin S.
Flanigan, MD, MBA; Chief Operating Officer, Kelli Davis; Chief Nursing Officer, Tracy Aspel, and
the Chief Financial Officer; John Tremble, or their successors in office, shall be authorized to
operate all financial accounts of the organization and to create additional accounts as needed
to meet the business needs of the Healthcare District in accordance with Section 1, Division 23,
Article 2 of the California Chapter 932 Statute.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be made a part of the minutes of this
meeting.

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, President Date
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Attest:

Robert Sharp, Secretary Date
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

421



DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING
POLICY AND PROCEDURE ANNUAL APPROVAL

1. CT Dose Documentation

422



Med/Surg Policies

For BOD Review March, 2019

Title:
Admission Procadure to the Acute Sub Acute Department®
Chart Check Guidelines
Cylinder Safely and Handiing
Discharge Planning for Homeless Palients
eMAR Downtime Procedurs
Emergency Medication and Code Biue Crash Cart Folicy
FUNCTIONAL RISK ASSESSMENT CRITERIA FIOR THERAPY REFERRAL*
ICU Aguities
interfacility Transfer Guidelines
intubation Tray Adult/Pediatric
ntubation Tray Infant
ron Dextran {imferon) Administration
MG (Intravenous Immune Globuliny
Latex Precautions
Leaving Hospital Against Medical Advice Refusal of Treatment or Transfer
Lidocaine mésmeuc For Local Infiltration Prior To Peripheral Cathaler Placement
Medication Reconcifiation
Myocardial Perfusion Stress Test: Nuclear
Neupogen # Procrit Administration
Nourishment - Patient Requast

NFO Guidelines

Nursing Care of Outpatient Interventionat Radiciogy Patient

Nutritionat &

OmniCell Automated Dispensing Unit (ADU}

Ordering Dielary Supplerments

ORTHOPEDIC HARDWARE

PAPR Respiratar inspeclion Record

Patient Nulritional Care

Patient Warmer (\Wanm Air Hyperthermia Systemj

Physician Certification Farm

Physician Request for Consuit

Poison and Drug Overdose information

Portacath \Vascular Access System

Potassium Intravenous Administration

Radiation Policy for Management of Patients with Excessive Exposure
Recommendation for Prophylaxis After Occupalional Exposure to HEV
Responding fo Venlilator, BiPAP, Vapotherm, EWC02Z and SpO2 Alarms
Saline Lock For Biood Draw

Scope of Service Acute/Subacute*

Self Help tensils

423



Med/Surg Policies

For BOD Review March, 2019
SUBMISSION OF BIOPSY {TISSUE! SPECIMENS (NDT FLUID)
Suegical Drains Care of
Transfer & Transportation for Patients
Warfarin Monitoring Protocol
Warming Cabinet for Blankets/Solutions
Wound Vac - Yacuum Assistas Closure Systam AT

0

424



Nursing Administration Policies
For BOD Review March, 2019

(Title:
Blood Product Repiacement During Obstelric Hemorrhage
Discharge Planning for Homeless Patlenis
Entries i the Madical Record
Guide to Release of Patient information to the Media
Guidelines for Employee Transportation of Patients
Guidelines for Licensed Nurses Nursing Students Giving Medications
Kronos Timekeeping Sysiem '
Leaving Hospital Against Medical Advice Refusal of Treaiment or Transter
Legal Bipod Alcohal Intake Farm Compietion of the
Med Occurrence/Med Errors Scoring and Qi Form
Medication Occurrence Report
Medication Reconciliation
Nursing Care of Quipatient intervestional Radioiogy Patient
Nursing Department Dress Code
Nursing Instructor Policy
OmniCell Automated Cispensing Unit (ADU)
Patient Visitation Rights
Plan for the Provision of Nursing Cane
Procedures Requiring Informed Consents
Recommendation for Prophylaxis Afier Occupational Exposure to HIV

Release of Pafient information to News Media and Patient's Right to Confidentiality
Responsibilities of Nursing Students and Hospital Staif

Safe injection Practices

Withholding Resuscitative Measures

425



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors

Special Meeting

January 28, 2019
Page 1 of 1

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

OPPORTUNITY FOR
PUBLIC COMMENT

LEADERSHIP
STRUCTURE
PRESENTATION

BOARD EDUCATION
BROWN ACT;
COMPLIANCE; ETHICS;
AND GOVERNANCE

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am by Mary Mae Kilpatrick,
President, in the Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Room
at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop California.

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, President

Jean Turner, Vice President

Robert Sharp, Secretary

Peter Tracy, Treasurer

M.C. Hubbard, Member at Large

Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer
John Tremble, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Kilpatrick announced at this time persons in the audience may speak
only on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be
limited to a maximum of three minutes each. No comments were heard.

Chief Executive Officer Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA provided a
presentation on Leadership Structure Evolution at the Healthcare District,
which included the following:
e Definitions and role expectations for NIHD Chiefs; Directors;
Managers; Assistant Managers; and Coordinators
e Impact of the nurses’ union Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on District management
e Leadership comparison, September 2015 to present

District Legal Counsel Colin Coffey then provided Board education
session on the following topics:

- Fiduciary compliance responsibility

- Transparency, ethics, and governance

- Conflicts of interest

- The Brown Act

- Key excerpts from Local Healthcare District Law

He additionally distributed orientation materials for newly elected
officials, and tips for Chief Executive and staff success.

The meeting was adjourned at 1:37 pm.

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, President

Attest:

Robert Sharp, Secretary

426




Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors February 20, 2019

Regular Meeting

Page 1 of 5

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

OPPORTUNITY FOR
PUBLIC COMMENT

CHIEF OF STAFF
REPORT

POLICY AND
PROCEDURE
APPROVALS

ANNUAL REVIEWS
APPROVALS

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Mary Mae Kilpatrick,
President.

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, President

Jean Turner, Vice President

Robert Sharp, Secretary

Peter Tracy, Treasurer

M.C. Hubbard, Member at Large

Allison Robinson MD, Chief of Staff

Kevin S. Flanigan MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer
Kelli Davis, Chief Operating Officer

John Tremble, Chief Financial Officer

Tracy Aspel RN, Chief Nursing Officer

Ms. Kilpatrick announced at this time persons in the audience may speak
on any items not on the agenda for this meeting on any matter within the
jurisdiction of the District Board, and speakers will be limited to a
maximum of three minutes each. Comments were heard from Robbin
Cromer-Tyler MD, who informed the Board that Allison Robinson MD
has been appointed to the American Board of Surgeons’ Board of
Directors as on June 2019.

Chief of Staff Allison Robinson, MD reported following careful review,
consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical
Executive Committee recommends approval of the following hospital-
wide Policies and Procedures:

1. Bone Graft Tissue Bank

2. Preoperative Interview

3. Scheduling of Nursing Personnel
It was moved by M.C. Hubbard, seconded by Peter Tracy, and
unanimously passed to approve Policies and Procedures 1 through 3 as
presented.

Doctor Robinson also reported the Medical Executive Committee
recommends approval of the following Annual Reviews:
1. Plan to Eliminate or Substantially Reduce Medication-Related Errors
2018-2019

2. Critical Indicators 2019

i.  Emergency Department Critical Indicators

ii.  Surgical Critical Indicators

iii.  Anesthesia Critical Indicators

iv.  Neonatal Critical Indicators

v.  Pediatric Critical Indicators

vi.  Perinatal Critical Indicators
vii.  ICU Critical Indicators
viii.  Medical Services Critical Indicators

427




Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors February 20, 2019
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 5

ix.  RHC Critical Indicators
It was moved by Mr. Tracy, seconded by Jean Turner, and unanimously
passed to approve all Annual Reviews as presented.

STANDARDIZED Doctor Robinson additionally reported the Medical Executive Committee
PROCEDURES FOR THE recommends approval of the following Standardized Procedures for the
NURSE PRACTITIONER  Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife:

OR CERTIFIED NURSE i.  General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse
MIDWIFE Midwife
ii.  Certified Nurse Midwife and Certified Nurse Midwife First
Assistant

lii.  Adult Health Maintenance

iv.  Emergency Care Policy

v.  Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy

vi.  Laboratory & Diagnostic Testing
vii.  Management of Acute IlIness
viii.  Management of Chronic IlIness

ix.  Management of Minor Trauma

X.  Minor Surgical Procedure

xi.  Well Child Care
It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Robert Sharp, and
unanimously passed to approve Standardized Procedures for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife 1 through 11 as presented.

STANDARDIZED Doctor Robinson also reported the Medical Executive Committee
PROTOCOLS FOR THE recommends approval of the following Standardized Protocols for the
PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT Physician Assistant:
i.  General Policy for the Physician Assistant
ii.  Medical Screening Examination for the Emergency Department
Physician Assistant
iii.  Physician Assistant in the Operating Room
iv.  Adult Health Maintenance
v.  Emergency Care Policy
vi.  Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing
vii.  Management of Acute IlIness
viii.  Management of Chronic IlIness
ix.  Management of Minor Trauma
X.  Medication/Device Policy
xi.  Minor Surgical Policy
xii.  Well Child Care Policy
It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously
passed to approve Standardized Protocols for the Physician Assistant 1
through 12 as presented.

PROPOSAL OF Doctor Robinson also presented a proposal for an expanded Chief of Staff
EXPANDED CHIEF OF Role as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee. The
STAFF POSITION proposal included an overview of the recommended responsibilities for

the Chief of Staff, and a financial analysis of the costs involved.

428




Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors

Regular Meeting

February 20, 2019
Page 3of 5

STRATEGIC PLAN
UPDATE, QUALITY
AND PERFORMANCE
COMMITTEE REPORT

RURAL HEALTH
CLINIC ANNUAL
REPORT

QUARTERLY
COMPLIANCE REPORT

DISTRICT WIDE
POLICY AND
PROCEDURE
APPROVALS

Following discussion of this agenda item Ms. Kilpatrick stated a decision
on this topic will be tabled to a future meeting of the District Board, in
order to allow for a deeper analysis of all aspects involved.

Stacey Brown MD provided an update on the activities of the Northern
Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Quality Improvement Operational Team,
established for the purpose of helping to achieve the quality and
performance-related goals of the District’s Strategic Plan. The group’s
current metric includes assessment of the NIHD employee flu vaccination
rate, as well as quarterly infection prevention education for District staff.
The District has achieved a year-to-date employee flu vaccination rate of
98%; and a year-to-date infection prevention education rate of 100%. The
group is also focused on enhancing a culture of safety District wide,
which includes implementation of an employee Safety Coach program at
NIHD.

Doctor Brown also provided an annual NIHD Rural Health Clinic update,
which included information on the following:
- History and evolution of the Rural Health Clinic (RHC) from 2001
to present
- Current Clinic status regarding staffing and care coordination
- Innovations implemented at the Clinic including telemedicine;
specialty services, and a Same Day Service line
- Report on the future direction of the Clinic including preventative
medicine; chronic care management; transitional care
management; after hours provider team contact; coordination with
new geriatric/memory services; and an expansion of services to
the Bishop Care Center

Compliance Officer Patty Dickson provided a quarterly Compliance
Department report which included the following:
- Comprehensive Compliance Program review
- Summary of Personal Health Information breaches for Calendar
Year 2018
- Review of compliance issues and inquiries
- Overview of audits performed; California Public Records Act
requests; the Compliance Work plan; Licensing Survey response
monitoring; and Conflicts of Interest questionnaires
It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and unanimously
passed to accept the Compliance Department quarterly report as
presented.

Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel called attention to the following
(proposed) District wide Policies and Procedures:
- Authorization of Hours Worked Beyond Regularly Scheduled Shift
(Including Overtime Request).
- Guidelines for Licensed Nurses Nursing Students Giving
Medications

429




Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors February 20, 2019

Regular Meeting

Page 4 of 5

CHARGE CAPTURE
POLICY

BOARD DISCUSSION
ON RESPONSE TO
EMAILS AND LETTERS

STRATEGIC PLAN
STATUS REPORT AND
NEXT STEPS

PHASE Il RESPONSE TO
BUDGET

BRIDGE GRANT
AWARD

OFFICE SPACE MOVES

CONSENT AGENDA

- Thrombolytic Therapy for Acute Myocardial Infarction
It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously
passed to approve all three Policies and Procedures as presented.

Chief Financial Officer John Tremble called attention to a proposed
Policy and Procedure titled Charge Capture Policy. It was moved by Mr.
Sharp, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and unanimously passed to approve the
proposed Charge Capture Policy as presented.

Discussion took place on the topic of Board of Directors response to
emails and letters received. At the conclusion of discussion it was
determined that receipt of correspondences by the Board can and should
be acknowledged (any number of Board members may respond
independently), then responsibility and determination of further action
needed will be handled by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO
will later provide feedback to the Board of Directors as appropriate.

Doctor Flanigan provided a status report on progress made toward
achieving the goals of the District’s Strategic Plan, including an overview
of leadership’s current strategies in the areas of patient experience; the
workforce experience; quality; and finance and market share. He also
provided a look forward at upcoming initiatives and proposed expansion
of services, as well as future leadership strategies.

Doctor Flanigan also provided an update on Phase Il of the District’s
response to a projected budget deficit for the second half of the current
fiscal year. He reviewed cost reduction efforts to date, and stated that
Phase Il will include looking at consolidation of responsibilities; pulling
two positions from the budget; changing staffing models; and an expected
expansion of the Chief of Staff role. He additionally noted that Phase 111
of the District’s response to budget will take place during the fourth
quarter of this fiscal year.

Doctor Flanigan also reported that NIHD has been selected to participate
in the California Bridge Program, an accelerated training program for
healthcare providers to facilitate treatment of substance use disorders.
The amount of NIHD’s Bridge grant award is $175,000, which will fund
an 18-month program developed in response to the opioid crisis.

Doctor Flanigan additionally stated there is some level of concern in the
community regarding the many office space moves and relocations of
staff that are currently in progress within the District. He explained that
reason for the moves is to consolidate departments into one area, in
particular Finance staff which is currently spread out in several different
locations within the facility.

Ms. Kilpatrick called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting,
which contained the following items:

430




Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors February 20, 2019

Regular Meeting

Page5of 5

BOARD MEMBER
REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT TO
CLOSED SESSION

RETURN TO OPEN
SESSION AND REPORT
OF ACTION TAKEN

ADJOURNMENT

- Approval of minutes of the January 16 2019 regular meeting

- Approval of minutes of the February 6 special meeting

- Policy and Procedure annual approvals
It was moved by Mr. Tracy, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously
passed to approve all three Consent Agenda items as presented.

Ms. Kilpatrick asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to
report on any items of interest. Director Turner expressed appreciation of
the Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) Legislative
Day, which was recently attended by the full Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. Director Sharp commented that he has received
positive feedback from employees regarding District leadership, and
Director Hubbard reminded everyone that the Blue Ribbon
Run/Walk/Ride event will take place on Saturday, March 9. No other
comments were heard.

At 8:00pm Ms. Kilpatrick announced the meeting would adjourn to
Closed Session to allow the Board of Directors to:
A. Confer with Legal Counsel regarding potential litigation, 1 matter
pending (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)).

At 8:15 pm the meeting returned to Open Session. Ms. Kilpatrick
reported the Board took no reportable action.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:16 pm.

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, President

Attest:

Robert Sharp, Secretary

431






